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Interview with Éric Marée, chairman of the executive board of Virbac group

Net
sales
€

773

M

Geographical breakdown

323 M
Latin America € 139 M
North America € 104 M
Asia € 97 M
Pacific € 80 M
Africa & Middle East € 30 M
Europe €

2014 an exceptional

year for Virbac?

Éric Marée: Indeed! 2014 will
be remembered as the year that
enabled us to completely change
our size in the United States with
the acquisition of the brands
Sentinel Flavor Tabs and Sentinel
Spectrum, hitherto properties of
Novartis, and that Eli Lilly and
Company, the buyer of all the
animal health business activities
from Novartis, had to divest in
order to respond to the requirements of the American antitrust
authorities. The strategic importance of this strengthening on the
companion animal market, which
we had sought for a long time, is
glaring: half of the world market
is located in the United States,
where Virbac’s market share,
which neared 4% until then,
prevented us from having strong
positions and from developing our
brands and our new products as
we desired.

BUSINESS:
A SIGNIFICANT
CHANGE IN THE
UNITED STATES

With this acquisition, Virbac’s
share in the United States market
is now at a level comparable to
that of Virbac in the rest of the
world. Another consequence:
we have doubled our size on the
American market for companion
animals and we are now tied in 5th
place with MSD and Boehringer.
Our sales force was also multiplied
by two, which has provided us with
the ability to cover much better the
American territory and to impose
ourselves faced to the competition
and the distribution.

And how about
our internal growth?

EM: 2014 truly cannot be reduced
to this acquisition. In a global
market which is back in shape in
Europe and which continues to
grow at a good pace in the rest of
the world, Virbac has returned to
a very satisfactory organic growth
(excluding acquisitions and currency
effects) of 6.3%, similar to that
of the market. Latin America as
well as Asia-Pacific, which are
experiencing a strong rebound,
have exceeded this level and
have offset the stagnation of
aquaculture sales that ensued
from the temporary reduction of

PRODUCTION:
SEVERAL PROJECTS
COMPLETED IN 2014

the quantities of salmon present
in Chilean farms following certain
health measures imposed by the
authorities to the farmers. On
the other hand, growth is lower
in the United States where the
absence of Iverhart Plus on the
market during the first half set
back performance. Conversely,
Europe accelerated in the second
half with the successful launch of
several new products, in particular
Milpro, a dewormer for dogs and
cats; Effitix, an external parasiticide for dogs, Cyclavance, a skin
anti-inflammatory for dogs and
cats, and Deltanil and Neoprinil,
parasiticides for ruminants. As
a consequence, organic growth
rebounded strongly in the second
half to 9.5% after a modest 3%
in the first half.
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And concerning

our f inancial
situation?

EMPLOYEES:
A STRENGTHENING
OF RECRUITMENT
AND TRAINING

Other events

in 2014?

EM: Yes. Several investment
projects on which we worked
for several years have been
completed and were inaugurated
in 2014: the new R&D centers on
the sites of St. Louis in the United
States and Santiago in Chile, the
new manufacturing plant of sterile
injectables in Carros and the
latest Virbac site in Guadalajara,
Mexico, which includes offices, a
warehouse and a factory. In these
production and R&D facilities, as
in existing units, the companies
continues to invest heavily in
recruitment and training to
bring the level of pharmaceutical
expertise up to the ever-increasing
levels required.

How is 2015

shaping up for Virbac?
EM: With the overall dynamics of
the global animal health market
and the increased success of the

6

products introduced recently, firstly
in Europe but also in other areas,
the company could experience in
2015 an organic growth comparable
to 2014. In addition, exchange
rates will have a positive impact
on overall performance if trends
noted recently, with the decline
of euro, are confirmed. However,
the company’s growth in the first
quarter will be partly hidden by a
low level of activity in the United
States. The American subsidiary
stopped its manufacturing and
shipments from its plant in
St. Louis (Missouri) at the beginning
of the year, in order to strengthen
and accelerate the implementation
of its plan for improving validation
and quality assurance procedures,
whose weaknesses were revealed
by a recent inspection of American
regulatory authorities. Shipments
should resume gradually in the
course of the month of March
and production, as of April. The
contribution of the Sentinel range
acquired in the United States which was not affected by the
previous point and whose sales
at the end of February reached
$25 million - will, on the other
hand, be very positive for increasing
the sales and results of the
company on an adjusted basis.
It will be added to the now positive
currency exchange impact. This
should enable Virbac to surpass
the €900 million threshold in
revenues in 2015.

EM: In terms of the deferred
results, the application of IFRS
(International financial reporting
standards) accounting principles
relating to business combinations
will produce, however, significant
annual depreciation, as well as
a one-time charge in the first year
due to the accounting revaluation
of acquired inventories. These
entries will reduce the profits
generated; their total effect is
currently being assessed by the
company. Furthermore, based on
an investment programme that
is slightly lighter than in previous
years and, hopefully, based on
effective management of our
working capital needs, we anticipate a rapid debt reduction, and
for the net debt/EBITDA ratio to
be once again less than three at
the end of the year.

INNOVATION:
SEVERAL INVESTMENTS
AND PARTNERSHIPS
FOR THE FUTURE
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At mid-year, the former signature “Passionate about animal health”
(launched in 2001) was replaced by the new Virbac signature: “Shaping the
future of animal health”. It better reflects the current reality of the company,
which has become a key player in animal health in nearly 50 years. The
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of course, the customers for which the company never ceases to innovate
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BALANCED GOVERNANCE
TO SUPPORT GROUP’S
DEVELOPMENT
The principles on which Virbac
bases its governance are those
that provide the balance required
for the Group’s performance and
successful development.

Separation of powers
and collegiality
Since 1992, there has been
a
clear
separation
between
Virbac’s strategic and operational
management functions, exercised
by the executive board, and
supervision of this management
function, devolved to the supervisory
board. This structure meets the
desire to establish a balance of
power between the executive and
supervisory functions. It involves
a regular and effective dialogue
between the executive board and
the supervisory board, as well as
mutual trust.
Collegiality is a key organisational
principle in Virbac’s governance.
Its two governing bodies, the

supervisory
board
and
the
executive board, operate on the
basis that their respective members
seek common positions and take
collective decisions, working as real
team.

Committed and experienced
management
Virbac’s governance is based
on enhanced governing bodies,
composed of members with a
strong and long-term level of
commitment. Their professional
experience covers many of the
aspects involved in the day-today management of a major
international group. With the
exception of its vice-chairwoman, all
of the supervisory board’s members
are corporate executives with
extensive operational management
experience. Virbac’s management,
whether members of its supervisory
board or members of its executive
board, is committed to providing

sustained support for the Group’s
long-term strategy. Moreover, the
involvement of supervisory board
members and the non-voting advisor
is not limited to their participation
in formal board debates. Their
involvement also includes regular
informal discussions and periodic
ad hoc meetings if circumstances
so require.

Continual improvements to
governance
Virbac follows the recommendations
of the current Afep-Medef corporate
governance code. The Group
continues
to
improve
its
governance practices. In some
cases, it surpasses the objectives
set by the Afep-Medef code:
• half of the members of Virbac’s
supervisory board are independent
members;
• the supervisory board is genderbalanced and made up of three
women and three men.

THE EXECUTIVE BOARD
The executive board is responsible
for the strategic and operational
management of the Virbac group. Its
five members work closely together
and they take collective decisions.
This way of working encourages
joint reflection and the search for a
consensus.
The members of the executive board
regularly discuss the company’s
long-term vision and operational

Éric Marée,
chairman
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requirements outside the formal
meetings of the executive board.
This flexible organisation allows a
high level of responsiveness when
taking strategic decisions.
The executive board reports on its
work to the supervisory board and
submits all of the Group’s strategic
operations to the supervisory board
for its formal approval.
It is supported in its work by a

Christian Karst,
General manager and
executive
vice-president for
corporate development

Michel Garaudet,
chief financial
officer

regular dialogue with the members
of the strategic committee. In
addition to the members of the
executive board, the strategic
committee also includes the Group’s
eight functional directors and five
area directors.

Sébastien Huron,
head of Global Business
Operations

Jean-Pierre Dick,
responsible for special
projects and chairman
of the Fondation
d'Entreprise Virbac, a
corporate foundation

THE SUPERVISORY
BOARD
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The supervisory board ensures the
permanent control of the management
of the executive board, and the
regular review of the accounts and of
all major projects and investments.
The supervisory board comprises six
members including three independent
members:

1

Marie-Hélène Dick,
chairwoman

2

Jeanine Dick,
vice-chairwoman

3

Olivier Bohuon,
independent member

4

Philippe Capron,
independent member

5

Pierre Madelpuech,
permanent representative
of the company Asergi

6

Grita Loebsack,
independent member

Two special committees aid the
supervisory board in its tasks:
the audit committee and the
compensation committee. The
supervisory board is assisted by a
non-voting advisor, 7 Xavier Yon.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The audit committee is in charge of reviewing financial disclosures and the
management of risks and accounting practices. Its responsibilities are as
follows:
•	ensure the relevance, consistency and reliability of the accounting
methods;
•	verify the existence and effectiveness of internal control and risk
management procedures;
•	express its opinion on the validity of the accounting treatment of
major transactions;
• select the statutory auditors.
It is comprised of Philippe Capron, chairman, Olivier Bohuon and Pierre
Madelpuech.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE
The compensation committee is responsible for:
•	d rawing up recommendations and proposals regarding the
compensation of the members of the executive board;
•	remaining informed about the group's general human resources
policy and more specifically, the compensation policy for the group's
main executives;
•	reviewing proposals and conditions relating to stock grants;
•	drawing up proposals regarding the amounts of directors' fees to
be paid to the members of the supervisory board.
It is comprised of Marie-Hélène Dick, chairwoman, Olivier Bohuon and
Grita Loebsack.

NON-VOTING
ADVISOR
Xavier Yon,
permanent representative of the
company XYC.

STATUTORY
AUDITORS
Deloitte & Associés, represented
by Hugues Desgranges.
Novances-David & Associés,
represented by Jean-Pierre
Giraud.
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I

nnovation: several investments
and partnerships for the future

The year 2014 will be a great
vintage for Virbac innovation,
the result of approximately
forty registration procedures
carried out between 2012 and
2014. Among them, there are
the new drugs that will produce
our successes of tomorrow.
They are called Milpro,
Effitix, Cyclavance, Grofactor,
Deltanil, Neoprinil and
Curacef Duo. These marketing
authorisations are part of an
R&D policy conducted by Virbac
for almost half a century on all
continents. Because R&D and
innovation require extensive
expertise, we have built a
network of collaborations and
partnerships with public and
private stakeholders, of high
quality, in the quest of promising
innovations.They resemble the
agreement forged with Nexvet,
specialised in the development
of monoclonal antibodies for
pets, which should lead to the
development of innovative drugs
for the treatment of pain.

Jean-Pascal Marc,
Corporate Product
Innovation director

The science of ergonomics and
use safety in the spotlight
Virbac and packaging innovation: it
is a long story! In 2014, the Group
was thrice awarded for its Flexibag®
and Farmpack® innovations, receiving a “Janus de la Santé” (Health
Janus) for Eco Design, the Pharmapack prize, and a “Sommets
d’Or” (Golden Summit) at the 2014
sommet de l’élevage (Food Producing animal summit). With very innovative connectors developed by
an automotive supplier’s research
to be specifically used on the
flexible “eco-refilling” pockets, this
ergonomic backpack allows farmers to be hands-free and changes
treatment practices by offering
ergonomics and use safety. It especially serves the new broadspectrum parasiticide for bovines
based on eprinomectin launched in
the majority of European subsidiaries during the second half of 2014.

12

Shaping the future of animal health

global management of innovation projects organised by industry
and innovations inspired as much by listening to our customers
as by technological opportunities

St. Louis :
to innovate even more
Inaugurated in April 2014 and entirely dedicated to R&D, the new
building of 800 m2 of St. Louis site
equips the U.S. subsidiary with new
ways to innovate on a larger scale.
On one hand, it can house the
equipment needed for the development of pilot batches and industrial
scale-up activities. On the other
hand, this new infrastructure provides the ability for carrying out
several projects simultaneously.

7.8

% of sales

invested in RDL
in 2014

R&D: a multi-player game
The quality and the means put at the service of Research, development
and licensing (RDL) shape Virbac’s performance and growth for tomorrow.
And especially its ability to respond to the continuing evolution of the
animal health sector. Today, Virbac has research centres on every continent in order to adapt itself to issues and local regulations. The successes
achieved in 2014 are the result of a joint construction effort between its
research centres around the world. Together, they pool their resources and
their means in joint R&D projects for companion animals on a global scale.
As for our marketing teams, they work hand-in-hand with researchers
starting from the expectations and the needs of customers. In parallel and
in addition, the Group pursues an active policy of technology partnerships
and licensing in biological and pharmaceutical areas with public and
private stakeholders. The goal: to have access to new technologies or
molecules offering significant benefits to customers.

Nexvet and Virbac:
a promising working pair
On December 15, 2014, Virbac and
the Australian biopharmaceuticals
company Nexvet signed a collaborative partnership with a duration of
10 years. Together, they will develop
a new range of veterinary drugs
based on monoclonal antibodies
previously used in human medicine.
Thanks to the new “PETization ™”
technology, veterinarians will have
a range of latest generation drugs.
First step: the treatment of pain
associated with osteoarthritis in dogs.

Aquaculture:
new investment of 1,300 m2
The market of products for the
protection and treatment of aquaculture farms is booming. In 2014,
the R&D infrastructures of the
Chilean subsidiary Centrovet were
revamped. With these 1,300 m²
which offer the best working conditions to its approximately sixty researchers and technicians, most
of whom specialise in aquaculture,
Virbac consolidated its position as
the world laboratory at the service
of research for the salmon industry.
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I

ndustrial tool: between
growth and sophistication

Versatile, integrated and responsive,
our production system is a key
driver of our performance.
It has a history of continuous
development. It is distinguished by
its flexibility and its proximity to
our R&D centres which facilitates
the development of the first
pilot batches. Optimising Virbac
infrastructure and equipment is a
permanent activity. This optimisation
is technological, as shown by the
recent inauguration of the ultramodern production unit dedicated
to sterile injectables, VB8 at
Carros. It is also organisational,
in order to satisfy all regulations
and ensure the best quality to our
customers. Therefore in 2014,
we invested to equip ourselves
with an even more responsive
supply chain in accordance with
the highest standards of quality.
More than ever, compliance today
represents an opportunity to
grow and improve the control
of our processes.

Production
sites in
10 countries
Did you say Movex M3?
Information systems are at the
heart of a company’s performance.
This is even more true when it
comes to production and logistics.
We must therefore constantly
integrate the best solutions. This
is what was done in October 2014
with the adoption of Movex M3,
an ERP that is even more efficient
and ergonomic. With this software
package for managing production,
distribution and logistics activities,
Virbac has raised its level of regulatory compliance and enhanced
both mobility in its warehouses
and the collaboration between the
production and business teams.

Marc Bistuer,
head of Global Industrial
Operations & Corporate
Quality Assurance

150 000

quality controls
carried out in France

from raw materials to
finished products

Capabilities reinforced
in Vietnam
In September 2014, a second production line of chews was put into
operation at the Ho Chi Minh site.
Starting in 2013, Virbac had decided
upon this investment in order to
increase its production capacity and
respond to the demand. Production
volumes have increased by 85%
compared to 2013.
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Shaping the future of animal health

The flexibility of our industrial tool, coupled with our investment strategy, enables us
to adapt our production volumes to the demand and to respond to changing markets and
regulations. The goal is to market the right product at the right time in full compliance.

VB8: a pioneering achievement
in France in the animal health
industry
28 million euros: this is the amount
invested in this state-of-the-art
sterile forms production unit and
in a new, high output vaccine line.
VB8 primarily manufactures injectables for ruminants. With this
building, Virbac has made a technological leap forward in quality
and security. 35 people work in this
building, which is structured around
two key principles: “forwards only”
by clearly separating human, material and product flows, and the
partitioning of production and technical areas. Ergonomic workstations, ease of maintenance... the
building has been entirely conceived
and designed to optimise the
efficiency of the employees and
their comfort. Up to 50 different
formulas and 5.5 million vials will be
produced here every year.

55

€

M

invested in
the VB8 sites
in France and Argo
Navis in Mexico

The ruminants market is booming
28%: this was the share in Virbac’s revenue achieved on the ruminants
market in 2014. Buoyed by an intensive global demand for animal proteins,
the ruminants market is showing non-stop growth. Heterogeneous by the
size of the farms and the diversity of the yields, this sector uses multiple
products to ensure the health of the ruminants. This takes place at
all levels: curative, preventive and nutritional. By investing in the
production plants of VB8 in Carros and Argo Navis in Guadalajara,
Virbac has strengthened its position in this promising market segment.
In Mexico,
Virbac was given a makeover
Virbac’s 25th anniversary in Mexico
was celebrated by the inauguration
of its new Argo Navis site near
Guadalajara, which houses offices,
quality control laboratories, the
regional R&D centre, a logistics
warehouse and a production area.
Entirely dedicated to the ruminants
market, its industrial activity revolves
around a production line for intramammaries, a unit for premixes
and three production lines for injectables. 60% of the latter will be
exported to Latin America, Asia,
Africa and the Middle East.
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A

more global and agile
business approach

In 2014, the United States market
was a priority for Virbac. The reconfiguration of our management
team and the acquisition of the
SENTINEL products reflect our
determination to grow in this
country, which alone accounts for
almost half of the world market
for companion animals. In this
segment, our growth momentum
continues to be driven at the
global level by our innovation, as
shown by the launching of products
such as Milpro or Effitix in Europe.
In order to keep pace with demographic growth around the world,
we are also investing in the
animal product market. After several
external growth operations
in recent years, in 2014 we
launched new products such as
Deltanil, Neoprinil and Grofactor.
Because developing our business
abroad is important, we made our
marketing approach more effective
via a more global operation. The
evolution of our business sector
leads us to continuously reinvent
ourselves, by being eager to develop our creativity which is essential
for customer satisfaction and for
improving our productivity in order
to remain competitive.

Sébastien Huron,
head of Global
Business Operations

16

+70 %

With SENTINEL, Virbac has
joined the “big league” in the
United States
By acquiring the SENTINEL products
that Lilly, the buyer of Novartis, had
to divest in order to satisfy antitrust
requirements in the United States,
Virbac has moved into a new scale of
business. These products make Virbac
the third largest player in the dog parasiticide market in the United States.
The acquisition of SENTINEL FLAVOR
TABS and SENTINEL SPECTRUM
was concluded on January 2, 2015.
In 2014, these two parasiticides
achieved revenues of $92 million.

PROVISIONAL
INCREASE
IN REVENUES
IN THE UNITED
STATES IN 2015

And what about milk?
A group of 230 milk industry professionals, veterinarians, farmers and
Virbac employees from around the
world gathered in Juan-les-Pins
in early October at the company’s
initiative. Eleven high-level scientific
conferences had been proposed on
the theme of the 150 critical days for
dairy cows. This is a topic that is of
strategic importance for Virbac which
obtains almost 30% of its revenues
from ruminants, half of which comes
from the dairy industry.

Shaping the future of animal health

Day-to-day, we remain close to our customers, mainly
veterinarians and farmers for whom we develop complete solutions
covering the majority of species and pathologies.

more than

1,000

different products
sold in 2014

A new organisation for greater simplicity and efficiency
Ranked 7th veterinary pharmaceutical company in the world, Virbac
is growing in a market typified by increased globalisation and regulatory
convergence. As its international growth accelerates further, notably
through acquisitions, the company has needed to globalise some positions
in order to optimise the coordination of its business activities, strengthen
its trademark everywhere and sharpen its competitiveness. Therefore,
in 2014, our marketing team reinvented its operating mode. Baptised
Global Marketing and Business Support & Optimisation (GMBO), the new
organisation will enable better use of our products and our brands, acting
as a more powerful driver for our R&D investments throughout the world.
On the menu: an even more collaborative way of working, a rise in skills with
the launch of the Virbac business school and a clarification of Virbac’s product
catalogue. For more efficiency and a better reputation and profitability.

+€

26

M
contribution by
the new 2014
products

Virbac, a holistic approach against canine leishmaniosis
Effitix is the new Virbac parasiticide that completes Virbac’s arsenal in Europe
against this zoonotic disease which can be fatal to dogs. Its strength: a
repulsive action with a duration greater than that of the competitors. This
anti-flea and anti-tick product with a repellent effect on mosquitoes and
sandflies complements our tool kit against leishmaniosis which already
includes a rapid diagnosis product (Speed Leish K), a preventive vaccine
(CaniLeish) and a treatment product (Milteforan).
All medicines or products mentioned in this document can be not authorised or not marketed in all the countries
including France.
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A

unique human
adventure

Virbac is a company that is
continuously growing. For the last
four years, the Virbac headcount
has grown by 1,000 people.
Therefore we need to attract new
talents as well as retain the current
employees and foster their development.
Innovative and effective employees
who are continuously growing.
This is why we have formalised our
communications as an employer.
Our purpose is to enable everyone
to speak with a single voice
around the world as an employer
and to recruit the men and women
who are ready to meet the Virbac’s
challenges. This work, for example,
has enabled us to carry out a
commando operation to recruit
90 ex-Novartis employees in
the United States following the
acquisition of the SENTINEL
products. We are also working
on the design of common tools for
the development of skills, mobility
or global recruitment, in order to
increase our effectiveness and
professionalism, and to support
the growth of Virbac.

Commando operation !
After its acquisition of the SENTINEL
products in the United States,
Virbac has demonstrated great
responsiveness and efficiency in
building up its sales force. In one
week, 205 Novartis employees met
with us and 90 have now joined
the Virbac teams. What are the ingredients for success? A corporate
culture that engages everyone, an
employer value proposition that
really hits the mark and the warm
welcome we provide to one and all.
Welcome to Virbac.

Vanessa Petiteville,
HR manager

Carole Deschandol,
Corporate Talent manager

On the programme:
attractiveness, visibility
and mobility
As of 2015, Australia, the United
States and France have been sharing
a common recruitment platform in
order to standardise and professionalise their approach in this area.
Deployment in other countries will
follow in 2016. This way, applicants
and employees will be aware of
professional opportunities within
the Virbac company. For enhanced
attractiveness and mobility. Mobility
is precisely one of the objectives of
the Talent Management approach,
which was also deployed to boost
careers abroad in particular.

31% of our
leaders worldwide
are women

4 500

employees
100 professions dedicated
to customer satisfaction
Development of skills:
3 training days per employee
and per year on average
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Shaping the future of animal health

Shaping the future of animal health entails attracting or putting in place the best talents
in key positions within the organisation. It also means giving everyone the means
to thrive and grow so as to provide an optimum service to our customers.

+1 000

employees
in 4 years

Did you say Perf?
Performance, appraisal, reward,
training... Between Virbac and its
managers, there is a good vibe.
The company has formalised a
comprehensive policy and system
to professionalise the management
of its employees. On the menu:
job description, training, appraisal,
goal-setting, salary review and a
strongly involved management...
In 2014, Australia deployed this
approach for all its managers. It
significantly improved practices,
especially
day-to-day
pastoral
support offered by managers to
their employees.

Take your talent into new territories
Virbac is an atypical company on its market because of its size, dynamism
and its state of mind. We still have to express and explain this difference.
Given that the battle for talent is real, Virbac has formalised its employer communications system. Aim? To develop an attractive and
homogeneous communication system available worldwide to attract
and retain the best professionals. They are the inventive, committed
and enterprising employees who want to participate in a unique human
adventure on the market that has been underway for nearly 50 years.
This employer message revolves around three pillars: continuous
development in order to grow professionally, innovative thinking
dedicated to animal health, and a people-centric organisation. With
this new communication platform, Virbac put reality into words
and made an ambition concrete: that of a company espousing a
culture of close relationships with its customers and markets
and of a company which is performing better and better on
a global scale. “Take your talent into new territories” means
integrating a company that constantly pushes its boundaries
and where each employee also pushes his or her own limits.

2013 internal opinion survey: 90% of employees
agree or totally agree that they wish to continue
their career at Virbac

6.6% average annual growth
in the workforce in the last
10 years
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Company profile
Presentation

STRATEGY AND ANALYSIS
1.1 Statement from the most senior decision-maker on the importance of sustainable
development for the organisation and its strategy
There are several reasons why it is natural for Virbac to continue its long-term development. The majority of Virbac’s
capital is controlled by one family, that of the founder, Dr Pierre-Richard Dick. His profoundly humane values have
marked the company and remain the foundation upon which the company strategy is built. As with many family
businesses, the ability to envision the long term and act accordingly runs in the company’s blood. Furthermore,
being a listed company only serves to advance this vision, because increasing numbers of shareholders favour
companies whose strategies incorporate sustainable development goals that enhance (rather than impede) economic
performance. Virbac’s mission of developing, manufacturing and selling veterinary medicines and, more generally,
animal health products places it at the heart of the food chain. Its customers, veterinarians and farmers, are
becoming increasingly aware of their impact on the environment and human health. Virbac is therefore drawn
naturally towards directing its activities accordingly.
The Group’s fast growth reinforces both its local and its global nature at the same time, and leads to additional
requirements. Virbac is consequently deeply anchored in its native region, the Côte d’Azur, where it is the largest
company of local origin. Its visibility is growing with an expanding workforce and investments in its native area. As
such, it must endeavour to set both a social and environmental example for its employees and its community. At the
same time, however, Virbac is now a global company, with more than 60% of revenues coming from outside Europe
and 31 commercial subsidiaries spread across every continent. The company must ensure that its development
respects certain common guiding principles, regardless of where it operates, in particular in social and environmental
issues and all the while incorporating developmental targets.
Since 2012 the company’s progress towards sustainable development has been audited by one of the company’s
statutory auditors. The audit is very solidly based in three areas.
In the social sphere, respect for human beings was one of the key values of the company’s founder: the pursuit of
real social dialogue, a remuneration and welfare policy for employees at the lower end of the salary scale, and the
confidence and interest shown in every employee therefore represent some of Virbac’s traditional values. The
company is committed to preserving and fostering this legacy by complementing it with ambitious skills development
policies.
In the environmental sphere, the company’s operations guarantee strict quality requirements (compliance, for
example, with Best manufacturing practices and with Best laboratory practices). In addition, several years ago the
company launched lean manufacturing and continuous improvement projects designed to steadily cut waste and
optimise use of resources. The search for energy savings and respect for the environment are increasingly
integrated systematically into the company’s key decisions (on investment, transport, product design, etc.).
In the financial sphere, the company’s goal is to continue posting the steady and profitable growth it has seen
almost annually since it was founded. This development is primarily based on solid organic growth, driven by
innovation and the strength of Virbac’s customer relationships. The company regularly boosts its development
through targeted acquisitions, all the while ensuring a controlled level of net debt. This strategy is pursued within
the framework of a straightforward and clear governance structure providing shareholders with a high level of
transparency. Without resorting to extreme communication efforts, Virbac has been implementing an authentic
approach targeting long-term development that respects customers, employees, shareholders, partners and its
environment.
Éric Marée

1.2 Description of key impacts, risks, and opportunities
In its capacity as a veterinary pharmaceutical laboratory, Virbac provides veterinarians and farmers with medicines
and vaccines that improve the health of food producing animals, as well as create a more abundant global supply of
meat and milk that is higher quality and less expensive. The challenge is to respond to a demand for nutrition, which
is constantly increasing in terms of the required quality and quantity, for a growing global population which wants
better food. Virbac also offers veterinarians and pet owners medication, vaccines and health products which make
animals live longer and improve their quality of life. This in turn contributes to the increased well-being of the
owners and is a particular benefit for those who live alone. Virbac’s R&D efforts have led to the development of
treatments and vaccines against infections that still remain poorly treated (e.g. the vaccine and treatment against
canine leishmaniosis) or that present a new risk of an epizootic.
The primary risks for Virbac and all veterinary pharmaceutical laboratories are:
• producing medicines or vaccines of inadequate pharmaceutical quality, which could have potentially damaging
effects on the health of animals and, therefore, humans. The obligation to get marketing authorisation from the
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health authorities, the obligation to conform to Best laboratory and Best manufacturing practices, as well as the
obligation to establish adequate quality assurance and quality control procedures allow the Group to reduce its
exposure to this risk;

• not being innovative enough to respond to the needs of veterinarians for several reasons:

− insufficient R&D budget;
− too few quality projects that would facilitate obtaining new molecules, new pharmaceutical forms, or new
vaccines;
− taking excessive risks, particularly in countries which do not have enough regulations, enabling products
to come onto the market which are not effective enough or could even be dangerous;
− excessive caution in well regulated countries that could lead to weak innovation, thereby harming the
community.

• causing spreading environmental hazards or increasing health risks for employees, caused by insufficient
control over certain medical compounds or materials used in the R&D or production process.
Just as for any industrial company, there are opportunities for improvement in the environmental sphere:
• the industrial policy that encourages production locally (from one to three production sites per world region)
is important for limiting the transport of end products. However, there are nevertheless opportunities for
optimising the transport of end products, as well as raw materials, that could further limit CO2 emissions;
• energy use at the various production sites could be further reduced by optimising processes, improving the
insulation in the operations buildings, and ensuring that new buildings meet higher environmental quality
standards. Further improvements in water use would also be possible. It is possible to increase the share of
recycled materials used in the end products within the limits imposed by pharmaceutical regulations. The
volume of waste generated from the various sites could be further cut and the percentage of waste sorted could
be increased.
In the social sphere, the main areas for improvement are in increasing employee safety in the workplace: reduction
of accidents at work, improved protection from potentially hazardous materials, improved ergonomy and
management of psychosocial risks. Ongoing development of skills through training and enhanced diversity
management are also areas of continuous improvement for Virbac.
In the economic sphere, finally, there are three areas for improvement:
• helping our customers to better prescribe and better use our products by promoting the responsible use of
veterinary medicines through tailored support and training activities;
• further developing our relations with suppliers engaged in sustainable development practices;
• expanding risk management practices throughout the Group.

ORGANISATIONAL PROFILE
2.1 Name of the organisation
See pages 22, 144 and 188 of the annual report.

2.2 Primary brands, products, and/or services
See pages 216 to 218 of the annual report.

2.3 Operational structure of the organisation, including main divisions, operating
companies, subsidiaries, and joint ventures
See page 188 of the annual report.

2.4 Location of the organisation’s headquarters
See page 144 of the annual report.

23

2.5 Number of countries where the organisation operates, and names of countries with
either major operations or operations that are especially relevant to the sustainable
development issues covered in the report
See pages 5, 14, 18 and 188 of the annual report.

2.6 Nature of capital and legal form
See pages 114 and 144 of the annual report.

2.7 Markets served (including geographic breakdown, sectors served, and types of
customers or beneficiaries)
See pages 78 to 84 of the annual report.

2.8 Size of the organisation
See pages 7-8, 53 and 89-91 of the annual report

2.9 Significant changes during the reporting period regarding size, structure, or capital
See pages 84 and 114 of the annual report.

2.10 Awards received in the reporting period
No significant awards were sought in 2014.

SCOPE OF REPORT
3.1 Reporting period for information provided
January 1, 2014 – December 31, 2014.

3.2 Date of most recent previous report (if any)
This document is Virbac’s seventh annual sustainable development report and the third to have been checked by an
independent auditor for completeness of content and a selection of environmental and social indicators. This document
also adopts the format of the GRI international standard guidelines 3.0 - application level B+.

3.3 Reporting cycle (annual, biennial, etc.)
Annual.

3.4 Who to contact regarding questions about the report or its contents
Arnaud Brisset - Corporate Communications manager - arnaud.brisset@virbac.com
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3.5 Process for defining report content
An internal sustainable development work group, managed by the chairman of the executive board, has existed for
seven years. All of the company’s departments are represented within this task force: HR, Finance, Marketing, Risk,
Safety, Regulatory, Sourcing, Legal, Communications, etc. In the course of individual and group meetings (more
than ten per year), the content of the report is defined and then produced according to two specific criteria:
relevance of topics in relation to the Group’s activity, and compliance with the Grenelle II law in France. Lastly, the
final contents are discussed during an open debate chaired by the chairman of the executive board.
In terms of data collection, the work group has used an optimised production and recovery process since 2012,
whereby indicators and the scope of reporting have been formalised within a dedicated framework used throughout
the biggest subsidiaries of the Group. This optimisation also applies to the organisation and training of a network of
local correspondents whose particular assignment revolves around the major areas in sustainable development:
environmental, social and economic.

3.6 Scope of report (e.g. countries, divisions, subsidiaries, joint ventures, suppliers)
For all social indicators, the 2014 scope includes a new country - New Zealand - in addition to the other main Group
subsidiaries: France, Mexico, USA, Australia, South Africa, India, Germany, Spain, Italy, United Kingdom, Brazil,
Colombia, Vietnam and Japan. These social indicators only cover permanent employees (those with a permanent
contract), except for information on frequency and severity rates (work-related accidents) which also include
employees on fixed-term contracts.
For the main environmental indicators, the area covers all major production sites (France, Mexico, USA, Australia,
South Africa, Vietnam, New Zealand and Brazil), except for Chile, which is a joint venture, and Uruguay, which
recently entered into the financial area. For reasons of maturity of reporting, certain indicators are collected in a
more limited area and the Group is working to expand this area. Any exclusions are specified in the report.

3.7 Statement of any specific limitations on the scope or area of the report
Environmental reporting covers all the integrity of major production sites, which represent two thirds of the Group’s
total revenue. Transport-related CO2 emissions for this area have not been calculated. The figures are only available
for France. Moreover, the Grenelle II provision on ground use has not been covered, as it was found to be
inapplicable with regard to the Virbac group’s activities and establishments. Regarding the provisions for
environmental hazards, Virbac is currently working together with an external service provider who is evaluating the
French Group sites. This work started following the publication of the French decree of May 3, 2012, regarding the
compulsory provision of financial guarantees for safety procedures for some facilities classified for environmental
protection. Pending receipt of more reliable data, the Group is not publishing this information in the present report.
Finally, in order to adapt to the consequences of climate change, the Group has for the moment not performed any
analyses of the possible impacts of its activities.
The social report, as described previously, covers 82% of the total number of Group employees with permanent
contracts this year. The report does not cover the following themes:
• the Group’s policy on health and safety at work;
• organisation of working hours;
• record of agreements reached in this regard with staff representative bodies.
In the coming years, Virbac will work towards extending the area of reporting by gradually integrating these themes.

3.8 Basis for reporting on joint ventures, subsidiaries, leased facilities, outsourced
operations, and other entities that can significantly affect comparability from period to
period
The environmental and social impacts of the Chilean subsidiary, which is a 51% holding, are not yet taken into
account in the report for 2014. The impacts for the production sites in Uruguay will be taken into account in 2015.
Apart from the integration of New Zealand into the reporting area, there are consequently no unreported operations
capable of having a major impact on earnings and that could skew the comparison with prior years.

3.9 Measuring techniques for data and calculation bases, including underlying
assumptions and techniques to apply estimates while gathering indicators and other
information in this report
For all accounting-related Group information, IFRS financial standards apply. A specific reporting method for any
non-accounting related data has been developed with the methodological support of experts, the aim being to
comply with the new French regulations in force (Grenelle II).
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3.10 Explanation of the effects of any re-statements of information provided in earlier
reports, and the reasons for such re-statements (e.g. mergers/acquisitions, change of
base years/periods, nature of business, measurement methods)
A more formalised methodology based on a consistent definition of the indicators and support for the local
correspondents was implemented in 2012. In certain cases, it can be difficult to compare with prior data. In the
event of amendments, they are explained in the relevant sections.

3.11 Significant changes from previous reports in terms of period, in the scope and in
the measurement methods applied in the report
In 2014, the only notable change has to do with the integration of the New Zealand subsidiary. Moreover, the
methods for calculation of the indicator concerning non-hazardous waste and industrial waste in Mexico and the USA
have been made more accurate by measuring the weight of each type of waste.

3.12 Table identifying the location of the standard disclosures in the report
This document maintains the exact structure of the GRI framework. The detailed index is available at the following
address: www.virbac.com/gri-fr

3.13 Policy and current practice with regard to third party audit of the report
This report was audited by one of Virbac’s statutory auditors - Deloitte - to make sure it includes all information on
sustainable development required by law and to verify the correctness of all public information under the relevant
regulations. See certificate on pages 74 and 75 of the present document.

GOVERNANCE, COMMITMENT, AND DIALOGUE
4.1 Governance structure of the organisation, including committees under the highest
governance body responsible for specific tasks, such as setting strategy or
organisational oversight
See pages 9 to 11 and 122 to 124 of the annual report.

4.2 Indicate whether the chair of the highest governance body is also an executive
officer
See page 102 of the annual report.

4.3 For organisations that have a unitary board structure, state the number and gender
of members of the highest governance body that are independent and/or non-executive
members
See page 122 of the annual report.

4.4 Mechanisms for shareholders and employees to provide recommendations or
direction to the highest governance body
For employees, three elected staff members will be invited to all supervisory board meetings. In France, the
president of the executive board is president of the works’ council and is an active participant in it. He frequently
participates in the CHSCT (Hygiene, safety and working conditions committee). For shareholders, the annual general
meeting and the www.virbac.com website are two dedicated channels of communication provided for sending their
requests.
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4.5 Linkage between compensation for members of the highest governance body, senior
managers and executives (including departure arrangements), and the organisation’s
performance (including social and environmental performance)
See pages 102 to 112 of the annual report.

4.6 Processes introduced by the highest governance body to avoid conflicts of interest
See indicator SO3 and pages 202 and 203 of the annual report: special report by the statutory auditors on the
regulated conventions and commitments.

4.7 Process for determining the composition, qualifications and expertise of the
members of the highest governance body, including gender and other diversity
indicators
The recruitment process for independent members of the highest governance body exclusively complies with the
skills criteria specific to the position and industrial sector. Independent members make up half of the highest
governance body.

4.8 Internally developed statements of mission or values, codes of conduct, and
principles relevant to economic, environmental, and social performance and the status
of their implementation
Virbac values (innovation, customer-driven, entrepreneurship, empowerment and team work) are widely encouraged
throughout all its sites and incorporated into each important company event. They are explicitly and systematically
explained during a presentation given by one of the Group managers for all new arrivals. This presentation, the “Virbac
Way”, illustrates how the company’s values and strategic guiding principles are implemented in the various Group entities.
The Group code of ethics and other codes of best practices are also presented to all new recruits and may be easily
accessed on the Intranet. A Group code of conduct is currently being drafted, replacing the current code of professional
ethics, and it will be presented to Virbac employees in 2015.

4.9 Procedures of the highest governance body for overseeing the organisation’s
identification and management of economic, environmental, and social performance,
including relevant risks and opportunities, and compliance with internationally agreed
standards, codes of conduct, and principles
At the end of 2009, the Virbac Group set up a Risk management department which reports to the executive board.
Its top priority was to map out major risks for the Group; this list was updated during the first half of 2013. This
mapping out of risks was presented to the supervisory board, which ratified its contents. The risks identified are
representative of the economic, environmental and social risks, among others, that the company faces. Risk owners
are appointed to define, implement and oversee action plans on priority risks. The result of these activities is
presented to the highest governance body every year along with the Risk management objectives and guidelines for
the next year.
The actions undertaken to develop the culture of risk continued in 2014 in the Group. These actions included the
following in particular:
- the internal deployment of a training program entitled “Risk management: the fundamentals” (thirty managers
from headquarters trained in 2014);
- the development of a methodological framework for risk management with certain company positions (allowing
them to manage the risks inherent in their activities autonomously; in 2014, a project started under the direction of
Group quality assurance);
- the implementation of a solfware tool specifically dedicated to risk management (deployed at the company’s
headquarters and in a first subsidiary internationally);
- the launching of a project for securing the Group’s major products (sponsored by two members of the executive
board and piloted by the Risk management department).

Deployment of risk management mechanisms in subsidiaries

This mechanism consists of mapping out risks for the subsidiary, nominating risk owners, and implementing and
following up on action plans for major subsidiary risks. In 2014, this system was rolled out in the Group’s Uruguayan
and Brazilian subsidiaries. The mechanism will be deployed in additional subsidiaries in 2015.
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4.10 Processes for evaluating the highest governance body’s own performance,
particularly with respect to economic, environmental, and social issues
Virbac is a company with an executive board and supervisory board. Environmental, social and economic
performance is closely monitored by the supervisory board. For further information, please consult the report of the
chairwoman of the supervisory board on pages 122 to 132 of the annual report.

4.11 Explanation of the organisation’s position regarding the approach or principle of
precaution and its actions on the subject
Given the nature of pharmaceutical activities, Virbac systematically abides by the principle of precaution. However,
the Group ensures that this principle does not disproportionately impact the innovation process by prioritising the
risk/benefit analysis where appropriate.

4.12 Externally developed economic, environmental, and social charters, principles, or
other initiatives to which the organisation subscribes or which it endorses
Virbac’s commitments are based on the principles set out in the following international documents:
• the Universal declaration of human rights;
• the international conventions of the International labour organisation;
• the guiding principles of the Organisation for economic co-operation and development (OECD) as regards
multinational companies.

4.13 Memberships of professional associations and/or national/ international advocacy
organisations in which the organisation has positions in governance bodies,
participates in projects or committees, provides substantive funding beyond routine
membership dues, or views membership as strategic
Similar to all other large veterinary pharmaceutical laboratories, Virbac belongs to the primary professional
organisations representing animal health: IFAH (International federation for animal health) and all its subdivisions
(AHI America, IFAH-Europe in Europe, SIMV in France, NOAH UK, etc.).

4.14 List of stakeholder groups engaged by the organisation
The main stakeholder groups engaged by the Group are veterinarians, distributors, farmers, animal owners,
employees, regulatory authorities, suppliers, shareholders and communities.
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4.15 Basis for identification and selection of stakeholders with whom to engage
Listening to stakeholders is a key factor in Virbac’s sustainable development strategy in order to be aware of the
expectations of customers, employees, suppliers, scientists, residents near its sites, representatives of public
authorities, and non-governmental organisations.
The stakeholders with whom Virbac is actively engaged are identified by factors such as the following:
• their contribution to a better definition of needs within the Group’s area’s of activity;
• their alignment with company strategy and their added value;
• their work experience;
• staff involvement in the company’s operations;
• their perception of the Group’s activities and products.

4.16 Approaches to stakeholder engagement, including frequency of engagement by
type and by stakeholder group
Stakeholders

Veterinarians
Farmers
Animal owners
Distributors

Financial community
Investors
Analysts
SRI Funds
Suppliers
Partners

Approach and frequency of engagements
Continuous product information via advertising
Continuous information on specific animal diseases
Continuous support programmes for veterinarians and farmers
Technical call centres in France, USA, etc.,
Conferences, specialised trade fairs, scientific conferences
Permanent websites
Market research
Presence on social networks
Meetings between analysts and investors
Annual shareholders’ meeting
Website including all regulated information
Multiplatform financial bulletins
Regular follow-up of the Group’s main suppliers (annual meetings)
Audit plan for the Group’s main suppliers
Formal exchanges with each call for tenders and for the principal suppliers
concerning financial, environmental, ethical and quality criteria

Public authorities
Regulatory authorities
Professional
associations
animal health

Regular communication with regulatory managers and the
decision-makers for critical questions that affect the
pharmaceutical industry, the scientific community and Virbac customers
Taking part in work groups specific to the industry

Civil society
Non-governmental
organisations
Journalists

Many ways to establish contact via the Group’s website
Transparency and accessibility with regard to the Group’s official reports
Local contributions to non-governmental organisation initiatives

Scientific community
Research partners
Opinion leader
Universities/veterinary
schools

Employees
Applicants

Establishing research partnerships
Contributing to scientific education programmes
Organising technical symposia

Intranet, magazines, presentations and in-house poster networks
Loyalty programmes for employees and newcomers
Annual conferences
Plenary meetings for managers and employees twice a year
Opinion survey and world compilation every two years
Recruitment websites, professional forums and corporate culture on the Internet
Partnership with schools and universities
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4.17 Key topics and concerns that have been raised through stakeholder engagement,
and how the organisation has responded to those key topics and concerns, including
through its reporting
See ‘‘Strategy and analysis”, points 1.1 and 1.2 Moreover, Virbac’s approach is to encourage dialogue with
stakeholders at a local level. The Group does not consolidate all actions taken by the various subsidiaries in this
area, except those regarding social issues about which an internal opinion survey, coordinated by headquarters, is
performed every two years among all Group employees. Based on the results, the Group is committed to initiatives
for progress in terms of management and communication.
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Performance indicators

Dedicated exclusively to animal health for over fifty years, Virbac aims to continue its development in harmony with
its environment and with the people who work for it. It also wants to ensure the continuity of the Group through
sustainable and profitable growth. In 2014, Virbac achieved strong growth in the second half of the year with the
launch of new products and the return of a major product in the USA (Iverhart Plus). In this context, Virbac’s
organic growth reached +6.3% for the year and +7.2% on average for the past five years.
In 2014 this growth came primarily from the food producting animal business which experienced sustained growth of
+10.0%, with high growth in the ruminants and breeding sectors (pigs and poultry), linked to the dynamic of the
emerging countries and good performance in Europe. Activity in the aquaculture sector in Chile is, for its part,
experiencing a mild decline due to regulation by the authorities of the salmon stock kept in seawater in breeding
tanks. At the same time, the company’s animal business advanced by +4.2% thanks to new products launched in
Europe and to the general good performance of product lines such as dermatology, dental products and
pharmaceutical specialities.
As part of its strategy, Virbac supports its development through regular product launches, the strength of its large
portfolio and its global presence, which covers all the major markets in both developed and emerging countries. This
controlled-growth strategy is reflected in steadily growing revenues, profits and workforce numbers. Virbac also
benefits from a stable shareholder family which favours constant and long-term progress over short-term goals.
Subcontracted production activities (product licensing or production subcontracted to a third party) represent 23%
of the Group’s revenues. The suppliers in charge of manufacturing these products are managed according to the
evaluation procedures described in the HR2 and HR6 indicators.
Change in revenue (€ million) and Group staff numbers

nRevenue nStaff numbers
800

5000

700

4500
4000

600

3500

500

3000

400

2500

300

2000
1500

200

1000

100

500

0

0

Change in net income and market capitalisation (€ million)

n Net income – group share nMarket capitalisation on 12/31
80

1600

70

1400

60

1200

50

1000

40

800

30

600

20

400

10

200

0

0

Virbac sustains a policy of investment and innovation, which ensures the continuity and independence of the
company. Also, thanks to controlled debt, Virbac is able to pursue internal and external growth with full
independence. The resources deployed focus on financing innovation geared towards satisfying customer needs.
In 2014, the resources used to innovate (Research, Development, Licensing) continued to gain ground (+2.7%)
compared with the previous year to achieve 7.8% of revenues once more. The Group continues to use its investing
capacity at the same time, in order to accompany its development with targeted external growth (acquisition of
companies, products, active ingredients, etc.) and, recently, to finance an investment programme in large industrial
projects in France and Mexico.
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R&D and Licensing costs (€ million)
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Figures for 2014 before financing of the purchase of
the SENTINEL brands in the USA.

ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE
EC1
Generated direct and distributed economic value, including products, operating costs,
performance and employee remuneration, donations and other investments for
communities, the reserve of retained earnings, payment of capital providers and other
statements
For data regarding generated direct economic value, distributed economic value and undistributed economic value,
refer to the annual report on pages 118 and 140 to 144.

EC2
Financial implications and other risks and opportunities for the organisation’s
activities due to climate change
The 2014 report does not cover this issue.

EC3
Coverage of the organisation’s defined benefit pension obligations
See pages 150 and 166 to 170 of the annual report.

EC4
Significant financial assistance and subsidies received from the government
In 2014, Virbac received €7.7 million in subsidy, primarily in the form of research tax credit in France.
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PRESENCE ON THE MARKET
EC5
Range of ratios of standard entry-level wages compared to local minimum wage at the
main operating sites
For Group data on salaries and remuneration policy, see pages 130 and 141 of the annual report.

Focus France

In France, 100% of the employees have remuneration above the legal minimum wage. The base salary policy is
+5% above the industry minimums (Union) for all personnel categories. Moreover, for experienced executives, the
policy follows a competitive logic within the animal health market and falls into the median section of this market for
people who are masters of their position.

EC6
Policy, practices, and proportion of spending with locally-based suppliers at the main
operating sites
Virbac works with regional suppliers as long as the conditions offered are competitive and fit the Group subsidiaries’
requirements. In 2014, the share of purchases made with regional suppliers rose to 28% of total purchases.

EC7
Procedures for local hiring and proportion of senior management hired from the local
community at the main operating sites
In recruitment for key positions, internal candidates are given preference. Recruitment decisions (internal or
external) are based exclusively on the criteria of competence and qualifications for the position. The candidate’s
nationality does not enter into the decision.
For high-responsibility leadership positions, Virbac employs local managers as much as possible, in order to be
closer to clients and to the culture of the market. At the same time the Group adheres to an international
development of talent policy which enables the development of certain managers for international positions. In
2014, of the company’s fifteen subsidiaries, seven of them have strictly local management.
Proportion of locally hired managers (in %)
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INDIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACTS
EC8
Development and impact of infrastructure investments and services provided primarily
for public benefit through commercial, in-kind, or pro bono engagement
Examples in France include: the grant given to the University of Nice foundation, the grant given to ASPF (Accueil Savoir - Partage - Francophonie), and the financial contribution to the sustainable development sponsorship for local
small and medium-sized enterprises.

EC9
Understanding and describing significant indirect economic impacts, including the
extent of these impacts
The 2014 report does not cover this issue.
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Environment
Performance indicators

At Virbac, resources are carefully managed via key indicators covering energy and natural resource use (water,
electricity, gas, fuel), as well as raw material use (active ingredients, packaging, excipients, etc.). For the main
environmental indicators, the area covers all major production sites (France, Mexico, USA, Australia, South Africa,
Vietnam, Brazil and New Zealand), except for Chile, which is a joint venture, and Uruguay, which recently entered
into the financial area. When certain indicators, for reasons of reporting maturity, are focused on a particular
country, this is specifically stated.

Environmental protection training initiatives and information campaigns aimed at employees

Virbac has carried out several activities in France since 2012 in order to engage its teams in environmental issues.
These are made concrete by implementing a training procedure to enable workplaces to follow environmental and
safety regulations, as well as by providing welcome sheets to new employees which explain the rules to be followed
with regard to safety and the environment. Furthermore in 2013, an HSE component was introduced to the two-anda-half days in which new employees are welcomed.

MATERIALS
Minimising losses at every stage of the industrial process

Since the introduction of the continuous improvement project, Virbac has stepped up the fine-tuning of its active
ingredients, excipients and packaging use. This improvement is carried out via partnerships with dedicated
suppliers: from procurement of the bare minimum (reduction of inventories and internal transfers), to the shipping
of end products (in line with customer requirements) and optimised flow organisation (manufacturing smoothed and
tailored to demand). Finally, while taking account of regulatory obligations related to the pharmaceutical industry,
Virbac's innovation policy favours the manufacturing of products requiring the least amount of packaging.

EN1
Material used by weight or volume
The total amount of packaging brought on the global market increased to 5,201 tonnes in 2014 (excluding New
Zealand).

Focus France

The production sites in France (representing more than 60% of the Group's production), which since this year
include the subsidiaries Virbac Nutrition and Bio Véto Test, consumed 3,175 tonnes. With pharmaceutical regulations
becoming more and more stringent, especially concerning packaging safety, the tonnage for nearly all types of
packaging is growing more rapidly than the activity itself.
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EN2
Percentage of recycled material consumed
The pharmaceutical industry imposes strict regulations regarding the purity, quality and stability of primary
packaging (which comes into contact with the medication). As such, currently, recycled inputs cannot be used in the
materials used. Secondary packaging items are made of blank cardboard but they are fully optimised in terms of
basic weight. Tertiary packaging and thicker secondary packaging are made of recycled fibres. In 2014, for the
French sites of Carros and Magny, 94% of 627 tonnes of tertiary packaging cardboard consisted of recycled fibres.

ENERGY
For several years now, Virbac has endeavoured to cut energy and natural resource use through replacing equipment
(more efficient), insulating, optimising air conditioning and establishing consumption indicators as closely as possible
to end users (better control of energy expenditure). Adjusted to an identical activity volume, the overall reduction in
consumption on the sites in France (which represent over 50% of all Group production) reached nearly 29% for
electricity over the past seven years. Through an 'eco citizen' approach, Virbac, through its Carros site (in France), is
one of the twelve companies taking part in the Ecocity initiative launched by the ministry of Ecology and Sustainable
Development in the French department of Alpes Maritimes. Upon request of the incumbent energy provider EDF,
Virbac has committed itself to cut the electricity consumption of several heating installations between 6 pm and
8 pm in wintertime, by an equivalent total of 500 kWh (for more information: www.nicegrid.fr).

EN3
Direct energy consumption by primary energy source
These graphs compare the annual real consumption with the theoretical consumption if the company would have
maintained the same energy performance as the reference year (2008), weighted by activity levels. The activity was
defined as a base index of 100 in 2008: added value (direct labour costs + indirect production costs), with the
exception of Australia (base 100 in 2010).
The 27,737,547 kWh of gas consumed in 2014 over the total of the environmental scope has been distributed in the
tables below. The facilities at the sites in Vauvert (France), South Africa, Brazil and Vietnam do not use gas. The
graph of the Mexican subsidiary is not represented because this year it only consumed gas during the start-up phase
of its new production site.
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EN4
Indirect energy consumption by primary energy source
The 43,412,358 kWh of electricity consumed in 2014 over the entire environmental scope has been distributed in
the following way.
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Electricity Australia (MWh)

Electricity Mexico (MWh)

9 000

2 500

8 000
2 000

7 000
6 000

1 500

5 000
4 000

1 000

3 000
2 000

500

1 000
0

0

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Electricity United States (MWh)
10 000

The very significant increase in consumption is
directly related to the commissioning of the new
production unit and of all its facilities.

9 000

Electricity Vietnam (MWh)

8 000
7 000

1 800

6 000

1 600

5 000

1 400

4 000

1 200

3 000
2 000

1 000

1 000

800

0

600

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Like the set of indicators, the energy consumption
related to the quantities produced was impacted by
the late return of the major product of this subsidiary
at the beginning of the second half of 2014.

400
200
0

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Electricity Brazil (MWh)
700
600
500
400
300
200
100
0

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

EN5
Energy saved due to energy efficiency
The 2014 report does not cover this issue.
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EN6
Initiatives to provide energy-efficient or renewable energy based products and services,
and reductions in energy requirements as a result of these initiatives
Virbac endeavours to optimise direct energy consumption facilities. As far as possible, the company abstains from
installing new power generators for its two new production units in Carros (CaniLeish vaccine and the site dedicated
to injectables); at the Vauvert site in France as well as at the one in New Zealand, the new inventory buildings have
been fitted with LED-lighting. On the sites of St. Louis in the United States and in Crookwell in Australia, former air
treatment systems have been replaced by more efficient energy-recovery systems. In Australia, at the Penrith site,
a 100 kW solar plant has been installed and its first effects on the site's consumption should be evident during the
second quarter of 2015.

EN7
Initiatives to reduce indirect energy consumption and reductions achieved
At all of its industrial sites around the world, whether choosing new equipment or implementing continuous
monitoring, Virbac strives to address energy consumption by using the BAT (Best available techniques) that apply to
its activity. For example, the BAT were applied at the American site through the introduction of industrial lighting
management, and in Mexico and South Africa by installing solar heating for the production of hot water.
In the framework of the new CO2 regulations for companies with more than 500 employees, Virbac in France has
also signed an agreement with EDF and its partners to implement an Energy saving plan (ESP) over three years,
which, after a thorough inspection of the major sites in France, has identified three major areas of potential gain,
partly through better temperature control and a better turnover rate at its air treatment installations, partly through
a heat recovery unit at the water treatment plant, and lastly through installing additional insulation on all
the steam circuits.
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WATER
For many years, Virbac has striven to lower the water consumption volume of equivalent activity by setting up
recycling and production facilities for different qualities of water that comply with the BAT. As a result, the water
consumption reduction on French sites (representing more than 50% of the production of the Group) reached nearly
15% over the last seven years.

EN8
Total water withdrawal by source
The 185,392 m3 of water consumed in 2014 over all of the environmental scope has been distributed as follows.
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EN9
Water sources significantly affected by withdrawal of water
Apart from the site in South Africa, which is located in a water stress area according to the criteria of the Food and
agriculture organization and the Water risk filter, none of the Group's production sites are located in areas suffering
from water stress.

EN10
Percentage and total volume of water recycled and reused
The 2014 report does not cover this issue.

BIODIVERSITY
EN11
Location and size of land owned, leased, managed in, or adjacent to, protected areas
and areas of high biodiversity value outside protected areas
Virbac's various industrial sites at Carros (which represent almost 50% of the Group's production) are located in the
Plaine du Var area, an Operation of national interest (OIN). The national EPA (Établissement public d'aménagement local planning and development), is responsible for development planning of the Plaine du Var for sustainable
development purposes (see www. ecovallee-plaineduvar.com). Likewise, the 4 hectares of the Penrith site in
Australia adjoin a major waterway.

EN12
Description of significant impacts of activities, products, and services on biodiversity in
protected areas and areas of high biodiversity value outside protected areas
The 2014 report does not cover this issue.

EN13
Habitats protected or restored
The 2014 report does not cover this issue.
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EN14
Strategies, current actions, and future plans for managing impacts on biodiversity
At the Penrith site in Australia, the riverbanks of the adjoining waterway, as well as the flora specific to this area,
are restored regularly.

EN15
Number of IUCN Red List species and national conservation list species with habitats in
areas affected by operations, by level of extinction risk
The 2014 report does not cover this issue.
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EMISSIONS, EFFLUENTS AND WASTE
Taking into account the nature of its pharmaceutical industrial activity (especially inhibiting technologies), Virbac
does not generate any visual, noise or odour pollution. Virbac is increasingly investing in its respect for the
environment: by taking into account the HSE impacts in the management of industrial projects and by strengthening
its Risk Management Department. In addition, Group principles on the environment are adapted by subsidiaries to
meet different local regulatory requirements.

EN16
Total direct and indirect greenhouse gas emissions by weight (CO2 toxic equivalent)
Emissions connected to direct and indirect energy for all the industrial sites globally thus include greenhouse gas
emissions in connection with refrigerant fluids, which accounted for 19,186 tonnes in 2014.
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Taking into account the transport of finished products leaving all French sites and having incorporated the impact of
refrigerants of all cooling units on these sites, Virbac in France generated 15,014 tonnes of equivalent CO 2 during
2014. This tonnage, of which more than 59% is represented by transport-related emissions, is rising sharply due to
a change in calculating emissions from air transport. In accordance with the CO 2 regulations for companies with
more than 500 employees, Virbac has embarked on a plan to reduce greenhouse gases linked to energy
consumption (gas and electricity), and this plan should be completed in late 2015.
France: CO 2 emissions including transport (tonnes)
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EN17
Other relevant indirect greenhouse gas emissions by weight (CO2 toxic equivalent)
To date, Virbac has not identified any CO2 emissions other than those cited in EN16.

EN18
Initiatives to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and reductions achieved
In the framework of transporting finished products while assuring end user satisfaction, Virbac has implemented
groupage for several national and international destinations in France and the United States; this way it also reduces
CO2 emissions from transport. For all personnel at the Carros sites, Virbac also provides a shuttle that connects the
SNCF train station to the industrial area. Equally used for cross-site linkage and the company restaurant, this shuttle
carried nearly 2,900 people per month in 2014, an increase of 15% on 2013. As part of a PDIE (Plan de
déplacement inter-entreprises [Business-to-business transportation plan]), in 2012 Virbac actively participated in
setting up an 'express shuttle' linking different points of the city of Nice and the Carros industrial area and three new
lines between the west of the department and the Carros industrial area in 2013 and 2014. Since 2010 in France
and 2012 in the United States, Virbac has also developed an incentive-based policy for company vehicles geared
towards limiting the carbon footprint. The sites in Australia take greenhouse gas emissions into account when
choosing refrigeration gases for each industrial refrigeration unit. Lastly, in Mexico, a solar boiler producing industrial
hot water has been installed as part of the new production unit.

EN19
Emissions of ozone-depleting substances by weight
Emissions of ozone-depleting substances are linked to possible refrigerant fluid leakages at the Group's various sites.
Since 2013, these emissions have been monitored completely around Group perimeters.

EN20
NOx, SOx, and other significant air emissions by type and weight
Due to the nature of its activities, Virbac only generates limited NOx emissions (from boiler rooms on production
sites) and does not generate any significant SOx emissions. Other possible emissions, particularly Volatile organic
compounds (VOC) related to activities, are considered as insignificant given the confined operating conditions.

EN21
Total water discharge by quality and destination
Given the activities at Virbac's industrial sites, the key pollutant discharged into industrial waters is COD (Chemical
oxygen demand). This indicator, measured since 2013, demonstrates that 104 tonnes of COD were emitted by the
industrial sites in 2014.

EN22
Total weight of waste by type and disposal method
Virbac produces two kinds of waste: non-hazardous industrial waste and special industrial waste. These are
managed by the sectors dedicated to waste collection and sorting in order to recycle or develop it optimally
according to type.

Improving sorting at source and reducing the volume of non-hazardous industrial waste

Virbac has contributed to implementing a collection system of non-hazardous waste (aluminium, iron, glass,
cardboard, plastic, paper, etc.) in the Carros industrial area since 2003, through 'Carros Indus'tri'. This specific
system managed by the CAIPDV (regularly studied by local authorities and other industrial areas looking to replicate
it) makes it possible to take an independent, innovative and high-performance approach to the treatment of this
type of waste. To achieve this, Virbac is optimising sorting at source by providing employees with local collection
facilities (recycling boxes, dedicated containers, plastic crates, etc.).
The 2,009 tonnes of non-hazardous waste generated in 2014 on the environmental perimeter are distributed in the
tables below. The production of non-hazardous waste at the sites in Vietnam and Brazil is included in the Group total
but is not represented due to the very low quantities generated at these two sites.
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A greater reliability of the data (especially better
accounting of the tonnage of containers of generated
waste) was effective only from 2014.
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Bringing volumes of special industrial waste under control

Virbac ensures traceability up to the elimination of all its special waste: soiled packaging, laboratory, manufacturing,
medicinal or infectious waste, plus chemical effluents (mostly incinerated, and therefore thermally recovered or
recycled for solvent recovery). Lastly, Virbac is steadily improving the collection system through the establishment
of new and even more selective channels, making it possible to reduce the proportion of waste not yet covered by
recycling.
The 3,006 tonnes of special industrial waste generated in 2014 in the environmental perimeter in its totality are
distributed in the following way.
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Industrial waste Mexico (tonnes)

Industrial waste Vietnam (tonnes)

50

35

45

30

40
35

25

30

20

25

15

20
15

10

10

5

5
0

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

The relative increase in industrial waste is due to the
mass destruction of raw materials and unmarketable
finished products as well as the destruction of many
products during their transfer to the new production
unit's storage space.

0

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

The low annual volumes of this site have been
strongly impacted by the destruction of products
during tests carried out during the start-up of the
new chews production line.

EN23
Total number and volume of significant spills
There were no significant spills at any of the Group's sites in 2014.

EN24
Mass of waste transported, imported, exported or treated and found dangerous under
the provision of the Bâle Convention, Appendices I, II, III and VIII; percentage of waste
exported globally
This indicator does not concern Virbac.

EN25
Identity, size, protected status, and biodiversity value of water bodies and related
habitats significantly affected by the reporting organisation's discharges of water
and runoff
The 2014 report does not cover this issue.
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PRODUCTS AND SERVICES
EN26
Initiatives to mitigate the environmental impact of products and services, and extent of
impact mitigation
Ecotoxicity of products

Virbac carries out an ecotoxicity analysis for each of its registered products. This is validated by receipt of a
marketing authorisation issued by various veterinarian medicine authorities.

Product packaging

Where possible, Virbac eliminates packaging elements, thereby reducing waste on the user side. For example, for
Effipro (product no. 1 in the companion animal portfolio for Virbac in Europe) the cardboard holders in the display
racks and cases have all been removed in France.

Digital

Since 2012, Virbac has been developing touchpads in order to replace the paper appointment cards for veterinary
appointments; this way it has reduced printing. After France, Italy and Eastern Europe, in 2014, this initiative is still
expanding to other countries in Europe and to the United States. Electronic orders are also being developed and are
envisaged to replace paper orders. A first web-conference bringing together more than 200 French veterinarians
participating from home was a great success and it opened the doors to the virtualisation of regularly organised
technical conferences.

Green IT

The Group's IT team actively pursues a policy of communication systems implementation that reduces impact to the
environment:
• collaborative tools helping to reduce unnecessary travel (video conferencing in most subsidiaries, shared
meeting spaces, instant messaging);
• communication tools leading to the virtualisation of internal and external exchanges (workflow, extranet,
PDA, FTP platform);
• IT infrastructure reducing the material resources required (virtualisation of servers, lean enterprise resource
planning, automation).
In 2014, Virbac continued to encourage its teams to use video conferencing: all subsidiaries are equipped with a
video conference room and personal computers can also be used for video conferencing. This policy has contributed
to reducing the number of long-distance flights for Group employees (-25%).
Total number of meetings via the video
conferencing tool integrated into workstations

2013
3289

2014
5360

+63%

EN27
Percentage of products sold and their packaging materials that are recycled by category
This approach is not directly applicable to the pharmaceutical industry.

COMPLIANCE
EN28
Monetary value of significant fines and total number of non-monetary sanctions for
noncompliance with environmental laws and regulations
No significant fine was paid to third parties for any of the Group sites in 2014.
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TRANSPORT
EN29
Significant environmental impacts of transporting products and other goods and
materials used for the organisation's operations, and transporting members of the
workforce
See EN16 and EN18.

OVERALL
EN30
Total environmental protection expenditures and investments by type
These budgets are managed locally by subsidiaries and are not yet consolidated at Group level. In France, which
represents more than 50% of the Group's production, a tracking system was set up in order to obtain these data for
the fiscal year of 2015.
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Social: employment, social
relations and decent work
Performance indicators
Assess and improve well-being at work

Over the last 10 years, Virbac has been engaged in listening to its employees, gauging the internal opinion of all
salaried personnel within the Group. This research exercise is conducted once every two years, based on the same
methodology and using the same contractors. The most recent assessment of workers' satisfaction was made in
2013 and provided the basis for an action plan that was implemented across the world in 2014. For reference, the
participation level in 2013 had increased from 84% in 2011 to 88% in 2013. The results for the Group, as well as for
the headquarters only, remained high, maintaining the levels reached in 2011: on a scale of -100 to +100, the
average score at the headquarters was 28 (compared to 15 in 2005), whilst for the Group as a whole the same score
was 47 (compared to 30 in 2005). Regarding the headquarters, the overall satisfaction score (percentage of positive
opinions) increased from 84% in 2011 to 88% in 2013.
It was shown that the strong points of Virbac as an employer concerned employee engagement, their pride in being
a member of the team, their trust in the future and desire to pursue their career path within the Group. Subjects
related to human resources management, such as appraisal interviews, training and remuneration, have become a
strength, with scores exceeding the benchmarks set by external contractors. On the other hand, the scores
indicating development prospects showed little progress. The major investments made in the field of human
resources management in the Group over several years have produced results and further efforts are being invested
in the domain of internal mobility. The areas which experienced most rapid progress in 2013 were diversity, both
within the organisation and in terms of employment and environmental policies, and employee care. The domains of
meetings and collaboration still leave room for further improvement.
The next assessment is scheduled for 2015 and the contents of the report will include the results of the action plan
achieved by the Group and will set objectives for the future.

French opinion survey on psychosocial risk supplements - 2013 edition - Action Plan 2014
and draft for 2015.

In 2013, the psychosocial risk supplement integrated into the French opinion survey produced results that indicated
a drop in the percentage of employees who stated that they were “stressed”. Indeed, in 2011, 60% of employees
defined themselves as stressed, whilst by 2013, this figure had reduced to 48%. Such good results encouraged the
company and the "Feeling good at work' group, a joint working party (bringing together all health workers, internal
and external, and managers as workers’ representatives) to reinforce communication in this domain and to develop
new actions. In 2014, interactive workshops were organised, dedicated to work-related stress, which brought
together some 180 people in three sessions. Following open discussions, the joint working party “Feeling good at
work” was successful in reinforcing communication based on the sort of positive reactions that should be employed
in stressful situations, where trained personnel could be called upon to assist with the persons concerned.

EMPLOYMENT
LA1
Total workforce by employment type, employment contract, and region
The make-up of the Group was different in 2014 compared to 2013: New Zealand joined the Group sustainable
development reporting initiative. In total in 2014, the overall number of Group employees was 3,529, and without
the New Zealanders (46 people) - to enable comparison with 2013 - the total number in 2014 was 3483.
Consequently, the workforce had increased by 81 people, constituting growth of 2.38%. The total personnel of the
15 subsidiaries of the Group in 2014 accounted for 82% of the total number of employees with a permanent contract
(4,478 people).
NOTE: In 2013 the personnel figures included an error (the figures for Vietnam included workers with temporary
contracts). Consequently, the increase in the number of personnel by 2.38% mentioned previously was underestimated. By recalculating with the exact figure for 2013 we obtained a total of 3,352, which represents
an additional 131 salaried workers in 2014, i.e. growth of 3.90%.

Total workforce by employment type

All jobs are represented: 43% (vs 42% in 2013) of employees are engaged in marketing and sales, 35% in
industrial jobs (versus 36% in 2013), 11% in R&D and 11% in all other administrative and support functions. The
staff figures per job type remained relatively unchanged compared to 2013.
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Gender breakdown (in %)

Women
39%

Men

61%

Concerning the breakdown of employees by gender, a very significant difference from one country to another was
noted. Of the total number of employees in the Group, 61% of workers are men whilst 39% are women. These
overall figures are greatly influenced by the personnel in India (please refer to details for each country).
Total workforce by employment type
Production
1 247

Marketing & sales
1 508

Administration
392

RDL
382

Gender breakdown by country
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India is a particular case. The overwhelming number of men is explained by the fact that 93% of personnel in the
Indian subsidiary works in sales. As a result of the local culture, harsh living conditions and the security situation
(farm tours conducted on two wheels), this type of work is naturally more suitable for men.
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Age pyramid
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30-34
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25-29
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Equality between the generations varies according to region: in Europe, Australia, South Africa and the United
States, seniors are well represented, while in high-growth regions such as Latin America and Asia, there are more
younger people, particularly in India where the younger generations of 25-35 year-olds are strongly represented.
Globally, Virbac is looking to keep the older generations in work whilst continuing to employ the young, particularly
in France where an inter-generational agreement came into effect in 2014. Based on this agreement, a contribution
can be made to giving young people professional training, stimulating their integration and education, whilst also
keeping as well as employing senior workers, providing special arrangements for their retirement (please refer to
the section on Diversity).

54

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

LA2
Turnover of personnel in total number of employees hired and in percentages by age
group, gender and geographic region
The turnover of the Group was 9.2% in 2014 (vs 11.5% in 2013). This percentage is not strictly comparable since
the New Zealand subsidiary only joined the social reporting scheme this year; still, the decrease is considerable, the
result of efforts made by the subsidiaries. 11 subsidiaries of the 14 concerned with the report in 2013 saw their
turnover shrinking. The biggest decrease was noted in countries registering extraordinary growth in 2013, such as
Brazil, Colombia and Vietnam. Last year, the Brazilian subsidiary found that the majority of departures were linked
to recruitment errors in their sales force: 2014 saw the turnover rate drop from 31.3% to 23.5% thanks to the
introduction of an adequate recruitment procedure. In 2015, similar efforts will continue in this area with a view to
improving the quality of recruitment. New initiatives will be introduced, facilitating the effective development and
retention of talented people.
Thanks to more beneficial economic circumstances, Vietnam bounced back in 2014, its turnover of people decreasing
from 18.4% to 8.2%. In Colombia, the turnover decreased from 27.4% to 16.0%. This drop concerns mainly the
sales force, which has stabilised thanks to the management training programme Virbac Selling Attitude, which
focused on quality recruitment; the remaining part of the turnover concerned a necessary restructuring of the
administration department. Japan also registered a very significant drop from 16.1% to 7.1% thanks to the actions
implemented over the last three years, which provided the PERF training programme for managers, as well as other
actions aimed at team communication and cohesion, which were implemented after the assessment of 2013.
The Indian subsidiary has also benefited from their efforts to provide coaching in sales management, their turnover
decreasing from 16.5% to 12.8%. This figure has also been reduced from 11.8% to 9.9% in the United States. Just
like in 2012, there were no leavers in 2013 from either the Italian or Spanish subsidiaries. At the headquarters in
France, the turnover was reduced from 6.7% to 5.5%.
Two countries registered an increase: the United Kingdom, which rose from 8.2% to 22.9%, mainly due to a more
vibrant jobs market and fiercer competition in recruitment; in Germany, this figure rose from 3.5% to 10.9%. In
New Zealand (outside the reporting scope for 2013) with a rate of 17.4%, there was a relocation in 2014 following
the merger with Stockguard, notably in finance; in 2015, the turnover figure is expected to drop further because of
the team consolidation in Hamilton.
These largely positive trends result from the emphasis placed on employees, their attachment to the company, as well
as the actions implemented with a view to improving the management of human resources. In global terms, the
personnel turnover falls within the scope of the lower average in each country, except in the particular cases indicated
previously. The indicators are particularly good in countries with sustained growth, such as India, where the ‘‘war of
talents’’ is raging, or Australia, where the job market is very favourable due to the country’s full employment. It should
be noted that terminations amount to only 1.8% of the total number of workers in the Group subsidiaries.
Personnel turnover (in %)
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Recruitments

In 2014, Virbac remained very active in the jobs market, both in France and overseas, in order to meet its
requirements in terms of personnel. 461 people were hired in the fifteen countries covered by the Group, the
equivalent of 13% of the total staff. In total for the Group between 2013 and 2014 (without New Zealand), there
was a net increase of 131 people, representing an increase of 3.90% in the number of workers.
Six countries stand out as regards recruitment: India (170) which is the largest subsidiary by far with 734
employees, France (87), the United States (62), Mexico (39), Australia (30) and Brazil (29). As an employer,
Virbac is attractive for those seeking employment with a global company of a human size that is
continuously seeking to increase its personnel. Virbac represents a serious career opportunity for animal
health workers, offering genuine career opportunities in a range of job categories.
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Recruitment per country (461 hired)
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Marketing & sales
251
Production
125
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41
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In 2014, Virbac launched its message for internal employment throughout the Group, and in a targeted manner
outside the Group. The challenges facing the Group demand further improvements in the Group’s performance in
this area in order to stimulate those skilled professionals who do have the required professional profile but who
might not have a systematic reflex to apply to Virbac.
The profile types recruited in France and in subsidiaries with industrial activity are mostly scientists and
pharmaceutical experts within the industrial or quality sectors, while the profile types recruited in commercial
subsidiaries of the Group are mostly sales professionals and animal health marketing experts for roles in marketing.

The focus for France: to maintain and develop jobs

Based on its sustained economic performance, Virbac has been creating a considerable number of jobs in France
over the last few years. The number of permanent contracts as of December 31, 2014 was 1283, which constituted
an increase of 37 compared to 2013.

LA3
Benefits provided to full-time employees that are not provided to temporary or parttime employees, or to employees with a fixed-term contract - broken down by major
activities
The 2014 report does not cover this issue.
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RELATIONS BETWEEN MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES
LA4
Percentage of employees covered by collective bargaining agreements
Each subsidiary of the Virbac group implements the current local legislation pertaining to collective wage agreement
obligations. Most of the subsidiaries have additional budgets for providing performance-related rewards to the
employees.
Employees covered by collective bargaining agreements
Australia

0%

Brazil

100%

France

100%

Germany

0%

India

72%

Italy

0%

Japan

0%

Mexico

9%

South Africa
Spain
United States/Canada
United Kingdom

0%
100%
22%
0%

Colombia

100%

Vietnam

0%

LA5
Minimum notice period prior to all organisational changes, indicating whether the
notice is stated in a collective agreement
The 2014 report does not cover this issue.
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OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY
LA6
Percentage of the total workforce represented in formal joint management-worker
health and safety committees that help monitor and advise on occupational health and
safety programmes
The 2014 report does not cover this issue.

LA7
Rates of work-related injuries, occupational diseases, absenteeism, lost days, and
number of work-related fatalities, by region and by gender
In 2014, Virbac had no work-related fatalities in the whole scope of the company.
Frequency rate and severity rate of accidents per country
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The Group results for 2014 show a deterioration both in terms of frequency (7.31 vs 4.99 in 2013) and severity
(0.24 vs 0.13 in 2013), which is due to the bad results recorded by the Mexican and Australian subsidiaries
regarding frequency, as well as some poor results in France and India concerning severity.
The final frequency rate is based on French regulations and is defined as the number of work-related accidents which
lead to at least one day of stoppage, divided by the number of hours worked (not including any other form of
absence), multiplied by one million. Severity is calculated in similar fashion, still in compliance with French
legislation, defined as the number of days of stoppage (the first day not being counted), divided by the number of
hours worked (excluding any other form of absence), multiplied by one thousand. The accidents and the hours
worked only concern those workers contracted by Virbac, therefore excluding all temporary workers.

The focus for France: safety at work

This area, considered a priority by the group, combined with a corporate culture, once again improved in 2014,
dropping by almost 11% in terms of frequency, whilst the severity rate deteriorated mainly due to a relapse of
accidents dating back to 2013.
The main developments in 2014 are as follows:
• regarding regulations on harsh working conditions, in accordance with the action plan drawn up in partnership
with the CHSCT (Committee on hygiene, safety and working conditions), the aim being to reduce the number of
cases defined as harsh working conditions by more than 50% between 2012 and 2015, the "carrying heavy
loads" and "painful postures" sections of this action plan have already been achieved during 2014;
• proportional reduction of the ergonomy policies in new production sectors, with the introduction of new
automated systems, along with the implementation of the new PRAP programme (French: Prévention des
risques liés à l'activité physique - prevention of physical activity risks) with the appointment of a person holding
the necessary qualifications enabling him/her to fulfil the assigned dutíes;
• training programmes continue to expand with the implementation of the new training module pertaining to
biological risks, with more than 50 people attending in 2014.
Following the reinforcement of the safety team over the last few years, and in order to reduce the number of actions
across the Group, a new HSE corporate department was created in late 2014.
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Absenteeism per country and globally (%)
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The overall absenteeism rate in the Group in 2014 was 2%, New Zealand included. This rate only takes into account
sick leave and work-related diseases (contrary to the management report, which also takes into account workrelated accidents, commuting accidents and part-time work for therapeutic reasons). Absenteeism caused by workrelated accidents is considered in the calculation of severity presented previously. An international comparison is
almost impossible because the social systems concerned are very different and the age pyramid tends to vary,
depending on the country. However, the average rate can be considered rather low, which is consistent with the
high level of engagement of the workers (please refer to the introduction of the Social chapter). Strictly
quantitatively, the highest rate of absenteeism is in Germany, at 4.6%, and the lowest in Japan, at 0%. This is the
same as in 2013.

LA8
Education, training, counselling, prevention and risk-management programmes in
place to assist workers, their families or local community members regarding serious
diseases
Most subsidiaries have implemented various programmes in this area.
South Africa
• Regular distribution of texts on serious diseases during the year.
• Full medical screening and testing, both routine and those dedicated to serious diseases (HIV, tuberculosis,
breast cancer, prostate cancer, mental health).
Germany
• Medical examination by branch association for individual job areas, taken at regular set intervals.
• Flu vaccination.
• First aid training.
India

• Obligatory wearing of helmets for personnel operating on two wheels and safety briefing during induction of
new workers.

Italy

• Compulsory training for all employees on the risks in the working environment.

Japan

• Accident and life assurance for all employees.

Mexico
• Prevention of breast cancer and gastric infections.
• Flu vaccination for all personnel.
• Regular medical examination for production personnel.
• Medical prevention programme for people whose work involves risk.
New Zealand
• Health insurance.
• Availability of information on health, safety and serious diseases.
• Assistance programmes for employees with personal difficulties.
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Spain

• Risk prevention plan, and professional assessment and development programmes.

United States
• Financial incentives for employees adhering to health advice (giving up smoking, undergoing medical
examinations, slimming programmes, etc.)
• Health insurance for all employees and their families in cases of serious illness.

LA9
Health and safety topics covered in formal agreements with trade unions
The 2014 report does not cover this issue.

TRAINING AND EDUCATION
LA10
Average hours of training per year per employee by gender, and by job type
In 2014, the hours spent in training amounted to approximately 21 per staff member, with exceptional results for
managers (23.9%) and workers (22.1%). These figures are not comparable to those recorded in 2013: various
measures were taken this year to clarify the concept of the training.

The yearly average number of hours of training (per worker)
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LA11
Programmes for development of skills and lifelong learning that support the continued
employability of workers and help them to manage the end of their career
Virbac group proposes an advanced management development policy, based on a management foundation course,
complemented by several in-depth modules. The course covers a wide range of management aspects, allowing
managers to better help their colleagues to pursue their career path. These management workshops account for
45% of the total number of training courses provided in France in 2014. Training is designed above all to strengthen
management understanding of employees, guaranteeing the well-being and personal development of staff.
This management course is available in English and Spanish, and is subject to regular review by the international HR
team. The effectiveness of this training depends on managerial support from the HR business partner in each
country as part of the implementation of good practice and performance management.
In 2014, a considerable amount of work was done by the HR teams in the United States and in France at
headquarters, with a view to creating a management course for 2015 at a time when the subsidiary was conducting
a large merger at the end of the year, employing 90 additional members of staff as of 2 January 2015. This work will
provide the basis for training in 2015 for numerous other countries, such as Uruguay, Brazil and Chile, which have
all created their own dedicated Human resources posts.

LA12
Percentage of employees receiving periodic assessment and career development
interviews, by type
100% of the Group personnel are given at least one personal assessment per year, aimed at assessing their
performance, skills and training requirements, and defining objectives for the following year in terms of results and
further development. Certain subsidiaries introduced additional half-yearly interviews, where an intermediary
assessment is made. In France, this is an in-depth interview on development, separate from the assessment
interview, to allow the workers to look back on their career path and possibly define some priorities, with a view to
not overloading the regular interview.
In 2014, in France, internal mobility was on the increase: 27% of jobs were accessed internally, compared to 23% in
2013. This result may partially be attributed to greater visibility of the opportunities connected to team
development, but it is also due to the strengthening of the career development interviews that are held in the middle
and at the end of the year.
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DIVERSITY AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY
In recent years, Virbac has introduced several programmes on this subject in France. An audit on diversity was
carried out in 2011, with a view to reinforcing the actions implemented in this area. An agreement was implemented
between 2010 and 2012 concerning senior staff, guaranteeing preservation of jobs for people over the age of 55 for
at least 100 people (121 people in 2013 and 124 in 2012). A gender equality agreement was signed in 2012,
stipulating salary increases for women resuming work after maternity leave, aimed at managing salary discrepancies
between men and women, improving the conditions of paternity leave and respecting the balance between personal
and professional time for employees with family commitments.
In 2013, the seniors' agreement was replaced by an intergenerational agreement, aimed at both reinforcing the
policy of employing and integrating people younger than 26, and tackling the issues concerning senior staff. This
agreement was implemented in 2014 and received a positive reaction. Among the new inclusions in this agreement
are: enhanced provision of training and integration for the newly employed, with an integration interview with the
person's manager and a referee, while for senior members of staff there is the possibility of reducing their working
hours to 80% for over-60s working in difficult conditions with a 90% salary; and for those who have already reached
the legal retirement age and the threshold of 150 quarters, there is the possibility of progressive voluntary
retirement and guaranteed social security cover based on full time. 4 people have already asked to be included and
will enrol in this scheme in 2015.
Finally, in 2014, a new agreement was signed concerning disability, bringing together many different disciplines in
the company: managers, HR, HSE, labour representatives, assistants etc. Many commitments were made concerning
the next three years (2014 to 2016) and associated budgets have been envisaged, totalling euro 200,000 per year,
therefore exceeding the obligatory contribution level. Priority is being given to employment of disabled people,
directly and indirectly, as well as adaptation of workplaces and awareness programmes for in-house and external
workers. Disabled workers accounted for 3.64 % of the total workforce in 2014, a figure which, based on the new
agreement, is expected to reach 4.5%. This objective may prove a little ambitious, bearing in mind the typical
technical profiles of veterinary pharmacy.
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LA13
Composition of governance bodies and breakdown of employees according to gender,
age group, minority group membership and other indicators of diversity
In France, 50% of the supervisory board members and 40% of the executive committee members are women. The
Group’s employment policies are based firmly on professional skills. Across the Group, there are 28% of women to
72% of men among the managers (senior management in France, general manager and his management teams in
subsidiaries).
Proportion of senior management based on gender (in %)
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LA14
Ratio of basic salary for men and women by job category
Comparison of salaries between men and women by category (in %)
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Social: human rights
Performance indicators

INVESTMENT AND PURCHASING PRACTICES
HR1
Percentage and total number of significant investment agreements that include clauses
incorporating human rights concerns, or that have undergone human rights screening
The 2014 report does not cover this issue.

HR2
Percentage of major suppliers and sub-contractors that have undergone human rights
screening; action taken
For the main suppliers (80% of the value of purchases) of raw materials and for each invitation to tender, Virbac
issues a questionnaire assessing their respect for the environment and social and ethical standards (pollution, child
labour, discrimination, corruption, sanitary conditions and so on). In 2014, this assessment process undertaken by
Virbac did not identify any risk with regard to the issue of respect of social and ethical standards relating to the
suppliers who were assessed. If Virbac was to identify non-conformity, the Group would require the supplier to
achieve compliance under penalty of contract termination.

HR3
Total number of hours of employee training on policies and procedures concerning
aspects of human rights that are relevant in their activity, including the percentage of
employees trained
The 2014 report does not cover this issue.

NON-DISCRIMINATION
HR4
Total number of incidents of discrimination and actions taken
No incident of discrimination was reported in the Group in 2014.

FREEDOM OF ASSOCIATION AND COLLECTIVE
BARGAINING
HR5
Activities during which the right of freedom of association and collective bargaining
could be threatened; measures taken to ensure this right is upheld
No incident of this type was identified in the Group in 2014.
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CHILD LABOUR
HR6
Activities identified as presenting a significant risk of incidents of child labour, and
measures taken to help ban this type of work
No children work for the Virbac group. With regards to main suppliers, the ethical assessment questionnaire issued
by Virbac commits them to respect legislation on child labour. In 2014, none of the suppliers questioned revealed
shortcomings in this area. If Virbac was to identify non-conformity, the Group would require the supplier to achieve
compliance under penalty of contract termination.

FORCED OR COMPULSORY LABOUR
HR7
Operations identified as having significant risk for incidents of forced or compulsory
labour, and measures taken to contribute to their abolition
Forced labour does not exist in the Virbac group. With regards to main suppliers, the ethical evaluation questionnaire
issued by Virbac commits them to respect legislation on forced labour. In 2014, none of the suppliers questioned
revealed shortcomings in this area. If Virbac was to identify non-conformity, the Group would require the supplier to
achieve compliance under penalty of contract termination.

SAFETY PRACTICES
HR8
Percentage of security personnel trained in the organisation's policies or procedures
concerning aspects of human rights that are relevant to their activities
The 2014 report does not cover this issue.

RIGHTS OF INDIGENOUS POPULATIONS
HR9
Total number of incidents of violations involving rights of indigenous people and action
taken
No incident was reported in 2014 within the Group.
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Social: civil society
Performance indicators

LOCAL COMMUNITIES
SO1
Nature, impact and effectiveness of all programmes, assessment practices and
management of impact of activities - at all stages - on communities
Programmes launched in 2013 in the United States (New horizon service dogs: trained dogs for people with reduced
mobility), in South Africa (training and employment opportunities for people in rural areas), and in India (training for
livestock farmers) continued in 2014.

CORRUPTION
SO2
Percentage and total number of strategic business units analysed for risks related to
corruption
In 2014, the Group continued the deployment of a risk management framework in two new subsidiaries: Uruguay
and Brazil. This general approach did not reveal any significant risk of corruption. A corruption prevention plan
started deployment throughout the Group in 2014. This plan includes training sessions, one of the main objectives
being to allow employees of the Group to identify potential risks within their jobs (past or present). This training has
notably been taken by senior leaders and managers at the subsidiaries in Brazil, Uruguay, Argentina and India.

SO3
Percentage of employees trained in the organisation's anti-corruption policies and
procedures
The code of ethics, in which the Group's values are clearly defined, is issued to all employees and notably to new
entrants. These values clearly prohibit corrupt practices. The corruption prevention plan, including training for Group
employees, started deployment in 2014. The employees trained in the course of 2014 include nearly all the financial
directors and the majority of managing directors of the Group's subsidiaries, as well as Virbac's main purchasing
managers. Specific training courses for managing directors and managers have been organised in some subsidiaries
(Brazil, Uruguay, Argentina, India).

SO4
Actions taken in response to incidents of corruption
No incident of corruption was identified in the Group in 2014.

PUBLIC POLICIES
SO5
Public policy positions and participation in public policy development and lobbying
In 2014, the Group did not engage in this activity.
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SO6
Total value of financial and in-kind contributions to political parties, politicians, and
related institutions - by country
In 2014, the Group did not make any such contributions.

ANTI-COMPETITIVE BEHAVIOUR
SO7
Total number of legal proceedings for anti-competitive behaviour, breaches of antitrust laws and monopolistic practices; results of these proceedings
No proceedings of this nature were initiated against a Group company in 2014.

COMPLIANCE
SO8
Monetary value of significant fines and total number of non-monetary sanctions for
non-compliance with laws and regulations
In 2014, the Group did not receive any significant fines.
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Social: product
responsibility

Performance indicators

HEALTH AND SAFETY OF CUSTOMERS
Virbac is committed to developing, producing and distributing products and services aimed at improving animals'
quality of life and guaranteeing their health while ensuring comfort and safety for those that administer these
products: vets, farmers, animal owners, etc.
To do so, Virbac ensures that it meets the highest possible quality-safety-efficiency standards. At the development
stage, Good laboratory practices are systematically respected, for example, via data traceability. During the
production stage, Good production practices are applied, particularly through the certification of all Virbac factories.
Lastly, for the supply of medicines, Virbac uses Good distribution practices, such as respecting the cold chain when
required by the nature of the products.
Evaluation of product safety during its use is undertaken when required, particularly through the development or
choice of specific packaging. As regards product labelling, Virbac clearly explains all the information necessary for
the correct administration of the product and for understanding its properties and contra-indications. The Group also
has a leading role in the development of schemas and pictograms enabling clear understanding of information
fundamental to the health and safety of consumers.
For species intented for consumption, Virbac ensures during the stages of product development that the products
respect the pharmaceutical standards concerning residual traces of medicines in foodstuffs: meat, milk, eggs, etc.
Furthermore, these guidelines for use are systematically brought to the attention of the consumer through product
packaging and various associated communication media.
Throughout the products' life cycle, including during their development, Virbac assesses the expectations of clients
and the level of satisfaction in order to constantly adjust the products' characteristics. In terms of marketing, all of
Virbac's promotional communications respect the scientific and technical claims demonstrated during the
development stage of the product.
Lastly, the Virbac quality system enables the company to efficiently detect, trace and treat all quality incidents
inherent in its pharmaceutical activity.

Regulatory monitoring

Virbac has had an efficient regulatory monitoring system in place for several years now, allowing it to follow the
evolution of regulations. This monitoring system is practised throughout the interprofessional organisations:
- at a national level by, for example, SIMV in France, NOAH in the UK, BfT in Germany, etc.;
- at a regional level by, for example, IFAH-Europe (International federation for animal health - Europe), AHI (Animal
Health Institute) in the USA;
- at an international level by IFAH (International federation for animal health).
The regulatory monitoring system is also applied via automatic surveillance tools on hundreds of Internet sites
linked to the company's activities. This surveillance is also exercised through the feedback received by Virbac during
periodic inspections of its facilities, and this feedback given by inspectors allows the Group to progress.
This regulatory monitoring system concerns all types of products:
- veterinary medicines (pharmaceutical or vaccines);
- biocides (products intended for treating the animals' environment);
- nutritional products (intended for supplementing the animals' diet);
- petfood.
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Customer profile

Virbac customers are particularly diverse throughout the world in terms of profession, size and expectations and
they demand of the company specific approaches that take into account their individual needs. Veterinarians remain
Virbac's principal customer but depending on the country and the economic model, the customer may be different:
- where pets are concerned, beyond the veterinarian, owners concerned about the welfare of their animals are more
and more demanding information, especially with the development of the Internet. At the veterinary level,
customers are also very diverse, the information requirements not being the same for a single-practice clinic and a
chain of clinics in the United States consisting of over 1500 clinics in its network.
- in animal production, Virbac's customers' palette is also rich and varied. Customers can range from a farmer in
India with several cows, to an Asian pig producer with over 200,000 pigs or a Mexican beef cattle production unit
with more than 300,000 head of cattle.
This diversity and wide range of customer profiles requires constant adaptation of communication methods and the
development of high-quality professional relationships that respond to customers' daily preoccupations.
Product distribution also plays an increasingly important role in certain countries and requires specific approaches
and communication strategies. These distributors are considered for the most part as strategic partners, as is the
case for example with an agri-business chain that is larger than the Virbac group and has more than 400 sales
points in Australia.

PR1
Life cycle stages in which health and safety impacts of products and services are
assessed for improvement, and the percentage of significant product and service
categories subject to such procedures
In compliance with all national regulations, Virbac systematically monitors the quality of its products at all stages of
the production process:
• before commercialisation (during the development phase and until the products are launched on the market);
• after market launch (through continual research into stability, advice and guidance for users and
pharmacovigilance).
Products subject to pharmaceutical registration
(sources: EC 82/2001, 28/2004 and applicable national regulations)

Assessment before market launch
Predevelopment: safety check
Development: quality check
Development: stability check
Development: safety check for animal use
Development: safety check for human use

100%

Development: environmental safety check
Development: effectiveness check
Production: checking all components and raw materials at every stage of production
Assessment after market launch
Stability check (continual research)
Advice and guidance for users

100%

Pharmacovigilance
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Products not subject to pharmaceutical registration
(sources: EC 767/2009 and internal instructions)

Assessment before market launch
Predevelopment: safety check
Development: quality check
Development: stability check
Development: safety check for animal use
Development: safety check for human use (for all locally-applied products coming into contact with
human skin)

100%

Development: environmental safety check (at the test batch production stage)
Development: effectiveness check and/or perceived benefits
Production: checking all components and raw materials at every stage of production
Assessment after market launch
Advice and guidance for users
Pharmacovigilance

100%

Nutritional products not subject to pharmaceutical registration
(sources: EC 183/2005, 1069/2009, 767/2009 and internal instructions)

Assessment before market launch
Predevelopment: nutritional recommendations check
Predevelopment: raw materials check
Development: safety check for animal use
Development: digestibility and palatability check
Development: stability check

100%

Development: effectiveness and perceived benefits check
Development: validation in real conditions of use
Monitoring and compliance of raw materials and products
Monitoring of production process
Monitoring digestibility and palatability

100%

Assessment after market launch
Stability check
Advice and guidance for users
Pharmacovigilance

Pharmacovigilance

10%
100%

Like all other pharmaceutical laboratories, Virbac is legally obliged to monitor the evolution in terms of the ongoing
safety and effectiveness of the veterinary medicines it puts on the market. This obligation is known as
pharmacovigilance. Its purpose is to create an organisation that inventories adverse reactions (whether serious or
not) reported by veterinarians or other health professionals, or even by users of these medications (pet owners, for
example). This organisation, placed under the control of a qualified person in pharmacovigilance (veterinarian) and
an interim qualified person, has to collect cases from all countries worldwide, analyse them, decide if the adverse
reactions were attributable to the use of the medicine concerned or not, and finally officially declare these cases to
the supervisory authorities. Periodically, all cases from a specific period for a specific medicine are compiled in a
report that is sent to these same authorities. Compiling all the adverse effects attributable to a medicine allows all
the precautions for use to be added to the package instructions over time rendering them safer for use. Due to
growing globalisation of its medicines, the Virbac group has been organised to collect cases of adverse effects on a
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global scale, setting up a reporting system in all its subsidiaries. It is the Virbac group's ambition to have an
irreproachable pharmacovigilance system, i.e. a system that collects all of the cases of adverse effects attributed to
the medicines it sells on the market, to comply with all of its obligations within the deadlines set by the
administrative authorities, and to use this pharmacovigilance tool to further develop knowledge of its products.

PR2
Total number of incidents of non-compliance with regulations and voluntary codes
concerning health and safety impacts of products and services - by type of outcome
In 2014, out of a total of 8,574 product references commercialised around the world, Virbac was directly alerted by
national authorities of 39 cases of non-conformity observed on their territory. None of these cases presented a
danger for animal health.
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PR3
Type of product and service information required by procedures, and percentage of
significant products and services subject to such information requirements
In terms of the safety of products and their components, the Virbac policy is as follows:
• provision of "raw material" and "finished products" safety data sheets to Virbac staff and transporters;
• organisation of transportation in line with European regulations governing the transportation of hazardous
products:
− provision of safety data sheets for finished products in French and in English;
− packaging of hazardous products in packaging that meets current standards;
• from the customer's perspective, Virbac complies with the European directives concerning indications and
precautions for use that must appear on the packaging of products that require pre-marketing authorisation
and of products referred to as nutritional (European Directive 767). Each claim is supported by appropriate
clinical studies.

PR4
Total number of incidents of non-compliance with regulations and voluntary codes
concerning product and service information and labelling - by type of outcome
In 2014, out of a total of 8,574 product references commercialised around the world, Virbac was informed by the
national authorities of five packaging non-conformities that have had no consequences on the distribution of the
products.

PR5
Practices related to customer satisfaction, including results of surveys measuring
customer satisfaction
Market studies are systematically undertaken before and during the development of new products so as to ensure an
alignment between the specifications and the health needs of the animals, veterinary practices and the expectations
of owners/farmers in terms of observance. For example, the palatability of an oral product (tablet, liquid) and the
ease of administration by the owner are two valid criteria during the product development phase.
Market surveys are also regularly performed after the launch of new products. For example, after the launch of the
first European vaccine against canine leishmaniosis, a survey was carried out to validate its positioning, the level of
satisfaction of veterinarians in terms of effectiveness and the level of recognition amongst dog owners.

MARKETING COMMUNICATIONS
PR6
Programmes for monitoring adherence to laws, standards and voluntary codes relating
to marketing communications, including advertising, promotion, and sponsorship
By the very nature of its industrial pharmaceutical activity, Virbac is subject to requirements regarding promotion as
defined by national and international veterinary medicine agencies. Any claim must be scientifically proven and
made available to the regulatory bodies. The pharmaceutical manager in each Virbac subsidiary is guarantor of
compliance with the marketing communication regulations in that country.
These principles apply to both medicines requiring pre-marketing authorisation and also to food, supplementary and
dietetic food for animals for which Virbac complies with the new European regulation 767/2009. Furthermore, Virbac
does not directly promote products requiring a prescription (and not dispensatory) to owners but refers them to
veterinary consultation to promote preventive medicine.

72

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

PR7
Total number of incidents of non-compliance with regulations and voluntary codes
concerning marketing communications, including advertising, promotion and
sponsorships - by type of outcome
In 2014, out of a total of 8,574 product references commercialised around the world, none of the communications
from the Virbac group created a non-conformity incident with regard to regulations and codes relating to
promotional marketing.

CLIENT PRIVACY
PR8
Total number of substantiated complaints regarding breaches of customer privacy and
losses of client data
There were no such complaints received by the Virbac group in 2014.

COMPLIANCE
PR9
Monetary value of significant fines for non-compliance with laws and regulations
concerning the provision and use of products and services
No fine of this type was recorded in the Group in 2014.
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Report of one of the Statutory Auditors,
appointed as independent third-party,
on the consolidated social,
environmental and societal information
published in the management report
External verification
Year ended December 31, 2014

To the Shareholders,
In our capacity as Statutory Auditor of Virbac SA, and appointed as independent third-party, for whom the
certification request has been approved by the French National Accreditation Body (COFRAC) under the number
3-1048 , we hereby present you with our report on the social, environmental and societal information prepared for
the year ended December 31st, 2014 (hereinafter the “CSR Information”), presented in the management report
pursuant to Article L.225-102-1 of the French Commercial Code (Code de commerce).
Responsibility of the company
The Board of Directors of Virbac is responsible for preparing a management report including CSR Information in
accordance with the provisions set forth in Article R.225-105-1 of the French Commercial Code, in line with the
reporting protocols and guidelines used by Virbac (hereafter the “Reporting Guidelines”), which are summarized
throughout the chapter “Sustainable Development” in the annual report and which are available for consultation
upon request to the EHS and Human Resources divisions.
Independence and quality control
Our independence is defined by regulatory texts, the profession’s Code of Ethics as well as by the provisions set
forth in Article L. 822-11 of the French Commercial Code. Furthermore, we have set up a quality control system that
includes the documented policies and procedures designed to ensure compliance with rules of ethics, professional
auditing standards and the applicable legal texts and regulations.
Responsibility of the Statutory Auditor
Based on our work, our responsibility is:
- to attest that the required CSR Information is presented in the management report or, in the event of
omission, is explained pursuant to the third paragraph of Article R.225-105 of the French Commercial Code
(Attestation of completeness of CSR information);
- to express limited assurance on the fact that, taken as a whole, CSR Information is presented fairly, in all
material aspects, in accordance with the adopted Reporting Guidelines (Formed opinion on the fair presentation
of CSR Information).
Our work was carried out by a team of five people between December 2014 and March 2015 for an estimated
duration of four weeks. To assist us in conducting our work, we referred to our corporate responsibility experts.
We conducted the following procedures in accordance with professional auditing standards applicable in France, with
the order of May 13, 2013 determining the methodology according to which the independent third party entity
conducts its assignment and, concerning the formed opinion on the fair presentation of CSR Information, with the
international standard ISAE 3000 .
1. Attestation of completeness of CSR Information
Based on interviews with management, we familiarized ourselves with the Group’s sustainable development
strategy, with regard to the social and environmental impacts of the company's business and its societal
commitments and, where appropriate, any resulting actions or programs.
We compared the CSR Information presented in the management report with the list set forth in Article R.225-105-1
of the French Commercial Code.
In the event of omission of certain consolidated information, we verified that explanations were provided in
accordance with the third paragraph of the Article R.225-105 of the French Commercial Code.
We verified that the CSR Information covered the consolidated scope, i.e., the company and its subsidiaries within
the meaning of Article L.233-1 of the French Commercial Code and the companies that it controls within the
meaning of Article L.233-3 of the French Commercial Code, subject to the limitations presented in the
methodological note at paragraph “Scope of report” of chapter titled “Sustainable Development” of the annual report.
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Based on these procedures and considering the limitations mentioned above, we attest that the required CSR
Information is presented in the management report.
2. Formed opinion on the fair presentation of CSR Information
Nature and scope of procedures
We conducted around fifteen interviews with the people responsible for preparing the CSR Information in the
departments in charge of data collection process and, when appropriate, those responsible for internal control and
risk management procedures, in order to:
- assess the suitability of the Reporting Guidelines with respect to their relevance, completeness, reliability,
neutrality and understandability, taking into consideration, when relevant, the sector’s best practices;
- verify that a data-collection, compilation, processing and control procedure has been implemented to ensure
the completeness and consistency of the CSR Information and review the internal control and risk management
procedures used to prepare the CSR Information.
We determined the nature and scope of the tests and controls according to the nature and significance of the CSR
Information with regard to the company’s characteristics, the social and environmental challenges of its activities, its
sustainable development strategies and the sector’s best practices.
Concerning the CSR Information that we have considered to be most important :
- for the consolidating entity, we consulted the documentary sources and conducted interviews to corroborate
the qualitative information (organization, policies, actions), we performed analytical procedures on the
quantitative information and verified, using sampling techniques, the calculations and the data consolidation, and
we verified their consistency with the other information presented in the management report;
- for a representative sample of entities that we have selected according to their activity, their contribution to
the consolidated indicators, their location and a risk analysis, we held interviews to verify the correct application
of the procedures and performed substantive tests using sampling techniques, consisting in verifying the
calculations made and reconciling the data with supporting evidence. The selected sample represented on
average 42% of the permanent headcount and between 38% and 70% of the environmental quantitative
information.
Regarding the other consolidated CSR Information, we have assessed its consistency in relation to our
understanding of the Group.
Lastly, we assessed the relevance of the explanations relating to, where necessary, the total or partial omission of
certain information.
We believe that the sampling methods and sizes of the samples we have used in exercising our professional
judgment enable us to express limited assurance; a higher level of assurance would have required more in-depth
verifications. Due to the use of sampling techniques and the other limits inherent to the operations of any
information and internal control system, the risk that a material anomaly be identified in the CSR Information cannot
be totally eliminated.
Conclusion
Based on our work, we did not identify any material anomaly likely to call into question the fact that the CSR
Information, taken as a whole, is presented fairly, in accordance with the Reporting Guidelines.
Marseille, March 31, 2015.
French original signed by one of the statutory auditors:
DELOITTE & ASSOCIES
Hugues Desgranges, Partner
1

the scope of which is available at www.cofrac.fr
ISAE 3000 – Assurance engagements other than audits or reviews of historical financial information
Quantitative information:
Social: Total workforce by employment type ; Gender breakdown ; Gender breakdown by country ; Percentage of employees covered by collective
bargaining agreements ; Frequency rate and severity rate of accidents per country ; Number of work-related fatalities ; Average hours of training per year
per employee by gender, and by employee category.
Environmental: Quantity of emitted COD ; Amount of non-hazardous industrial waste ; Amount of special industrial waste ; Water consumption ; Total
amount of packaging brought on the global market ; Gas consumption ; Electricity consumption ; CO2 emissions.
Qualitative information:
Social: Group’s health & safety approach : Following the reinforcement of the safety team over the last few years, and in order to reduce the number of
actions across the Group, a new HSE corporate department was created in late 2014 ; Signature of the disability agreement in 2014.
Environmental: Statement from the most senior decision-maker on the importance of sustainable development for the organization and its strategy ;
Location and size of land owned, leased, managed in, or adjacent to, protected areas and areas of high biodiversity value outside protected areas.
Societal: Approaches to stakeholder engagement, including frequency of engagement by type and by stakeholder group : suppliers ; Percentage of
significant suppliers and subcontractors that have undergone human rights screening ; Corruption: deployment of the risk management exercise in
Uruguay and Brazil and corruption prevention plan established by the Group ; Pharmacovigilance ; Total number of incidents of non-compliance with
regulations and voluntary codes concerning health and safety impacts of products and services during their life cycle, by type of outcomes ; Type of
product and service information required by procedures, and percentage of significant products and services subject to such information requirements.
4
Entities covered by testing on social and environmental information: Virbac SA, Virbac France, Virbac Nutrition, BVT and Virbac Mexico.
2
3
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Management report
In 2014, the Group’s consolidated sales amounted to €773.1 million, which represents a growth of 5.0% at actual
rates, and this growth was significantly impacted by exchange rates in the first half of the year since it would
amount to 7.0% at constant rates. At constant perimeter (full-year consolidation in 2014 of Virbac Uruguay), organic
growth stood at 6.3%, with a strong contrast between the first half (+ 3.0%) and the second half (+ 9.6%) of the
year, driven by new product launches and the re-introduction of Iverhart Plus.
From a regional perspective, the Group’s growth was still very steady in emerging countries, particularly in Mexico,
India and South Africa which enjoyed a two-digit growth. Performance was also very good in large markets such as
Australia and New Zealand, where sales increased by more than 7.0%. In Europe, with a more mature market with
more moderate growth, Virbac has recorded an appreciable growth of more than 6.0%, driven by new products.
Lastly, in the United States, after a decline in the first half, sales have slightly increased over the course of the year
thanks to the re-introduction of Iverhart Plus to the market.
In terms of species, sales in the companion animal segment grew by 4.2% thanks to new products launched in
Europe and the overall positive evolution of ranges such as dermatology, dental products and pharmaceuticals
specialities. Meanwhile, the food producing animals segment experienced a more sustained growth of 10.0% with
strong growth in both the ruminants and the industrial (pigs and poultry) sectors, driven by the dynamics of
emerging countries and a good performance in Europe. Sales in the area of aquaculture in Chile are experiencing a
slight decrease due to regulations put in place by authorities on fish stocks transferred to sea water in salmon farms.

2014 HIGHLIGHTS
Under the terms of an agreement signed with Eli Lilly and Company on October 22, 2014, Virbac acquired two
parasiticides for dogs in the United States: SENTINEL FLAVOR TABS and SENTINEL SPECTRUM, previously sold by
Novartis Animal Health. Described as endectocides, these parasiticides treat dogs for heartworm and other internal
parasites and also protect them against flea infestations by acting on their larvae.
The agreement pertains to a series of rights relating to the two products in the United States: brands, marketing
authorisations, patents, know-how, customer lists and more. Virbac also offered some of the employees involved in
Novartis’ US-based animal health business - mainly sales teams - the chance to join its organisation.
For Virbac, the contribution of these strong brands and this commercial presence to its current portfolio of products for
veterinary clinics and pet owners in the United States, will significantly strengthen its presence and its penetration into
the U.S. veterinary companion animal market and will constitute a veritable lever for its future growth.
The completion of this transaction, which was subject to the approval of the Federal Trade Commission and which
was also contingent upon the closing of the acquisition of Novartis Animal Health by Eli Lilly and Company, occurred
on January 2, 2015.
Early July 2014, Virbac re-launched its internal parasiticide Iverhart Plus in the United States market. The latter had
been the subject in March 2013 of a voluntary recall from distributors and a temporary sales suspension following
the detection of stability problems on some batches. Virbac United States quickly proposed to substitute it by its
Iverhart Max product, which provides the dog with a broader protection, offering it at the price of Iverhart Plus.
Consequently, Iverhart Plus sales rose to €8.7 million in 2014.
Late 2014, Virbac signed a collaboration agreement for ten years with the biopharmaceuticals company Nexvet. The
purpose of this agreement is to develop a new line of veterinary drugs based on monoclonal antibodies as well as
their marketing outside the United States and Canada.
The first drug to be developed under this agreement aims to treat the pain associated with osteoarthritis in dogs.
Nexvet’s PETization™ technology will enable the development of a new generation of veterinary drugs and it should
provide a new, extremely worthwhile therapeutic option for dog pain treatment, which would then eventually be
applied to other domesticated species in the future.
In 2014, growth was driven by the launch, primarily in Europe, of products for both companion and food producing
animals. The key launches of the year comprise the following products:
• Pronefra in Europe in January: Pronefra is an innovative and distinctive nutraceutical indicated for cats to
support renal function in chronic renal failure cases. With kidneys being the first cause of disease of older cats, this
is a breakthrough for veterinarians, who finally have a tasty product available;
• Grofactor in Mexico in July: Grofactor is a growth promoter for cattle. With this product born from innovation
at Virbac, our Mexican subsidiary was the first laboratory to bring to market a generic product that contains,
among others, a technological improvement compared to the existing competitor product thanks to an
innovative premix technology;
• Milpro in Europe in July: Milpro is a milbemycin-based, internal parasiticide for dogs and cats and it is also the
first generic product launched on the European market. This product bulks up Virbac’s portfolio in Europe,
enabling the Group to strengthen its position in this segment;
• Deltanil in Europe in September: Deltanil is an external parasiticide for the treatment of cattle. An innovative
product, both in its formulation and its presentation, Deltanil aims to facilitate the task of the farmers and to
optimise safety during the product’s application on the animal through the “Farmpack” concept. It uses an
ergonomic backpack with a rigid cover into which a “Flexibag” (flexible bag) is clipped containing the
parasiticide. Launched in France in 2013, its marketing continued in Europe throughout 2014;
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• Neoprinil in Europe in September: Neoprinil is indicated for cattle’s treatment of multiple parasite infestations,
both internal and external. Like Deltanil, Neoprinil also benefits from the Flexibag and Farmpack packaging
innovations that make the treatment of animals by their farmers easier and safer, thus creating added value in
this generics market. The launch of Neoprinil in the majority of Virbac subsidiaries in the European region took
place between September 2014 and January 2015;
• Effitix in France, Portugal and Russia in October: Effitix is the new generation of the external Effipro
parasiticide based on fipronil and permethrin intended for dogs. Launched three years ago in the United States,
it covers a broader spectrum which intensifies actions against ticks and effectively prevents against mosquitoes
and sandflies, with an extended duration of activity. This product perfectly fits into the range of products for the
prevention and treatment of leishmaniosis in southern Europe. The launch will continue in 2015;
• Cyclavance in November in Europe: Cyclavance is a product designed to treat atopic dermatitis in dogs and
cats. It is the first product on the market made from liquid Cyclosporine, enabling a crucial dosage precision in
this kind of chronic treatment. This product reinforces Virbac’s leading position in veterinary dermatology. The
launches occurred in England and Germany in November and then in France in December, and they will be
followed by other European countries in 2015;
• full-year effect for Gastrozol in Australia and New Zealand: resulting from the acquisition of the Birch company
from Axon Animal Health in September 2013, Gastrozol is intended for the prevention and treatment of gastric
ulcers in horses. The product was launched in the last quarter of 2013 in Australia and New Zealand.
In 2014, the Virbac Group inaugurated two new production sites in France and in Mexico:
• inauguration in Carros, France, in September 2014, of the new building dedicated to the production of sterile
forms, primarily injectables for ruminants. This building, at the forefront of quality and safety, represents an
investment of €28 million;
• inauguration in Guadalajara, Mexico, of the subsidiary’s new site, which brings together all business activities
including an administrative part, the research and regional development centre, quality control laboratories, a
logistics warehouse and a production area. This new site offers a larger production capacity and fosters the
development of the subsidiary regarding its growth in the domestic market as well as exports. The new site
includes three production lines: a line for injectables, a line for intramammary products and a unit for premixes.
The total cost of the project amounts to $22 million.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO DECEMBER 31, 2014
The agreement signed on October 22, 2014 and finalised early 2015 covers a set of rights to the SENTINEL FLAVOR
TABS and SENTINEL SPECTRUM products for the United States and on stocks of finished products, acquired for a total
price of $410 million, paid in a lump sum on January 2, 2015, following the lifting of the suspensive conditions. This
agreement also allows Virbac to take over part of the sales workforce of Novartis Animal Health in the United States.
For Virbac, this acquisition is a major opportunity to transform its business and to become one of the main players in
the veterinary market in the United States in the companion animal field. SENTINEL SPECTRUM and SENTINEL
FLAVOR TABS have generated sales of over $90 million in the United States in 2014. This acquisition will also enable
Virbac, by incorporating a part of the sales workforce of Novartis Animal Health in the United States, to consolidate
its commercial strike force and its penetration into the veterinary clinics of the country, especially those that have a
strong potential.
Firstly thanks to the contribution of these strong brands to its current product portfolio, and secondly to the support
of a marketing and sales organisation that is twice as big, Virbac will benefit from key factors for strengthening its
coverage and to better serve the needs of veterinary clinics and companion animal owners in the U.S. market. This
acquisition will enable the Group both to strengthen its position in the major market segment of parasiticides for
companion animals, and to benefit from an effective growth lever for other specialties of its product line, due to an
enlarged direct presence regarding veterinary practitioners.
This acquisition meets the criteria which define business combinations under IFRS 3 (and will therefore be
recognised accordingly, in the financial statements of Virbac United States.)
Virbac entrusted an external firm with the task of assessing the fair value of the assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. The provisional estimate is presented on page 146 of the annual report.
Toward the end of 2014, the production site for the Group’s US subsidiary, located in St. Louis (Missouri), was
inspected by the Food and Drug Administration (FDA) as part of a regular review. The issues raised by the FDA after
its inspection essentially pertained to the quality system and, more specifically, to its quality assurance procedures.
In January, Virbac United States responded to the FDA’s observations, submitting a series of corrective measures
and explaining that those measures were part of the plan already initiated in early 2014. That plan stipulates the
setting up of a new organisation and resources designed to improve manufacturing and quality control procedures.
The plan’s implementation is currently under way, and the necessary reinforcement measures have been taken. The
company also made the decision to temporarily suspend production and distribution of products from the St. Louis
site in order to perform an assessment of systemic risk to ensure that the batches released on the market and the
quantities in stock have no defects in terms of efficacy or safety, in order to identify any products requiring recall.
This interruption also made possible the improvement certain manufacturing process validations and the setting up
of certain still missing quality system processes more quickly.
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These measures had an impact on Virbac United States’ activity levels during the early months of the 2015 financial
year; nonetheless, the inventory in the distribution channels should limit the effect of the interruption on veterinary
clinics. It should be noted that these measures do not concern the SENTINEL range acquired by Virbac from Eli Lilly
and Company on January 2, 2015, whose deliveries have not been interrupted since the products are still currently
being manufactured at the Lilly Group’s industrial sites.
On the Group's accounts closure date in March 2015, the assessment procedure described above was carried out and
concluded for the main products, particularly the Iverhart range. Cases requiring a recall were limited, and no
significant risks were detected in respect of the quality of the products on the market or in stock in St. Louis. Deliveries
should gradually resume during the course of March, and production should resume from April.

THE GROUP’S 2014 BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
Performance by geographic region
In 2014, all areas are growing relative to 2013, both at constant scope and exchange rates and at actual exchange rates.
Asia, Africa and the Middle East have recorded a double-digit growth with constant scope and rates, respectively of
12.1% and 13.3%, thanks to sustained growth in emerging economies, particularly India and South Africa. The
Pacific region also achieved about 7.0% of growth thanks to Australia and New Zealand’s large markets. The
European region has revived its growth (+6.7%) thanks to the contribution from new products and an occasional
increase in sales of antibiotics in France before the implementation of the new legislation on commercial discounts in
early 2015. In North America, after a weaker first quarter, the region ended the year on positive growth of 1.4% at
constant rates with the return of Iverhart Plus to the United States market. Finally, in Latin America, growth of 3.1%
at constant scope and rates was achieved by the full-year consolidation of the Uruguayan subsidiary, as well as by
the positive results of the area excluding Chile, and particularly Mexico and Colombia.
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The major contributions by geographical area are as follows:
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Sales in France grew by 6.3% in 2014.
The companion animal segment has benefited from the contribution of new products and in particular Pronefra,
Milpro and Effitix. The return of the Vetflurane anaesthetic on the market, after the supply shortages experienced in
2013, and the sales of dental and dermatological products also contributed to this growth.
The production animal segment has also benefited from the contribution of new products such as Neoprinil, and the
full-year effect of the products Deltanil and Tylaxen, indicated for the treatment of respiratory disorders. This
segment has also benefited from significant sales of antibiotics at the end of year related to the implementation of
the new legislation on commercial discounts in early 2015.

Europe (excluding France)

Sales in Europe have experienced a turnaround compared to 2013, showing a growth of 6.9%. This growth is driven
by almost all of the subsidiaries and is explained by the commercial success of existing products and the successful
launches of new products.
The major developments that contributed to the performance in Europe include :
United Kingdom
This subsidiary grew 10.1% at constant exchange rates.
Sales related to companion animals has continued to grow driven by external parasiticides and dermatological products.
The food producing animals segment has progressed thanks to antibiotics for pigs and poultry.
Northern Europe
The area grew by 6.5% at actual rates and 6.3% at constant rates, with a particularly strong performance by the
German subsidiary (+10.2%).
Regarding companion animals, growth was essentially due to the launch of new products with Pronefra, Milpro,
Cyclavance and Carprox (anti-inflammatory). The product lines comprising external parasiticides, reproduction
products with Suprelorin (implant inducing temporary infertility in dogs) and dermatological products with Easotic
(treatment of ear infections) also presented good results, while the equine range with Equimax has been retreating
following the arrival of new competitors on the market. The dog vaccine range also decreased compared to 2013.
The food producing animals market also profited from launches with Deltanil and Neoprinil but its full-year effect
growth was mostly due to the Suramox 100% (antibiotic for pigs and poultry), particularly in Germany.
Southern Europe
In 2014, the region experienced an increase of 5.0% compared to 2013 and all subsidiaries contributed to this result
with a more salient performance in Italy (+7.3%).
Regarding companion animals, the region profited from the launches of Pronefra and Carprox, as well as Vetflurane
in Spain, but also from good results generated by the existing product lines with the internal parasiticide Milteforan
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and the dermatological (Easotic and Epiotic) range. However, the region has seen its sales of external parasiticides
decrease with the full-year effect of the discontinuation of the Preventic collar.
The industrial range drove the growth of the region regarding food producing animals thanks to the full-year sales of
the Floron antibiotic for pigs and poultry and the appreciable figures regarding Suramox 5%.
The rest of Europe
The region’s results showed an increase of 4.1% at actual rates with strong growth in Poland (+19.1% at constant
rates) and Eastern Europe (+14% at constant rates).
Sales related to companion animals drove the growth of the dermatological product line with Cortavance, anaesthetics
and the petfood range, particularly in Scandinavia and Africa. In respect to food producing animals, the growth came
mainly from the industrial range with antibiotics for pigs and poultry.

North America

After a year of contracting results in 2013, Virbac United States finished 2014 with a slight growth of 1.8% at actual
rates and 1.4% at constant rates.
Despite the delay regarding the launch of new products and stock-out problems for Soloxine (endocrinology), the
subsidiary recorded positive results for its original product lines in dental and dermatology as well as a strong
development of the products Easotic, Anxitane and Novifit. Lastly, in July 2014, the subsidiary re-released its
internal parasiticide Iverhart Plus on the market.

Latin America

In 2014, Latin America sales were up by 3.1% at constant rates and scope compared to 2013, and up by 7.0% at
the actual scope due to the full-year effect of the Uruguayan subsidiary, whose additional acquisition of 69.175% of
the shares occurred on September 12, 2013.
Beyond this scope effect, the growth mainly came from the Mexican subsidiary which recorded strong growth of its
sales (+19.9% at constant rates) mainly in food producing animals with the launch of Grofactor. This growth
promoter for cattle has become, from its first year of sales, the subsidiary’s leading product.
The Costa Rican, Colombian and Brazilian subsidiaries also recorded sustained growth of 11.0% at constant rates for
Colombia and Costa Rica produced by positive results for both companion and food producing animals, and 8.0% for
Brazil, despite the slowdown of the economy. The revenue of these entities at actual rates was strongly impacted
downward by the exchange rate effect.
On the other hand, in Chile, the Centrovet company was penalised by a decline in its aquaculture sales due to
regulations by the authorities regarding salmon stocks put into sea water for farming purposes.

Africa & Middle East

In 2014, Virbac’s activity in Africa and the Middle East grew 13.3% at constant rates but
rates, due to the depreciation of the South African rand.
Virbac South Africa still achieved good results in food producing animals this year, with
Flukazole C, Prodose, Multimin and of endectocides, but also of the industrial product line
and Phenix.
Export sales to Africa and the Middle East, mainly products for food producing animals, grew

grew at 3.6% at actual
an increase of sales of
for poultry with Tylosin
noticeably in 2014.

Asia

In this region, sales growth amounted to 12.1% versus 2013 at constant rates and 8.2 % at actual rates.
Virbac India continued its double-digit growth and recorded new growth of 14.8% at constant rates in 2014 and to
10.0 % at actual rates due to a very adverse exchange rates impact on the Rupee.
Food producing animal activity, which accounts for 97% of the subsidiary’s sales, continues to grow strongly thanks
to mineral and nutritional supplements for cattle such as Ostovet and Agrimin and antiparasiticides for cattle.
Aquaculture also turned in a good performance.
2014 was again a very good year for the Greater China (China, Taiwan and Hong Kong) region, which generated a
double-digit growth of 15.1% at actual rates (16.0% at constant rates).
Growth was essentially driven by the companion animal segment with the performances of Epiotic and Rilexine, as
well as the anaesthetic Zoletil in China and also in Taiwan. Lastly, the pigs and poultry antibiotics line also
experienced an appreciable growth in China in 2014.
In Asia (excluding greater China), 2014 was a year with contrasted growth results for the subsidiaries, with very
strong growth in Vietnam; sustained growth in Japan at constant rates, strongly decreased at actual rates due to the
exchange effect (the subsidiary is experiencing a slight decline at actual rates) and a sharp decline in the Philippines.
Korea stagnated at constant rates, but recorded a growth of 5.0% at actual rates, while Thailand grew slightly at
constant rates, but recorded a decline in actual rates.
Vietnam posted a strong growth of 17.9% at actual rates (19.5% at constant rates) in 2014, after a sharp decline in
2013. These results were generated on the one hand from the companion animal segment with strong increases in
vaccine sales, the industrial vaccines line (Donoban) and antibiotics, as well as strong growth in aquaculture.
At constant rates, Virbac Japan grew 7.5%, but it was strongly impacted by the depreciation of the yen and as a
result, declined 0.3% in actual rates. The growth excluding the effect of exchange rates is thanks to companion
animals and in particular to the growth of the antibiotic Rilexine and the dental line with chews.
The Philippines recorded a decrease of 15.4% at constant rates (-18,8% at actual rates), despite a positive year for
the companion animal segment. The decline in the sales related to companion animals is due mainly to the porcine
diarrea epidemic that generated a high rate of mortality in 2014.
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Pacific

Virbac’s sales in the region grew 6.9% at constant rates, penalised by the depreciation of the Australian dollar over
the year 2014, and as a result, the increase was limited to 1.2% at actual rates.
At constant rates, the Australian subsidiary rebounded with 8% growth in 2014 (0.4% at actual rates) thanks to the
companion animals segment, and in particular the equine range, anaesthetics and vaccines, as well as electronic
identification. Products for food producing animals, and in particular the endectocide lines for cattle and sheep
vaccines, have also been growing.
The New Zealand subsidiary recorded again in 2014 a 6.5% sales increase at constant rates (8.7% at actual rates)
with appreciable results in food producing animals and in particular for the bovine antibiotics (Flukaloze, Penclox and
Multimin) product lines. Regarding companion animals, sales are in decline in particular due to the stopping of sales
of Feliway, the feline anti-stress product.

Performance by segment
In 2014, Group sales rose 6.3% at constant scope and exchange rates, thanks to 4.2% growth in the companion animal
segment and 10.0% growth in the food producing animal segment.
2014 sales
at actual
rates

Like-for-like growth by segment at constant scope and exchange rates
> -5%

in € million

- 5% to
0%

0% to
+ 5%

Parasiticides

102.3

1.6%

Immunology

73.1

0.7%

Antibiotics/dermatology

76.9

Specialties

83.7
28.0

2.7%

Specialised petfood

27.1

3.3%

Companion Animals

+10% to
+15%

6.8%

27.0

3.6%

418.1

4.2%

Bovine parasiticides

46.1

12.1%

Bovine antibiotics

70.2

10.8%

105.0

12.0%

Other ruminants products
Pig/poultry antibiotics

48.7

Other pig/poultry products

18.8

Aquaculture
Food producing Animals
Other businesses
Sales

17.4%
12.8%

53.7

-2.4%

342.5
12.5
773.1

> 15%

10.0%

Equine
Others

+5% to
+10%

10.0%
-18.1%
6.3%

Companion animals

As of December 31, 2014, this business accounted for 54% of the sales up 4.2% at constant scope and exchange
rate versus 2013.
The parasiticide segment displayed a 1.6% growth with a surge of sales of internal parasiticides related to the
launch of Milpro in Europe, but also to the return of Iverhart Plus on the U.S. market in July. This positive
performance to which are added the good results of Indorex in England and Germany were largely offset by the
decreased sales of internal parasiticides linked to the decline of Effitix in the United States.
The immunology product line slightly increased 0.7% this year, with a decline of dog vaccines sales in all regions
offset by a growth in sales of cat vaccines in Europe and especially France.
The growth of +10.0% in antibiotics and dermatology is explained by the good results of dermatological products like
Easotic and Epiotic in China and the United States, and the positive performance of Rilexine tablets in the United States
and Europe (mainly in France and England), as well as the launch of this product in China.
Specialties continued to grow significantly (+6.8%), thanks to the development of Zoletil in Europe and Asia, to
Vetflurane following the end of supplier stock breaks in France and its launch in Spain, but also thanks to the growth
of the dental product line in the United States.
The equine segment, presenting an overall increase of 2.7% compared to 2013, saw its parasiticide sales decrease
due to the strengthening of competition, notably in regard to Equimax. This downward trend was offset by the sales
of other equine products including Gastrozol in the Pacific region.
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The segments of nutrition and other products for companion animals continued to grow this year, especially with the
growth of the Vet Complex ranges and the European launch of Pronefra.

Food producing animals

This business, accounted for 44.4% of Group sales, up 10.0% at constant scope and exchange rates.
All of the product ranges, with the exception of aquaculture sales, have contributed to the growth of the business.
The growth of the cattle parasiticide segment (+12.1%) was generated in large part by Europe with the launch of
Neoprinil and Deltanil, which considerably offset the loss of revenue in Latin America.
In the highly competitive segment of cattle antibiotics, Virbac continues to grow, thanks also to the strong
contribution of Europe which benefited from the full-year effect of the launch of Tylaxen in France and the positive
performance of Mastinject in Germany and of Virbactan in the whole region. We should also note the appreciable
results of Shotapen in Latin America.
Mineral supplements from India, South Africa and Australia, as well as the launch of Grofactor in Mexico, were the
main drivers of growth at constant scope for the segment of other products for ruminants. The full-year effect of the
Uruguayan subsidiary also strongly impacted the growth of this segment (cattle vaccines in particular).
The growth of pig and poultry antibiotics sales was driven by Europe and especially by the launch of Floron in Spain
and the full-year effect of Suramox 100% in Germany. We must also highlight the positive results of the English and
Polish subsidiaries.
The segment for other pig and poultry products benefited from the good results of Virbagest in Mexico and Korea, as
well as from sales in Chile.
Lastly, in 2014, aquaculture sales were retreating due to the decline in salmon production volumes which impacted
the vaccination sales. In addition, Centrovet performance in Chile was strongly penalised by the depreciation of the
Chilean peso.

Other businesses

These sales, which represent less than 2.0% of consolidated revenue, correspond to non-strategic ranges which
cannot be treated as companion animals or food producing animals. They mainly include contract manufacturing
performed for third parties in the United States or Australia.

CHANGES IN GROUP SCOPE
Scope as of December 31, 2014
The consolidated financial statements as at December 31, 2014 include the financial statements of the companies that
Virbac controls indirectly or directly in law and in fact. The list of consolidated companies is contained in note A38.
Changes in the scope made during the year are described in the “Scope” paragraph on page 147 of the annual
report.
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RESEARCH, DEVELOPMENT & LICENSING
Animal health is a market in constant evolution and the growth of tomorrow is linked to today’s research. This is why
Virbac innovation is based on close collaboration between the marketing and research and development teams, in
order to link technological advances and applied research with current and future customer needs. This enables us to
match market trends and sectors with strong potential with the product development projects.
This emulation between the technical approach and needs guide Virbac’s strategic choices, by focusing its research
on segments with worldwide potential: companion animals, ruminants, pigs and aquaculture and by developing
technical and regional development cooperation.
In 2014, spending in RDL (Research, Development & Licensing) remained at a level of 7.8% of revenue, that is, up
2.7% from 2013. This spending is divided between projects at the end of development, having obtained a marketing
authorisation between 2013 and 2014, mature projects affecting different segments and which should obtain a
registration in the medium term and starting phase projects.
Over the course of several years already, the Carros and the United States Research and Development structures
have pooled together their resources and means to carry out joint R&D projects intended for the companion animal
market on a global scale. Since 2013, these projects have become paramount in the Group’s Innovation Products
portfolio and represent a major challenge for Virbac by virtue of their potential. The Group is also strengthening the
upstream portion of its portfolio of projects by the acquisition of technological licenses in the biological and
pharmaceutical fields, whether with public research bodies or with private companies.
In the pig sector, the collaboration that started three years ago between the Virbac Innovation structures and the
SBC teams in Asia has continued to bear fruit. As a consequence, in 2014 the Group obtained the favourable opinion
for the registration of the circovirus vaccine (PCV2) in Taiwan which will extend its registration and therefore its
future sales across Asia, in addition to the marketing of this vaccine in Taiwan. PCV2 vaccines represent the main
market for vaccines for pigs, and therefore present significant potential for the Group.
Additionally, the technological partnerships formed last year with world-renowned universities have enabled the
development of the portfolio of pig vaccine projects, which was also reinforced in 2014 by Virbac’s entry into a
European cooperative programme alongside prestigious partners. This programme should enable Virbac access to
significant financing from the European Union and to contribute to the development of the projects.
Concerning aquaculture, in 2014 we obtained the registration of the first vaccine for a warm water fish, the
Pangasius, whose production is carried out primarily in Vietnam. This vaccine will be launched in 2015. This
registration underscores the Group’s willingness to extend to major global aquaculture production sites its expertise
in preventing bacterial or viral fish diseases, developed by Centrovet and SBC on their respective regions. The
complementarity of the two structures, both technical and geographic, will be strengthened in 2015 with the launch
of ambitious development projects in Latin America, Asia and the Mediterranean, focusing particularly on the
advantage of oral vaccination.
In the regulatory field, in 2014 Virbac obtained several major marketing authorisations, particularly in Europe with
Milpro, Effitix and Cyclavance intended for companion animals and Deltanil and Neoprinil intended for ruminants. On
the American continent, Virbac obtained in Mexico the registration of Grofactor, a cattle growth promoter with high
potential, and it is in the final phase of a key registration in the United States.
In addition to the new registrations obtained, the departments of regulatory affairs continue to expand their
structures in order to maintain and update current registrations to comply with regulatory changes in Europe and
other regions throughout the world.
The regulatory departments in South Africa, Brazil and India continue to make contributions to the various R&D
centres through their local presence and ability to tailor the product dossiers to the requirements of their countries.
They also make it possible to generate product developments for their national markets.
Thanks to its pharmaceutical and biological development teams and its regulatory specialists, Virbac is implementing
a partnership strategy with many public and private organisations. These partnerships are designed to adapt and to
bring new therapies and diagnostic technologies to meet the needs of animal health.
The teams responsible for these partnerships criss-cross the world looking for innovations related to companion
animals as well as food producing animals. As a consequence, the fruit of this work resulted in 2014 in a
collaborative arrangement with the Nexvet company which specialises in the development of monoclonal antibodies
for companion animals. Monoclonal antibodies have been developed significantly for over 20 years in human
medicine for the treatment of cancer and inflammatory and cardiac diseases. The goal of the Virbac-Nexvet
collaboration is to develop veterinary treatments using this pharmaceutical innovation and put them on the market.
The first of these treatments, which should be finalised in a few years, will target treating the pain associated with
osteoarthritis in dogs. It should be followed by several other drugs targeting other important cat and dog diseases.
A number of agreements are being negotiated with other partners and should become a reality in the near future.
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PRODUCTION
France
The growing internationalisation of the Group’s business over the course of many years has contributed to the strong
development of its production units in France, both in respect to equipment and to its workforce and it expresses its desire
to have efficient facilities that meet both increasing regulatory requirements as well as those of our business model.
The inauguration in September 2014 of the building for producing sterile injectable forms, whose work had begun in
June 2011 on the historic Carros site, confirms this development strategy. This new building will make the
production of sterile injectable forms more reliable by elevating the level of pharmaceutical compliance to its highest
quality standard on this production segment with high technological value. With the validation of the manufacturing
processes in place, the regulatory update and production transfer phases were initiated and should conclude early
2015. The manufacture of the first commercial batches began in the fourth quarter of 2014.
In addition, the investment plans for the production sites of parasicitides and dry forms continued in 2014 and have
enabled the Group to launch major products (Milpro, Effitix, Neoprinil and Deltanil Flexibag) successfully.
The Magny-en-Vexin (Paris region) site, dedicated to the production of liquid forms, powders and premixes,
continued its policy for renovating premises and investing in new equipment in order to diversify its business, adapt
to the needs of the market and improve working conditions, while ensuring an adequate level of compliance.
In 2014, Virbac Nutrition, the production unit specialising in animal nutrition located at Vauvert (Gard), continued its
investments to improve productivity and the site’s capacity.
In October 2014, the new version of the ERP (Enterprise Resource Planning) was deployed. This new software tool
which necessitated an in-depth review of processes, is used to raise the level of quality, improve ergonomics,
strengthen mobility in stores and improve the supply chain.

International
United States

The new building entirely dedicated to R&D was inaugurated in April 2014. With a total area of more than 800 m², it
brings together formulation activities and industrial scaling as well as the analytical laboratory.
A pharmaceutical optimisation project on the St. Louis site was started, with particular attention given to products
subject to marketing authorisations.

Asia / Pacific

On the Penrith site in Australia, the investments committed to in 2013 with a view to increasing the production
capacity of the vaccine unit were concretely implemented. On the Crookwell site, investments were made in 2014
and they should be operational by 2015, thus enabling the repatriation of the manufacture of products currently
finished by a third party.
In Vietnam, the investments committed to in 2013 to increase the production capacity of chews, which had reached
its maximum, were implemented in September 2014 with the commissioning of a second production line enabling a
volume increase of 85% compared to 2013. In addition, a complementary 300 m² storage area was built.
The transfer of the production site of the New Zealand subsidiary to Hamilton was completed in the first half of 2014.
Lastly, audits carried out in 2014 by local authorities in the region’s subsidiaries were satisfactory, thus confirming
the good level of compliance.

Latin America

On October 10, a new plant for the production of sterile injectable forms was inaugurated in Mexico, for an
operational start-up of the entire production in 2015. This 7,800 m² production unit is in compliance with the MAPA
standard of Brazil, the strictest in Latin America, and its goal in the medium term is to be certified according to the
most demanding international standards. This investment will enable the subsidiary to significantly increase its
production capacity. A major part of the production (60%) will be intended for export, mainly in Latin America, Asia,
Africa and the Middle East.
In Uruguay, the construction of the new site dedicated to manufacturing vaccines and pharmaceutical production
continued in 2014.
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QUALITY ASSURANCE
In a highly scalable and disparate regulatory context according to regions, Virbac had wanted to consolidate its
know-how across the Group by creating the Quality Assurance department in 2011. The actions that were originally
carried out first on the Carros site in France, spread gradually to other subsidiaries and especially to the aquaculture
segment in 2014, with the recent acquisition of Centrovet.
The Group’s quality strategy is based on three pillars of pharmaceutical management, product management and
sustainable economic performance. The objective is to raise the level of the quality standards in order to meet and
anticipate regulatory requirements for the various production sites and to ensure the continuity of the Group.
Within the continuous improvement centre created in 2013, the work for defining and deploying a Group quality
reference system started in 2014. This programme, the “Virbac quality system”, based on a participatory approach
involving collaboration across teams, sets the quality standards for all production sites, taking into account the
diversity in countries, products and dosage forms involved. This quality system is designed to cover the entire
product cycle from research to production, in order to secure and anticipate possible problems related to the
industrialisation process.
Given that job training is also at the heart of our quality approach, in 2014, important work was conducted to update
job position definitions with a more precise identification of the skills required, acquired and to be developed, so as to
propose training plans that would foster a rise in the skills of the teams and the acquisition of a pharmaceutical culture.
In parallel, an important effort to mobilise around major product launches was conducted in 2014 with the
establishment of a multidisciplinary team involving positions in research and development, production and quality
assurance, all aligned to deliver products on time and with the expected level of quality to satisfy the customer.

HUMAN RESOURCES
The Group has 4,478 employees in 36 countries and 42 subsidiaries or representative offices within Virbac.

Strategy
The success of the company is directly linked to the commitment of its employees. This commitment stems from the
role that they play when major decisions are taken at the company.
Its human resources strategy fully fits into the company’s overall strategy and it seeks to “attain excellence”
concerning the management of its people. This constitutes a permanent challenge for a growing company that needs
to change its mode of operation in connection with globalisation, while respecting its close relationship model with
the customer/market, to avoid the pitfalls of centralisation.
Seeking excellence in people management in such a dynamic environment requires that organisational growth and
evolution go hand in hand with ensuring that each person finds opportunities for their own professional growth and
career development.
Virbac continues with its quest for excellence combining a manager development programme which is constantly
developing and support of HR Business Partners for the implementation of best practices.
It is through this programme that the company makes the continuous link between profits and personal success. The
overall satisfaction of the employees in all of the Group’s subsidiaries is measured by an internal survey. Global
participation in 2013 was 88%. The global score, which has significantly improved since 2005, remains very high
and the percentage of overall satisfied persons working for Virbac amounts to 85%.
Starting in 2007, a strategic development programme was implemented: the Virbac Leadership programme for 200
managers around the world, including both operational and functional managers. Our intrinsic strengths within the
company, such as innovation, a strong orientation towards the customer or even our ability to build strong and
warm relationships were strengthened, but it is the key skills for the Group’s strong growth which form the heart of
its Leadership modules: team development as well as the cross-collaboration and intercultural dimension.
This training simultaneously contributes to strengthen team spirit and cohesion within the Group. It contributes to
foster the growth and evolution of the Group’s operation.
In 2014, an additional component for further improving intercultural management was underway with the United
States and France as the first targeted group.
In 2012, the original development initiative carried out, the VSA (Virbac Selling Attitude), emerged from the partnership
between sales activity decision makers and human resources with a view to improving effectiveness in this area.
The purpose of this training module, which is dedicated to sales managers worldwide, is to better equip them to
select and support successful sales staff at Virbac. Since then, most of the subsidiaries have adopted it for hiring.
Strengthening the human-based culture, supporting employee growth in number and in skills and constantly striving for
greater efficiency for the company with people remain the key focus of the HR department.
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Recruitment and mobility
2014 was a year of growth for Virbac in France with 86 persons being hired under indefinite-term contracts. In addition,
26 persons were hired under definite-term contracts as well as 18 trainees. The applicants come from various sources:
27% from within the company, 24.0% from temp agencies, 18% from advert, 18% from head hunters and the remainder
from application on spec, via recommendation, or from the pool of interns and work/study placements.
All organisations (sales, marketing, industrial, research and development, quality assurance, support functions) have
been involved in hiring highly specialised professionals and experts in the health professions.
Sought out profiles are usually scientists with experience in the pharmaceutical industry: pharmacists, veterinarians
or biology and chemistry engineers, sometimes with an international dimension or a double competence.
Aside from specific scientific profiles, Virbac regularly hires operators and technicians at the Carros industrial and
R&D sites by constantly searching for new candidates.
This need to identify and attract new talent necessitated the establishment of several communication activities to
develop awareness and the attractiveness of Virbac as an employer. The career section of the institutional website
was updated, brochures and communication tools formalising the employer message were made and used during
recruitment events and press articles were published. Campus management actions for target schools were
intensified in 2014.
Lastly, the employer value proposition was internally disseminated to managers around the world so that they can
act as the primary ambassadors in our recruitment campaigns.

Training and development
Training and skills development are a strategic priority for the Group and for Human Resources with a view to
accompanying the major developments of the Group and the emergence of new know-how.
Training management continues to evolve with all categories of staff participating in training programmes at the rate
of 2,838 participations.
2014 marks a key stage in the evolution of training practices in several respects.
Firstly, the coordination of the training efforts between different organisations, with the appointment of occupational
training managers.
These experts are responsible for developing professional skill development courses, which complement the training
programme proposed by Human Resources, based on management skills, behavioural skills and know-how to be
consolidated, taking into account the requirements of new collaborations between employees, departments and countries.
This coordination is reflected at the global level, notably through an improved collaboration between the training
activities at headquarters and the activities carried out throughout our subsidiaries.
The optimisation of training is at the heart of the reflections to identify the best teaching methods (classroom, elearning, one-on-one instruction, etc.) to deploy for achieving skills development.
Within this framework, new customised curricula have been deployed, in order to address very specific needs and to
foster improved support for change. In 2014, Virbac, for example, designed a curriculum for its sales forces.
Lastly, some of the programmes implemented produced a concrete impact for our subsidiaries.
The ‘Virbac selling attitude’, a training course launched in November 2012, aimed at better equipping business
managers for recruiting and developing salespeople, was crucial in the recruitment of 87 employees in one week
when the acquisition was made in the United States in 2014.
An adaptation of the VSA and a training course for sales directors was deployed to successfully carry out this acquisition.

Compensation
An upward trend was again observed in the results of the internal opinion poll on compensation-related issues in France.
This positive trend, observed for several years now, is the result of clarification and communication work by employees
and managers as well as tailoring compensation policies and other employee benefits to market practices and
rewarding individual and group performance.
The training programmes delivered to new managers and to new starts enable quick immersion in the company
culture through best practices sharing and facilitating practical tools.
These programmes are available in English and Spanish and are tailored to each subsidiary that is involved in a
similar dynamic. The HR Corporate team is increasingly mobilised to support these initiatives within the Group and
to produce a more homogeneous result for these improvements.
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Group workforce
As at end of December 2014, Virbac had 4,478 employees: 2,661 men (59.4%) and 1,817 women (40.6%).

Breakdown of Group employees
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36.3% of Group employees are in Europe, of which 1,312 are in France, or 29.3%.
Employee numbers recorded on 31 December 2014 increased 2.9% compared to those recorded on December 31,
2013, with the highest increases being from the Asian (7.5%) and North American (7.7%) regions.
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Changes to employee numbers by region
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Changes to employee numbers by function
2013

2014
Production
Administration
Commercial & Marketing
Research & Development
Workforce

1,683

38%

1,666

487

11%

487

11%

1,800

40%

1,739

40%

508

11%

460

11%

4,478

100%

4,352

100%

The significant growth in Research & Development employees of +10.4% comes essentially from Uruguay (+19
employees) and from France (+10 employees).
The increase of Sales & Marketing personnel of +3.5% came mainly from India (+69 persons).

Virbac in France
Workforce

Virbac has 1,312 employees in France.
This figure includes the fixed-term contracts (CDD) and apprentices, who are not taken into account in the
sustainable development section which is based on permanent employees.
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With 56.0% women and 44.0% men, the workforce breaks down as follows in terms of socioprofessional
classification:
Manual
workers
20.0%

Supervisory
personnel/
technicians/
employees
37.0%

Managers
43.0%

Changes to the workforce

In 2014, with 129 hirings and 116 departures, the balance of personnel hiring/departures was positive (+13 people)
in France.

Compensation

In 2014, gross compensation amounted to €58,036,543 and payroll taxes to €26,334,457. The average annual gross
salary of €47,032 is up 2.71% compared to 2013.

Other employee benefits

The amount paid in 2014 by the company amounted to €574,000 (including Virbac Nutrition, for the first time in 2014).

Training

Training expenses this year amounted to €1,890,595 accounting for 3.26% of payroll. As in 2013, training expenses in
2014 were optimised through the roll-out of inter-company training and the measures taken by internal coordinators
which makes it possible to train more employees for less.

Working time

All employees are covered by a working time reduction agreement (Réduction de Temps de Travail - RTT). The
reference period is annual (from June 1 to May 31), and the duration is 1,567 hours (completed by an allotment of
130 hours for supervisors), accompanied by RTT days and that are arranged differently according to the
organisations or categories. For executives, regarded as independent within the organisation for achieving their job
mission, a yearly figure capped at 213 days is applied.
An agreement regarding part-time work allows up to 6% of the employees to benefit from a reduction at 4/5ths or at
90.0% of working time. Where the number of requests exceeds the quota, weighted criteria were defined together with
management and were consolidated and compared in a joint committee. Amendments to the employment contract are
concluded for the same period as paid leave and the RTT to facilitate management.

Workplace safety

This area, considered a priority by the Group, combined with a corporate culture, once again improved in 2014,
dropping by almost 11% in terms of frequency, whilst the severity rate remained unchanged over the last two years.
Specifically, in 2014, the main advances were the following:
• regarding regulations on harsh working conditions, in accordance with the action plan drawn up in partnership
with the CHSCT (Committee on hygiene, safety and working conditions), the aim being to reduce the number of
cases defined as harsh working conditions by more than 50% between 2012 and 2015, the “carrying heavy
loads” and “painful postures” sections of this action plan have already been achieved during 2014;
• proportional reduction of the ergonomy policies in new production sectors, with the introduction of new automated
systems, along with the implementation of the new PRAP programme (Prévention des risques liés à l’activité
physique - prevention of physical activity risks) with the appointment of a person holding the necessary qualifications
enabling him/her to fulfil the assigned duties;
• training programmes continue to expand with the implementation of the new training module pertaining to
biological risks, with more than 50 people attending in 2014.
Following the reinforcement of the safety team over the last few years, and in order to reduce the number of actions
across the Group, a new HSE (Health, safety and environment) Corporate department was created in late 2014.
On the subject of stress at work, three main working themes have driven 2014:
• interactive theatre sessions to foster awareness about stress brought together about 180 people in Carros.
Based on the representation of a professional situation, a debate enabled participants to share stress symptoms
and factors to encourage a free dialogue on this subject and to facilitate the earliest possible identification of
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potentially sensitive situations. On this occasion, the joint group Better at work presented the various contacts
available to employees and discussed good attitudes to be adopted;
• the executive committee has approved the drafting of a guide for better using e-mail to disseminate best
practices. It was elaborated based on user issues, such as: limiting information overload, stress and conflict
factors, media addiction, and enhancing collaborative work. The communication plan will be deployed in 2015;
• a joint commission was established to investigate any complaint relating to a harassment situation, define the
modalities of investigation, share findings, and define and follow the associated action plan. A dedicated CHSCT
(Health, safety and working conditions committee) person and the HR managers were specially trained in the
legal and social aspects of the deployment of this type of approach.

Absenteeism

Absenteeism within the company amounted to 4.15%, and is broken down as follows:

Part-time
medical
leave
0.04%

Occupational
accident
0.23%

Maternity
0.62%

Commuting
accident
0.01%

Illness
3.25%

Industrial relations

Employee representatives were re-elected in 2013 to the ESU (Economic and social unit) for a new term of four
years, presented by the CGT (General confederation of labour), the CFDT (French democratic labour confederation)
or by free application.
The workforce and management agreed to make use of an innovative approach to organising professional elections:
electronic voting.
The works council of the ESU is composed of eight permanent members and seven substitutes. Regular meetings are
held monthly.
The Carros sites have ten permanent employee representatives and eight substitutes; there are two employee
representatives (one permanent and one substitute) at Virbac Distribution and a memorandum of vacant elective
office was drawn up at Magny-en-Vexin.
A shared electronic communication platform was set up to facilitate exchange between employee representatives
and the human resource department.
The CHSCT is made up of seven elected members at Carros and two at Magny en Vexin.
Two CGT union representatives and one CFDT union representative are present in France.

Disabled workers

As part of its diversity policy and particularly with regard to disability, in 2014 Virbac started negotiations with its
corporate officers and signed a three-year handicap agreement at the end of 2014.
The main thrust of this agreement and its commitments focus on increasing the employment rate of disabled
workers from 3.0% to 4.5% at the end of the agreement by implementing targeted actions for the following items:
• recruit and increase the number of workers with disabilities;
• be successful in and develop the accommodation of students with disabilities;
• optimise the use of the protected area (ESAT, handicap-adapted companies...);
• strengthen its communication and awareness activities on disability;
• the establishment of a Disability Contact Person and Ambassadors internally;
• maintain the employees with disabilities employed;
• develop training activities for persons with disabilities.
In this context, Virbac has planned to allocate over the course of three years a budget greater than the amount of
its compulsory contribution.
In order to preserve its employees’ positions in the workplace, Virbac also introduced a workload action plan, as well
as improving ergonomics in new production areas.
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Within this diversity approach, Virbac continued with training and awareness activities for managers on nondiscrimination and equal opportunities throughout 2014. To date, 209 managers have been trained.

Optional and compulsory profit-sharing and company savings plan
Optional profit-sharing agreement
The current profit-sharing agreement was entered into 2014, for a period of three years (2014 to 2016).
This agreement is applicable to all companies that form the ESU in France: Virbac, Virbac France, Alfamed, Virbac
Distribution, Virbac Nutrition and BVT.
This agreement, which correlates with the results of the company, is based on two profitability ratios for calculating
the profit-sharing amount to be distributed:
• a profitability ratio that looks at the Group consolidated net profit attributable to equity holders of the parent
over consolidated revenue;
• a profitability ratio that looks at Virbac group share consolidated operating profit over consolidated revenue.
The combination of these two ratios in order to calculate the profit-share has the twin goals of:
• allocating employees a profit-share that is in line with the company’s financial performance (ratio based on
net profit);
• rewarding the collective contribution of employees (ratio based on operating income from ordinary activities).
For this agreement, the beneficiaries are employees with at least three months of service in the Group as at
December 31 in the year to which the calculation relates.
Compulsory profit sharing in company net profit
The profit-sharing agreement entered into in 2008 constitutes a profit-sharing agreement between Virbac, Virbac
France, Alfamed, Virbac Distribution and Virbac Nutrition.
In 2014, an amendment was concluded to include the BVT company in this agreement.
Each company of the Group contributes to the formation of the overall reserve for the full amount of its own reserve,
calculated according to the statutory formula. The beneficiaries are employees with at least three months of service in
the Group as at December 31 in the year to which the calculation relates. Participation can be assigned to three funds:
the current blocked account, the PEE (company savings plan) and/or the Perco (collective retirement savings plan).
Employee savings plans
The amounts derived from profit-sharing, participation or voluntary payments agreements can be invested in a
mutual fund. A PEE is dedicated to the employees of the ESU formed by the companies Virbac, Virbac Distribution,
Virbac France, Alfamed and BVT. Another PEE is also open to employees of Virbac Nutrition. The Perco, managed by
Generali Epargne Salariale, allows employees to build a diversified savings plan for their retirement.
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RISK FACTORS
In 2014, the risk management process continued to be deployed and gained in maturity with the implementation of
a software tool specifically dedicated to managing risk.
Risk maps were also drawn up within certain significant subsidiaries.
Action plans from the different risk maps were regularly monitored with each of the owners of the given risks.
The organisation and methods for how the tool was implemented within the Group are presented in detail in the
report of the chairwoman of the supervisory board on page 128 of the annual report.
As part of this risk mapping update, Virbac has conducted a review of risks that could have a significant adverse
effect on its business, its financial situation or its results and considers that so far there are no significant risks other
than those shown in this report.
However, certain risks not detailed here or not identified to date may potentially affect the Group’s results,
objectives, image or share price.

Risks related to the Group’s business activities and strategy
The animal health market has undergone significant changes over recent years which have given rise to new challenges
for the animal health sector which the Group has taken into account in its strategy (by market and by species).

Risks related to innovation process (research, development, licensing)
and product registration
Risk factors
The field of veterinary pharmaceutical industry is highly competitive, and every year, in order to meet changing
market needs, maintaining its market share and ensuring its development, Virbac devotes significant resources to
research and development.
In 2014, Virbac spent 7.8% of its sales on RDL. The R&D process typically spans several years and involves different
steps to test, among other things, the effectiveness and the safety of the products. There is a risk in each of these
stages, that the objectives are not achieved and that a project is abandoned for which large amounts were invested,
including during an advanced stage of development.
Once the research and development phase is completed, Virbac, in its role of veterinary pharmaceutical laboratory,
requires administrative authorisations for marketing its products, the marketing authorisations. This step is often
long and complex, and its chances of success are not guaranteed. Indeed, an application for registration to the
competent authorities does not automatically lead to the authorisation to market the product. The latter may be
partial, that is, confined to certain countries or indications. When the market authorisation is obtained, products are
subject to constant checks and may still be subject to a marketing restriction or a withdrawal from the market.
Consequently, the current investments in respect of the development and launch of future products may involve
costs that will not necessarily generate additional sales for Virbac.
Alongside internal R&D projects that are subject to extremely defined processes and the regular monitoring of the
various projects underway, the Group also conducts a policy of licence acquisition which enables it to have access
either to new products ready to be marketed or to ongoing projects that it then carries out by itself to their
conclusion. Similar to internal R&D projects, there is a risk that these projects will not be successful or that their
commercial benefits prove lower than expected, which could lead to the recognition of a provision for depreciation of
these asset values.
Risk management mechanisms
Virbac seeks to limit these risks by first employing stringent selection criteria for the research and development
projects in which it invests (likelihood of success, as measured by a combination of technical, regulatory and
marketing factors, of over 50.0%). Likewise, Virbac targets, through in-depth studies, the products subject to
licensing agreements. Lastly, Virbac relies on the expertise of its Regulatory Affairs department, responsible for
filing, tracking and renewing the authorisations for placing the products on the market.
The animal health market is highly regulated and Virbac displays a strong commitment to compliance by putting in
place all necessary means to achieve it.

Risks associated with product liability
Risk factors
Virbac may be liable regarding its products in the event of adverse side effects of drugs (not detected during clinical
trials prior to the marketing authorisation) or quality failure. The consequences of such events could be the recall of
marketed batches, or even the loss, temporary or otherwise, of the marketing authorisation. If Virbac’s liability is
admitted in the context of significant claims, the Group’s financial situation as well as its reputation could be strongly
affected. In the case of a quality problem, we would need to add the drug recall costs.
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Risk management mechanisms
Virbac is continuously strengthening its pharmacovigilance procedures and its quality controls over all the products
that the Group markets. In the context of pharmaceutical monitoring procedures, the Group conducts a systematic
review and regular analysis of the safety profile of its products to ensure the safe use of drugs by monitoring the
side effects attributable thereto.
Moreover, Virbac has product liability insurance that applies to all subsidiaries.

Risks associated with the distribution channels
Risk factors
Virbac is present in many countries, either through its subsidiaries or through the distributors in the countries where
the Group does not have a subsidiary. There are multiple distribution networks and their characteristics depend on
the country where products are marketed. However, the Group’s products are essentially distributed via wholesalers
and procurement centres used by veterinarians. Despite the framing of these relations by contracts which are
regularly revised, this mode of distribution could create for the Group a certain dependency or an unsatisfactory
management of its presence and its development.
Moreover, in certain countries the animal health sector has shown for some years now a trend towards the
concentration of distributors and veterinarians in large clinics.
This trend has, for now, not affected the Group’s business.
Similarly, new distribution channels such as the Internet, for example, have been appearing. Virbac remains vigilant on
this development and the impact it could have on the level of revenues and margins.
Risk management mechanisms
In order to reduce its dependence on distributors and to reduce the effects of a potential consolidation, Virbac has
implemented a policy of securing its margins and consolidating its commercial positions. This policy entails
systematically studying the possibility for implementing a distribution subsidiary whenever sales reach a sufficient
volume in a given market. Virbac then implements the most appropriate solution by proceeding either to acquire its
distributor or to create a subsidiary.
In more general terms, the Group strives to constantly adapt its marketing strategy in order to limit associated
risks, and to take advantage of the opportunities which arise from these changes.

Risks related to increased competition
Risk factors
The animal health sectors has become increasingly competitive. Virbac products are sold in competitive markets in
terms of pricing, financial conditions and product quality.
The Group must often face powerful competitors with a larger size or which have greater resources. A phenomenon
of gradual consolidation cannot be excluded. New forms of competition can be also observed such as the
verticalisation of the business activities of some large distributors, the total or partial introduction on the market of
animal health business activities of large pharmaceutical laboratories, the local development of innovative players in
niche markets, or even the implementation of strategic partnerships between smaller players on market. These
developments are likely to change the competitive environment of the Group.
Risk management mechanisms
Virbac analyses and constantly monitors the movements of its competitors across all markets and has a policy of
external growth through acquisitions and/or partnerships, enabling it particularly to participate in the on-going
consolidation in the sector.
Moreover, the Group undertakes rigorous management of its activities enabling it to remain competitive in an
increasingly competitive market.

Reputational risks
Risk factors
Virbac’s success depends on its ability to maintain its reputation for quality, integrity and seriousness.
Although the Group pays great attention to customer requirements and quality of its products, it cannot guarantee that it
will be protected from damaging consequences on its reputation which may derive from a potential quality problem or if it
is involved in a liability dispute that would be covered extensively by the media.
The current context of growing pressure and heightened vigilance in the pharmaceutical industry increases Virbac’s
exposure to this risk.
Risk management mechanisms
The reputational risk is managed by Virbac at two levels:
• a daily continuous action. The image risk can be managed independently of other risks insofar as all risks
may have an influence on an organisation’s reputation. It is therefore managed on a daily basis by the various
policies implemented and the internal control actions. Furthermore, since early 2012, Virbac has created an
e-reputation manager position whose role is to ensure a constant monitoring of different media in order to
anticipate the occurrence of media crises;
• a specific action. In order to respond as quickly and efficiently as possible to the occurrence of crises, Virbac
has implemented a crisis management policy. The latter is based on an “incidents and past crises” database, a
list of potential crisis scenarios and communication training actions. This process of crisis management is
subject to a periodic update.
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Risks related to the external growth policy of the Group
Risk factors
Since its inception, Virbac has pursued an active external growth policy that has led it to be present today in many
countries and have a wide range of products. The Group is contemplating on continuing this policy in the future in
order to bolster is geographical positions and its product offering.
The choice of growth through acquisition entails financial and operational risks, especially related to the valuation of
assets and liabilities and the integration of personnel, activities and products purchased.
These acquisitions involve, in particular, the following uncertainties:
• the assumptions of future profitability taken into account in valuations that could not be verified;
• the Group may not successfully integrate acquired companies and their product lines.
Risk management mechanisms
Virbac has defined a rigorous process for mergers and acquisitions to cover the analysis of potential targets and the
integration of acquired companies:
• applying strict criteria of investment profitability;
• establishing expert, multidisciplinary teams, supported where necessary by outside consultants, in charge of
implementing in-depth due diligence.
This process requires the approval of the executive board and/or the supervisory board prior for any acquisition.
The results of past acquisitions, new and old, demonstrate Virbac’s ability to manage this process and the associated
challenges.

Risks associated with the ability to attract key talents
Risk factors
In France, the key skills sought for central functions (industry/quality assurance/research and development) are in great
demand in all of the pharmaceutical industry, human and veterinary. In addition to this competition between employers,
the geographical location of our headquarters can represent a hindrance for hiring, because of the weak offer of
employment for spouses, as well as the high cost of life in the region, in particular concerning real estate.
Meanwhile, in emerging countries, the job market is very dynamic, and Virbac’s size and reputation cannot always
attract the best.
Risk management mechanisms
The HR strategy in talent management consists of constant communication around the dynamism and competitiveness
of the Group’s development and compensation, while strongly reinforcing its presence in schools and universities, as
well as partnerships with major employment stakeholders in the industry.
To strengthen this approach, in 2014 Virbac developed an employer offer that formalises the internal and external
communication of the Group as an employer. Now Virbac has a strong employer message to foster its growth in
France and abroad.

Country risk
Risk factors
Virbac is an international group which may have to operate in countries with a certain geopolitical and economic
fragility. Nevertheless, the degree of exposure remains limited to the extent that the Group has no strategic assets
in these countries.
Risk management mechanisms
The Group remains vigilant and closely follows the level of political or economic instability in certain countries to
anticipate possible response or prevention methods if the level were to reach a magnitude that could have a major
impact on employees, assets or the operations of Virbac.
Additionally, the Group uses Coface hedging, the leading French insurance company specialising in export credit
insurance to secure its operations in certain regions.

Industrial and environmental risks
Because of its activities carried out in various strategic sites worldwide, Virbac is subject to industrial and
environmental risks which could result in significant additional operating costs and liability in case of fire or explosion.
The ultimate risk would be temporary or permanent closure of a site for non-compliance with certain rules or
following a major incident.
However, Virbac grants particular attention to industrial risk prevention and environmental protection in line with its
social and environmental policy.
The responsibility for industrial risk management falls mainly to the heads of operational sites, which monitor
compliance with regulations and standards in this field by implementing operating procedures, quality systems and a
series of security measures, as defined and dictated by the Group, in cooperation with its insurers.
More information regarding the industrial and environmental risk factors related to the Group’s activities can be
found in the sustainable development report on page 36.
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Risks related to the use of hazardous materials
Risk factors
As part of its veterinary medicine manufacturing business, Virbac uses substances that present health, fire and/ or
explosion, air pollution and spillage risks during the various phases of the production and marketing processes (R&D,
manufacturing, storage and transport). These risks could, should they materialise, cause damage to persons,
property and the environment.
Risk management mechanisms
To limit these risks, the Group complies with the safety measures prescribed by the laws and regulations in force,
implements good manufacturing and laboratory practices, and ensures the training of its employees. Its
manufacturing and research and development facilities are also inspected periodically by the appropriate authorities.

Risk of business interruption due to equipment
or strategic facilities losses
Risk factors
Like any industrial activity, Virbac production sites are exposed to the possibility of unforeseen incidents that may
result in the temporary suspension of production or permanent closure of the site.
These incidents are various types: fire, machine breakdown, explosion, natural disaster, contamination, malicious
acts or storage of hazardous materials.
Risk management mechanisms
Virbac has implemented a process to ensure the safety of industrial facilities. The probability of such events as well
as their possible impact on the Group’s production and its results are thus limited by the following measures:
• buildings are in compliance with regulatory safety requirements (e.g. standardised fire detection systems on
the sites);
• annual audits of facilities are performed;
• insurers make preventive visits and audits;
• ongoing investments are made to improve and secure production-related operations activities.
In 2013, the Group set up a new structure by creating an Industrial and Corporate Quality Assurance department
with the aim of developing and making the production tool at Group level durable over time, on the one hand to
comply with all applicable local regulation and on the other, to create conditions for greater flexibility and synergy
with the different production sites within the Group. Lastly, Virbac took out an insurance policy for operating losses.

HSE risks (Health, safety and environment)
Risk factors
As part of its activities, Virbac is subject to a set of regulations related to health, safety and environmental issues.
The majority of the production sites in France are subject to operating regulations issued by the supervisory authorities.
These regulations include requirements that all sites must meet regarding environmental matters including waste
management, the volume and quality of water discharges, and safety and risk prevention rules.
The operation regulations to which the company sites are subjected can be declarations or authorisations. No site is
subject to the regulations of the European Seveso directive.
Failure to comply with these regulations could result in fines and financial burden and potentially lead to the closure
of a site by the administrative authorities.
Meanwhile, given the nature of its activity, the Group may have an impact on the environment even if it does not
cause visual, noise or odour pollution.
Risk management mechanisms
Protecting the environment and the safety of its employees are key priorities for the Group.
Virbac pays special attention to ensuring that its various sites comply with existing regulations. The Group has an
HSE department in France that is tasked with guiding and assisting its operational departments in developing and
maintaining an adequate level of protection of people and the environment. Lastly, the HSE issues are taken into
account while performing due diligence to acquire new sites.
Additional information related to HSE can be found on page 36 of the sustainable development report.

Legal risks
Virbac attaches special importance to the legal risk management, particularly given the complexity of the
competitive and regulatory environment and growth of the Group. The Legal department ensures proper
management of the legal risks in conjunction with the operational departments.

Risks related to the maintenance of intellectual property rights
Risk factors
The Group’s success rests largely on its ability to obtain and effectively protect its intellectual property rights and, in
particular, its brands, its registration files, formulae and technology.
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The risk incurred by the company is twofold: to have a competitor attack or use its intellectual property rights, and
to be sued for infringement by third-party rights holders. Indeed, it is not uncommon in this business to see some
competitors initiate infringement actions for the sole purpose of delaying the release of the products on the market.
Risk management mechanisms
The protection of the Group’s intellectual property relies on two departments working in close collaboration.
Within the R&D department, the patents team is responsible especially for:
• drafting and submitting patents related to innovative techniques or products;
• monitoring the competition in order to guard against abusive use of rights by a third party;
• analysing third party patents from the development phase onwards of new products in order to avoid
infringement on the part of Virbac.
The Legal department assures protection of the registered brands and domain names at Group level and manages all
disputes related to intellectual property.

Risks related to regulatory changes
Risk factors
The regulatory risk is derived from Virbac’s exposure to regulatory and legislative developments, particularly those
concerning health policies. Any change in the law and regulations can impact the results and the financial position of
the Group.
Virbac must obtain and maintain the marketing authorisations required for the manufacture and sale of its products.
Taking into account the international presence of the Group, these regulatory approvals are produced by authorities or
agencies established in many countries. The withdrawal of a previous authorisation or the failure to obtain an
authorisation for a new product can have a detrimental effect on operational results.
It should be noted that the pharmaceutical industry is subject to increased attention from authorities and the public,
which results in the regular issuance of tougher rules which govern it.
Risk management mechanisms
Each functional and operational department in the Group is responsible for implementing an ongoing monitoring
mechanism in order to identify or anticipate any regulatory change which could impact the Group’s activities.
Each department may, where relevant, need to be supported by local experts in certain regions of the world.
The Group Regulatory and Public Affairs department provides permanent monitoring of the pharmaceutical
regulations to which the Group is subject.

Risk of legal action
Risk factors
Virbac is established worldwide. While conducting its activities, the Group is likely to be involved in litigation and
judicial, arbitral or administrative proceedings and group actions anywhere in the world. All significant disputes are
assessed and managed systematically by the Legal department, assisted, if necessary, by external advice.
Risk management mechanisms
Given its prudent provisioning policy, the Group considers that the provisions recorded in the accounts in respect of
these matters are sufficient to cover the exposed financial risk if convicted.
At the date of this annual report, there is no current legal proceeding in which Virbac would be threatened, which
may have significant effects on the financial position or profitability of the Group.

Operational risks
By nature, the various activities of the Group covering the sector’s entire value chain exposes it to operational risks
of various kinds. Within the Group, the Industrial and Corporate Quality Assurance department as well as the
Corporate Sourcing department contribute to staving off associated risks.

Risks of dependence on third parties for supply or manufacturing of certain products
Risk factors
The majority of raw materials and active ingredients forming the composition of products manufactured by Virbac
are provided by third parties.
In certain cases, the Group also uses subcontractors or industrial partners who have expertise in or mastery of
particular technologies.
However, for certain supplies or certain technologies there exist situations where diversification is difficult or even
impossible, giving rise to a risk of supply outages or price pressures. These cases of mono-sourcing are structural
and characteristic of the pharmaceutical sector.
Risk management mechanisms
Suppliers are selected according to rigorous criteria. To the extent possible, Virbac diversifies its supply sources by
referencing several suppliers, while ensuring that these sources have sufficient quality and reliability characteristics.
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To limit these risks, the Group expands as much as possible its search for diverse suppliers and can, in some cases,
secure its supply by acquiring the technologies and capabilities that it lacks and which produce excessive dependence.
Whatever the solution adopted, the Group systematically ensures upstream the sustainability of the source.
In addition, Virbac regularly updates mapping of its major suppliers, including contract reviews and possible
alternative sources.

Fraud risks
Risk factors
Virbac has implemented training and best practices processes which are intended, amongst others, to prevent the
risk of fraud.
Virbac’s code of ethic underscores the Group’s commitment to pursue its activities in respect of ethics and the law,
and also defines its Code of conduct and the kind of relationships that Virbac wishes to have with its partners.
The Group could still undergo internal or external fraud that could lead to financial losses and affect the reputation of
the Group.
Risk management mechanisms
Virbac is committed to strengthening internal control and pays special attention to generating awareness of these
issues in its teams. The Group and in particular its core functions regularly issue important directives and guidelines in
the matter. The segregation of duties as well as the appointment of regional controllers contribute to strengthen control
and to reduce the likelihood of the occurrence of this type of practice. As soon as new companies are acquired, they are
integrated into these systems for preventing unethical practices.

Risks related to safety and reliability of information systems
Risk factors
The Group’s business is based in part on tightly integrated information systems. The failure of one of these systems
could directly impact Virbac’s business and profits. Other risk factors may be envisaged such as intrusion, piracy,
theft of knowledge, know-how or confidential information, shut-down of one or more systems following a computer
failure, obsolescence of a part of the IT system (application, server, etc.) as well as regulatory developments
particularly linked to the Internet (licences and copyright, personal data, etc.).
Risk management mechanisms
The Group Information Systems department (DSI) ensures the ongoing security of the information system networks.
The areas processed are:
• organisation and general security of information systems;
• physical security (intrusion, accidents);
• networks (local, remote, internet);
• the availability of applications and data.
The DSI regularly develops and updates all measures to preserve the confidentiality of data, protect systems against
intrusion and minimise the risk of interruption of service (back-up, redundancy and server backup procedures,
disaster recovery plan, and so forth).
In addition, an IT systems-use code is applied to all Group employees.

Risks related to occupational accidents and occupational illnesses
Risk factors
Given the nature of Virbac’s industrial activities, the possibility of an accident occurring at work (either conventional
or related to the risk of contamination by products) cannot be ruled out even if the danger level of such activities
must be considered relative to other industries deemed to be more dangerous.
Risk management mechanisms
The exposure of employees is covered by specific measures presented on pages 58 to 60 of the sustainable
development report:
• defining a clear and precise safety organisation;
• establishing a prevention policy and continuous improvement approach.
For this purpose, the Group has pursued the implementation of tools and resources to cover all teams through:
• the Reflex Prevention approach (awareness and training of safety personnel);
• analysis of accidents at work as a performance indicator;
• medical evaluation before each recruitment (in particular in the United States).

Financial risks
Policy management of financial risk is controlled centrally by the Group’s Financial Affairs department and in
particular its Treasury and Financing department.
Strategies for financing, investment, and interest and exchange rate risk hedging are systematically reviewed and
monitored by the Financial Affairs department. The transactions carried out by local teams are also managed and
monitored by the Group’s Treasury and Financing department.
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The holding of financial instruments is conducted with the sole purpose of reducing exposure to exchange rate and
interest rate risks and has no speculation purpose.

Market risks
Currency Exchange risks

§

Risk factors
The currency risk is defined as the impact on the Group’s financial flows linked to exchange rate fluctuations in the
exercise of its activities. Because of its international activities, the Group is exposed to currency exchange risks for
transactions as well as the translation risk.

§

Risk management mechanisms
The Group’s policy is to hedge the currency exchange risks when the extent of exposure and the currency fluctuation
risk are high. For this purpose, it uses various instruments available on the market and it primarily carries out
foreign exchange forward transactions or currency options. The details of this risk are presented in note A30 of the
consolidated financial statements.
Interest rate risks

§

Risk factors
The Group’s income statement may be impacted by interest rate risk. In fact, adverse interest rate changes may thus
have a negative effect on the costs of finance and future financial flows of the Group.
The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk however remains limited provided it results primarily from credit lines at
variable rates implemented in France.

§

Risk management mechanisms
To manage the risks and optimise the cost of its debt, the Group follows market rate anticipations and can
implement interest rate swaps (fixed rate) not exceeding the duration and amount of actual commitments. The
details related to the mentioned risk are described in note A30 of the consolidated financial statements.
Liquidity risk

§

Risk factors
Liquidity is defined by the Group’s capacity to meet its financial payment deadlines within its current activity and to
find new sources of financing as needed, and in this way guarantee ongoing balance of its income and expenditure.
As part of its operations and its recurring investment programme, the Group is thus exposed to cash shortages to
finance its growth and development.

§

Risk management mechanisms
The policy of pooling excess cash and financing requirements for all regions means that the Group’s net positions
can be reduced and that the management of its deposits and financings are optimised, thereby ensuring that Virbac
has the ability to meet its financial commitments and to maintain a level of cash and cash equivalents that reflects
its size and requirements.
The €220 million credit line set up in July 2010 with a pool of banks, to be repaid in 2016, was the subject of a
waiver granted unanimously by the banks concerning non-compliance with any covenants, which will result from the
acquisition of the SENTINEL line in the United States.
In 2014, a new current bank financing contract was agreed for a sum of €20 million and a period of seven years.
Further, in order to finance the acquisition of SENTINEL in the United States, a €320 million bridge loan was agreed
for a maximum term of one year. The Group is now working with a pool of banks to set up global refinancing for the
medium to long term, which will replace the existing lines and the bridge loan.
The Group regularly conducts a specific review of its liquidity risk and deems itself able to meet its future payments.

Other financial risks
Credit risk

§

Risk factors
Credit risk may materialise when the Group grants credit through payment terms to customers. The risk of
insolvency, or even of failure for some of them can cause a repayment failure and thereby negatively impact the
Group’s income statement and its net cash position. The impact can be felt at the level of the payment (lack of
payment of services or deliveries made, accounts receivable risk) and of the delivery (failure to deliver services or
supplies paid, accounts payable risk).

§

Risk management mechanisms
The Group limits the negative consequences of this type of risk through a very high fragmentation and dispersion of its
clients across all countries where it operates. The Treasury and Financing department advises, according to the rules in
force, the uses, the ratings, the limits imposed by the credit insurance, and the fixed and maximum payment deadlines,
and sets the credit limits for customers to be applied by the operational entities. The Treasury and Financing
department manages and oversees these credit aspects at the level of the French entities for which it has direct
responsibility and it advises these same practices via guidelines and best practices at the level of the Group. In
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addition, there is a Group credit insurance framework agreement which any subsidiary for which this type of risk has
been identified enjoys or can benefit from. The details of this risk are presented in note A30 of the consolidated
financial statements.
Counterparty risk

§

Risk factors
The Group is exposed to counterparty risk within its contracts and the financial instruments it buys, in the event that
the debtor refuses to honour all or part of his commitment or finds himself in fine unable to do so.

§

Risk management mechanisms
The Group pays particular attention to the choice of banking entities which it uses, and is even more critical when it
comes to investing available cash.
Nevertheless Virbac believes it has limited exposure to counterparty risk given the quality of its major
counterparties. Indeed, investments are only made with banking institutions of the highest order. The details of this
risk are presented in note A30 of the consolidated financial statements.
Hedge accounting

§

Risk factors
The purpose of hedge accounting is to offset the impact of the hedged component and the hedge instrument in the
income statement. In order to qualify for hedge accounting, all hedging relationships must satisfy a series of
stringent conditions in terms of documentation, likelihood of occurrence, effectiveness of the hedge and
measurement reliability.

§

Risk management mechanisms
The Group only engages in hedging transactions designed to hedge actual or certain exposure; it does not create
speculative risk.
Nevertheless, due to the constraints imposed by the documentation of hedging relationships, the Group has elected
to only classify derivatives it holds at the balance sheet date as hedges for accounting purposes where the impact on
the consolidated financial statements is truly material and where the hedging relationship can be demonstrated.

Insurance and risk coverage
General coverage policy

The Group’s insurance policy is underpinned by a risk prevention and protection approach specific to Virbac’s activities.
Virbac regularly reviews its insurable risks and their financial coverage via the assistance of a broker that is part of
an international network. In this context, contracts are harmonised at the Group level and the parent company
provides its assistance and support to its subsidiaries for preparing the local insurance policies.
Insurable risks are covered by Group insurance policies with a level of coverage that the Group deems appropriate
given its circumstances, barring any wholly unforeseeable events.

Insurance programmes

The damage and business interruption insurance programme, as well as the general public liability and product
liability insurance programmes, cover the whole Group.
A Group-wide single transport insurance programme covers all goods transported across the globe under Virbac’s
responsibility.
For all its insurance programmes, the Group uses insurers and re-insurers of the highest level. The covers have been
defined on the basis of the risk profile of the Group. This risk centralisation enables the Group, at a reduced cost, to
obtain a protection level at the highest standard for all its entities despite uneven local resources.
Property damage is insured based on a new replacement value and business interruption based on the loss of gross margin.
The Group does not have a captive insurance or reinsurance company.

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
The full sustainable development report (on pages 20 to 75) sets out the Group’s values and guiding principles with
regard to social, economic and environmental matters.
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GOVERNING, MANAGEMENT AND MONITORING BODIES
Supervisory board
It has six members, three of whom are independent (in accordance with the criteria of the Afep-Medef corporate
governance code described in the report of the current chairwomen of the supervisory board): Philippe Capron,
Olivier Bohuon and Grita Loebsack.
Marie-Hélène Dick
Chairwoman of Virbac’s supervisory board.
French.
Date of first appointment: 1998.
Current term ends: 2016.
Aged 50, a doctor of veterinary medicine and holder of an MBA from the HEC business school, Marie-Hélène Dick
was appointed chairwoman of Virbac’s supervisory board in April 2006.
Other positions held:
• chairwoman and general manager of Okelen, SA (France);
• permanent representative of Okelen, chairing Panmedica, SAS (France);
• chairwoman of the board of directors of Panpharma, SA (France).
Directors’ fees received as member of the supervisory board in respect of 2014: €21,000.
Compensation received as chairman of the supervisory board in respect of 2014: €95,000.
Number of shares held at December 31, 2014: 1,635.
Jeanine Dick
Vice-chairwoman of Virbac’s supervisory board.
French.
Date of first appointment: 1992.
Current term ends: 2017.
Aged 78, widow of the founder Pierre-Richard Dick, Jeanine Dick was chairwoman of Virbac’s supervisory board for a
number of years.
Other positions held:
• manager of Investec, a non-trading company (France).
Directors’ fees received in respect of 2014: €12,000.
Number of shares held at December 31, 2014: 8,080.
Pierre Madelpuech
Permanent representative of Asergi, a member of Virbac’s supervisory board.
French.
Date of first appointment: 1995 (individually) and 2005 (as permanent representative of Asergi).
Current term ends: 2015.
Aged 54, Pierre Madelpuech is an Ensam engineering graduate and holds an MBA from the HEC business school.
Other positions held:
• manager of Asergi, SARL (France);
• director of Panpharma, SA (France);
• director of Okelen, SA (France);
• general manager of Panmedica, SAS (France);
• manager of Arteis Developpement, SARL (France);
• general manager of RPG, SAS (France);
• manager of Art’Pro, SARL (France);
• manager of Crearef, SARL (France);
• manager of Crea Négoce, SARL (France);
• manager of Color’I, SARL (France);
• manager of P2LM (France).
Directors’ fees received in respect of 2014 by Asergi: €21,000.
Number of shares held at December 31, 2014 via Asergi: 10.
Philippe Capron
Member of Virbac’s supervisory board.
French.
Date of first appointment: 2004.
Current term ends: 2016.
Aged 56, a graduate of the HEC business school and the Institut d’Études Politiques de Paris, Philippe Capron is an
alumnus of the Ena and was previously a finance inspector.
Other positions held in the Veolia Group:
• director of Transdev Group (France);
• director of Veolia Energie International (France);
• delegate director for the founding members of Fondation d’Entreprise Veolia Environnement (corporate foundation)
(France);
• chairman of Veolia Environnement Services RE (France);
• Member of the supervisory board of Veolia Eau – Compagnie Générale des Eaux (France);
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•
•
•
•

director of the Institut Veolia (France);
director of Veolia Environnement UK Ltd (United Kingdom);
chairman of Veolia North America Inc (United States);
deputy CEO of Veolia Environnement (France).
Directors’ fees received in respect of 2014: €24,000.
Number of shares held at December 31, 2014: 442.
Olivier Bohuon
Member of Virbac’s supervisory board.
French.
Date of first appointment: 2011.
Current term ends: 2017.
Aged 54, doctor in pharmacy and MBA graduate of the HEC business school, Olivier Bohuon is a member of the
National Pharmacy Academy and the Academy of Technologies.
Other positions held:
• director of Smith&Nephew Plc (United Kingdom);
• director of HealthCare Promise Investments partners SA (Luxembourg).
Directors’ fees received in respect of 2014: €21,000.
Number of shares held at December 31, 2014: 45.
Grita Loebsack
Member of Virbac’s supervisory board.
German.
Date of first appointment: 2014.
Current term ends: 2015.
Aged 43, with a London School of Economics degree and an MBA at INSEAD.
Other positions held: none.
Directors’ fees received in respect of 2014: €21,000.
Number of shares held at December 31, 2014: 10.

Non-voting advisor
Company XYC represented by Xavier Yon, 74 years old, a graduate of the Faculté des Sciences de Paris and the
Harvard Business School, formerly president and CEO of Laboratoires Galderma, Xavier Yon has been a member of the
supervisory board, either personally or as a legal representative of the XYC company, from 2004 until end 2013.
The XYC company was appointed non-voting advisor by the shareholders’ meeting of June 17, 2014, for a period of
one year.
Current term ends: 2015.

Policy of staggered terms for supervisory board members

At its meeting of March 18, 2014, the supervisory board decided to stagger the terms of its members in order to
comply with the recommendations of the Afep-Medef Code. The members of the supervisory board endorsed the
principle of the resignation of some members for fiscal years 2014 and 2015 in order to enable the assembly to reelect them and quickly reach a balanced staggering of the terms. This is the reason why Jeanine Dick, vicechairwoman of the supervisory board, had submitted her resignation to the supervisory board of March 18, 2014,
effective from the day of the June 17, 2014 assembly meeting to approve the financial statements, and that the
proposal of her appointment as member of the supervisory board for a new three-year term was approved by the
shareholders’ meeting of June 17, 2014.
For the same reason, Grita Loebsack and the Asergi company, represented by Pierre Madelpuech, submitted their
resignations to the supervisory board meeting of March 13, 2015, with effect from the day of the shareholders’
meeting of June 24, 2015. Two resolutions for the appointment of Grita Loebsack and the Asergi company as
members of the supervisory board for a term of three years will be proposed to the shareholders’ meeting of
June 24, 2015.

Payment policy for directors’ fees to members of the supervisory board

According to the Afep-Medef Code, directors’ fees should be distributed taking into account directors’ effective
participation in committees, and should be primarily variable.
The company does not consider it necessary to implement this recommendation from the Afep-Medef Code. It
appears unwise to the company to link the payment of attendance fees predominantly based on the presence of
members of the supervisory board in its meetings, since the involvement of the members of the supervisory board in
the oversight of the company activities is not limited to their participation in the formal periodic discussions of the
supervisory board. The duration of the supervisory board’s meetings, which last a full day, and the rate of
participation of its members, enable us to state that the attendance of the members of the supervisory board can be
ensured without recourse to a mechanism of complex distribution of attendance fees. It should be noticed that the
supervisory board decided to allocate a greater compensation to Philippe Capron due to his duties as chairman of the
audit committee.
A summary table on pages 126 and 127 lists the provisions of the Afep-Medef Code not adopted by the company
and explains the reasons for this.
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Renewal of the non-voting advisor for one year

The XYC company, represented by Xavier Yon, was appointed non-voting advisor by the shareholders’ meeting of
June 17, 2014, for a period of one year. It will be proposed at the shareholders’ meeting to renew the term of the
non-voting advisor for one year.

Executive board
Éric Marée
Chairman of Virbac’s executive board.
Aged 62, a graduate of the HEC business school and holder of an MBA from Cornell University, Eric Marée joined
Virbac in October 1999 and has been chairman of the executive board since December that year.
Other terms performed at subsidiaries of Virbac:
• chairman of Interlab (France), SAS (France);
• chairman of Virbac Corporation (United States);
• director of Virbac Limited (United Kingdom) ;
• director of Virbac Animal Health India Private Limited (India);
Current term ends: December 2017.
Number of shares held at December 31, 2014: 11,460.
Christian Karst
Member of the executive board of Virbac.
Aged 56, a doctor of veterinary medicine, Christian Karst joined Virbac in 1984. He has been a member of the
executive board since December 1996 and chief operating officer since September 9, 2013.
Other positions held:
• manager of Karst, a non-trading property investment company (France).
Other terms performed at subsidiaries of Virbac:
• director of Virbac Limited (United Kingdom) ;
• director of Holding Salud Animal S.A. (Chile);
• director of Centro Veterinario y Agricola Limitada (Chile);
• director of Bioanimal Corp. S.A. (Chile);
• director of Productos Quimicos Ehlinger S.A. (Chile).
Current term ends: December 2017.
Number of shares held at December 31, 2014: 5,400.
Michel Garaudet
Member of the executive board of Virbac.
Aged 60, a graduate of the HEC business school, Michel Garaudet joined Virbac in 1993. He has been a member of
the executive board since December 2002.
Other terms performed at subsidiaries of Virbac:
• director of Virbac Corporation (United States);
• permanent representative of Virbac, director of Virbac Chile Spa (Chile);
• permanent representative of Virbac, director of Virbac Patagonia Limitada (Chile);
• director of Holding Salud Animal S.A. (Chile);
• director of Centro Veterinario y Agricola Limitada (Chile);
• director of Bioanimal Corp. S.A. (Chile);
• director of Productos Quimicos Ehlinger S.A. (Chile).
Current term ends: December 2017.
Number of shares held at December 31, 2014: 2,665.
Jean-Pierre Dick
Member of the executive board of Virbac.
Aged 49, Jean-Pierre Dick is a doctor of veterinary medicine and holds an MBA from the HEC business school. He has
been a member of the executive board since December 1996.
Other positions held:
• chairman of the Fondation d’Entreprise Virbac (corporate foundation);
• manager of Absolute Dreamer SARL+;
• joint manager of the Terre Du Large, a nontrading property investment company.
Current term ends: December 2017.
Number of shares held at December 31, 2014: 880.
Sébastien Huron
Member of the executive board of Virbac.
Aged 44, a veterinarian, Sébastien Huron joined Virbac in 2006. He has been a member of the executive board since
December 2012.
Other terms performed at subsidiaries of Virbac:
• chairman of Bio Véto Test, SAS (France);
• chairman of Virbac Hellas S.A. (Greece);
Current term ends: December 2017.
Number of shares held at December 31, 2014: 720.
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COMPENSATION OF THE MEMBERS OF THE EXECUTIVE
BOARD IN RESPECT OF 2014
In accordance with the Afep-Medef recommendations, a summary of all types of compensation granted to members of
the executive board is presented below and detailed in the following tables:

Summary of compensation paid to members of the executive board
Gross value due in respect of 2014

in €

Compensation
Value of stock options
due in respect
granted in 2014
of 2014

Value of stock
grants awarded
for 2014 *

Total
compensation

Éric Marée

598,588

-

-

598,588

Christian Karst

386,511

-

-

386,511

Michel Garaudet

268,998

-

-

268,998

Sébastien Huron

337,476

-

-

337,476

Jean-Pierre Dick

55,781

-

-

55,781

Compensation
Value of stock options
due in respect
granted in 2013
of 2013

Value of stock
grants awarded
for 2013 *

* based on the method used for the consolidated financial statements

Gross value due in respect of 2013

in €

Total
compensation

Éric Marée

438,088

-

-

438,088

Pierre Pagès

310,000

-

-

310,000

Christian Karst

308,398

-

-

308,398

Michel Garaudet

217,651

-

-

217,651

Sébastien Huron

282,876

-

282,876

Jean-Pierre Dick

54,281

-

54,281

-

* based on the method used for the consolidated financial statements

Summary chart of compensation of members of the executive board
Gross compensation Éric Marée

in €

Financial Year 2014

Financial Year 2013

Value due for the Value paid out during
year
the year

Value due for the Value paid out during
year
the year

Fixed compensation

328,000

328,000

315,000

315,000

Variable compensation

198,500

50,000

50,000

180,000

-

-

-

-

Directors' fees

69,000

69,000

70,000

70,000

Benefits in kind

3,088

3,088

3,088

3,088

598,588

450,088

438,088

568,088

Extraordinary compensation

Total
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Gross compensation Pierre Pagès

in €

Financial Year 2014

Financial Year 2013

Value due for the Value paid out during
year
the year

Value due for the Value paid out during
year
the year

Fixed compensation

-

-

213,400

213,400

Variable compensation

-

-

30,000

108,000

Extraordinary compensation

-

-

-

-

Directors' fees

-

-

66,600

66,600

Benefits in kind

-

-

-

-

-

-

310,000

388,000

Total

Gross compensation Christian Karst

in €

Financial Year 2014

Financial Year 2013

Value due for the Value paid out during
the year
year

Value due for the Value paid out during
year
the year

Fixed compensation

229,000

229,000

209,000

209,000

Variable compensation

109,600

52,000

52,000

96,000

-

-

-

-

Directors' fees

45,000

45,000

45,000

45,000

Benefits in kind

2,911

2,911

2,398

2,398

386,511

328,911

308,398

352,398

Extraordinary compensation

Total

Gross compensation Michel Garaudet

in €
Fixed compensation

Financial Year 2014

Financial Year 2013

Value due for the Value paid out during
year
the year

Value due for the Value paid out during
year
the year

192,600

192,600

187,100

187,100

61,500

15,500

15,500

55,000

-

-

-

-

Directors' fees

12,400

12,400

12,900

12,900

Benefits in kind

2,498

2,498

2,151

2,151

268,998

222,998

217,651

257,151

Variable compensation
Extraordinary compensation

Total
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Gross compensation Sébastien Huron

in €
Fixed compensation

Financial Year 2014

Financial Year 2013

Value due for the Value paid out during
year
the year

Value due for the Value paid out during
year
the year

215,000

215,000

215,000

215,000

96,000

66,400

66,400

91,854

-

-

-

-

Directors' fees

25,000

25,000

-

-

Benefits in kind

1,476

1,476

1,476

1,476

337,476

307,876

282,876

308,330

Variable compensation
Extraordinary compensation

Total

Gross compensation Jean-Pierre Dick

in €

Financial Year 2014

Financial Year 2013

Value due for the Value paid out during
year
the year

Value due for the Value paid out during
year
the year

Fixed compensation

39,000

39,000

38,000

38,000

Variable compensation

16,000

16,000

16,000

15,500

-

-

-

-

Extraordinary compensation
Directors' fees

-

-

-

-

Benefits in kind

781

781

781

781

55,781

55,781

54,781

54,281

Total

Calculation criteria for the variable portion

Each board member has a variable compensation target which is a percentage of his/her fixed compensation.
The variable compensation for the executive board is based on the following objectives:
• growth of the Group revenue;
• growth in operating profit from ordinary activities;
• inventory control,
• significant acquisitions, for the Group, of companies or products (in term of size, financial contribution,
strategic importance).
For 2014, the allocation criteria for the variable portion of executive board compensation were fixed as follows:
• growth of Group revenue, accounting for 40% of the potential variable part for Éric Marée, Michel Garaudet,
and Sébastien Huron, 30% for Christian Karst and 15% for Jean-Pierre Dick;
• growth of current Group operating income, accounting for 40% for Éric Marée, Michel Garaudet, for Christian
Karst, Sébastien Huron and 15% for Jean-Pierre Dick;
• the operating margin on revenue, representing 10% for Éric Marée and Michel Garaudet;
• company acquisitions, accounting for 15% for Christian Karst and 10% for Éric Marée, Michel Garaudet and
Sébastien Huron;
• product acquisitions, accounting for 5% for Christian Karst;
• Centrovet results, accounting for 10% for Christian Karst;
• current operating income, representing 10% for Sébastien Huron;
• brand reputation score and implementation of customer relations programme, each representing 35% for
Jean-Pierre Dick.
For information purpose, it should be noticed that the supervisory board reserves the right to apply a multiplier or
divisor coefficient in the case of exceptional circumstances.
In respect of 2014, the maximum potential variable portion of board members’ compensation accounted for, as a
percentage of their respective fixed compensation:
• 60.5% for Éric Marée;
• 47.9% for Christian Karst;
• 31.9% for Michel Garaudet;
• 44.7% for Sébastien Huron;
• 41.0% for Jean-Pierre Dick.
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The gross sums corresponding to variable compensation received in respect of 2014 are shown in the tables on
pages 105 to 107.

Other benefits

In addition to the various compensation items, executive board members enjoy the benefits described below.
Retirement
A supplementary defined benefit pension plan (12.5% of reference salary and 22.0% in the event of over 30 years
of service) granted on the following terms:
• over ten years service in the Group (including nine years as a member of the executive board);
• be at least 60;
• finish his/her career in the Group.
The reference period corresponds to the five years prior to the executive board member turning 60.
The supervisory board does not wish to apply one of the recommendations of Afep-Medef Code regarding the
supplementary pension scheme, which recommends that the group of beneficiaries must be materially broader than
the sole executive directors. Virbac’s policy consists in granting a supplementary pension only to the members of the
executive board for three reasons:
• firstly, the supplementary pensions granted this way are of a controlled amount and subject to the potential
beneficiaries meeting several conditions;
• secondly, expanding the category of beneficiaries is not deemed desirable based on the growing tax weight
within this mechanism;
• finally, Virbac has established a well-balanced social policy for all employees in terms of welfare, voluntary profit
sharing and savings (company savings plan, collective retirement savings plan, employer contribution, etc.).
In addition, the company goes beyond the Afep-Medef recommendations as regards the amount and the increase in
potential rights since they only represent 12.5% of the benchmark amount for seniority of between 10 and 30 years
and are limited to 22.0% for seniority of more than 30 years.
A summary table on pages 126 and 127 lists the provisions of the Afep-Medef Code not adopted by the company
and explains the reasons for this.
Severance pay
The commitments made by the company and the companies it controls to its managers in the event that their duties
are terminated are as follows:
• Éric Marée: €483,000;
• Christian Karst: €326,000.
On December 17, 2014 the supervisory board reappointed the executive board members for a three-year term. In
line with the provisions of the act of August 21, 2007, the supervisory board, at its March 13, 2015 meeting,
renewed the commitments made by the company and the companies it controls in the event of the termination of
the offices of Éric Marée, chairman of the executive board and of Christian Karst, executive board member and chief
operating officer.
It is stated that:
• the commitments made by the company in the event of termination of office of its directors were adopted by
the general shareholders’ meeting of June 18, 2012. They correspond to the same conditions set out by the
supervisory board at its meeting of December 22, 2008, i.e. termination benefits can only be paid if the
departure is imposed by the company. They are not owed in the event of resignation, retirement or serious
misconduct by the company officers involved;
• the fulfilment of the severance pay performance criteria is assessed over the two half-year periods that
precede the director’s departure, and not a minimum of two years, as advocated in the Code. However, the
amount of this severance pay is substantially lower than the limit of two years of compensation provided under
the Code and the performance criteria are demanding (current operating income to revenue ratio equal to or
higher than 7%).
Pursuant to the law and due to the reappointment of the executive board members, a resolution for each of the
beneficiaries will be submitted to a vote at the next ordinary shareholders’ meeting, in order to approve the
continuation of the commitments made to them by the company.
Performance-related stock grant plans
The executive board, in accordance with authorisation from the shareholders’ meeting, has agreed since 2006 to
award performance-related stock grants to certain officers of Virbac and its subsidiaries. These awards are subject to
the achievement of a performance objective linked to the profitability and net debt of the Group which has been or
will be ascertained respectively at the end of the fiscal years running from 2008 to 2014.
The procedures regarding the retention period for managers are: 35.0% of the shares acquired by the chairman of the
executive board and 25.0% for the other company officers may not be sold for as long as they exercise an activity
within the Group. This restriction will nonetheless be lifted where the corporate officers have established a Virbac share
portfolio representing two years’ target annual compensation (target gross salary and bonus), except for the chairman
for whom this amount is set at three years’ target compensation.
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Advisory opinion of the shareholders on the compensation components
owed or allocated on the basis of fiscal year 2014
In accordance with the Afep-Medef corporate governance code, with which Virbac complies, the compensation
components owed or allocated to the chairman of the executive board, and also to other members of the executive
board, in respect of the 2014 fiscal year will be presented in the form of two separate resolutions for an advisory
opinion at the next shareholders’ general meeting of June 24, 2015.

Share options or share purchase
The company has no share options or share purchase scheme.

Performance-related stock grants
Allocated performance-related stock grants

According to the Afep-Medef Code, performance-related stock grants attributed to corporate officers must be
conditional on the purchase of a defined amount of shares upon the availability of the awarded shares. The
supervisory board chose not to follow this recommendation. However, it decided that 35.0% of the shares acquired
by the chairman of the executive board and 25.0% for other corporate officers cannot be transferred as long as they
exercise a role in the Group. It should also be noted that the cumulative amount of performance-related stock grants
allocated to the members of the executive board during the last five years total less than 0.25% of the share capital
of the company. Furthermore, the supervisory board decided it is more relevant to link the stock grant conditions
that must be met for allocating the stock based on the performance of the year preceding the allocation and not, as
advocated by the Afep-Medef Code, on the performance assessed for a period of several consecutive years.
Moreover, the performance taken into account is not related to the performance of other companies or of a reference
sector because of the low number of reliable comparison elements, given that the majority of the companies with a
similar business to Virbac are either unlisted or the divisions of large and listed pharmaceutical groups.
This explanation is presented in a table on pages 126 and 127 of the report which summarises the provisions of the
Afep-Medef Code not adopted by the company.
The 2011 performance-related stock grant plan matured on this fiscal year and was not allocated due to the nonachievement of objectives.
Throughout 2013 and 2014 no performance-related stock grants were allocated.
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The summary table of performance-related stock grants allocations awarded
to the members of the executive board is shown below:
Number of
shares granted

Value of
shares *

Vesting
date

Date
released **

Plan 2010 - 31/05/2010

1,460

€115,355

2013

2015

Plan 2011 - 01/07/2011

1,150

€133,400

2014

2016

Plan 2012 - 29/06/2012

1,130

€135,148

2015

2017

Shares granted to Éric Marée

3,740

€383,903

Plan 2010 - 31/05/2010

1,080

€85,331

2013

2015

Plan 2011 - 01/07/2011

850

€98,600

2014

2016

Plan 2012 - 29/06/2012

850

€101,660

2015

2017

Shares granted to Pierre Pagès

2,780

€285,591

Plan 2010 - 31/05/2010

1,000

€79,010

2013

2015

Plan 2011 - 01/07/2011

820

€95,120

2014

2016

Plan 2012 - 29/06/2012

820

€98,072

2015

2017

2,640

€272,202

Plan 2010 - 31/05/2010

665

€52,542

2013

2015

Plan 2011 - 01/07/2011

510

€59,160

2014

2016

Plan 2012 - 29/06/2012

510

€60,996

2015

2017

1,685

€172,698

Plan 2010 - 31/05/2010

600

€47,406

2013

2015

Plan 2011 - 01/07/2011

520

€60,320

2014

2016

2015

2017

Shares granted to Christian Karst

Shares granted to Michel Garaudet

Plan 2012 - 29/06/2012
Shares granted to Sébastien Huron
Shares allocated to
exectutive board members

520

€62,192

1,640

€169,918

12,485

€998,721

* based on the method used for the consolidated financial statements
** except in part: refer to stock grant plans chapter above
It should be noted that Sébastien Huron has only been a member of the executive board since December 21, 2012.
The June 18, 2012 shareholders’ meeting adopted a resolution to extend for a new three-year period the possibility
of allocating company performance-related stock grants, in compliance with the provisions of article L225-197-1 et
seq., of the French commercial code.
This resolution allows for stock grants to be awarded to managers or comparable employees, or certain categories
thereof, as well as to the corporate officers referred to in article L225-197-1 of the French commercial code, both for
Virbac and the companies that are either directly or indirectly associated with it according to article L225-197-2 of
the French commercial code.
The total number of performance related stock grants awarded cannot represent more than 1.0% of the share capital
of Virbac. The allocation is done without dilution, with the company buying the number of necessary shares on the
market. As for the former authorisation, free allocations of performance-related stock grants will only be definitive at
the end of a two-year acquisition period, and then the securities should be retained equally for at least two years after
the end of the acquisition period. The executive board determines the identity of the beneficiaries as well as the
conditions and the criteria for allocating shares that are linked to the increase in performance of the Group.
It will be proposed to the next shareholders’ meeting of June 24, 2015 to adopt a resolution to renew the
authorisation for a further period of three years. For more details see pages 209 and 210.
The executive board members have undertaken not to resort to hedging transactions for their risk of performancerelated stock grants, until the end of the share lock-in period set by the supervisory board.
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PERFORMANCE-RELATED STOCK GRANTS DISTRIBUTED
THROUGHOUT THE YEAR
In 2014, the 2011 performance-related stock grant plan matured and was not allocated due to the non-achievement
of objectives.

Plan number
and date

Number of distributed
shares

Number of attributable
shares

Éric Marée

Plan 2011 - 29/06/2011

-

1,150

Christian Karst

Plan 2011 - 29/06/2011

-

820

Michel Garaudet

Plan 2011 - 29/06/2011

-

510

Sébastien Huron

Plan 2011 - 29/06/2011

-

520

Total number of shares

3,000

Performance-related stock grants vested throughout the year
In 2014, the 2009 performance-related stock grants plan was partly vested (see the explanation on the methods
related to the lock-in period on page 109). Details regarding the performance-related stock grants vested per
executive board member are shown below:

Plan number
and date

Number of shares vested

Éric Marée

Plan 2009 - 19/06/2009

1,170

Christian Karst

Plan 2009 - 19/06/2009

900

Michel Garaudet

Plan 2009 - 19/06/2009

600

Sébastien Huron

Plan 2009 - 19/06/2009

480

Total number of shares

3,150

History of performance-related stock grants
Plan 2009

Plan 2010

Plan 2011

Plan 2012

Date of the meeting

29/06/2006

19/06/2009

19/06/2009

19/06/2009

Supervisory board meeting date

13/03/2009

12/03/2010

11/03/2011

05/03/2012

14,450

12,000

10,000

10,000

Éric Marée

1,800

1,460

1,150

1,130

Pierre Pagès

1,300

1,080

850

850

Christian Karst

1,200

1,000

820

820

Michel Garaudet

800

665

510

510

Sébastien Huron

600

600

520

520

Date of acquisition of the shares

2012

2013

2014

2015

Retention period end date *

2014

2015

2016

2017

Total number of shares allotted, including the
number allotted to:

Stock grant conditions

Performance linked to the profitability and net debt of the Group ascertained at the
end of the fiscal year of acquisition

Number of shares acquired on 31/01/2015

5,700

4,805

0

-

Number of shares cancelled or void

0

0

3,850

-

Stock grants remaining at the end
of the fiscal year

0

0

0

-

* except in part: refer to stock grant plans chapter above
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Contracts, plans and compensation
Managers corporate officers

Employment
contract

Supplementary
pension plan if
conditions fulfilled

Compensation or
other benefits due
or likely to be due
following the term of
due to change in
fonction

Compensation due
to a noncompetition clause

No

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

Yes

Yes

No

No

Yes

Yes

No

No

Suspended

Yes

No

No

Éric Marée
Position :
chairman of the executive board
Term start date : December 2014
Term end date : December 2017
Christian Karst
Position :
executive board member
Term start date : December 2014
Term end date : December 2017
Michel Garaudet
Position :
executive board member
Term start date : December 2014
Term end date : December 2017
Sébastien Huron
Position :
executive board member
Term start date : December 2014
Term end date : December 2017
Jean-Pierre Dick
Position :
executive board member
Term start date : December 2014
Term end date : December 2017
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TRADING IN COMPANY SHARES
Pursuant to the provisions of articles L621-18-2 of the French monetary and financial code and 222-15-3 of the
general regulations of the French financial markets authority (AMF – Autorité des marches financiers), we hereby
present a summary of the transactions carried out during the past year by managers and related parties in
respect of which the Group was notified.

By managers and related parties
Number of
shares

Total amount of
transactions

Éric Marée

-

-

Christian Karst

-

-

Michel Garaudet

-

-

Sébastien Huron

4,237

€687,725

Purchases

4,237

€687,725

Éric Marée

-

-

Christian Karst

-

-

Michel Garaudet

-

-

Sébastien Huron

4,717

€803,875

Sales

4,717

€803,875

By members of the supervisory board and related parties
Number of
shares

Total amount of
transactions

10

€1,743

Investec
(Dick family group)
Pierre Madelpuech
Grita Loebsack
Philippe Capron
Olivier Bohuon

432

€64,625

Purchases

442

€66,368

Investec
(Dick family group)
Pierre Madelpuech
Grita Loebsack
Philippe Capron
Olivier Bohuon

400

€59,613

Sales

400

€59,613

113

SHARE CAPITAL STRUCTURE
As at December 31, 2014
Shares

Voting rights

Capital

Voting rights

4,200,916

8,401,077

49.67%

65.70%

77,823

153,623.000

0.92%

1.20%

4,151,216

4,231,388

49.08%

33.09%

28,045

-

0.33%

-

8,458,000

12,786,088

100%

100%

Shares

Voting rights

Capital

Voting rights

4,200,916

8,389,077

49.67%

65.74%

79,073

154,873

0.93%

1.21%

4,147,558

4,216,930

49.04%

33.05%

30,453

-

0.36%

-

8,458,000

12,760,880

100%

100%

Dick family group
Company savings plan
Public
Treasury shares
Total

As at December 31, 2013

Dick family group
Company savings plan
Public
Treasury shares
Total

Information likely to have an impact in the event of a public offering
Pursuant to article L225-100-3 of the French commercial code, it should be noted that certain shares have special
control rights.
Treasury shares (28,045) carry no voting rights.
A double voting right is granted to all shareholders holding their registered shares for at least two years. The shares
that carry double voting rights are as follows:

Company
savings
plan
75,800

Public
80,172

Dick
family
group
4,200,161
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THRESHOLDS CROSSED
Virbac was not informed of any thresholds crossed as provided by law or the articles of association of its capital or
voting rights over the course of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014.

STOCK MARKET DATA
2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

Highest share price

130.00

133.00

149.85

189.80

184.10

Lowest share price

70.35

101.15

106.50

136.20

139.90

Average share price

92.49

118.86

129.06

156.97

166.44

130.00

119.90

149.85

155.30

174.30

in €

Closing share price

Shareholder structure and stock market performance
Virbac provides clear, consistent and transparent information to its individual and institutional shareholders and their
advisors (financial analysts).
This information is relayed by means of financial announcements published in the French media, press releases
published on financial websites and the French financial markets authority website, and publication of Group
quarterly sales figures and interim results as required by law.

Relations with individual investors
The virbac.com website has a financial information section that is regularly updated.
It enables for financial information of the Group to be obtained and downloaded: press releases, annual and semiannual financial statements and annual reports. Visitors also have the opportunity to ask questions of a financial
nature to the Group, at the email address finances@virbac.com.
Since 2007, in accordance with the obligations of the transparency directive and the general regulation of the French
financial markets authority, the Investors tab contains of all the information required by the directive.

Relations with institutional investors
Managers are heavily involved in communicating with the investors and analysts they meet over the course of the
year, primarily in the Paris and London markets.
Analyst meetings and conference calls are arranged to coincide with the publication of results, acquisitions or other
major events for the Group.
The Financial Affairs department is available to answer any questions investors and analysts may have regarding the
Group’s strategy, products, published results or major events.
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Consolidated financial statements
Operating performance

Revenue amounted to €773.1 million, showing an increase of €37 million, which represents a growth of 5.0% at
actual rates (7.0% at constant rates) compared to 2013. Current operating income increased by 3.9% up from the
previous year thanks to the control of external expenses that are growing slower than the revenue, as well as to the
effects of external growth, with the full-year consolidation of Virbac Uruguay. Currency exchange rates, although
they had a lesser impact on the second half, weighed on the operating profit which, at constant rates, would have
increased by 6.6%.
Margins on purchase costs increased by 4.7% at actual rates, broadly in line with the evolution of revenue.
Other current operating expenses net of income amounted to €419.5 million, up by €19.7 million at actual rates (4.9%).
This increase was due to:
• staff costs, and the result of jobs created in 2014, the full-year effect of jobs created in 2013, and the
differences in scope between 2013 and 2014 linked to the full-year effect of consolidation through the global
integration of the Uruguayan subsidiary and change in the method of recognising the salespeople personnel
expenses in Italy;
• the depreciation and amortisation corresponding mainly to the depreciation related to the new units in France
(production unit for sterile injectable forms) and in the United States (new R&D building).
Other non-current income and expenses amounted to €0.03 million in 2014 versus €-0.8 million in 2013. The
breakdown can be found in note A24 of the consolidated financial statements.
The net financial result was €-8.1 million compared to €-8.5 million the previous year.
This change is due to the increase in interest payable upon increasing the debt (+€18.5 million in 2014) offset by the lesser
impact of exchange rates losses linked to currency devaluations compared to 2013.
The tax burden rose by 13.3% to €29.1 million compared to 2013. This increase comes from increases in tax rates
in some countries (Mexico, Chile, New Zealand) and the greater weight of high tax rate countries compared to 2013.
The Group’s effective tax rate was 31.1% in 2014 versus 29.3% in 2013.
The result for the period attributable to the non-controlling interests amounted to €6.9 million in 2014 compared to
€8.5 million in 2013. The decline is associated with the worsening of Centrovet’s earnings in 2014 compared to 2013.
The net earnings of the Group amounted to €63.6 million in 2014, versus €60.5 million the previous year,
representing an increase in actual rates of €3.1 million which is mainly linked to the full consolidation through the
global integration of the Uruguayan subsidiary.

Consolidated financial position and financing

The Group’s cash flow amounted to €105.2 million compared to €98.1 million in 2013, representing an increase of
7.3%. Net debt as at December 31, 2014 was €196.6 million. Net debt at the end of 2014 was 1.87 times cash flow
from operations and 45.6% of Group share equity.
The increase in tangible assets was mainly due to investments by the parent company relating to the new site for
producing sterile injectable forms in Mexico, with the commissioning of a new site and the United States with the
new building dedicated to research and development activities. We should also note the impact of the exchange
rates on the valuation of assets in euros.
The working capital requirements are rising compared to the previous year and amounted to €169 million compared
to €105 million in 2013. This development is due on the one hand, to the increase in the level of inventories
compared to 2013, especially in the United States, and on the other hand, to the growth of accounts receivable,
related to the sharp increase in business activities in France and the United States in the last quarter of 2014
compared to 2013.
The €220 million credit line set up in July 2010 with a pool of banks, to be repaid in 2016, was the subject of a
waiver granted unanimously by the banks concerning non-compliance with any covenants, which will result from the
acquisition of the SENTINEL line in the United States.
In 2014, a new current bank financing contract was agreed for a sum of €20 million and a period of seven years.
Further, in order to finance the acquisition of SENTINEL in the United States, a €320 million bridging loan was
agreed for a maximum term of one year. The Group is now working with a pool of banks to set up global refinancing
for the medium to long term, which will replace the existing lines and the bridging loan.

116

FINANCIAL REPORT

Statutory financial statements
As at December 31, 2014, revenue at the Virbac parent company amounted to €263.0 million, showing an increase
of €30.2 million, or 13.0%, compared to 2013.
The portion of the revenue carried out by Virbac with the subsidiaries of the Group represents 90.4% of total sales.
The remaining 9.6% corresponds to direct sales by Virbac in countries where the company has no subsidiary. In
2014, almost all lines contributed to this growth, with a greater contribution from companion animal products which
benefited from several launches, such as Effitix, Milpro, Cyclavance and Pronefra. The growth in food producing
animals was also supported by the launch of Neoprinil in 2014 and major year-end antibiotics sales.
The operating income amounted to €8.3 million on December 31, 2014, that is, an increase of €12.4 million
compared to the previous year. This development is mainly due to cost management, with expenses which rose
considerably more slowly than revenue.
The financial result is up €2.8 million (8.2%) and was produced mainly by the increase in dividends (€+4.8 million
compared to 2013) which was partially offset by the increase in currency exchange losses recorded (€+2.4 million
compared to 2013).
The extraordinary profit amounted to €-3,6 million and predominantly recorded the special depreciation allowances
for a net amount of €-5 million and the reversal of the provision of the non-allocated 2011 performance-related
stock grant plans amounting to €1.2 million.
The non-deductible expenses covered in article 39-4 of the French general tax code amounted to €240,600 in respect
of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014. Net profit after tax stood at €48.2 million against €33.9 million in 2013.
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Table of net profit over the previous five fiscal years (Virbac parent company)
2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

10,892,940

10,892,940

10,572,500

10,572,500

10,572,500

Number of existing shares

8,714,352

8,714,352

8,458,000

8,458,000

8,458,000

Number of dividend-bearing shares

8,714,352

8,714,352

8,458,000

8,458,000

8,458,000

194,745,558

216,096,212

231,213,892

232,795,954

262,986,936

Earnings before tax, employee holdings,
depreciations and provisions

37,935,964

45,398,411

48,019,531

44,220,515

53,827,212

Income tax payable

-4,288,960

-4,618,341

-6,623,939

-8,673,947

-7,886,956

120,000

-

-

-

-

9,330,377

14,068,234

18,487,592

18,937,032

13,511,112

Earnings after tax, employee holdings,
depreciations and provisions

32,774,547

35,948,518

36,155,878

33,957,429

48,203,056

Earnings distributed

13,071,528

14,801,500

16,070,200

16,070,200

16,070,200

Earnings after tax, employee holdings,
depreciations and provisions

4.83

5.74

6.46

6.25

7.30

Earnings after tax, employee holdings,
depreciations and provisions

3.76

4.13

4.27

4.01

5.70

Dividend per share

1.50

1.70

1.90

1.90

1.90

863

964

1,014

1,083

1,095

Total payroll

37,024,861

40,376,362

45,057,692

47,776,070

52,055,870

Total benefits (social security,
other employee benefits, etc,)

20,556,102

20,847,241

23,156,256

23,628,028

25,254,103

in €
Financial position at year end
Share capital

Overall results from operations
Revenue before income tax

Employee holdings
Allowances for depreciations and provisions

Result from operations per share

Personnel
Average number of employees

Supplier payment terms

According to article L441-6-1 of the French commercial code, introduced by the law on modernising the economy,
the information on payment periods of vendors from the Virbac parent company is shown below.
As at December 31, 2014

Due between

Overdue
0 and 30 days

in €
Trade payables

3,980,084

14,983,828

Total

31 and 60 days More than 60 days
12,013,476

265,342

31,242,729

As at December 31, 2013

Due between

Overdue
0 and 30 days

in €
Trade payables

7,667,949

11,727,475

Total

31 and 60 days More than 60 days
3,726,382

267,893

23,389,700

In 2014, the amount of maturities over 60 days amounted to €265,342 on total payables reaching €31,242,729 or
0.8%. These payments correspond mainly to foreign suppliers whose settlement period was fixed at 60 days end of
month on the tenth.
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Allocation of earnings

The net profit of the Virbac parent company amounted to €48,203,056.34.
It will be proposed at the shareholders’ meeting to pay out a net dividend of €1.90 per share with a par value of
€1.25. In keeping with the provisions of article 243 bis of the French general tax code, it should be noted that all of
the dividends distributed qualify for the 40% discount mentioned in article 158-3-2 of the French general tax code,
with this allowance only available to individual shareholders domiciled in France.
The earnings for the period will be allocated as follows:
• distribution of dividends €16,070,200;
• retained earnings €32,132,856;
• net profit for the period €48,203,056.
The amount of the dividend on treasury shares at the date of payment will be allocated to “Retained earnings”.
These dividends will be paid on June 30, 2015.

Dividends over the past three fiscal years

It should be recalled that over the past three fiscal years the following dividends were paid out:

Amounts for previous fiscal years
in €

2011

2012

2013

Dividend per share

1.75

1.90

1.90

14,748,377

16,014,785

16,011,402

Actual distribution

Partners are informed that, in keeping with the provisions of article 117 quater of the French general tax code,
individual persons with fiscal residence in France who earn distributed income will be subject to a flat-rate
withholding tax of 21% (excluding social contribution deductions). These mechanisms are not applicable to legal
persons. A waiver of this withholding can be requested for individuals belonging to a household where the reference
fiscal income of the penultimate year is less than €50,000 (for single, divorced or widowed taxpayers) and €75,000
(for taxpayers subject to joint taxation), provided that the request be made no later than on November 30 of the
year preceding that of the payment of the income, and by supplying to the paying institutions a declaration stating
that these thresholds were not exceeded.

Share buyback programme

The ordinary shareholders’ meeting of June 17, 2014 authorised the Virbac parent company to buy back shares in
accordance with articles L225-209 et seq. of the French commercial code and in line with the terms of the buyback plan
set out in the prospectus published, by our professional distributor and on the company’s website on May 22, 2014, in
accordance with the provisions of the transparency directive that came into force on January 20, 2007.
As at December 31, 2014, Virbac held 28,045 treasury shares acquired on the market for a total of €3,961,197
excluding fees, for an average price of €141.24 per share.
During the fiscal year, the company proceeded to the purchase of 45,162 shares (at the average price of €165.63)
and the transfer of 47,570 treasury shares (at the average price of €168.02) under the market-making contract of
the security. In 2014, no share was purchased or sold under performance-related stock grant plans.
As of December 31, 2014, treasury shares accounted for 0.33% of Virbac’s share capital. They are earmarked in
part for market making and performance-related stock grants, in accordance with the twelfth resolution of the
shareholders’ meeting of June 17, 2014.
A resolution will be submitted for the approval of the shareholders’ meeting authorising the company to buy back up
to 10% of the capital. Buybacks may be carried for the purpose of:
• ensuring liquidity or supporting the market price via an independent investment services provider pursuant to
a liquidity agreement in accordance with a code of ethics recognised by the French financial markets authority;
• allocating of free performance-related stock grants;
• reduction of the company’s share capital by cancelling part or all of the shares repurchased, subject to the
adoption by the ordinary shareholder’s meeting of the resolution on the authorisation to reduce the share
capital by cancellation of repurchased shares.
The maximum purchase price may not exceed €400 per share. When calculating the maximum number of shares,
shares already purchased under the aforementioned prior authorisations will be included, together with those that
could be purchased under the market-making agreement.

Performance-related stock grant plan authorisation

The authorisation granted by the general shareholders’ meeting of June 18, 2012 for allocating free company
performance-related stock grants for a duration of three years, for the benefit of employees or similar individuals or
certain categories of these, and corporate officers, both from Virbac as well as from companies which are directly or
indirectly related to it, under the conditions laid down in article L225-197-2 of the French commercial code, will
expire in June 2015.
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As a result, it will be proposed to the next shareholders’ meeting to adopt a resolution authorising a further period of
three years, and the executive board will allocate free company performance-related stock grants for the benefit of
the same categories of beneficiaries.

Cancellation of repurchased shares

The shareholders’ meeting of June 17, 2013 authorised the executive board, in accordance with the provisions
article L225-209 of the French commercial code, for a period of 26 months, to reduce the share capital in one
several times within the limit of 10.0% by cancelling all or part of the shares that the company holds or may hold
a result of repurchases made in the context of article L225-209 of the French commercial code, particularly
respect of the resolution that authorises purchasing the company shares given to the executive board.

of
or
as
in

It will be proposed to the next shareholders’ meeting to adopt a resolution to renew the authorisation given to the
executive board for a further period of 26 months, under the same conditions.

Employee holdings

Pursuant to article L225-102 of the French commercial code, as at December 31, 2014, employees of the company
and related companies owned 77,823 Virbac shares, or 0.92% of the share capital via the company savings plan.
Paragraph II of article L225-129-6 of the French commercial code requires the extraordinary shareholders’ meeting
to vote, once every three years, on a resolution authorising a capital increase dedicated to employees, whenever the
shares held by employees of the company and related companies, as defined in article L225-180, account for less
than 3% of the share capital.
A resolution was presented to the shareholders’ meeting of June 18, 2012 and was not adopted.
In accordance with the provisions of article L225-129-6 of the French commercial code, a new resolution will be
proposed at the next shareholders’ meeting.

Regulated agreement

It will be proposed to the next shareholders’ meeting to adopt a regulated agreement referred to in articles L225-86
et seq. of the French commercial code and mentioned in the special report of the statutory auditors. This is a new
partnership agreement between Virbac and the Absolute Dreamer SARL company, of which Jean-Pierre Dick, who is
a member of Virbac’s executive board, is also co-manager and that will replace the old agreement.
The strategic value of this partnership is due to the fact that ocean racing is a good means for Virbac to develop its
reputation among the public and to promote values relating to research and performance, self challenging, and
respect for the environment within the company and towards veterinarians.

Fixing the annual amount of directors’ fees allocated
to members of the supervisory board

It will be proposed at the shareholders’ meeting to allocate to the supervisory board the sum of €141,000 as
directors’ fees. The supervisory board will determine the distribution among its members.

OUTLOOK FOR 2015
With the overall dynamics of the global animal health market and the augmented success of the products launched
recently, primarily in Europe but also in other regions, the Group could experience in 2015 an organic growth
comparable to 2014. In addition, exchange rates will have a positive impact on overall performance if trends noted
recently, with the decline of the euro, are confirmed.
However, the Group’s growth in the first quarter will be partly hidden by a low level of business activity in the United
States. The American subsidiary has indeed stopped its manufacturing and deliveries from its plant in St. Louis
(Missouri) in the beginning of the year, in order to strengthen and accelerate the implementation of its plan for
improving its validation and quality assurance procedures, whose weaknesses were revealed by a recent inspection
by US regulatory authorities. Deliveries should resume gradually in the course of the month of March and
production, as of April.
The contribution of the SENTINEL range acquired in the United States - which was not affected by the previous point
and whose sales at the end of February reached $25 million - will, on the other hand, be very positive for increasing
the sales and results of the Group on an adjusted basis. It will be added to the now positive currency exchange
impact. This should allow Virbac to exceed €900 million in revenue in 2015.
In terms of the deferred results, the application of IFRS accounting principles relating to business combinations will
produce, however, significant annual depreciation, as well as a one-time charge in the first year due to the
accounting revaluation of acquired inventories. These entries will reduce the profits generated; their total effect is
being assessed by the Group.
Furthermore, based on an investment programme that is slightly lighter than in previous years and, hopefully, of an
effective management of our working capital requirements, we anticipate a rapid debt reduction, and for the net
debt/EBITDA ratio to be once again less than three at the end of the year.
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PROVISIONAL TIMETABLE
FOR FINANCIAL COMMUNICATION
The provisional timetable for 2015 is as follows:
• January 15, 2015 after the close of trading: communication of 2014 annual revenue;
• March 16, 2015 after the close of trading: communication of 2014 annual results;
• April 15, 2015 after the close of trading: communication of sales for the first quarter of 2015;
• June 24, 2015: annual shareholders’ meeting;
• July 16, 2015 after the close of trading: communication of revenue for the second quarter of 2015;
• September 15, 2015 after the close of trading: communication of the results of the first half of 2015;
• October 15, 2015 after the close of trading: communication of revenue for the third quarter of 2015;
• January 14, 2016 after the close of trading: communication of 2015 annual revenue.

AMENDMENTS TO THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
It will be proposed to the shareholders’ meeting to amend article 19.4 of the articles of association to bring it into
conformity with the decree of December 8, 2014, which has reduced from three days to two days the date for
establishing the list of shareholders entitled to participate in a shareholders’ meeting.

FEES OF THE AUDITORS AND MEMBERS
OF THEIR NETWORKS BORNE BY THE GROUP
Deloitte & Associés
2014

in € thousands

Novances - David & Associés
Nexia Network

2013

2014

2013

Issuer

155.0

16%

141.7

14%

65.2

75%

63.6

74%

Consolidated subsidiaries

783.2

79%

786.5

80%

22.1

25%

22.0

26%

Auditing, review of the individual
and consolidated accounts

938.2

95%

928.2

94%

87.3

100%

85.6

100%

-

-%

-

-%

-

-%

-

-%

Consolidated subsidiaries

32.0

3%

35.6

4%

-

-%

-

-%

Other audit services directly
related to the auditing task
of the statutory auditors

32.0

3%

35.6

4%

-

-%

-

-%

970.2

98%

963.8

98%

87.3

100%

85.6

100%

17.0

2%

-

-%

-

-%

Issuer

Audit services
Legal, fiscal, social services
Other
Other services provided by the
networks to the consolidated
subsidiaries
Total

22.4
-

-%

-

-%

-

-%

-

-%

22.4

2%

17.0

2%

-

-%

-

-%

992.6

100%

980.8

100%

87.3

100%

85.6

100%
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Report by the chairwoman of the
supervisory board on corporate
governance and on the internal control
and risk management systems
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Article L225-68 of the French commercial code (Code de commerce)
This report was submitted to the audit committee and its recommendations were taken into account and
unanimously adopted by the supervisory board at its meeting on March 13, 2015.
The content of this report is based on an analysis of the Group’s position and organisation primarily carried out
through a series of meetings with Virbac’s executive board.
The report refers to the recommendations of the corporate governance code for listed companies drawn up and
consolidated by Afep-Medef (the Afep-Medef Code), which was adopted by the supervisory board as its code of
reference. The Afep-Medef Code can be consulted online at the following address: www.medef.com.
In accordance with recommendations from the AMF (French financial markets authority), a summary table on pages
126 and 127 lists the provisions from the Afep-Medef Code that the company has decided not to implement and
gives the reasons behind this decision.

Preparation and organisation of the work of the supervisory board
and executive board
Responsibilities and membership of the supervisory board

The mode of governance chosen by the company, i.e. an executive board and a supervisory board, allows a clear
distinction to be made between the management of the company and the supervision of the company.
The supervisory board is responsible for supervising the management activities of the executive board. It exercises
its supervisory powers by meeting every quarter to examine in particular the company’s and Group’s performance
indicators and the annual and interim financial statements presented to it by the executive board. Where necessary,
it carries out its responsibilities by getting information from the statutory auditors. It also reviews in more detail any
proposed acquisitions based on analyses drawn up by the executive board.
The supervisory board has six members, three of whom are independent, i.e. Philippe Capron, Olivier Bohuon and Grita
Loebsack. The criterion used to define independence is the same as that indicated in the recommendations of the AfepMedef Code, i.e. a member of the supervisory board “is independent when he/she has no relationship of any sort with
the company, its group or its management that could compromise his/her exercise of independent judgement”.
In its meeting held on March 13, 2015, the supervisory board examined the independence criteria in relation to its
members and confirmed the independence of the aforementioned three members. In particular, the supervisory
board discussed whether significant links existed between the independent members and the company or one of the
Group’s companies. It noted that none of these members had a direct or indirect business relationship with the
company or the Group and notably that none of the aforementioned members was a “client, supplier, corporate
banker or investment banker” of the company or Group.
At its meeting of March 18, 2014, the supervisory board decided to stagger the terms of office of its members in
order to comply with the recommendations of the Afep-Medef Code. Therefore, the members of the supervisory
board endorsed the principle that some members should resign in 2014 and 2015 to allow the shareholders’ meeting
to re-elect them and rapidly ensure that the terms of office are spread out regularly. Therefore, Jeanine Dick
resigned from her position as a member of the supervisory board in 2014 and was reappointed for a period of three
years at the shareholders’ meeting held on June 17, 2014.
The shareholders’ meeting of June 17, 2014, also renewed Olivier Bohuon’s term as a supervisory board member for
three years, as his current term of office had expired. It also ratified the provisional decisions taken by the
supervisory board during its December 20, 2013 meeting: the appointment of Grita Loebsack as a new member of
the supervisory board to replace the XYC company, and the appointment of the XYC company, represented by
Xavier Yon, as a non-voting advisor for a one-year term.
To continue the policy of spreading the terms of office out regularly, Grita Loebsack and the Asergi company,
represented by Pierre Madelpuech, resigned as members of the supervisory board during the supervisory board
meeting held on March 13, 2015, with effect from the next shareholders’ meeting. A proposal to reappoint both
members who resigned will be made at this shareholders’ meeting.
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The supervisory board is gender-balanced and made up of three women, including the chairwoman and vicechairwoman, and three men. The members of the supervisory board have a variety of skills related to their
professional experience. Its members are aged between 44 and 78. Five members of the supervisory board are
French and one is German.
As regards the diversity of its composition, the supervisory board’s policy aims to maintain the current level of
diversity, and particularly the diversity of its members’ skills.
Lastly, it should be noted that no members of the supervisory board combine their terms of office with an
employment contract with the Virbac group.
The offices held by supervisory board members are listed on pages 102 and 103 of the annual report.

Meetings of the supervisory board

The statutory auditors are invited to all supervisory board meetings. The documents, technical material and information
necessary for the performance of the duties of board members relating to items on the agenda are sent out, by courier,
as early as possible prior to the meeting. Supervisory board meetings are generally held at the head office.
Discussions are chaired by the chairwoman of the supervisory board. If the chairwoman is unable to attend, the
vice-chairwoman exercises the role of chairwoman, as determined by law. Minutes of supervisory board meetings
are drawn up at the end of each meeting and submitted for the approval of supervisory board members at the
subsequent meeting. In accordance with the articles of association, the supervisory board meets at least once a
quarter. During the past year, the supervisory board met five times. Pierre Madelpuech and Marie-Hélène Dick
attended all meetings, Philippe Capron, Grita Loebsack and Olivier Bohuon attended four of the five meetings, and
Jeanine Dick attended three of the five meetings. Supervisory board members also met informally several times
during the year for work and discussion sessions. During the 2014 financial year meetings, the supervisory board
notably reviewed the annual and interim financial statements, quarterly turnover, the budget, the reports by the
executive board on the Group’s business activities, results, performance and outlook as well as developments in
each of the Group’s major operational areas and its strategic outlook and plans and proposed acquisitions.
Depending on the content of the meetings, all or some of the members of the executive board were present, as well
as the Group’s area directors or functional directors on an ad hoc basis.

The supervisory board’s internal bylaws and operating procedures

At its March 13, 2009 meeting, the supervisory board approved its internal bylaws covering its membership,
operation, responsibilities, the board’s reporting procedures as well as the membership, operation and
responsibilities of the special committees.
The supervisory board’s internal bylaws do not stipulate any cases of specific prior authorisation by the supervisory
board in relation to decisions taken by the executive board. Indeed, the company considers that it is preferable to
limit itself to prior authorisations that are expressly stipulated by law, given that the role of the supervisory board is
to supervise the management of the executive board without taking part in it.
Nevertheless, the company does submit all operations involving significant acquisitions and disposals as well as,
more generally, any significant strategic operations, to the supervisory board for approval.
The supervisory board carries out a self-assessment of its preparation and operations, as well as the actual
contribution of each member to the work of the board on an annual basis. This assessment is formalized every three
years. The members of the supervisory board will complete an assessment questionnaire in June 2015, with the
results to be discussed during the September 2015 supervisory board meeting. Improvements will be implemented
throughout 2015 and 2016.
Special committees

§

Compensation committee
The membership and responsibilities of the compensation committee are set out on page 11 of the annual report.
The compensation committee is chaired by the chairwoman of the supervisory board. The company considered it
preferable for the compensation committee to be chaired by a member of the supervisory board who represents the
family majority shareholder. It should be noted that because of the division between the executive board and the
supervisory board, the compensation committee acts independently of the executive board members whose
compensation it discusses.
The compensation committee met once during 2014.
All the members of the compensation committee attended the meeting.
This meeting mainly dealt with the compensation of the executive board (fixed and variable components) and the
possible granting of bonus shares to executive board members and to certain managerial personnel within the Group.

§

Audit committee
The membership and responsibilities of the audit committee are set out on page 11 of the annual report. The audit
committee, chaired by Philippe Capron, an independent member of the supervisory board, met three times during
2014 with the chairman of the executive board, the chief financial officer and the statutory auditors in attendance.
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All the members of the audit committee attended all meetings, with the exception of Olivier Bohuon who was at two
of the three meetings.
At the end of the statutory auditors’ mandate, the audit committee chose the statutory auditors, in coordination with
the Financial Affairs department.
To avoid lengthening the period of time between the closure of the accounts by the executive board and the control
by the supervisory board, and due to the location of the company’s head office near Nice, the audit committee’s
meeting to review the accounts is held the day before the supervisory board’s meeting to close the annual accounts
and on the same day for the interim financial accounts. However, documents relating to the accounts, including a
summary document prepared by the statutory auditors and any comments they may have, are always given to the
members of the audit committee and to the other members of the supervisory board several days before the audit
committee meeting is held.
The audit committee receives a regular presentation from the Risk Management director on exposure to risks. Where
relevant, significant off-balance sheet commitments are brought to the committee’s attention. The audit committee
may also turn to external experts.
During 2014, the audit committee examined the 2013 financial statements and the 2014 interim financial statements.
It checked the financial information and decided upon the accounting treatment for the year’s major transactions,
submitted either by the statutory auditors or by the members of the executive board, and particularly the recent
acquisition operations. It also noted the efforts made by the executive board to ensure the establishment and
effectiveness of internal control procedures, to identify risks and implement the measures considered necessary to
manage them.

§

Absence of selection or appointments committee
The supervisory board does not believe it necessary to set up a selection or appointments committee. This decision
is based on the following considerations:
• the size of the company and the stability of its management bodies;
• the small size of the supervisory board;
• members of the supervisory board wish to be directly involved in the definition of the composition of the
managing bodies.

Preparation and organisation of the executive board’s work
Executive board membership

The executive board has five members.
At its December 17, 2014 meeting, the supervisory board reappointed all executive board members for three years:
• Éric Marée has been the chairman of the executive board since December 1999. He directly supervises human
resources, communications, information systems, health and safety and environmental issues, purchasing and
production activities;
• Christian Karst holds the position of qualified person of Virbac and supervises research and development,
strategic marketing and monitoring, licensing, quality assurance and acquisitions;
• Michel Garaudet supervises financial and legal activities;
• Sébastien Huron supervises global commercial and marketing operations;
• Jean-Pierre Dick is responsible for special projects and is president of the Fondation d’Entreprise Virbac, a
corporate foundation.

Executive board meetings

Executive board members meet, as required by the law, in order to report quarterly to the supervisory board and
whenever business so requires. In 2014, the executive board held nine formal meetings.

Compensation and benefits of all kinds granted to executive board members
The policies and rules approved by the supervisory board for determining compensation and benefits of all kinds
granted to executive board members are set out on pages 107 to 108 of the annual report.

Special procedures regarding shareholder participation at shareholders’ meetings
Shareholders’ meetings are called and deliberate in the legally required manner. Meetings are either held at the
head office or at any other place specified in the meeting notice. Meetings are chaired by the chairwoman of the
supervisory board. The roles of scrutineers are filled by the two members of the shareholders’ meeting with the
highest numbers of votes and who accept this position. The meeting’s board appoints the secretary, who can be
chosen outside the shareholders The main powers of the ordinary shareholders’ meeting consist of the right to
approve or reject the parent company financial statements and the consolidated financial statements, to allocate
profits, pay out dividend, appoint or dismiss supervisory board members and appoint the statutory auditors. The
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general shareholders’ meeting also has an advisory vote on the compensation of the chairman and members of the
executive board, in accordance with the Afep-Medef Code recommendations. Decisions by the ordinary general
shareholders’ meeting are taken by a majority of the votes of shareholders present or represented.
The extraordinary general shareholders’ meeting may take decisions such as amending the articles of association,
authorising financial transactions that may change the share capital, approving or rejecting mergers or spin-offs and
granting or refusing stock subscription or purchase options or stock grants. Decisions by the extraordinary general
shareholders’ meeting are taken by a majority of two thirds of the votes of the shareholders present or represented.
Irrespective of the number of shares he or she owns, any shareholder is entitled to attend the shareholders’ meeting
or to be represented there by another shareholder, a spouse, the partner with whom he or she has entered into a
civil solidarity pact under French law as well as by any other individual person or legal entity of his or her choice, or
alternatively to vote by post. Legal entity shareholders attend general shareholders’ meetings through their legal
representatives or any person they appoint for the purposes thereof. In line with the law, the entitlement of
shareholders to attend in person, by proxy or by post at shareholders’ meetings is subject to the registration of the
shares in the name of the shareholder or in the name of the intermediary acting on its behalf, on the second
business day prior to the meeting, at midnight Paris time, either in the registered share accounts administered for
the company by its agent or in the bearer share accounts held by the authorised banking or financial intermediary,
acting as security custodian.
The registration of shares in the bearer share accounts held by the authorised intermediary must be confirmed by a
certificate issued by the latter, attached to the postal voting or proxy form or admission card request filled out in the
name of the shareholder or on behalf of the shareholder represented by the registered intermediary. To be valid,
postal voting or proxy forms must have been effectively received at the company’s registered office or the location
specified in the meeting notice at the latest three days prior to the date set for the shareholders’ meeting, except
where a shorter period is specified in the meeting notice.
Each shareholder is entitled to exercise as many votes as the shares they hold or represent without limitation.
Nevertheless, a double voting right is granted to all fully paid up shares that have been registered in the name of
the same shareholder for at least two years.
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TABLE SUMMARISING EXCEPTIONS TO
RECOMMENDATIONS GIVEN IN THE AFEP-MEDEF CODE
Recommendations given in the
Afep-Medef Code
"The Code"
Internal bylaws of the
supervisory board
(Article 4 of the Code)
The bylaws of the board of directors
should specify the cases in which
prior approval by the board of
directors is required
Time frame for review of
financial statements by the
audit committee
(Article 16.2.1 of the Code)
The time available for reviewing the
accounts should be sufficient (no
less than two days before review by
the board)

Company practices and justifications

Reference

The company considered it preferable to limit itself to prior approvals that are
expressly stipulated by law, given that the role of the supervisory board is to
supervise the management of the executive board without taking part in it.
Nevertheless, the company does submit all operations involving significant page 123
acquisitions and disposals as well as, more generally, any significant strategic
operations, to the supervisory board for approval.
To avoid lengthening the period of time between the closure of the accounts by
the executive board and the control by the supervisory board, and due to the
location of the company's head office near Nice, the audit committee's meeting to
review the accounts is held the day before the supervisory board's meeting.
page 124
However, documents relating to the accounts, including any comments made by
the statutory auditors, are always given to the members of the committee and to
the other members of the supervisory board, several days before the audit
committee meeting is held.

Creation of a selection or
appointments committee
(Article 17 of the Code)

The company has not followed this recommendation, firstly because of the size of
the company and the stability of its management bodies, and secondly because
page 124
supervisory board members wish to be directly involved in the definition of the
composition of the managing bodies.
Compensation committee
The company considered it preferable for the compensation committee to be
chaired by an independent
chaired by a member of the supervisory board who represents the family majority
member
shareholder. It should be noted that because of the division between the page 123
(Article 18.1 of the Code)
executive board and the supervisory board, the committee acts independently of
executive corporate officers whose compensation it discusses.
Supervisory board directors’
The company did not follow this recommendation. In fact, the company does not
fees
consider linking payment of directors' fees to attendance at supervisory board
(Article 21.1 of the Code)
meetings in a weighted fashion to be desirable, since the involvement of
Rules on the allocation of directors’ supervisory board members in the company's supervisory activities is not limited
fees: the compensation must include to their participation in formal periodic supervisory board debates. The length of
a significant variable portion
supervisory board meetings, which last an entire day, and the high attendance page 103
rates of its members amply confirm that the regular attendance of supervisory
board members is ensured without having recourse to a complex mechanism for
the allocation of directors’ fees. For information purposes, it should be noted that
the supervisory board decided to allocate a higher level of compensation to
Philippe Capron in respect of his role as chairman of the audit committee.
Stock grants
(Article 23.2.4 of the Code)
The stock grants assigned to
executive corporate officers are
conditional upon the acquisition of a
defined quantity of shares upon the
availability of the awarded shares
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The stock grants assigned to the members of the executive board are not linked
to the purchase of a defined quantity of shares when the shares assigned
become available, but 35% of the shares acquired by the chairman of the
executive board and 25% by the other executive corporate officers cannot be
surrendered as long as they perform an activity in the Group. It should also be
noted that the total amount of stock grants assigned to members of the
executive board during the five previous years represents less than 0.25% of
the company's share capital. In addition, the supervisory board felt it was more page 109
appropriate to link the performance criteria to be satisfied for the assignment of
stock grants to the final year prior to the grant and not, as recommended by
Afep-Medef, to a performance assessed over a number of consecutive years.
Moreover, the performances looked at are not linked to the performance of other
companies or a benchmark sector because there are very few reliable
comparisons, most companies with operations similar to those of Virbac being
either unlisted or divisions of major listed pharmaceutical groups.
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Termination benefits
(Article 23.2.5 of the Code)
1. Authorisation to indemnify an
executive director only when his or
her departure is imposed and linked
to a change in control or strategy
2. Reference period for assessment
of performance criteria

1. The commitments made by the company in the event of termination of office of
its directors were adopted by the general shareholders' meeting of June 18,
2012. They correspond to the conditions set out by the Supervisory Board at its
meeting of December 22, 2008, i.e. termination benefits can only be paid if the
departure is imposed by the company. They will not be paid in the event of
resignation, retirement or gross misconduct of the corporate officers concerned.
2. The fulfillment of the termination benefits performance criteria is assessed page 108
against the two half-year periods that precede the director’s departure, and not
a minimum of two years, as stipulated in the Code. However, the amount of
benefits is substantially lower than the limit of two years of compensation
provided under the Code and the performance criteria are demanding (current
operating income to turnover ratio higher than or equal to 7%).

Supplementary pension
schemes
(Article 23.2.6 of the Code)
The group of potential beneficiaries
must be materially broader than the
sole corporate officers

The company did not follow this recommendation. Virbac's policy is to only grant
supplementary pensions to executive board members for three reasons: firstly,
the supplementary pensions granted this way are of a controlled size and subject
to the potential beneficiaries meeting several conditions, and secondly, it is
preferable to avoid extending the category of beneficiaries due to the growing
tax burden of this scheme, and lastly Virbac has established a well-balanced
page 108
social policy for all employees in terms of welfare, voluntary profit sharing and
savings (company savings plan, collective retirement savings plan, employer's
contribution, etc.). In addition, the company goes beyond the Afep-Medef Code
recommendations as regards the increase in potential rights since they only
represent a limited percentage of the beneficiary’s compensation including the
variable portion.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS
In accordance with article L225-68 of the French commercial code, the chairwoman of the supervisory board has drawn up
her report on the internal control and risk management procedures defined and implemented by the Virbac group.
This report has been drawn up based on contributions from several departments, in particular the Financial Affairs,
Legal and Human Resources departments as well as the Group Risk Management department, and has been
reviewed by the executive board which has confirmed the validity of its content. The entire report was subsequently
communicated to the statutory auditors for discussion by them and to the audit committee for review before final
approval by the supervisory board.
This report was approved by the supervisory board at its meeting on March 13, 2015.

Definition and aims of internal control and risk management
Framework

The Group has drawn on the reference framework and its application guide, first published in January 2007 and
updated on July 22, 2010 by the AMF (French financial markets authority), in order to define its internal control and
risk management framework so as to structure its approach. In accordance with a recommendation from AMF report
2010-15 dated December 7, 2010, the Virbac group decided to present the different information requested pursuant
to the plan specified in the reference framework.

Scope

The scope of the internal control and risk management systems includes the parent company and the companies
included in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
The list of subsidiaries is given on page 188 and 189 of this report.

Aims and principles of internal control

The internal control system implemented at Virbac is aimed at ensuring that:
• economic and financial objectives are achieved in compliance with applicable laws and regulations;
• the orientations determined by the executive board are implemented;
• the company’s capital is developed and its assets are protected;
• the integration of acquired companies is carried out in accordance with Group rules;
• and that the Group’s financial and accounting information depicts a true and fair view.
The internal control and overall risk management system must promote and secure the Group’s industrial and
economic development by helping to prevent and control the risks to which it is exposed, all within an environment
of control which is suited to its business areas and their respective issues.
In line with the fixed objectives, the internal control and risk management system of the Virbac group is based on
the following structuring elements:
• appropriate and sustainable organisation;
• internal distribution of reliable and targeted information;
• implementation of this system;
• suitable control activities that help to prepare and process accounting and financial information;
• continuous management and formalisation of the areas of improvement.

Limits

An internal control system can provide only a reasonable assurance, but never an absolute one as regards overall
risk control and limitation of obstacles in achieving the Group’s objectives. The probability of actually achieving these
objectives is subject to the inherent limits of any internal control system, whether potential failings in the decisionmaking process are concerned, or the need for reviewing the cost/profit ratio before implementing controls, or the
malfunctions that may occur on account of a failure or human error.

An appropriate and sustainable organisation
System components

The control environment which is essential for the internal control system, for good risk management and for the
application of procedures, is based on a specific organisation as well as on behavioural and human aspects.
Organisation
The internal control organisation is based first of all on key factors that are deeply anchored within the company’s
culture and which have formed the basis of its success, such as taking the initiative, placing trust in the Group’s
workers and providing them with a sense of responsibility. The operational organisation of internal control is
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structured around three levels: group, areas and subsidiaries. Each level is directly involved and is given
responsibility for designing and implementing the control in accordance with the level of centralisation desired by the
executive board. At each of these three levels the internal control is broken down into specific organisational
procedures, delegation of responsibilities, raising awareness and training of staff which are consistent with the
Group’s general framework. It requires heavy involvement on the part of each operational or functional manager by
expecting them to adopt the policies and procedures defined at Group level, play a role in implementing and
complying with them and finalise them via measures that are adapted to the special nature of the business activities
or the areas under their responsibility.
The control system implemented within the Group is also based on a strong governance structure which guarantees that
decisions are transparent and traceable, whilst still preserving the principles of subsidiarity and decentralisation that are
viewed as essential and necessary for optimum management of industrial and commercial activities in the Group.
Delegations of powers
The subsidiaries are almost all directly or indirectly wholly owned by Virbac. Special attention is paid to the
composition of the boards of directors at the Virbac subsidiaries. Each appointment or change of a director must be
validated by the members of the Virbac executive board.
For companies which are not wholly owned, the rules of governance are defined and governed by shareholders’
agreements (SBC Virbac in Taiwan and Centrovet in Chile).
In addition, a Group procedure describes the rules on limitations of power and the authority to sign for the company
that apply to general managers of the subsidiaries. This procedure is addressed to all subsidiaries which have to verify
and, where necessary, to adapt their procedures in accordance with these instructions. Each subsidiary’s internal
delegations of power are established, managed and updated with the assistance of the Group Legal department.
Values
The values and principles of behaviour in the Group have been formalised and published to all employees via the
Group code of ethics. This code states the Group’s values and reveals its principles for action and behaviour in
relation to employees, shareholders, customers, suppliers and competitors. It states the principles for individual
behaviour that all employees must respect, as well as the demeanour that must be observed in the countries where
the Group has a presence. Adopted in 2004 as an initiative of the executive board and distributed to all employees,
this code is a framework guiding people in their work, in line with the Group’s values and principles. In 2015, the
code of ethics will be replaced by a Group code of conduct, which will be more complete and better suited to the
Group’s requirements.
Codes
The Virbac Group has provided employees with other codes that allow the internal control environment to be
structured and promoted. All codes are available on the Intranet.

§

Group code of ethics
The Group code of ethics is described in the previous section.

§

Purchasing code of ethics
A code of ethics specific to purchasing was also drawn up for professional and occasional buyers. It sets out the
guidelines for the position within the Group, defines the roles and responsibilities of each party in their job and
thereby represents a guide to the performance of each person’s duties.

§

Stock market code of ethics
A stock market code of ethics was drawn up and distributed to all Group employees. This code sets out the
applicable rules within Virbac and all its subsidiaries regarding trading in listed shares in the company and, as the
case may be, its subsidiaries. It is designed both to serve as a reminder of the key principles of stock market
regulations regarding trading in listed shares and to lay down some internal rules of conduct designed to ensure the
correctness and transparency of transactions carried out by Group employees.

§

Information systems user code
An information systems user code sets out the usage methods of the different tools made available to Group employees.
Procedures and standards governing activities
Group policies have been defined by the functional departments for all processes supplying the financial statements,
in particular sales, purchases and stock and property management. These departments lay down Group policies
which define the organisation, responsibilities and particular operating and reporting principles in the respective area
of expertise under their responsibility. These policies are then broken down into specific procedures for monitoring,
rule validation, authorisation and accounting.
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As an example, the Group has implemented the following policies:
• a purchasing policy which determines the rules, the aims and the best practices related to purchasing and ethics;
• a policy for securing payment methods which defines the methods that must be implemented in order to limit
the risks of fraud;
• a policy for protecting individuals aimed at providing the same level of protection to all Group employees,
whether they are expatriates, local or on special assignments;
• a safety and environmental policy which lays down the rules of conduct for a permanent reduction in the risks
inherent in any industrial activity;
• an investment policy, which is validated by the executive board when the strategic plans and then the
budgets are drawn up. Any major investment foreseen in these budgets is still subject to a further validation by
the Group Industrial Operations department or by the executive board. Any change that may occur during the
year relating to projects that have been budgeted is subject to special prior authorisation.
In parallel with this body of procedures in general internal bylaws, the Group complies with the different frames of
reference that apply within the pharmaceutical industry. These texts outline the management operations for each
stage, whether at the research and development method level or at the level of drug and vaccine manufacturing
standards, packaging, distribution, sales and marketing or promotion.
Human resources management policy
Human resources management plays a part in the Virbac internal control system by allowing the Group to ensure that
its employees have a suitable skills level in relation to the roles and responsibilities entrusted to them, and that they
are aware of their responsibilities and their limits, in addition to being aware of and complying with Group rules.

§

Recruitment and development policy
The Group recruits in all countries and for all jobs in order to support its growth. The Human Resources department
defines standards and verifies practices in order to ensure the consistency and relevance of the recruitment process.
In parallel, an employee performance and development management process known as Perf (covering performance,
evaluation, compensation and training) has been deployed; it is made up of several different parts, which include
setting individual objectives and annual achievements assessed by line managers with the situation examined on an
individual basis.
Within the ‘annual performance’ committee the executive board shares the assessments, remuneration and
professional development possibilities of the 60 key individuals in the Group as well as the potential top performers
identified through the Perf process.

§

Compensation policy
Compensation is reviewed annually. The review covers the base salary as individual and collective bonuses. The
salary review is carried out in accordance with an overall policy aimed at strengthening the competitiveness,
consistency and development of compensation within the Group. The aim is also to remunerate individual
performance pursuant to objective criteria and criteria shared across all jobs. The bonus practices applicable in the
Group are otherwise consistent and are based mainly on comparable criteria in terms of value and type.
The compensation committee also reviews the overall remuneration policy for members of the executive board,
taking the Afep-Medef Code recommendations into consideration.
To comply with the latest recommendations of this Code, details of the individual remuneration of members of the
executive board are given in the management report on pages 105 to 107, in the form of summary tables and
remuneration tables based on the presentation indicated in the Code.
Moreover, in accordance with the new measures specified in the Afep-Medef Code, shareholders are consulted each
year on aspects of Executive Board remuneration due or assigned on the past closed financial year.

Main players
Supervisory board and its special committees
The supervisory board operates a constant control over the Group management which is led by the executive board.
Within this framework, it is informed in particular by the executive board about the internal control systems set up in
the Group.
The board has set up two special committees to help in its task: the compensation committee and the audit
committee. The members of these committees are shown on page 11 of the annual report.
The role of the compensation committee is to determine the compensation of the members of the executive board.
The audit committee is responsible for:
• ensuring the relevance, consistency and reliability of accounting methods;
• ensuring the existence and effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems;
• examining the statutory inspection of the annual financial statements and the consolidated financial
statements by the statutory auditors;
• making a statement on the accounting process for significant transactions;
• and ensuring the independence of the statutory auditors.
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Executive board
The executive board has operational and functional responsibility in all Group activities for implementing the strategy
that has been previously discussed in the strategic committee and approved by the supervisory board. In particular,
it is responsible for the effective implementation of internal control and risk management systems within the Group.
The members of the executive board are shown on page 10 of the annual report.
Responsibilities are distributed among its members as described below.
The chairman of the executive board is responsible for supervising and coordinating the activities of all executive
board members. He performs all the legal functions of a company head and takes responsibility accordingly. He
represents the company and acts on its behalf in all circumstances and particularly before the courts. Within the
company’s internal structure, he is also specifically responsible for the following central departments: the Group
Human Resources department; the Group Information Systems department; the Group Communications department
(including financial communication) in conjunction with the Financial Affairs director; the Group Industrial Assurance
department; the French Industrial Operations Department; the corporate sourcing department; the Group
Regulatory and Public Affairs department and the Group Health, Safety and Environment department.
The general manager holds the position of qualified person for Virbac in line with articles L5142-1 et seq. of the
French public health code. For the purposes of the company’s internal organisation, he is also executive, vicepresident corporate development and supervises the following departments: the Group Product Innovation
department, responsible for laying out the Group’s R&D strategy, carrying out projects and coordinating the research
centres spread across the various geographic regions, as well as for strategic marketing and competitive
intelligence, the Business Development department, which is responsible for licensing (an activity that mainly
consists of acquiring or disposing of rights to active ingredients of finished products or products in development in
line with Group strategy), the Group Quality Assurance department, the Aquaculture division and acquisitions.
The director of Global Business Operations supervises and coordinates the commercial activities of all of the Group’s
subsidiaries. With his teams, he defines the commercial strategy and develops existing and future business. He also
supervises the Global Marketing department, which is responsible for defining and implementing the global
marketing strategy for the Group’s key products and ranges.
The director of Financial Affairs is responsible for Group financial policy and supervises: the Group Treasury and
financing department, the Group Financial Control department, which are responsible for drawing up the consolidated
financial and accounting information, the budgetary and financial planning processes and management control; the
Legal department, which is responsible for corporate law, insurance policy, negotiations, drawing up and managing
contracts and disputes, and the Risk Management department as shown on page 132 of the annual report.
The head of special projects ensures the communication and development of Virbac’s corporate reputation through
relevant sponsoring initiatives and media relations. Through public relations initiatives organised around the sports
programme in which he plays a key role as skipper on the Virbac-Paprec boat, he continues to reinforce Virbac’s
image amongst veterinarian customers.
He is also chairman of the Fondation d’Entreprise Virbac whose mission is twofold: firstly, to raise awareness ,
educate and inform the public about respect for and responsibility towards animals; and secondly, to support
programmes that place animal health at the centre of a healthy ecosystem by protecting and promoting healthcare
for pets or wild animals in their natural habitat, implementing educational or awareness-raising campaigns amongst
local communities and rolling out animal health initiatives that protect the environment and human health. The
foundation fulfils its objectives by developing initiatives and partnerships with health professionals, veterinary
practices, regional and local authorities and French and international institutions.
Strategic committee
The strategic committee is chaired by the chairman of the executive board and comprises the following departments,
represented as follows:
• executive board members;
• area directors: Europe, North America, Latin America, Apisa, and the director of the Aquaculture division;
• Group Human Resources department;
• Industrial and Corporate Quality Assurance department;
• Group Product Innovation department;
• Group Legal department;
• Corporate Sourcing department;
• Group Business Development department;
• Group Information Systems department;
• Group Communications department.
The strategic committee helps draw up and implement the Group’s major strategic decisions that are presented and
approved by the supervisory board: strategy by business, job and major project.
Executive committee France
The executive committee France is chaired by the chairman of the executive board and comprises the following
departments, represented as follows:
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executive board members;
Group Human Resources department;
French Industrial Operations department;
Industrial and Corporate Quality Assurance department;
Group Product Innovation department;
Group Communications department;
Group Information Systems department;
Europe department;
France department;
R&D Europe department;
Corporate Sourcing department;
Group Legal department.

The executive committee France is primarily responsible for decision-making, coordination and reporting on all
issues affecting the group of French companies and represents a platform for the dissamination of the information
addressed to various departments.
Operational departments
In accordance with the operational decentralisation principles within the Group, the managers of each business
activity have the necessary powers for organising, directing, managing and delegating the operations for which they
are responsible.
Each activity favours the organisation which best suits its markets, taking into account its particular sales, industrial
and geographic features. The managers are responsible for adopting internal control systems consistent with their
organisations as well as with Group principles and rules.
Functional departments
The central functional departments (Finance, Legal, Human Resources, Product Innovation, Communications,
Information Systems, Sourcing, and Health, Safety and Environment) have a dual task: organisation and control of
Group operations falling within their respective skills area and technical assistance with operational activities in these
areas where required.
The presence of the central functions and their organisation play a significant role in Group internal control systems.
The managers of these functions exercise, in particular, functional authority over all managers who carry out tasks
falling within their skills area in the operational activities.
Risk Management department
Since its creation at the end of 2009, this department has become a full participant in the Group risk management
and internal control system. Reporting directly to the chief financial officer (member of the executive board) with a
dotted line (functional reporting) to the executive board, the Risk Management director is responsible for defining
and implementing risk management systems. He coordinates risk analysis, makes a contribution across the
organisation and contributes in sharing best practices between Group entities and departments, thereby helping to
develop a risk management culture across the Group. His roles and responsibilities are presented in detail on pages
133 and 134 of the annual report.
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Internal distribution of reliable and targeted information
Information and communication are connected with the information flows which support the internal control
procedures, from the orientations expressed by management through to action plans. They contribute to the control
environment being implemented, as well as to the distribution of an internal culture and the promotion of relevant
control activities that play a part in risk control.
There are different aims:
• informing all Group employees and making them aware of the implementation of best practices;
• sharing experiences so as to promote the use of these best practices, including internal control and risk
management systems.
Special communication tools deployed by the Group encourage the achievement of these aims. The in-house
publication Action presents Virbac’s general direction, its organisation, activities and projects. Other tools such as
the intranet allow Group policies and procedures to be distributed. Virbac also strives to provide each of its newly
recruited managers with a view over the entire Group and its organisation, main business areas and strategy.
Induction sessions for new recruits, either organised at head office or locally, are part of this effort. Finally, in
addition to the training sessions organised by the operational divisions, Group seminars allow employees to improve
certain professional skills (finance, marketing, human resources, project management, etc.) and encourage an
exchange of best practices.
The information and the communication channels also rely on the information systems. The Group Information
Systems department is responsible for all Group information systems. It is made up of departments which are under
the direct responsibility of the Group Information Systems department and of decentralised departments within the
operational divisions. The role of Group departments is to define information system policies, to coordinate the
processes for managing the information systems function and to manage global IT infrastructure and services in line
with Group priorities. The decentralised departments develop and manage the specific applications within their
divisions, as well as the dedicated IT infrastructure and services.
Upward and downward information channels have been defined so as to allow the timely transmission of relevant
and reliable information.
In terms of information feedback, accounting and financial information is processed in accordance with processes
and with collaborative reporting and control tools (collaborative reporting and consolidation software shared
throughout the Group under the authority of the Financial Affairs department).
For downward information flows, resolutions from the decision-making bodies are relayed via the relevant
departments. Any change in the regulatory framework relating to any matter whatsoever is communicated to the
relevant entities and departments in an appropriate manner.
Finally, communication aimed at stakeholders is governed by the appropriate systems for the sake of guaranteeing
the quality of the information.
In addition, the Group distributed a crisis management procedure whose objective is, as far as possible, to anticipate
the potential occurrence of any crises through deployment of management and alert principles covering all Group
areas and activities.

Implementation of the risk management system
Aims

The Group Risk Management department was set up at the end of 2009 in order to strengthen the Group’s ability to
forecast, analyse and prioritise risks of any kind and to ensure the suitability of the Group’s development in relation
to these risks.
This department has structured its methodology framework in line with market standards and best practices, notably
the AMF reference framework on risk management and internal control.
The aims of the Risk Management department are based on the following areas:
• know and anticipate: ensure that there is constant monitoring of Group risks in order to guarantee that none
are forgotten or underestimated and to forecast any development in their nature or intensity;
• organise: ensure that the main risks identified are actually taken into account by the organisation, at the
most appropriate level within the Group. Numerous operational risks are managed by the subsidiaries; head
office takes charge of other risks which require special skills or that have an essentially cross-organisational or
strategic component;
• control: ensure that the organisations and methods in place are effective in reducing the risks identified;
• train: gradually develop a risk management culture amongst all relevant managers and do so through
appropriate training in France and internationally;
• inform: notify the executive board of any changes in the situation.
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Regular structured analysis of the main Group risks

The risk management system is based on the internal control environment and is part of a continuous process for
identifying, assessing and managing risk factors that are likely to have an impact on the aims being achieved and
the opportunities that could improve performance. The responsibilities for identification, assessement and risk
management should be spread out through all appropriate levels of the organisation.
A formal and more accurate report on the main risks for the Group and the methods for managing and controlling
these risks is presented in the chapter on “Risk Factors” beginning on page 94 of the annual report.
Thanks to a structured process aimed at understanding and analysing the main risks for the Group, Virbac is able to
assess the adequacy of the existing internal control systems, implement relevant action plans for their improvement
and, more generally, to provide increased protection for the Group’s enterprise value as regards compliance with
applicable laws and regulations.
Risk management system
The risk management system is based on a clearly defined risk management process and organisation:
• the organisation is the responsibility of the Risk Management department, which is supported by three
committees (the executive board, the strategic committee and the executive committee France) which validate
the risk management policies and the processes used to identify, assess and address risks. The organisation
also includes “risk owners”, whose role is to define and oversee the action plans for the Group’s major risks;
• the risk management process in place since 2010 is based on:
− identifying risks: by regularly updating the map of the Group’s major risks, the Group’s main exposures
can be assessed;
− assessing risks: senior managers play an active role in assessing and prioritising the risks identified. These
managers have extensive experience in the animal health sector and the company itself, which represents an
asset with regard to ascertaining the impact, the occurrence and the management of each risk;
− addressing risks: each risk classified as a major risk has been analysed and prioritised. A risk owner has
been appointed for each major risk. The risk owners are mainly the senior managers who are members of
the three committees referred to above. Their role is to design and implement action plans in coordination
with the different operational and functional organisations, in order to limit the company’s exposure to the
risks for which they are responsible;
− monitoring action plans: the Risk Management department coordinates the whole process in partnership with
the risk owners. Lastly, it drafts a report for the executive board to provide it with regular updates on progress.

Analysis of the risks related to the Group’s external growth policy

Virbac has defined a rigorous process for mergers and acquisitions to cover the analysis of potential targets and the
integration of acquired companies by:
• applying strict investment profitability criteria;
• creating competent multidisciplinary teams, strengthened as appropriate by external advice, which are
responsible for performing due diligence, enabling the strengths and weaknesses of the companies’ acquired
and associated risks to be evaluated.
For Virbac, risk management forms part of a continuous improvement cycle of the internal control system by
becoming engrained in company processes and consistently taking the fundamental issues into account that can be
found in the organisation, whether operational, legal, regulatory or related to governance.

Suitable control activities that aid in the process of preparing
and processing accounting and financial information
This system not only covers the processes for preparing financial information, but also all the upstream operational
processes that help to produce this information. Internal control in all its forms, but especially that related to finance
and operations, is essential for Virbac. The Group’s ongoing aim is to maintain the balance between the decentralisation
required for its activities, better operational and financial control and the dissemination of skills and best practices.

Dedicated financial organisation

The control system and the procedures for producing accounting and financial information are consistent within the
Group. This system is made up of a Group cross-functional accounting organisation, uniform accounting standards,
one single consolidated reporting system and quality control of the financial and accounting information produced.
Accounting and financial operations are managed by the Group Financial Affairs department. Its central organisation includes:
• the Group Financial Control department which supervises all functions related to the preparation and analysis
of financial information. These functions comprise:
− the Accounting and Consolidation department, which is responsible for preparing and presenting the
financial accounts of the Virbac entity and the Group consolidated accounts. It is also responsible for
monitoring tax affairs within the Group;
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− the Management Control department, which is responsible for preparing and consolidating budget data and
for monthly management reporting, which includes an analysis of Group results both compared with
budgetary objectives and with the previous year;
• the Group Treasury and Financing department which is responsible mainly for coordinating and monitoring
the reporting related to the Group’s borrowings and net finance expenses. With regard to exposure to exchange
rate risks in particular, the guidelines of the Financial Affairs department forbid speculation and only allow for
the hedging of positions that, whether current or future, are certain.
The financial directors of each subsidiary exercise a key role on account of the decentralised organisation of the
accounting and finance functions. They are mainly responsible for ensuring that all internal accounting and finance
control procedures are applied correctly on the ground. Each subsidiary financial director reports functionally to an
area management controller who operates at the area level. The controller reports functionally to the Group chief
financial officer.

Suitable tools: procedures and reference frameworks

The accounting and finance rules set out in the special instructions drafted by the Group Financial Affairs department
apply to all operational and legal entities in the Group. In compliance with the IFRS (International Financial
Reporting Standards) adopted in the European Union, these rules include the following factors:
• a reminder of the general accounting principles and instructions that must be followed;
• a detailed chart of accounts;
• a confirmation of the Group accounting methods applicable for the most significant items and/or transactions;
• control procedures for the largest account categories, and in particular the main reconciliations to be carried
out for controlling the information produced;
• rules defining the framework of the management information known as Group financial reporting guidelines;
• rules to be followed in order to manage cash flow requirements and financing thereof, investments of cash
surpluses, hedging of exchange rate risks.
These documents are updated on a regular basis, upon each change or application of new accounting standards,
under the responsibility of the Group Financial Control department. Virbac has set up a reporting system, which has
been deployed in all entities within the Group, in order to ensure the quality and reliability of its financial
information. It is supplied via the local accounting data, either by an interface, by drawing the required data from
the ERP (Enterprise Resource Planning) financial modules available to these entities, or by manual entry.
Special procedures have been defined for off-balance sheet commitments. These latter items stem essentially from
guarantees provided by the company. The provision of securities, deposits and guarantees is subject to the following controls:
• for the parent company: special authorisations from the supervisory board whenever such guarantees exceed
the annual authorisation given to the executive board;
• for the subsidiaries: material off-balance sheet commitments must be reviewed in advance by the parent company.

Formal processes

The financial processes implemented contribute to the quality and reliability of the accounting and financial information.
Accounting and consolidation process
Information is generated via the half-yearly consolidation process supervised by a dedicated unit within the Financial
Affairs department and underpinned by accounting principles applicable to all subsidiaries, thereby ensuring
consistency of methodology.
Budgetary and management reporting process
Management Control coordinates the monthly budgetary consolidation and reporting process within the Group, using
information provided by the different operational departments and the branches. Concordance between the
management information from reporting and the accounting data constitutes the key principle of control for ensuring
the reliability of accounting and financial information. The management reporting system is used to monitor the
monthly results and the main management indicators and to compare them with the budget and with the results
from the previous year. The management indicators are explained and analysed by Management Control in
collaboration with the local financial directors.
Each month, the executive board examines the summaries from the management reporting, analyses the significant
variations and decides on any corrective actions to be implemented where necessary.
Treasury process
A process for establishing an annual treasury plan was also implemented across the Group, making it possible to
control and consolidate the forecasting of cash movements of subsidiaries, a sign of the accuracy of sales and
expenditure forecasts and of working capital requirement management: customer collection, stock management and
supplier payment terms.
A policy of pooling excess cash and financing requirements daily in the euro zone means that the Group’s net
positions can be reduced and the management of its deposits or financings optimised. Outside Europe, a policy of
cash pooling was also implemented in order to limit counterparty risks and to optimise the use of lines of credit.
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Items likely to have an impact in the event of a public offer
Pursuant to article L225-100-3 of the French commercial code, the items likely to have an impact in the event of a
public offer, i.e. the existence of a double voting right granted to all shares registered in the name of the same
shareholder for at least two years, are set out in the annual report on page 114.
Virbac’s main shareholder, the Dick family group, holds 49.7% of shares and 65.7% of voting rights.

Management of systems and areas for improvement
Actions to monitor and improve systems

The Virbac group is implementing continuous improvement actions for its internal control systems under the
supervision of the executive board and the executive committee France, as well as under the supervision of the audit
committee and the supervisory board.
Supervisory board
The role of the supervisory board and its special committees is described on page 130 of the annual report.
Executive board
The executive board is responsible for defining and managing the approach to internal control and risk management,
relying on the operational departments to implement these measures (see page 131 of the annual report). The
functional departments carry out investigations into operations in their respective areas through their network of
experts or via regular audits (see pages 131 and 132 of the annual report).
Statutory auditors
All the accounting and financial elements prepared by the consolidated subsidiaries are subject to at least a limited
audit during half-yearly closing for the most significant entities, and to an audit carried out by external auditors
when the year closes. The audit tasks in the different countries are given to the members of the Group’s network of
statutory auditors. They certify the regularity, sincerity and fair view presented by the consolidated statements and
the individual company statements. They are informed of the key factors in the year ahead in the process of
preparing the financial statements and they present a summary of their work to the Group accounting and financial
managers and to the audit committee at the half-yearly stage and when the year closes.

Financial communication

The importance and increasing role of communication and the need to deliver comprehensive quality financial
information have led the Virbac group to acquire the functions and skills required to present this information and to
control risks to the corporate image.
Annual report and periodic financial information
The Financial Affairs department is responsible for preparing the annual report and periodic financial information,
working closely with the Group Communications department, which involves in particular:
• defining and validating information in the annual document, half-year report and periodic financial announcements;
• supervising the work carried out by the annual report steering committee;
• distributing financial information;
• applying the stock market regulations regarding financial communication and managing relations with the AMF.
Press releases
The Group Communications department is responsible for media activities which could have an impact on the image,
reputation and integrity of the Virbac brand name. To achieve this, it works very closely with the Financial Affairs
department, in particular in activities and by distributing information which could have an impact on Virbac’s share price.

Improvement plan for the internal control and risk management system

The Virbac group has embarked on a process improvement project for its internal control and risk management system
in line with the general directions and priorities fixed by the chairman of the executive board. The actions implemented
are the responsibility of the functional and operational departments. They are presented to the audit committee.
Main achievements in 2014
The members of the executive board approved the following comments on 2014 which was marked by:
• continuing with action plans for major risks identified as priorities when the risk map was updated in 2013. A
special effort has been made by risk owners in the regulatory, industrial and commercial areas who are
increasingly important;
• implementation of the risk management system continued internationally. In 2014, this system was rolled out
in the Group’s Uruguayan and Brazilian subsidiaries;
• continuing to roll out corporate training to strengthen Virbac’s risk management culture. In 2014, about thirty
managers were trained at the company’s head office in Carros;
• methodology frameworks were defined and implemented in partnership with some company departments
with a view to enable these departments to autonomously manage the risks inherent in their activities. In 2014,
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a project was launched with the Group Quality Assurance department; it will be completed at the end of the
first half of 2015;
• selection and roll out of an IT tool specifically for risk management. In 2014, this tool was rolled out to risk
owners in the head office and to one international subsidiary;
• a project was launched for the Group’s major products. This project was sponsored by two members of the
executive board and managed by the Risk Management department. The project’s objective was to safeguard
major products against the main threats that might affect them, other than competitive threats. This first phase
of this project was rolled out in the first half of 2014. It involved around sixty managers and identified,
assessed and prioritised risks associated with the major products. The second phase began in the second half of
the year. Risk owners were appointed to each of the priority risks and they have since presented an action plan
for the risks that fall within their area of responsibility. After a validation phase, initial actions were launched in
2014 and will continue into 2015 and subsequent years. These actions were presented to the Group’s
supervisory board meeting in September 2014.
In 2014, the integration of Centrovet continued by providing support in the implementation of management tools
and Group best practices.
Outlook for 2015
The outlook for the coming year includes the following:
• continue to safeguard the Group’s main products: implementing action plans for priority risks;
• continue to roll out the risk management system on an international basis, giving priority to the main
subsidiaries with the highest stakes;
• develop the risk management culture by continuing the training on risk management for head office operating
activities;
• provide operational departments with support by helping them implement a methodology framework to
manage risks in their activities;
• continue supporting risk owners and reinforce the role they play in the implementation and monitoring of
action plans.
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Statutory auditors’ report prepared in
accordance with article L225-235 of
the French commercial code (Code de
commerce), on the report prepared by
the chairwoman of the supervisory board
Year ended December 31, 2014
This is a free translation into English of the statutory auditors’ report issued in French prepared in accordance with article L225-235
of the French commercial code on the report prepared by the chairwoman of the supervisory board on the internal control procedures
relating to the preparation and processing of accounting and financial information issued in French and is provided solely for the
convenience of English speaking users.
This report should be read in conjunction with, and construed in accordance with, French law and the relevant professional standards
applicable in France.

To the Shareholders,
In our capacity as statutory auditors of Virbac and in accordance with article L225-235 of the French commercial
code, we hereby report to you on the report prepared by the chairwoman of your company in accordance with article
L225-68 of the French commercial code for the year ended December 31, 2014.
It is the chairwoman’s responsibility to prepare, and submit to the supervisory board for approval, a report on the
internal control and risk management procedures implemented by the company and containing the other disclosures
required by article L225-68 of the French commercial code, particularly in terms of corporate governance.
It is our responsibility:
• to report to you on the information contained in the chairwoman’s report in respect of the internal control and risk
management procedures relating to the preparation and processing of accounting and financial information, and
• to attest that this report contains the other disclosures required by article L225-68 of the French commercial
code, it being specified that we are not responsible for verifying the fairness of these disclosures.
We conducted our work in accordance with professional standards applicable in France.

INFORMATION ON THE INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT PROCEDURES RELATING TO THE
PREPARATION AND PROCESSING OF ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Professional standards require that we perform the necessary procedures to assess the fairness of the information
provided in the chairwoman’s report in respect of the internal control and risk management procedures relating to
the preparation and processing of the accounting and financial information. These procedures mainly consisted in:

• obtaining an understanding of the internal control and risk management procedures relating to the
preparation and processing of the accounting and financial information on which the information presented in
the chairwoman’s report is based and the existing documentation;
• obtaining an understanding of the work involved in the preparation of this information and the existing
documentation;
• determining if any significant weaknesses in the internal control procedures relating to the preparation and
processing of the accounting and financial information that we may have noted in the course of our
engagement are properly disclosed in the chairwoman’s report.
On the basis of our work, we have nothing to report on the information in respect of the company’s internal control
and risk management procedures relating to the preparation and processing of the accounting and financial
information contained in the report prepared by the chairwoman of the supervisory board in accordance with article
L225-68 of the French commercial code.
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OTHER DISCLOSURES
We hereby attest that the chairwoman’s report includes the other disclosures required by article L225-68 of the
French commercial code.
Nice and Marseille, March 31, 2015
The Statutory Auditors
Novances-David & Associés
French original signed by
Jean-Pierre Giraud

Deloitte & Associés
French original signed by
Hugues Desgranges
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Consolidated financial report
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Statement of financial position
in € thousand

Notes

2014

2013

Goodwill

A1-A3

142,178

133,532

Intangible assets

A2-A3

195,298

198,240

Tangible assets

A4

208,363

186,254

Other financial assets

A5

14,391

12,278

Share in companies accounted for by the equity method

A6

5,824

6,766

Deferred tax assets

A7

Non-current assets

8,990

8,071

575,044

545,141

Inventories and work in progress

A8

159,870

138,777

Trade receivables

A9

141,966

118,627

A5

3,762

3,780

Other receivables

A10

69,289

54,936

Cash and cash equivalents

A11

375,912

34,971

Assets classified as held for sale

A12

-

-

750,798

351,091

1,325,842

896,232

10,573

10,573

Other financial assets

Current assets
Assets
Share capital
Reserves attributable to the owners of the parent company

420,357

350,357

430,930

360,930

50,848

53,444

481,778

414,374

A7

38,332

35,795

Provisions for employee benefits

A14

14,212

11,141

Other provisions

A15

4,433

2,705

Other financial liabilities

A16

227,674

185,979

Other payables

A17

Equity attributable to the owners of the parent company

A13

Non-controlling interests
Equity
Deferred tax liabilities

Non-current liabilities

1,084

1,352

285,735

236,972

Other provisions

A15

768

683

Trade payables

A18

83,039

77,795

Other financial liabilities

A16

347,571

30,143

Other payables

A17

126,951

136,265

558,329

244,886

1,325,842

896,232

Current liabilities
Liabilities
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Income statement
Notes

2014

2013

Cha nge

Revenue from ordinary activities

A19

773,116

736,080

5.0%

Purchases consumed

A20

-244,606

-231,416

External costs

A21

-164,559

-158,961

-210,938

-196,484

-14,584

-14,620

in € thousand

Personnel costs
Taxes and duties
Depreciations and provisions

A22

-31,390

-27,737

Other operating income and expenses

A23

1,992

-1,974

109,031

104,888

31

-819

109,062

104,069

-8,147

-8,485

100,915

95,584

-29,143

-25,725

-1,239

-850

70,533

69,009

2.2%

63,596

60,523

5.1%

6,937

8,486

-18.3%

Operating profit from ordinary activities
Other non-current income and expenses

A24

Operating result
Financial income and expenses

A25

Profit before tax
Income tax

A26

Share from companies' result accounted for by the equity method
Result for the period
attributable to the owners of the parent company
attributable to the non-controlling interests

3.9%

4.8%

5.6%

Profit attributable to the owners of the parent company, per share

A27

€7.54

€7.18

5.0%

Profit attributable to the owners of the parent company, diluted per share

A27

€7.54

€7.18

5.0%

2014

2013

Cha nge

70,533

69,009

2.2%

24,902

-37,300

Comprehensive income statement
in € thousand
Result for the period
Conversion gains and losses
Effective portion of gains and losses on hedging instruments
Items subsequently reclassifiable to profit and loss (before tax)
Actuarial gains and losses

98

1,043

25,000

-36,257

-169.0%

-2,112

-39

Items not subsequently reclassifiable to profit and loss (before tax)

-2,112

-39

5315.4%

Other items of comprehensive income (before tax)

22,888

-36,296

-163.1%

Tax on items subsequently reclassifiable to profit and loss

-34

-359

Tax on items not subsequently reclassifiable to profit and loss

719

8

94,106

32,362

190.8%

86,383

30,453

183.7%

7,723

1,909

304.6%

Comprehensive income
attributable to the owners of the parent company
attributable to the non-controlling interests
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Statement of change in equity
Share
Share Reserves Conversion Result
reserves for the
capital premiums
period
in € thousand

Equity
Nonattributable controlling
interests
to the owners
of the parent
company

Equity

Equity as at 31/12/2012

10,573

6,534

267,058

-4,621 66,625

346,169

2012 allocation of net income

-

-

66,625

- -66,625

-

-

-

Distribution of dividends

-

-

-16,015

-

-

-16,015

-712

-16,727

Treasury shares

-

-

323

-

-

323

-

323

Changes in scope

-

-

-

-

-

0

-

0

Other variations

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Comprehensive income

-

-

653

-30,723

60,523

30,453

1,909

32,362

Equity as at 31/12/2013

10,573

6,534

318,644

-35,344 60,523

360,930

2013 allocation of net income

-

-

60,523

- -60,523

-

-

-

Distribution of dividends

-

-

-16,010

-

-

-16,010

-10,319

-26,329

Treasury shares

-

-

-373

-

-

-373

-

-373

Changes in scope

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Other variations

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Comprehensive income

-

-

-1,329

24,116

63,596

86,383

7,723

94,106

10,573

6,534

361,455

-11,228 63,596

430,930

Equity as at 31/12/2014

52,247 398,416

53,444 414,374

50,848 481,778

The ordinary shareholders' meeting of June 17, 2014 decided to pay a dividend of €16,010 thousand, that is €1.90
per share.
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Cash flow statement
2014

2013

70,533

69,009

1,239

850

32,048

28,783

Elimination of deferred tax change

859

-1,351

Elimination of gains and losses on disposals

269

-1,346

Other income and expenses with no cash impact

291

2,131

105,239

98,076

Effect of net change in inventories

-15,914

-16,021

Effect of net change in trade receivables

-19,816

-13,910

2,144

8,083

-1,015

-7,888

-34,601

-29,736

5,809

5,293

76,447

73,633

-4,425

-4,498

-35,687

-54,797

410

365

in € thousand
Result for the period
Elimination of share from companies’ profit accounted for by the equity method
Elimination of depreciations and provisions

Cash flow

Effect of net change in trade payables
Effect of net change in other receivables and payables
Effect of change in working capital requirements
Net financial interests paid
Net cash flow generated by operating activities
Acquisitions of intangible assets
Acquisitions of tangible assets
Disposals of intangible and tangible assets
Change in financial assets

-4,319

-1,733

Change in debts relative to acquisitions

-

1,964

Acquisitions of subsidiaries or activities

-23,512

-36,115

-

-

Disposals of subsidiaries or activities
Dividends received

-

39

-67,533

-94,775

Dividends paid to the owners of the parent company

-16,011

-16,015

Dividends paid to the non-controlling interests

-10,424

-1,000

512

-620

-

-

Net flow allocated to investing activities

Change in treasury shares
Increase/decrease of capital
Cash investments

621

-3,351

Debt issuance

385,641

109,515

Repayments of debt

-33,754

-57,769

-5,809

-5,293

Net cash from financing activities

320,776

25,467

Change in cash position

329,690

4,325

Net financial interests paid
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Statement of change in cash position
2014

2013

Cash and cash equivalents

34,971

39,749

Bank overdraft

-4,526

-9,590

-26

-28

Opening net cash position

30,419

30,131

Cash and cash equivalents

375,912

34,971

-7,845

-4,526

-24

-26

368,043

30,419

7,934

-4,213

-

176

329,690

4,325

in € thousand

Accrued interests not yet matured

Bank overdraft
Accrued interests not yet matured
Closing net cash position
Impact of currency conversion adjustments
Impact of changes in scope
Net change in cash position

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
General information note
Virbac is an independent global pharmaceutical laboratory exclusively dedicated to animal health and markets a full
range of products designed for companion animals and food producing animals.
The Virbac share is listed on the Paris stock exchange in section A of the Eurolist.
Virbac is a public limited company under French law with an executive board and a supervisory board. Its trading
name is “Virbac”. The company was established in 1968 in Carros.
The joint ordinary and extraordinary shareholders’ meeting held on June 17, 2014 adopted the resolution on reviewing
the articles of association. Therefore, the company’s lifetime was extended to 99 years, i.e. until June 17, 2113.
The head office is located at 1ère avenue 2065m LID, 06511 Carros. The company is registered on the Grasse Trade
registry under the number 417350311 RCS Grasse.
The 2014 consolidated financial statements were approved by the executive board on March 13, 2015. They will be
submitted for approval to the shareholders' general meeting on June 24, 2015; the meeting has the power to have
the statements amended.
The explanatory notes below support the presentation of the consolidated financial statements and form an integral
part thereof.

Significant events for the period
At the beginning of the second half of 2014, Virbac resumed sales of its internal parasiticide, Iverhart Plus, in the
United States. Following tests showing that the ivermectine molecule in certain batches was unstable, Virbac had
decided to temporarily suspend sales of this product in early 2013. That decision led to the recall and withdrawal of
batches of Iverhart Plus from Virbac distributors and veterinarians, and Virbac offered to replace Iverhart Plus
customers’ products with Iverhart Max, at the same price as the Iverhart Plus. The re-release on the market of
Iverhart Plus generated €8.7 million in revenue in 2014.
Under the terms of an agreement signed with Eli Lilly and Company on October 22, 2014, Virbac acquired two
parasiticides for dogs in the United States: SENTINEL FLAVOR TABS and SENTINEL SPECTRUM, previously sold by
Novartis Animal Health. Described as endectocides, these parasiticides treat dogs for heartworm and other internal
parasites and also protect them against flea infestations by acting on their larvae.
The agreement pertains to a series of rights relating to the two products in the United States: brands, marketing
authorisations, patents, know-how, customer lists and more. Virbac also offered some of the employees involved in
Novartis’ US-based animal health business - mainly sales teams - the chance to join its organisation.
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The agreement is subject to the approval of the Federal Trade Commission. It is also dependent on Eli Lilly and
Company closing the transaction to acquire Novartis Animal Health.

Significant events after the closing date
Information relating to the acquisition of SENTINEL in the United States

This transaction was closed on January 2, 2015, after the conditions precedent were resolved.
The agreement covers a series of rights relating to SENTINEL FLAVOR TABS and SENTINEL SPECTRUM in the United
States, as well as inventories of the finished products. The amount of the transaction came to a total of $410 million,
paid in a single instalment on January 2, 2015.
This agreement also enabled Virbac to take on some of the Novartis Animal Health sales force in the United States.
For Virbac, this acquisition represents an important opportunity to transform its business and become a key player
on the US veterinary market for companion animals.
In 2014, SENTINEL FLAVOR TABS and SENTINEL SPECTRUM generated more than $90 million in sales in the United States.
Acquired assets
The assets sold by Eli Lilly and Company cover a series of rights, limited to the United States, relating to the two
products sold by Novartis Animal Health under the SENTINEL® brand name:
• the products themselves: SENTINEL FLAVOR TABS and SENTINEL SPECTRUM, their pharmaceutical
registrations and the data to which they refer;
• their brand rights in the United States;
• the seeds needed to manufacture one of the products’ active ingredients;
• the right to develop modifications, improvements, new formulas, etc., for these products;
• licensing rights to existing patents to develop these improvements;
• the right to use the data from two other Novartis products containing one of SENTINEL’s active ingredients in
order to develop similar products;
• all existing supply and manufacturing contracts;
• their customer lists (veterinary clinics).
In addition to those intangible rights, the available inventory of finished products will also be transferred to Virbac.
The seller will continue to manufacture the products sold for Virbac, or have them manufactured for the latter, for a
period of at least two years and will transfer its manufacturing expertise to Virbac Corporation's manufacturing plant
in St. Louis.
Virbac Corporation offered some of the people in the Novartis Animal Health US teams the opportunity to join its
organisation. After meetings held in several US regions, 91 people accepted the offer, primarily from the sales teams
(sales force, key accounts managers, technical services and marketing), but also a number of supply chain, R&D and
regulatory specialists.
Virbac will assume the debt corresponding to compensation for the benefits of two of the employees thus taken on
($120 thousand).
Accounting treatment of the acquisition
This acquisition will be posted in Virbac Corporation's accounts in 2015.
Given the terms and conditions of the acquisition, the transaction meets the criteria for a business combination as
defined by IFRS 3 and must therefore be handled accordingly in Virbac's 2015 consolidated financial statements.
IFRS 3 requires that identified assets acquired, assumed liabilities and the amount paid in return be recorded at their
fair values.
Virbac entrusted the PPA (purchase price allocation) to a specialist firm, working in conjunction with the teams at
Virbac Corporation and Virbac's Finance department.

§

Acquisition price
On the day of closing, Virbac Corporation paid the full acquisition price of $410 million.
No additional payments are planned.

§

Identified assets acquired
The table below provides details of the identified assets acquired and the assumed debt.
All assets, with the exception of goodwill and the brands, will be amortised on Virbac Corporation's accounts.
Nearly all of the acquired intangible assets (including goodwill and brands) can be amortised for tax purposes on
Virbac Corporation's accounts over a period of fifteen years.
In addition to those intangibles, Virbac is also acquiring the available stock of finished products, whose physical
inventory is currently being taken (i.e. the communicated figures are estimates only).

§

Assumed debt
Virbac Corporation took on a debt in the amount of $120 thousand.
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§

Goodwill
At the end of the specialist firm's assessment of the different identified assets, goodwill was estimated at
$196,296 thousand. This amount corresponds to the difference between the price paid and the fair value of the
acquired net assets, as posted in the Group's consolidated financial statements (see table below).
It represents the expected synergies that will boost the potential of the Group's current lines for growth in the
United States, achievable thanks to:
• the power of the SENTINEL brand, which will make Virbac a leader on the US parasiticide market;
• the increased penetration of Virbac and its brand on the market, made possible thanks to a doubled sales
force in the United States;
• access to a vast number of high-potential veterinary clinics that account for a substantial proportion of the
client base for SENTINEL products;
• Virbac Corporation’s strengthened negotiating position with large distributors in terms of product ranges and
sales policies;
• the possible opening up of the US market - thanks to that increased access to distributors and clinics - to
products that Virbac has previously been unable to develop on that market (e.g. the Effipro-Effitix range)
because of its poor direct penetration and exclusive contracts binding distribution to Mérial.
The assessment work is nearly finished. The results may be adjusted between now and the initial posting of the
transaction to Virbac’s consolidated financial statements dated June 30, 2015, but most likely not to a significant
extent.
The table below summarises the analysis performed by the specialist firm.

Provisional
valuation
in $ thousand

Amortisable
accounting
basis

Useful life

Inventories acquired at cost

16,654

-

-

Re-valuation of inventories of finished goods (according to IFRS 3)

10,870

-

-

27,524

-

35,900

35,900

Fair value of inventories acquired
Products registrations: SENTINEL FLAVOR TABS

14 years

Products registrations: SENTINEL SPECTRUM

30,700

30,700

17 years

Seeds and rights relating to these seeds

26,600

26,600

17 years

Brands SENTINEL FLAVOR TABS and SENTINEL SPECTRUM

50,100

-

-

3,500

3,500

13 months

Formulation patents: SENTINEL FLAVOR TABS
Formulation patents: SENTINEL SPECTRUM

9,000

9,000

9.6 years

Production know-how

12,000

12,000

5 years

Customer lists

18,500

18,500

10 years

196,296

-

-

382,596

136,200

-120

-

-120

-

Provisional goodwill
Provisional valuation of intangible assets acquired *
Debt related to former employees taken on
Total liabilities assumed
Purchase price

410,000

* The amortisation of nearly all the acquired intangible assets is tax-deductible over a period of 15 years.

Information on the inspection by the Food and Drug Administration (FDA) in the United
States

Toward the end of 2014, the production site for the Group’s US subsidiary, located in St. Louis (Missouri), was
inspected by the FDA as part of a regular review. The points raised by the FDA after its inspection essentially pertained
to the quality system and, more specifically, to its quality assurance procedures.
In January, Virbac Corporation responded to the FDA’s observations, submitting a series of corrective measures and
explaining that those measures were part of the plan already initiated in early 2014. That plan stipulates the setting
up of a new organisation and resources designed to improve manufacturing and quality control procedures. The
plan’s implementation is currently under way, and the necessary reinforcement measures have been taken. The
company also made the decision to temporarily suspend production and distribution of products from the St. Louis
site in order to perform an assessment of systemic risk to ensure that the batches released to market and the
quantities in stock have no defects in terms of efficacy or safety, in order to identify any products requiring recall.
This interruption also made it possible to improve certain manufacturing process validations and to set up certain
still missing quality system processes more quickly.

146

FINANCIAL REPORT

These measures had an impact on Virbac Corporation’s activity levels during the early months of the 2015 financial year;
nonetheless, the inventory in the distribution channels should limit the effect of the interruption on veterinary clinics. It
should be noted that these measures do not concern the SENTINEL range acquired by Virbac from Eli Lilly and Company
on January 2, 2015, whose deliveries have not been interrupted, the products still currently being manufactured at the
Lilly Group’s industrial sites.
On the date of closure of the Group’s accounts in March 2015, the assessment procedure described above was
carried out and concluded for the main products, particularly the Iverhart range. Cases requiring a recall were
limited, and no significant risks were detected in respect of the quality of the products on the market or in stock in
St. Louis. Deliveries should gradually resume during the course of March, and production should resume from April.

Scope
The consolidated financial statements as at December 31, 2014 include the financial statements of the companies
that Virbac controls indirectly or directly in law or in fact. The list of consolidated companies is provided in note A38.
The changes that occurred in the scope during the fiscal year are the following:
• establishment of two holding companies under the Holding Salud Animal Group (Inversiones HSA Limitada
and Rentista de capitales Takumi Limitada);
• creation of the company Asia Pharma Ltd in Hong Kong, another non-operating entity.

Main accounting principles applied
The Virbac group's consolidated financial statements were drawn up in line with the international accounting
standards as adopted by the European Union (accounting basis available on the ec.europa.eu website). The
international accounting standards include the IFRS (International Financial Reporting Standards), the IAS
(International Accounting Standards) and their interpretations, SIC (Standards Interpretations Committee) and
IFRIC (International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee).
For the presentation of the consolidated financial statements for the 2014 financial year, the Group applied all
standards and interpretations in force at the European level, applicable to periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2014. These standards and interpretations are as follows:
• IFRS 10, “Consolidated financial statements”, applicable to periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014;
• IFRS 11, “Joint arrangements”, applicable to periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014;
• IFRS 12, “Disclosures of interests in other entities”, applicable to periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2014;
• amendments to IAS 27, “Separate financial statements”, applicable to periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2014;
• amendments to IAS 28, “Investments in associates and joint ventures”, applicable to periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2014;
• amendments to IAS 32, “Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities”, applicable to periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2014;
• amendments to IAS 36, “Disclosures - recoverable amounts for non-financial assets”, applicable to periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2014;
• amendments to IAS 39 “Novation of derivatives and continuation of hedge accounting”, applicable to periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2014.
The application of these new standards had no significant impact on the consolidated financial statements for 2014.
Conversely, the first application of IFRS 12 will lead to additional notes on the financial statements.
On the reporting date of these consolidated financial statements, the following standards and interpretations had
been adopted by the EU with an option for early application:
• IFRIC 21, “Levies”, applicable to periods beginning on or after June 17, 2014.
On the reporting date of these consolidated financial statements, the following standards and interpretations were
submitted by IASB (International Accounting Standards Board) but were still not adopted by the European Union or
still had no option for early application:
• amendments to IAS 19, “Employee benefits”, applicable to periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014;
• annual improvements (2010-2012 cycle), “Annual improvements to IFRSs published in December 2013”;
• annual improvements (2011-2013 cycle), “Annual improvements to IFRSs published in December 2013”;
• IFRS 14, “Regulatory deferral accounts (rate-regulated activities)”;
• amendments to IFRS 11, “Acquisitions of interests in joint operations”;
• amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38, “Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation”;
• annual improvements (2012-2014 cycle), “Annual improvements to IFRSs published in September 2014”;
• IFRS 15, “Revenue from contracts with customers”;
• IFRS 9, “Financial instruments”.
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The Group is currently analysing the practical consequences of these new texts and the effects of their application on
the financial statements. Where necessary, the Group will apply these standards in its financial statements once they
are adopted by the European Union.

Consolidation rules
Consolidation methods

Pursuant to IFRS 10, the Group’s consolidated financial statements include the accounts of all the entities controlled
by Virbac. The concept of control is now based on the following three criteria:
• the parent company has power over the subsidiary where it has actual rights that give it the capacity to direct
the relevant activities;
• the parent company is exposed to or has rights to variable returns because of its connections to that entity;
• the parent company has the capacity to exercise its power over that entity such as to enable it to affect the
amount of returns that it receives.
The entities over which Virbac exercises such control are consolidated by global integration. As applicable, any noncontrolling (minority) interests are valued on the date of acquisition in the amount of the fair value of the identified
net assets and liabilities.
Those companies over which Virbac exercises joint control or significant influence are accounted for by the equity method.
All companies have been consolidated based on the financial statements as at December 31, 2014.

Conversion of the financial statements

The functional currency in the Group's foreign subsidiaries is the current local currency, with the exception of Virbac
Uruguay SA (Santa Elena) whose functional currency is the US dollar.
The financial statements of foreign companies for which the functional currency is not the euro are converted
according to following principles:
• the balance sheet items are converted at the rate in force at the close of the period. The conversion
difference resulting from the application of a different exchange rate for opening equity is shown as equity on
the consolidated balance sheet;
• the income statements are converted at the average rate for the period. The conversion difference resulting
from the application of an exchange rate different from the balance sheet rate is shown as equity on the
consolidated balance sheet.

Elimination of inter-company transactions

All transactions between Group companies, as well as inter-company profits, are eliminated from the consolidated
financial statements.

Accounting principles and methods
Goodwill

Goodwill recognised as an asset in the financial statements represents the excess from the acquisition cost of the
shares in companies acquired at the fair value of the assets and liabilities identifiable on the acquisition date. It also
includes the value of the acquired business.
In line with the provisions of IAS 36 "Impairment of assets", goodwill is at the very least tested once, in the second
half of the year, regardless of whether there is an indication of an impairment loss, and consistently whenever
events or new circumstances indicate an impairment loss.
For the purposes of these tests, the values of the assets are grouped by CGU (cash generating unit). In the cases of
goodwill, the legal entity is used as the CGU. In the implementation of goodwill impairment tests, the Group uses an
approach based on estimated future cash flow (estimation of value in use). This approach consists of calculating the
value in use of the CGU by discounting estimated future cash flows. When the value in use of the CGU proves lower
than its net carrying amount, an impairment loss in respect of goodwill is recognised to reduce the net carrying
amount of the assets of the CGU to their recoverable amount, which is defined as the higher of the net fair value
and the value in use.
The assessments made for the purposes of the goodwill impairment tests are sensitive to the assumptions used as
regards not only the selling price and future costs, but also the discount and growth rates. The future cash flows
used for the impairment tests are calculated based on estimates ranging from five to ten years. The choice of cash
flow horizon takes into account the product life cycle in the veterinary industry, which is very long and generally far
exceeds five years. For cash flow forecasts, the perpetual growth rates used, which depend on products and market
growth expectations, and the discount rates based on the weighted average cost of capital after tax method, are
presented in note A3.

Intangible assets

In accordance with the criteria stipulated in IAS 38, an intangible asset is recognised as an asset in the financial
statements where it is likely that future economic benefits attributable to the asset will flow to the Group.

148

FINANCIAL REPORT

Intangible assets are evaluated at the historic acquisition cost, including acquisition charges, less accumulated
depreciation and, if necessary, less any accumulated impairment loss.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are reviewed annually to ensure that their useful lives have not become finite.
The intangible assets with finite useful lives are subject to a linear depreciation, from which time the asset is ready
to be used:
• concessions, patents, licences and marketing authorisations: amortised over their useful lives,
• standard software (office tools, etc.): amortised over a period of three or four years,
• ERP: amortised over a period of five to ten years.
During the useful life of an intangible asset, it may seem that the estimation of its useful life has become
inadequate. In addition to what is stated in IAS 38, the duration and method of depreciation of this asset is reexamined and if the useful life of the asset is different from previous estimations, the depreciation period is
consequently modified.
Research and development costs are capitalised from the moment they satisfy the criteria set out in IAS 38. Within
the framework of the Group's activities, the main development costs are associated with the products that may only
be exploited with marketing authorisation. The Group considers that until the date when this marketing authorisation
is obtained, all IAS 38 criteria are not fulfilled and the related costs are posted as expenses.
In accordance with the provisions set forth in standard IAS 36 "Impairment of assets", the potential impairment loss
of intangible assets is examined each year. In the case of assets with indefinite useful lives, the tests are carried out
during the second half of the year, regardless of whether there is any indication of impairment, and consistently
whenever events or new circumstances indicate an impairment loss for assets with defined useful lives. For the
purposes of this testing, the Group takes account of sales generated by the intangible asset acquired. When carrying
out intangible asset impairment tests, the Group takes an approach based on estimated future cash flows (estimate
of value in use). The future cash flows used for the impairment tests are calculated based on estimates ranging from
five to ten years. For cash flow forecasts, the perpetual growth rates used, which depend on the products and
market growth expectations, and the discount rates based on the weighted average cost of capital after tax method,
are presented in note A3.

Tangible assets

In accordance with IAS 16, tangible assets are evaluated at the historic acquisition cost, including acquisition
charges, or at the initial production cost, minus the accumulated depreciations and, where applicable, the
accumulated impairment losses.
In accordance with IAS 23 revised, loan costs are incorporated into the acquisition costs of eligible assets. In
accordance with IAS 17, the goods acquired through capital leases are tangible when the lease contracts have
transferred to the Group almost all risks and advantages inherent to the ownership of these goods.
Assets are broken down by component, each component having its own specific depreciation period, in line with the
depreciation period of similar assets.
Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated over their estimated useful lives, namely:
• buildings:
− structure: 40 years,
− components: ten to twenty years;
• materials and industrial equipment:
− structure: 20 years,
− components: five to ten years,
− computer hardware: three or four years;
• other tangible assets: five to ten years.

Financial assets

The Group's other financial assets include mainly loans (especially loans to personnel), other fixed receivables and
other operating receivables.
They are recognised and posted at the initial loan amount. A provision is recorded, if applicable, where there is a risk
of non-recovery.

Other financial assets at fair value

Observable data is used in the calculation of the Group's financial assets where these are measured at fair value.
The only financial assets that come under this category are hedging instruments and investment securities.

Inventories and work in progress

Inventories and work in progress are accounted for at the lowest value of the cost and the net realisable value.
The cost of inventories includes all acquisition costs, transformation costs and other costs incurred to bring the
inventories to their current location and condition. The acquisition costs of inventories include the purchase price,
customs fees and other non-retrievable taxes, as well as transport and handling costs and other costs directly
attributable to their acquisition. The rebates and other similar items are deducted from this cost.
Inventories in raw materials and supplies are evaluated in accordance with the “weighted average cost method”.
Inventories in trading goods are also evaluated in accordance with the “weighted average cost method”. The
acquisition cost of raw material inventories includes all additional purchase costs.
The work in progress and the finished products are valued at their actual manufacturing cost including direct and
indirect production costs.
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Finished products are valued in each subsidiary at the price invoiced by the Group's selling company, plus
distribution costs; the margin included in these inventories is cancelled in the consolidated accounts taking into
account the complete average production cost stated for the Group's selling company.
Spare parts are part of rotating inventories and the inventory at closing is valued based on the last purchase price.
An impairment loss is recorded in order to return the inventories to their net realisable value, when the products become
damaged or unusable or even according to sales forecasts for these products assessed according to the market.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are classified as current assets to the extent that they form part of the Group's normal operating cycle.
Trade receivables are recognised and recorded at the initial invoice total, minus provisions for depreciation. An
estimation of the total bad debt is made when it becomes unlikely that the full amount will be recovered. Bad debts
are written off when identified as such.

Cash and cash equivalents

The cash is made up of bank balances, securities and cash equivalents providing good liquidity. The bank accounts
subject to restrictions (frozen accounts) are excluded from the cash flow and reclassified as other financial assets.

Treasury shares

Shares in the parent company held by the parent company or its consolidated subsidiaries (whether classified in the
separate financial statements as non-current financial assets or marketable securities), are recognised as a
deduction from shareholders' equity at their purchase cost. Any gain or loss on disposal of these shares is directly
recognised (net of tax) in shareholders' equity and not recognised in income for the year.

Conversion reserves

This item represents the conversion difference of net opening positions for foreign companies, arising from the
differences between the conversion rate at the date of entry into the consolidation and the closing rate of the period,
and also other conversion differences recorded on the profit for the period arising from differences between the
conversion rate of the income statement (average rate) and the closing rate for the period.

Reserves

This item represents the share attributable to the owners of the parent company in the reserves accumulated by the
consolidated companies, since their entry into the scope of consolidation.

Non-controlling interests

This item represents the share of the shareholders outside the Group in the equity and the income of the
consolidated companies.

Derivative instruments and hedge accounting

The Group holds derivative financial instruments solely for the purpose of reducing its exposure to rate or exchange
risks on balance sheet items and its firm or highly probable commitments.
Virbac uses hedge accounting to offset the impact of the hedged item and of the hedging instrument in the income
statement, on a quasi-systematic basis, when the following conditions are met:
• the impact on the income statement is significant;
• the hedging links and effectiveness of the hedging can be properly demonstrated.

Other financial liabilities

The other financial liabilities mainly represent loans from credit institutions and debts related to capital lease
contracts. These loans and receivables are accounted for at depreciated cost.

Pension schemes, retirement bonuses and other post-employment benefits
Defined contribution retirement plans
The advantages associated with defined contribution retirement plans are expensed as incurred.
Defined benefit retirement plans
The Group's obligations resulting from defined benefit retirement plans are determined by using the actuarial
method for projected unit credits. These commitments are measured at each balance sheet date. The commitment
calculation model is based on a number of actuarial assumptions. The discount rate is determined in relation to the
yield on investment grade corporate bonds (issuers rated "AA"). The Group's obligations are subject to a provision
for their net amount of the fair value of the hedging assets. In accordance with IAS 19 revised, actuarial differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Other provisions

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present obligation resulting from a past event which will probably
lead to an outflow of economic benefits that can be reasonably estimated. The amount recorded under provisions is
the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date and is
discounted if the effect is material.
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Taxation

The Group's subsidiaries record their tax impact depending on the fiscal regulations applicable locally. The parent
company and its main French subsidiaries are part of a fiscally integrated group. Under the terms of the tax
consolidation agreement, each consolidated company is required to account for tax as if it were taxed separately.
The income or expense of tax consolidation is recognised in the parent company's accounts.
The Group recognises deferred taxes on temporary differences between the carrying amount and the tax base of an
asset or liability. Tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
In accordance with IAS 12, which under certain conditions authorises the offsetting of debts and tax loans, the
deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset by fiscal entity.

Non-current assets held with a view to sale and abandoned activities

IFRS 5 states that an activity is considered abandoned when the classification criteria of an asset being held with a
view to sale have been fulfilled or when the Group ceases the activity. An asset is classified as held for sale if its
carrying amount will be mainly recovered through sale rather than through continued use.
At December 31, 2014, no asset was classified as held for sale.

Revenue from ordinary activities

Revenue from ordinary activities comprises the value before tax of the goods and services sold by the integrated
companies as part of their normal operations, after elimination of intra-group sales.
Sales are recognised on the date on which the majority of the risks and advantages inherent to ownership are
transferred, generally when the customer physically receives the product. Sales are measured at fair value of the
consideration received or to be received, that is net of commercial discounts or rebates.
Some expenses, the amount of which is proportional to sales and that meet the definition of income from ordinary
activities, are recognised as a deduction from Group sales.
Financial discounts and provisions for returns are also recognised as a deduction from sales.
The Group measures its provisions for deferred discounts granted to customers based on its contractual or implicit
commitments identified at the reporting date.

Personnel costs

Personnel costs especially include the cost of retirement plans. In accordance with IAS 19 revised, actuarial
differences are posted as other comprehensive income.
They also include optional and compulsory profit sharing.

Taxes and duties

The Group has opted for a classification of the business added value assessment (CVAE) in the "taxes and duties"
item of the operating income.

Operating profit

Operating profit corresponds to income from ordinary activities, minus operating expenses.
Operating expenses include:
• purchases consumed and external costs;
• personnel costs;
• taxes and duties;
• depreciations and provisions;
• other operating income and expenses.
Operating items also include tax credits that may be characterised as public subsidies and that meet the criteria of
IAS 20 (research tax credit and tax credit on low salaries).
Operating profit from ordinary activities
The Group uses operating profit from ordinary activities as its main performance indicator. Operating profit from
ordinary activities corresponds to operating profit, excluding the impact of other non-current income and expenses.
Other non-current income and expenses
Other non-current income and expenses are non-recurring income and expenses, or income and expenses resulting
from one-off decisions or operations for an unusual amount. They are presented on a separate line in the income
statement in order to make it easier to read and understand current operational performance.
This mainly includes the following items which, where appropriate, are described in a note to the consolidated
financial statements (note A24):
• restructuring costs linked to plans of a significant size;
• impairment of assets of a considerable size;
• the effect of revaluing inventories acquired as part of a business combination at fair value;
• and any revaluation of the interest previously held, in the event of a change in control.

Other financial income and expenses

This mainly includes interest and other assimilated income and expenses.
They also include exchange gains and losses which are systematically recorded through the income statement.

Result per share

The net result per share is calculated by dividing the net result attributable to the shareholders of the parent
company by the total number of shares issued and outstanding at the close of the period (that is net of treasury
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shares). Diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net result attributable to the shareholders of the
parent company by the total number of shares outstanding, plus, in the event of the issue of dilutive instruments,
the maximum number of shares that could be issued (upon conversion into ordinary shares of Virbac equity
instruments, thereby giving deferred access to Virbac capital).

Main sources of uncertainty relating to estimations
The drawing up of consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with international accounting standards
implies that the Group makes a number of estimates and assumptions believed to be realistic and reasonable.
Certain facts and circumstances could lead to changes in estimates and assumptions, which could affect the value of
assets, liabilities, equity and Group income.

Acquisition prices

Some acquisition contracts relating to business combinations or the purchase of intangible assets, include a clause
likely to change the price of the acquisition, depending on the objectives associated with financial income, the
obtaining of marketing authorisation, or results of efficacy testing.
In this case, the Group should estimate the acquisition price at the close of the fiscal year, based on the most
realistic assumptions as regards for achieving these objectives.

Goodwill and other intangible assets

The Group has intangible assets that were purchased or acquired through business combinations, in addition to the
resulting goodwill. As indicated in the "Accounting principles and methods" section, the Group performs at least one
test annually on impairment of goodwill and intangible assets for which the useful life cannot be defined. These
impairment tests are based on an evaluation of future cash flows for a period of five to ten years. The evaluations
made at the time of these tests are sensitive to assumptions relating to the sale price and future costs, but also in
terms of discount rates and growth. These sensitivity calculations make it possible to measure the Group's exposure
to significant variations in growth rates into infinity.
The Group may depreciate certain fixed assets in the event of deterioration in earning prospects for these assets or
if there is a loss index value for one of these assets.
As at December 31, 2014, the net total of goodwill was €142,178 thousand and the value of the intangible assets
was €195,298 thousand.

Deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary differences between tax and accounting values of assets
and liabilities. Deferred tax assets, in particular those relating to carried forward tax losses, are recognised only if it
is likely that the Group will have sufficient future taxable income, which is based on a significant assumption.
At each balance sheet date, the Group has to analyse the origin of losses for each of the tax entities in question and remeasure the amount of deferred tax assets based on the likelihood of making sufficient taxable profits in the future.

Provisions for pension schemes and other post-employment benefits

As indicated in note A14, the Group has established retirement plans as well as other post-employment benefits.
The corresponding commitments were calculated using actuarial methods that take account of assumptions such as
the benchmark salary for scheme beneficiaries and the likelihood of the persons in question being able to benefit
from the scheme, and the discount rate. These assumptions are updated annually. Actuarial differences are
immediately recognised in other comprehensive income.
The total commitment relating to personnel benefits was €14,212 thousand as at December 31, 2014.

Other provisions

The various risks are the subject of provisions, the total of which is estimated by management depending on the
information available at year-end accounts. As at December 31, 2014, the total amount of other provisions was
€5,201 thousand.
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A1. Goodwill
Change in goodwill by CGU
Gross value
as at
31/12/2013

Impairment
value as at
31/12/2013

Book value
as at
31/12/2013

Increases

Sales

Italy

1,585

-

1,585

-

-

-

-

1,585

Denmark

4,643

-

4,643

-

-

-

-

4,643

Leishmaniosis
vaccine

5,421

-

5,421

-

-

-

-

5,421

Greece

1,358

-

1,358

-

-

-

-

1,358

Colombia

2,267

-

2,267

-

-

-

-141

2,126

India

13,405

-

13,405

-

-

-

1,413

14,818

United States

48,218

-2,974

45,244

-

-

-

5,929

51,173

Australia

3,315

-323

2,992

-

-

-

70

3,062

Peptech

3,131

-

3,131

-

-

-

125

3,256

New Zealand

15,163

-160

15,003

-

-

-

1,190

16,193

Chile

32,563

-

32,563

-

-

-

-461

32,102

Impair- Conversion
ment of gains and
value
losses

Book value
as at
31/12/2014

in € thousand

Santa Elena

3,450

-

3,450

-

-

-

469

3,919

Other CGUs

4,204

-1,734

2,470

-

-

-

52

2,522

138,723

-5,191

133,532

-

-

-

8,646

142,178

Goodwill

The impact of exchange rate fluctuations generated an increase in the net book value of goodwill in 2014 in the
amount of €8.6 million.

A2. Intangible assets
The Group's intangible assets are comprised mainly of:
• rights relating to the patents, know-how and marketing authorisations necessary for the Group's production
activities and commercialisation procedures;
• trademarks;
• licences and other acquisition costs for the Group's IT systems.
They are classified into two categories: intangible assets with finite useful lives and those with indefinite useful lives.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives include mainly brands and certain marketing authorisations acquired,
the life of which cannot be defined.
Intangible assets are classified following the analysis of all relevant economic and legal factors, making it possible to
conclude whether or not there is a foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net
cash inflows for the entity.
Innovative or differentiated products in general, and vaccines and other assets from biotechnologies in particular,
are generally classified as intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, once a detailed analysis has been conducted
and experts have given their opinions on their potential. This approach is founded on Virbac's past experience.

Concessions, patents, licences and brands

The “Concessions, patents, licences and brands” item mainly includes intangible assets purchased and treated as per
the principles set out in standard IAS 38, as well as assets acquired as part of external growth operations as defined
by IFRS 3. As at December 31, 2014, this item comprised the following:
• brands and marketing authorisations acquired as part of the business combination in Chile, totalling
€79,878 thousand;
• the patents, brands and customer portfolio acquired in the New Zealand business combination, valued at
€10,913 thousand;
• Multimin rights for South Africa, Australia and New Zealand, recognised in accordance with IAS 38 for a total
of €10,091 thousand;
• the brands and technologies acquired from Santa Elena, totalling €12,592 thousand;
• the brands and technologies acquired from Axon/Birch by Virbac Australia, totalling €2,798 thousand;
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• the patents, brands and technologies acquired from Schering-Plough in Europe for €15,078 thousand.
At December 31, 2014, the value of the brands on the balance sheet was €51,085 thousand.
Nearly all of the brands relate to the following acquisitions:
• the veterinary division of GlaxoSmithKline in India acquired in 2006;
• the product ranges acquired from Schering-Plough in 2008;
• the product ranges acquired from Synthesis in 2011;
• the product ranges acquired from Peptech in 2011;
• the product ranges acquired from Centrovet in 2012;
• the product ranges acquired from Stockguard in 2012;
• the product ranges acquired from Axon in 2013;
• the product ranges acquired from Santa Elena in 2013.
No brands are classified as intangible assets with finite useful lives and therefore no trademarks are amortised.

Other intangible assets and intangible assets in progress

The increase in these two items largely corresponds to IT projects in several of the Group's subsidiaries.

Concessions,
patents, licences
and brands
in € thousand
Gross value as at 31/12/2013
Acquisitions and other increases
Disposals and other decreases
Changes in scope
Transfers
Conversion gains and losses
Gross value as at 31/12/2014
Depreciation as at 31/12/2013
Depreciation expense

Other
intangible
assets

Intangible
assets
in progress

Intangible
assets

Indefinite life

Finite life

120,879

105,280

40,662

5,717

272,538

22

224

2,753

1,426

4,425

-15

-

-55

-25

-95

-

-

-

-

-

-4,174

-953

568

-1,777

-6,336

2,671

2,038

544

178

5,431

119,383

106,589

44,472

5,519

275,963

-6,620

-35,606

-32,072

-

-74,298

-

-6,697

-3,590

-

-10,287

94

-1

-

-292

-199

Disposals and other decreases

-

-

55

-

55

Changes in scope

-

-

-

-

-

Impairment losses (net of reversals)

6,060

-145

-24

-

5,891

-3

-1,339

-479

-7

-1,828

-469

-43,788

-36,110

-299

-80,666

Net value as at 31/12/2013

114,259

69,675

8,590

5,717

198,240

Net value as at 31/12/2014

118,914

62,802

8,362

5,220

195,298

Transfers
Conversion gains and losses
Depreciation as at 31/12/2014

A3. Impairment of assets
At the end of the 2014 financial year, Virbac re-examined the value of its CGUs' goodwill, intangible assets and
tangible assets, checking that the CGUs' recoverable amount exceeded their net carrying amount including goodwill.
The recoverable amount from the CGUs is determined by discounting future cash flows (discounted cash flows or
DCF method).
Each CGU's recoverable amount has therefore been estimated as the present value of future cash flows net of tax,
consistent with the 2015 budget and the most recent medium-term forecasts.
Unless there is an indication of a loss of value between acquisition date and year-end closure of the financial
statements, assets acquired over the course of the financial year are not tested for impairment at year-end.
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The key assumptions used are stated in the tables below.

As at December 31, 2014
Net book value as at 31/12/2014

in € thousand
Italy

Goodwill
1,585

Discount rate

Perpetual growth
rate

-

7.50%

2.00%

Intangible assets

Denmark

4,643

-

7.50%

2.00%

Leishmaniosis vaccine

5,421

18,227

7.50%

2.00%

Greece

1,358

-

9.50%

2.00%

Colombia

2,126

3,634

9.50%

2.00%

India

14,818

11,742

9.50%

5.00%

United States

51,173

5,927

7.50%

2.00%

Australia (excluding Peptech)

3,062

4,998

7.50%

2.00%

Peptech

3,256

1,623

7.50%

2.00%

CGU product range acquired from ScheringPlough in Europe

-

15,078

7.50%

2.00%

Leucogen

-

-

7.50%

N/A

Multimin

-

11,383

7.50%

2.00%

New Zealand

16,193

9,621

7.50%

2.00%

Centrovet

32,102

79,986

9.50%

2.00%

Uruguay

3,919

12,582

9.50%

2.00%

Other tested CGUs

1,905

5,724

7.50% - 9.50%

0.00% - 2.00%

617

1,191

N/A

N/A

142,178

181,716

Other untested CGUs
Total value

The net carrying amount of the CGUs includes goodwill, intangible assets as well as assets and liabilities that can be
directly assigned to the CGUs.
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As at December 31, 2013
Net book value as at 31/12/2013

in € thousand

Goodwill

Discount rate

Perpetual growth
rate

Intangible assets

Italy

1,585

-

7.50%

2.00%

Denmark

4,643

-

7.50%

2.00%

Leishmaniosis vaccine

5,421

18,393

7.50%

2.00%

Greece

1,358

-

9.50%

2.00%

Colombia

2,267

4,073

9.50%

2.00%

India

13,405

10,553

9.50%

5.00%

United States

45,244

5,449

7.50%

2.00%

Australia (excluding Peptech)

2,992

2,163

7.50%

2.00%

Peptech

3,131

1,722

7.50%

2.00%

CGU product range acquired from ScheringPlough in Europe

-

16,559

7.50%

2.00%

Leucogen

-

212

7.50%

N/A

Multimin

-

11,448

7.50%

2.00%

New Zealand

15,003

8,295

7.50%

2.00%

Centrovet

32,563

83,596

9.50%

2.00%

1,861

5,929

7.50% - 9.50%

0.00% - 2.00%

129,473

168,392

3,450

11,194

N/A

N/A

Other CGUs
Total tested assets
Santa Elena
Birch/Axon
Other CGUs
Total untested assets
Total value

-

2,818

N/A

N/A

609

1,529

N/A

N/A

4,059

15,541

133,532

183,933

Sensitivity tests

Several calculations have been made of value in use, applying different key assumptions:
• keeping the same perpetual growth rate and increasing the discount rate by +2.0 points;
• keeping the same discount rate and reducing the perpetual growth rate by - 2.0 points.
In neither case would Virbac have had to recognise an impairment.
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For the main CGUs, the results of these different assumptions are shown in the tables below.

Net book value
of CGU as at
31/12/2014

Key assumption
discount rate
+2.0 points

Key assumption
growth rate

Depreciation

Italy

1,585

9.50%

2.00%

-

Denmark

4,643

9.50%

2.00%

-

26,683

9.50%

2.00%

-

1,359

11.50%

2.00%

-

in € thousand

Leishmaniosis vaccine
Greece
Colombia

5,760

11.50%

2.00%

-

India

28,577

11.50%

5.00%

-

United States

87,604

9.50%

2.00%

-

Australia (excluding Peptech)

8,060

9.50%

2.00%

-

Peptech

4,879

9.50%

2.00%

-

CGU product range acquired from ScheringPlough in Europe

15,078

9.50%

2.00%

-

Leucogen

10,738

9.50%

N/A

-

Multimin

11,883

9.50%

2.00%

-

New Zealand
Centrovet
Uruguay

in € thousand
Italy
Denmark

27,260

9.50%

2.00%

-

135,492

11.50%

2.00%

-

25,282

11.50%

2.00%

-

Net book value
of CGU as at
31/12/2014

Key assumption
discount rate

Key assumption
growth rate
-2.0 %

Depreciation

1,585

7.50%

0.00%

-

4,643

7.50%

0.00%

-

26,683

7.50%

0.00%

-

Greece

1,359

9.50%

0.00%

-

Colombia

5,760

9.50%

0.00%

-

India

28,577

9.50%

3.00%

-

United States

87,604

7.50%

0.00%

-

Australia (excluding Peptech)

8,060

7.50%

0.00%

-

Peptech

Leishmaniosis vaccine

4,879

7.50%

0.00%

-

CGU product range acquired from ScheringPlough in Europe

15,078

7.50%

0.00%

-

Leucogen

10,738

7.50%

N/A

-

Multimin

11,883

7.50%

0.00%

-

New Zealand
Centrovet
Uruguay

27,260

7.50%

0.00%

-

135,492

9.50%

0.00%

-

25,282

9.50%

0.00%

-
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The discount rate, combined with a zero perpetual growth rate, on the basis of which Virbac would have to recognise
an impairment is indicated in the table below.

Net book value of
CGU as at
31/12/2014

Discount rate, combined into a zero perpetual
growth rate, from which impairment is
established

Italy

1,585

38.3%

Denmark

4,643

65.5%

26,683

16.5%

Greece

1,359

114.3%

Colombia

5,760

45.5%

India

28,577

38.5%

United States

87,604

20.2%

Australia (excluding Peptech)

8,060

67.0%

Peptech

4,879

86.5%

CGU product range acquired from ScheringPlough in Europe

15,078

20.1%

Leucogen

10,738

68.6%

Multimin

11,883

41.9%

New Zealand

27,260

16.6%

135,492

26.4%

25,282

15.7%

in € thousand

Leishmaniosis vaccine

Centrovet
Uruguay

A4. Tangible assets
Tangible assets are goods that have been bought or acquired through leasing contracts.
As at December 31, 2014, the gross value of goods acquired through leasing contracts and restated as tangible
assets, in accordance with IAS 17, totalled €11,285 thousand (€8,330 thousand in assets at the Centrovet
production site in Chile and €2,955 thousand in Virbac computer hardware).
The main assets constituting the Group's tangible assets are:
• the land;
• the constructions, which include:
− the buildings,
− development of buildings;
• technical facilities, materials and industrial equipment;
• other tangible assets, which notably include:
− IT equipment,
− office furniture,
− vehicles.
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Land

Buildings

17,323

130,878

in € thousand
Gross value as at 31/12/2013

Other
tangible
assets

Tangible
assets
in progress

Tangible
assets

119,170

23,127

45,519

336,017

Technical
facilities,
materials and
industrial
equipment

-

6,124

12,867

3,103

13,513

35,607

-118

-1,646

-1,478

-717

-45

-4,004

Changes in scope

-

-

-

-

-

-

Transfers

5

14,918

12,703

126

-28,286

-534

643

2,885

3,439

882

1,212

9,061

17,853

153,159

146,701

26,521

31,913

376,147

Depreciation as at 31/12/2013

-

-65,570

-69,246

-14,946

-

-149,763

Depreciation expense

-

-6,589

-9,690

-2,888

-

-19,166

Impairment losses (net of reversals)

-

-103

30

-

-

-73

Acquisitions and other increases
Disposals and other decreases

Conversion gains and losses
Gross value as at 31/12/2014

Disposals and other decreases

-

1,374

1,323

668

-

3,365

Changes in scope

-

-

-

-

-

-

Transfers

-

-

54

1,068

-

1,122

Conversion gains and losses

-

-994

-1,711

-564

-

-3,269

Impairment as at 31/12/2014

-

-71,882

-79,240

-16,662

-

-167,784

Net value as at 31/12/2013

17,323

65,308

49,923

8,181

45,519

186,254

Net value as at 31/12/2014

17,853

81,277

67,460

9,859

31,913

208,363

Variations on tangible fixed asset lines can mainly be explained by the commissioning of the new production unit
dedicated to manufacturing sterile forms at the historic site in Carros, the commissioning of a new building wholly
dedicated to research and development at the St. Louis site in the United States, and the commissioning of a new
building in Mexico to house the subsidiary’s administrative premises, shops and premix production. The Group has also
invested in new industrial equipment and materials primarily designed for new products being launched in Europe.
The currency effect generated a €5.8 million increase in the net asset value.

A5. Other financial assets
Change in other financial assets
2013

Increases Decreases

Changes Transfers
in scope

Conversion
gains and
losses

2014

in € thousand
-

653

-

-

-

60

713

Loans and other financial receivables

4,588

1,429

-231

-

-51

35

5,770

Currency and interest rate derivatives

7,653

211

-

-

-

-

7,864

28

4

-

-

-

3

35

9

-

-

-

-

-

9

12,278

2,297

-231

-

-51

98

14,391

3,045

-

-621

-

51

309

2,784

Non-consolidated shares

Restricted cash
Other
Other financial assets, non-current
Loans and other financial receivables

735

243

-

-

-

-

978

Restricted cash

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Other

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,780

243

-621

-

51

309

3,762

16,058

2,540

-852

-

0

407

Currency and interest rate derivatives

Other financial assets, current
Other financial assets

18,153
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The “Loans and other financial receivables” line for other current financial assets includes term accounts in the
amount of €2,733 thousand.

Other financial assets classified according to their maturity
As at December 31, 2014
Payments
in € thousand

less than 1 year

from 1 to 5 years

more than 5 years

-

-

713

Non-consolidated shares

Total

713

2,784

5,770

-

8,554

978

7,864

-

8,842

Restricted cash

-

35

-

35

Other

-

-

9

9

3,762

13,669

722

18,153

Payments

Total

Loans and other financial receivables
Currency and interest rate derivatives

Other financial assets
As at December 31, 2013

in € thousand

less than 1 year

from 1 to 5 years

more than 5 years

3,045

4,588

-

7,633

Loans and other financial receivables

735

7,653

-

8,388

Restricted cash

-

28

-

28

Other

-

-

9

9

3,780

12,269

9

16,058

Currency and interest rate derivatives

Other financial assets

A6. Information about IFRS 12
Information about non-controlled interests

The information below concerns non-controlled interests in the company Holding Salud Animal (HSA) deemed to be
significant in respect of the information required by IFRS 12. That group comprises the following entities:
• Holding Salud Animal SA;
• Centro Veterinario y Agricola Limitada;
• Farquimica SpA;
• Bioanimal Corp SpA;
• Productos Quimico Ehlinger;
• Centrovet Inc.;
• Centrovet Argentina;
• Inversiones HSA Limitada;
• Rentista de capitales Takumi Limitada.
The share of non-controlled interests in the group stands at 49%.

in € thousand
Non-current assets

2014
135,528

Current assets

52,779

Non-current liabilities

22,787

Current liabilities

30,013

in € thousand

2014

Revenue from ordinary activities

64,918

Net result for the period

14,109
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The dividends paid out by the HSA Group in 2014 on its 2013 results totalled €21,051 thousand (including
€10,315 thousand paid out to owners of non-controlling interests).
The net change in cash and cash equivalents over the course of the financial year showed a €554 thousand decrease.

Information about equity accounted companies
Company's individual accounts using equity method

in € thousand

Balance
sheet total

Equity

Sales

Result

Share of
equity

Share of
result

-

776

-

-

373

-

5,947

3,156

1,576

-2,529

5,451

-1,239

5,824

-1,239

Vetz GmbH
SBC Virbac Limited (Hong Kong)

Consolidated financial
statements

Share in companies accounted for by the equity method

Because the impact of equity accounted companies was not deemed to be significant on the Virbac group’s accounts,
the information required by IFRS 12 is limited to the above.

A7. Deferred taxes
In accordance with IAS 12, which under certain conditions authorises the offsetting of debts and tax loans, the
deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset by fiscal entity.
The Group records all identified temporary differences.

Variation in deferred taxes
2013

Variations

Changes
in
scope

Deferred tax assets

21,408

2,620

-

Deferred tax liabilities

49,131

3,512

-

Deferred tax offset

-27,723

-892

-

567

in € thousand

Transfers

Conversion
gains
and losses

2014

235

315

24,578

-332

1,609

53,920

-1,294

-29,342

The variation in deferred taxes shown above excludes deferred taxes on the effective share of the profits and losses
on hedging instruments, which totalled -€33 thousand in 2014.

Deferred taxes broken down by type
As at December 31, 2014

in € thousand

Deferred tax
assets

in € thousand

Deferred tax
liabilities

Internal margin on inventories

8,317

Adjustments on intangible assets

Retirement and end of career severance commitments

3,694

Adjustments on tangible assets

5,854

Tax loss carryforwards

2,538

Adjustments on fiscal provisions

8,463

Sales adjustments (IAS 18)

950

Inventory adjustments (IAS 2)

2,861

Other non-deductible provisions

1,172

Other charges with deferred deduction

3,038

Other income taxed in advance

2,008

37,915

Activation of expenses linked to acquisitions

954

Leases adjustments

734

Total by type

24,578

Total by type

53,920

Impact of compensation by fiscal entity

-15,588

Impact of compensation by fiscal entity

-15,588

Deferred net tax liabilities

38,332

Deferred net tax assets

8,990
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The capitalisation of loss carry-forwards is due to the scope of tax consolidation in France, the Group deeming it
highly likely that these losses will be used in the coming years.

As at December 31, 2013
Deferred tax
assets

in € thousand

Deferred tax
liabilities

in € thousand

Internal margin on inventories

6,914

Adjustments on intangible assets

Retirement and end of career severance commitments

2,519

Adjustments on tangible assets

4,811

Tax loss carryforwards

2,059

Adjustments on fiscal provisions

6,744

Sales adjustments (IAS 18)

547

Inventory adjustments (IAS 2)

2,739

Other non-deductible provisions

1,811

Other charges with deferred deduction

2,733

Other income taxed in advance

2,086

35,989

Activation of expenses linked to acquisitions

897

Leases adjustments

691

Total by type

21,408

Total by type

49,132

Impact of compensation by fiscal entity

-13,337

Impact of compensation by fiscal entity

-13,337

Deferred net tax liabilities

35,795

Deferred net tax assets

8,071

A8. Inventories and work in progress
Raw materials
and supplies

Work in progress

Finished products
and goods for resale

Inventories and
work in progress

49,630

12,024

84,855

146,507

7,261

2,296

5,347

14,904

Changes in scope

-

-

-

-

Transfers

-

-

-3

-3

1,258

236

3,937

5,431

Gross value as at 31/12/2014

58,149

14,556

94,135

166,840

Depreciation as at 31/12/2013

-2,500

-1,366

-3,864

-7,730

Allowances

-1,117

-1,131

-2,324

-4,571

Reversals

1,634

1,366

2,582

5,582

in € thousand
Gross value as at 31/12/2013
Variations

Conversion gains and losses

-

-

-

-

-12

-

15

3

-113

-

-139

-252

Depreciation as at 31/12/2014

-2,108

-1,131

-3,730

-6,969

Net value as at 31/12/2013

47,130

10,658

80,989

138,777

Net value as at 31/12/2014

56,041

13,425

90,404

159,870

Changes in scope
Transfers
Conversion gains and losses

Unrealised exchange gains resulted in an increase in the inventory’s net value by €5.2 million.
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A9. Trade receivables
Trade receivables

in € thousand
Gross value as at 31/12/2013

122,184
19,883

Variations

-

Changes in scope

385

Transfers

3,168

Conversion gains and losses
Gross value as at 31/12/2014

145,620

Depreciation as at 31/12/2013

-3,557

Allowances

-357

Reversals

290

Changes in scope

-

Transfers

-30

Conversion gains and losses
Depreciation as at 31/12/2014

-3,654

Net value as at 31/12/2013

118,627

Net value as at 31/12/2014

141,966

This line’s increase can be explained by a growth in business levels at the end of the year, particularly in France and
the United States.
Unrealised exchange gains resulted in an increase in the net value of trade receivables by €3.1 million.
The credit risk from trade receivables and other receivables is presented in note A30.

A10. Other receivables
2013

Variations

Changes
in scope

Transfers

Conversion
gains and losses

2014

13,308

-3,637

-

-

218

9,889

5,480

-4,447

-

-

-196

837

19,040

6,592

-

-

236

25,868

2,635

187

-

-

113

2,935

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,231

2,411

-

-

257

5,899

-

926

-

-

-

926

Other various receivables

11,242

11,595

-

-

98

22,935

Other receivables

54,936

13,627

-

-

726

69,289

in € thousand
Income tax receivables
Social receivables
Other receivables to the State
Advances and prepayments on orders
Depreciation on various other receivables
Prepaid expenses
Deferred charge on debt issuance

Receivables consist primarily of tax credits in France (research tax credit and tax credit on low salaries).
The amount of the tax credit on low salaries in France totalled €1,331 thousand in 2014.
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A11. Cash and cash equivalents
2013

Variations

Changes
in scope

Transfers

Conversion
gains and losses

2014

Available funds

20,844

-1,520

-

-

2,539

21,863

Marketable securities

14,127

334,445

-

-

5,477

354,049

Cash and cash equivalents

34,971

332,925

-

-

8,016

375,912

Bank overdraft

-4,526

-3,237

-

-

-82

-7,845

-26

2

-

-

-

-24

Overdraft

-4,552

-3,235

-

-

-82

-7,869

Net cash position

30,419

329,690

-

-

7,934

368,043

in € thousand

Accrued interests not yet matured

A12. Assets classified as held for sale
During the 2014 financial year, as in 2013, no asset was classified as held for sale.

A13. Equity
in € thousand
Capital
Premiums linked to capital
Legal reserve

2014

2013

10,573

10,573

6,534

6,534

1,089

1,089

Other reserves and retained earnings

225,714

207,769

Consolidation reserves

137,018

110,692

Conversion reserves

-11,228

-35,344

Actuarial gains and losses

-2,366

-905

Result for the period

63,596

60,523

430,930

360,930

Other reserves and retained earnings

50,724

52,364

Conversion reserves

-6,813

-7,406

Equity attributable to the owners of the parent company

Result for the period
Non-controlling interests
Equity

6,937

8,486

50,848

53,444

481,778

414,374

Capital management policy

Within the framework of capital management, the Group aims to preserve the continuity of operations, to serve as a
return to shareholders, to procure the advantages from other partners and to maintain an optimal capital structure
to reduce the cost of capital.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group can:
• adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders;
• return capital to shareholders;
• issue new shares; or
• sell assets to reduce the total debts.
The Group uses various indicators, one of which is financial leverage (net debt/equity), which provides investors with a
vision of debt for the Group comparative to the total equity. In particular, this equity includes the reserve for variations
in the value of hedged cash flows and the reserve for variations in the value of financial asset available for sale.
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Treasury shares

Virbac holds shares with no voting rights which are intended primarily to supply the allocation of performancerelated stock grants. The amount of these treasury shares is posted as a reduction in equity.

Shares with a double voting rights

Double voting rights are granted to all shareholders whose shares have been registered in their name for at least
two years. Of the 8,458,000 shares making up the share capital, 4,356,133 have double voting rights.

Share buyback programme

The ordinary shareholders' meeting of June 17, 2014 authorised the Virbac parent company to buy back shares in
accordance with articles L225-209 et seq. of the French commercial code and in line with the terms of the buyback
plan set out in the prospectus published by our professional distributor and on the company's website May 22, 2014,
in accordance with the provisions of the transparency directive that came into force on January 20, 2007.
As at December 31, 2014, Virbac held 28,045 treasury shares acquired on the market for a total of €3,961,197
excluding fees, for an average price of €141.24 per share.
During the financial year, the company bought 45,162 treasury shares (at an average price of €165.63) and sold
47,570 shares (at an average price of €168.02) as part of the market-making contract.
As at December 31, 2014, treasury shares accounted for 0.33% of Virbac's capital. They are earmarked for market
making and performance-related stock grants, in accordance with the twelfth resolution adopted by the
shareholders' meeting of June 17, 2014.
A resolution will be submitted for the approval of the shareholders' meeting authorising the company to buy back up
to 10% of the capital. Shares may be acquired with a view to:
• ensuring liquidity or supporting the market price via an independent investment services provider pursuant to
a liquidity agreement in accordance with a code of ethics recognised by the French financial markets authority
(Autorité des marchés financiers);
• allocating free performance-related stock grants;
• reduction of the company’s capital stock by cancelling part or all of the shares repurchased, subject to the
adoption by the ordinary shareholder’s meeting of the resolution on the authorisation to reduce the share
capital by cancellation of repurchased shares.
The maximum unit purchase price may not exceed €400 per share. When calculating the maximum number of
shares, shares already purchased under the aforementioned prior authorisations will be included, together with
those that could be purchased under the market-making agreement.
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A14. Employee benefits
The commitments related to employee benefit schemes are calculated using the projected unit credit method. Future
commitments are subject to a provision for expenses.
Where a commitment is pre-financed by payments into a fund, the provision corresponds to the difference between
the total commitment at the closing date and the amount of the hedging asset. The hedging asset is made up of the
amount of the fund plus the investment income and any contributions paid during the year.

Change in provisions by country
2013 Allowances Reversals Transfers
in € thousand

Equity Conversion
gains and
losses

2014

4,873

538

-131

-

419

-

5,699

599

91

-68

-

28

-

650

Germany

80

32

-

-

-

-

112

Greece

91

21

-

-

-

-

112

Mexico

90

16

-6

-

3

1

104

-

242

-217

-

-7

1

19

Taiwan

285

55

-1

-

14

22

375

Thailand

124

23

-

-

-

18
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Uruguay

628

222

-

-

-

9

859

6,770

1,241

-423

-

457

51

8,096

France
Italy

Korea

Retirement and severance pay
allowances

793

-394

-

-

1,330

-

1,729

Japan

1,010

171

-38

-

15

-8

1,150

Defined benefit retirement plans

1,803

-223

-38

-

1,345

-8

2,879

South Africa

857

97

-30

-

69

36

1,029

Medical cover

857

97

-30

-

69

36

1,029

India

275

187

-225

-

242

42

521

Allowances for absence

275

187

-225

-

242

42

521

1,380

132

-68

-

-

54

1,498

-

17

-

125

-

-

142

56

-

-9

-

-

-

47

1,436

149

-77

125

-

54

1,687

11,141

1,451

-793

125

2,113

175

14,212

France*

Australia
Austria
Spain
Other long term benefits
Provisions for employee benefits

Changes to the provision for the defined benefits retirement scheme in France are linked to the setting up of
reversion benefits after the death of a beneficiary of that scheme. This event was treated as a reduction in the
allowance for the commitment under the scheme for 2014, in accordance with the revised IAS 19.
The impact of “Shareholders’ equity” was primarily caused by a decrease in the discount rate in France, South Africa
and India, as well as a decrease in the technical rate in France for the defined benefits retirement scheme.

Main commitments

As at December 31, 2014, the main debt linked to employee benefits was located in France, Australia, Japan and South
Africa. They respectively contributed 52%, 11%, 8% and 7% of provisions related to employee benefit schemes.
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Retirement and severance pay allowances

§

France
In accordance with the collective agreement, the Group's French companies pay their employees an allowance on
their retirement based on their salary and seniority.
The rights vest are as follows:
• managerial personnel: 12% per year of service;
• non-managerial personnel: 10% per year of service.
Defined benefit retirement plans

§

France
The scheme results in the payment of an income to the individual covered, payable at 60% to the spouse (or exspouse) calculated in accordance with:
• an eligibility criterion: being a member of the executive board and aged at least 60 on the date of retirement;
• an allowance rate which differs according to two criteria:
− if the recipient has been employed by the Group for less than ten years or if the recipient has been a
member of the executive board for less than nine years, the allowance rate is 0%;
− if the recipient has been employed by the Group for between ten and thirty years or if the recipient has
been a member of the executive board for between nine and fifteen years, the allowance rate is 12.5%;
− if the recipient has been employed by the Group for more than thirty years or if the recipient has been a
member of the executive board for more than fifteen years, the allowance rate is 22%.
This scheme is pre-financed through a fund managed by an insurance company.

§

Japan
The scheme results in payments in the form of capital.
The eligibility conditions are as follows:
• must have been employed by the company for at least two years at the closing date;
• must be at least 60 years old.
The amount of capital is calculated from the base salary multiplied by a coefficient varying between 5 and 35
depending on years of service.
Medical cover

§

South Africa
The programme implemented by Virbac South Africa makes the company responsible for the contributions paid by
retired employees who wish to subscribe to voluntary medical insurance.
The eligibility condition is that the employee must have joined the company on April 30, 1995 at the latest.
The insurance contribution paid by Virbac South Africa is between 50% and 100% depending on the level of
coverage chosen by the beneficiary. In the event that the beneficiary should die, his or her legal successors continue
to benefit from the Virbac South Africa holding under certain conditions.
Because the scheme is not restricted only to Virbac South Africa employees, it has been valued based on
contributions paid by Virbac South Africa, restated to reflect the inflation rate for medical costs.
Long-service leave

§

Australia
In accordance with regulations in Australia, Virbac grants employees long-service leave in line with their
compensation and years of service. Each employee is entitled to 3 months' leave after 15 years' service, which is
acquired as follows:
• if the employee is dismissed after 5 to 10 years' service, he has the right to his pro-rata share in the acquired rights;
• if the employee leaves the company for any other reason between 5 and 10 years of service, he or she has
no rights;
• if the employee leaves the company, for whatever reason, after 10 years of service, he or she is entitled to a
pro-rata share of the acquired rights.
The provision is calculated as the sum of the individual rights, calculated pro-rata for the ratio of the employee's
years of service at the closing date to the years of service for full rights.
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Calculation parameters of the main personnel benefits schemes in the Group
Assumptions as at December 31, 2014
Discount rate

Future salary growth

France

1.50%

2.50% - 1.25%

South Africa

8.70%

N/A

Japan

1.00%

3.00%

India

7.95%

7.00%

Discount rate

Future salary growth

France

3.00%

2.50% - 1.50%

South Africa

9.40%

N/A

Japan

1.20%

3.00%

India

9.25%

7.00%

Assumptions as at December 31, 2013

Discount rates are based on high-quality corporate bond yields with a maturity similar to that of the bond concerned.
In accordance with IAS 19 revised, the expected return on assets is set equal to the discount rate.
A 0.5 point increase or decrease in the discount rate would entail, respectively, a reduction in the provision for
employee benefits of around €680 thousand or an increase of approximately €730 thousand recognised with a
balancing entry in other comprehensive income.
Also, a 0.5 point increase or decrease in the future growth rate of salaries would entail, respectively, an increase in
the provision for employee benefits of around €550 thousand or a reduction of approximately €510 thousand
recognised with a balancing entry in other comprehensive income.

Allowance for the year
in € thousand
Cost of services rendered
Financial cost

2014 allowance
1,611
504

Expected return on assets

-173

Change of scheme

-491

Immediate recognition of actuarial (gains)/losses in the year

0

Administrative costs recognised in expenses

1

Net cost/(net gain) recognised in income

1,451

Employer contributions (including benefits paid directly by the employer) in 2014 totalled €794 thousand and are
estimated at €461 thousand for 2015.

Movements of amounts recognised in the statement of financial position

The tables below reconcile the movements in the amounts recognised in the statement of financial position (actuarial
debt, hedging assets, provision for employee benefits).
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in € thousand
Present value as at January 1, 2014
Benefits paid by employer
Benefits paid by funds *
Cost of services rendered and financial cost

Actuarial liability
16,082
-352
-1,356
2,115

Termination/end of contract

-

Actuarial (gains)/losses due to demographic assumptions

-

Actuarial (gains)/losses due to financial assumptions

2,388

Actuarial experience (gains)/losses

-327

Change of scheme

-491

Other variations

-269

Transfers

125

Conversion gains and losses

274

Present value as at December 31, 2014

18,189

Actuarial liabilities are pre-financed in France, India and South Korea through hedging assets (insurance policies)
covering annual financial interests.

in € thousand
Fair value as at January 1, 2014
Contributions paid
Benefits paid*

Hedging assets
4,941
442
-1,356

Interest income

173

Actuarial gains/(losses)

-51

Tax on premiums paid
Other variations
Conversion gains and losses
Fair value as at December 31, 2014

-1
-269
98
3,977

* The benefits serviced by the fund relate to the French defined benefits retirement scheme, for which a reversion
annuity was liquidated after the death of one of the scheme’s beneficiaries. Those amounts were transferred to the
insurer, which will handle payment of the reversion annuity up until the beneficiary’s death.

in € thousand

Employee benefits

Fair value of hedging assets

-3,977

Present value of actuarial liability

18,189

(Assets)/Liabilities recognised in provisions as at December 31, 2014

14,212
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Employee benefits

in € thousand
Provision to liabilities as at January 1, 2014

11,141

Charge/(gain) recognised in income - allowance

1,451

Amount recognised in equity

2,113

Employer contributions/Benefits paid - reversal

-793

Other events

-

Transfers

125

Conversion gains and losses
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Provision to liabilities as at December 31, 2014

14,212

A15. Other provisions
2013 Allowances Reversals

Changes Transfers
in scope

in € thousand
Trade disputes and industrial tribunals
Fiscal disputes

Conversion
gains and
losses

2014

1,428

1,526

-479

-

33

-8

2,500

-

-

-

-

159

-6

153

Various risks and charges

1,277

1,028

-514

-

-

-11

1,780

Other non-current provisions

2,705

2,554

-993

-

192

-25

4,433

Trade disputes and industrial tribunals

142

-

-

-

-107

6

41

Fiscal disputes

403

14

-

-

36

34

487

Various risks and charges

138

200

-111

-

-

13

240

Other current provisions

683

214

-111

-

-71

53

768

3,388

2,768

-1,104

-

121

28

5,201

Other provisions

Other provisions mainly relate to disputes and commercial risks in France in the amount of €424 thousand and in
Mexico for €412 thousand, a risk that employee-related liabilities in Chile have been underestimated by
€706 thousand, and severance pay allowances for sales representatives in Italy totalling €635 thousand.
No provisions are established if the company considers that the liability is contingent (as defined by IAS 37). This is
the case in particular of a claim lodged in 2014 by a competitor of the Group in reparation of alleged damage
relating to a method of use patent. The company considers that claim to be both legally unfounded and
quantitatively disproportionate in view of the low level of revenue earned by the product in question. It is therefore a
contingent liability, with a low probability of leading to a significant payout.
Reversed provisions were used for the purpose for which they were intended.
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A16. Other financial liabilities
Change in other financial liabilities
2013

Increase Decrease Changes Transfers
in scope

Conversion
gains and
losses

2014

in € thousand
179,663

49,641

-6,805

-

-4,481

157

218,175

Bank overdrafts

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Accrued interests not yet matured

-

2,247

-

-

-

-

2,247

6,174

841

-

-

-992

-101

5,922

5

18

-

-

-18

-

5

137

1,135

-

-

-

-

1,272

Loans

Debt relating to leasing contracts
Employee profit sharing
Currency and interest rate derivatives

-

53

-

-

-

-

53

185,979

53,935

-6,805

-

-5,491

56

227,674

22,570

331,356

-24,130

-

4,481

1,359

335,636

4,525

3,237

-

-

-

83

7,845

26

-

-1

-

-

-

25

2,211

1,484

-2,624

-

1,616

-19

2,668

Employee profit sharing

503

-

-194

-

18

7

334

Currency and interest rate derivatives

308

-

755

-

-

-

1,063

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

30,143

336,077

-26,194

-

6,115

1,430

347,571

216,122

390,012

-32,999

-

624

1,486

575,245

Other
Other non-current financial liabilities
Loans
Bank overdrafts
Accrued interests not yet matured
Debt relating to leasing contracts

Other
Other current financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities

In 2014, a new current bank financing contract was agreed for a sum of €20 million and a period of seven years.
Virbac obtained pre-financing for the tax credit on low salaries for 2013 and 2014 in the amount of €1.9 million for one year.
However, the increase in other financial liabilities primarily corresponds mainly to the establishment of financing for
the acquisition of a range of parasiticides from Eli Lilly and Company in the United States. To that end, a
€320 million bridge loan was agreed and put in place in December 2014 for a maximum term of one year.
As at December 31, $350 million had been drawn down on that loan.
As regards the loans in the initial amount of €20 million, the last €4.5 million instalment was repaid this year.

Other financial liabilities classified according to their maturity
As at December 31, 2014
Payments
in € thousand
Loans
Bank overdrafts
Accrued interests not yet matured
Debt relating to leasing contracts
Employee profit sharing
Currency and interest rate derivatives
Other
Other financial liabilities

less than 1 year
335,636

Total

from 1 to 5 years more than 5 years
218,175

-

553,811

7,845

-

-

7,845

25

2,247

-

2,272

2,668

5,922

-

8,590

334

5

-

339

1,063

1,272

-

2,335

-

53

-

53

347,571

227,674

-

575,245
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As at December 31, 2013
Payments
less than 1 year

in € thousand
Loans
Bank overdrafts

from 1 to 5 years more than 5 years

22,570

179,663

-

202,233

4,525

-

-

4,525

26

-

-

26

2,211

6,174

-

8,385

Accrued interests not yet matured
Debt relating to leasing contracts

Total

Employee profit sharing

503

5

-

508

Currency and interest rate derivatives

308

137

-

445

-

-

-

-

30,143

185,979

-

216,122

Other
Other financial liabilities

A17. Other payables
2013

Variations

Changes
in scope

Transfers

Conversion
gains
and losses

2014

-

-

-

-

-

-

in € thousand
Income tax payables
Social payables

-

-

-

-

-

-

Other fiscal payables

-

-

-

-

-

-

Advances and prepayments on orders

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,352

-266

-

-136

134

1,084

Prepaid income

-

-

-

-

-

-

Other non-current payables

1,352

-266

-

-136

134

1,084

Income tax payables

8,004

1,739

-

-

232

9,975

32,065

4,612

-

109

525

37,311

9,212

2,463

-

-

183

11,858

Various other payables

Social payables
Other fiscal payables

299

-2

-

-

23

320

1,269

-426

-

-

35

878

85,416

-19,545

-

-281

1,019

66,609

Other current payables

136,265

-11,159

-

-172

2,017

126,951

Other payables

137,617

-11,425

-

-308

2,151

128,035

Advances and prepayments on orders
Prepaid income
Various other payables

During the financial year, the “Various other payables” line shrank after the repayment of the majority of the share
payables linked to the acquisition of Centrovet, as well as payment of the price supplement on the acquisition of
Birch/Axon shares payable in 2014 (for a total of €23,512 thousand).
Debt for year-end rebates came to a total of €42,419 thousand.

A18. Trade payables
2013

Variations

Changes
in scope

Transfers

Conversion
gains and losses

2014

77,651

3,638

-

-345

2,031

82,975

in € thousand
Current trade payables
Payables of intangible assets
Payables of tangible assets
Trade payables

172

38

-

-

-

1

39

106

-82

-

-

1

25

77,795

3,556

-

-345

2,033

83,039
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The increase in this line is primarily the result of an increase in business. The impact of exchange rates added
€2.0 million.

A19. Revenue from ordinary activities
2014

2013

Cha nge

850,830

808,060

5.3%

Services

4,449

298

1393.5%

Additional income from activity

3,148

2,776

13.4%

in € thousand
Sales of finished goods and merchandise

109

369

-70.5%

858,536

811,503

5.8%

Discounts, rebates and refunds on sales

-68,811

-61,786

11.4%

Expenses deducted from sales

-12,437

-10,190

22.1%

-3,774

-3,111

21.3%

-399

-337

18.4%

Expenses deducted from sales

-85,420

-75,424

13.3%

Revenue from ordinary activities

773,116

736,080

5.0%

2014

2013

Cha nge

-233,796

-222,080

5.3%

-24,799

-21,187

17.0%

-1,994

-1,869

6.7%

69

63

9.6%

-260,520

-245,073

6.3%

Change in gross inventories

14,903

13,139

13.4%

Allowances for depreciation of inventories

-4,571

-5,282

-13.5%

Royalties paid
Gross sales

Financial discounts
Provision for returns

A20. Purchases consumed
in € thousand
Inventoried purchases
Non-inventoried purchases
Supplementary charges on purchases
Discounts, rebates and refunds obtained
Purchases

Reversals of depreciation of inventories
Net variation in inventories
Purchases consumed

5,581

5,800

-3.8%

15,914

13,657

16.5%

-244,606

-231,416

5.7%

A21. External costs
Within this item, the research and development costs recorded during the 2014 financial year totalled
€11,513 thousand, compared with €13,854 thousand during the 2013 financial year.
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Operating lease agreements
Rents for the
period

Minimum future lease payments as per contracts
less than 1
year

from 1 to 3
years

from 3 to 5
years

more than 5
years

-10

-10

-30

-20

-50

Buildings

-3,405

-3,039

-4,025

-1,865

-1,088

Industrial equipment

-1,961

-264

-271

-89

-34

IT equipment

-1,290

-60

-2

-

-

-309

-284

-426

-156

-13

-3,564

-1,800

-2,597

-1,278

-30

-10,539

-5,457

-7,351

-3,408

-1,215

in € thousand
Land

Office equipment and furniture
Transport equipment
Lease payments

A22. Depreciation, impairment and provisions
2014

2013

Cha nge

-10,287

-11,225

-8.4%

Allowances for impairment of intangible assets

-293

-396

-26.0%

Allowances for depreciation of tangible assets

-19,166

-16,472

16.4%

-779

-967

-19.4%

-

-

-

Reversals of impairment of intangible assets

94

313

-70.0%

Reversals of depreciation of tangible assets

-

-

-

in € thousand
Allowances for depreciation of intangible assets

Allowances for impairment of tangible assets
Reversals of depreciation of intangible assets

705

860

-18.0%

-29,726

-27,887

6.6%

Allowances of provisions for risks and charges

-2,768

-1,383

100.1%

Reversals of provisions for risks and charges

1,104

1,533

-28.0%

-1,664

150

-1209.3%

-31,390

-27,737

13.2%

Reversals of impairment of tangible assets
Depreciation and impairment

Provisions
Impairment and provisions

Allowances for the depreciation of tangible fixed assets increased mechanically compared to 2013 due to the
commissioning of new sites and facilities: at the Carros site in France, the St. Louis site in the United States, and in
Chile and Mexico.

A23. Other operating income and expenses
2014

2013

Cha nge

-5,838

-6,091

-4.1%

7,658

8,053

-4.9%

-357

-754

-52.6%

290

445

-34.9%

Bad debts

-275

-189

45.7%

Net book value on disposed assets

in € thousand
Royalties paid
Grants received (including research tax credit)
Allowances for depreciation of receivables
Reversals of depreciation of receivables

-679

-755

-10.0%

Income from disposals of assets

410

393

4.4%

Other operating income and expenses

783

-3,076

-125.5%

1,992

-1,974

-200.9%

Other current income and expenses
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The amount of research tax credit posted as subsidies for the financial year ending December 31, 2014 was €7,312 thousand.

A24. Other non-current income and expenses
As at December 31, 2014, this item included the following elements:

2014

in € thousand
Revaluation impact of debt on Holding Salud Animal shares

31

Other non-current income and expenses

31

As at December 31, 2013, this item included the following elements:

2013

in € thousand
Net result arising from the change of control in Santa Elena

1,755

Revaluation of inventories acquired in Uruguay (purchase accounting method)

-817

Additional impact of revaluation of inventories acquired in Chile (purchase accounting method)

-1,757

Other non-current income and expenses

-819

A25. Financial income and expenses
2014

2013

Cha nge

-7,758

-6,906

12.3%

1,949

1,613

20.8%

-5,809

-5,293

9.7%

-892

-11,476

-92.2%

-1,535

8,119

-118.9%

Other financial charges

-183

-124

47.6%

Other financial income

272

289

-5.9%

Other financial income and expenses

-2,338

-3,192

-26.8%

Financial income and expenses

-8,147

-8,485

-4.0%

in € thousand
Gross cost of financial debt
Income from cash and cash equivalents
Net cost of financial debt
Foreign exchange gains and losses
Changes in foreign currency derivatives and interest rate

The net cost of financial debt increased from €5.3 million to €5.8 million. This increase was essentially the result of
financing drawn down by the parent company (credit lines and new loans taken out to finance acquisitions and
investments in France, Mexico and Chile in particular).
The impact of the revaluation of financial instruments, as per IAS 32 and 39, generated a net expense of
€1,535 thousand for the financial year 2014, nearly all of the impact stemming from exchange instruments.
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A26. Income tax
2013

2014
in € thousand
Profit before tax
Adjustment for tax credits

Base

Base

100,915

95,584

-7,312

-7,800

-

-

93,603

87,784

Adjustment of non-recurring items (including tax)
Profit before tax, after adjustments

Tax

Tax

Current tax for French companies

-756

-708

Current tax for foreign companies

-27,528

-26,369

-28,284

-27,077

Deferred tax for French companies

-456

-1,266

Deferred tax for foreign companies

-403

2,617

-859

1,351

-29,143

-25,726

Effective tax rate

31.13%

29.31%

Theoretical tax rate

34.43%

34.43%

-32,228

-30,224

-3,085

-4,498

Current tax

Deferred tax
Tax accounted for

Theoretical tax
Difference between theoretical tax and recorded tax

The theoretical tax rate used by the Group corresponds to the tax rate in force in France. This rate does not include
the additional contribution of 2.77%.
However, to calculate deferred taxes on short-term items, the Group used a rate of 38% to take into account the
increase in the additional contribution. The impact of the increase in this contribution is a €857 thousand rise in
deferred tax assets.
The difference between theoretical tax and recorded tax as at December 31, 2014 is mainly explained by the
difference in foreign tax rates in the amount of €3,622 thousand.
The increase in the effective tax rate between 2013 and 2014 is mainly the product of a rise in the tax rates
applicable in certain countries (Mexico, Chile and New Zealand) and of the greater weight than in 2013 of countries
with higher tax rates.

A27. Result per share
2014

2013

€63,596,097

€60,522,294

8,458,000

8,458,000

-

-

28,045

30,453

8,429,955

8,427,547

Profit attributable to the owners of the parent company, per share

€7.54

€7.18

Profit attributable to the owners of the parent company, diluted per share

€7.54

€7.18

Profit attributable to the owners of the parent company
Total number of shares
Impact of dilutive instruments
Number of treasury shares
Outstanding shares
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A28. Operating segments
In accordance with IFRS 8, the Group provides industry information as used internally by the chief operating officer.
The level of the Group's segment information is the geographic sector. The breakdown by geographic area covers
seven sectors according to the place of establishment of Group assets:
• France;
• Europe (excluding France);
• Latin America;
• North America;
• Asia;
• Pacific;
• Africa & Middle East.
The Group's operating activities are organised and managed separately according to the nature of the markets.
The two market segments are companion animals and food producing animals but the latter is not considered as an
industry information level for the reasons listed below:
• nature of the products: the majority of the therapeutic segments are common to companion and food
producing animals (antibiotics, parasiticides, etc.),
• manufacturing procedures: the production chains are common to both segments and there is no significant
difference in sources of supply,
• client type or category: the distinction is made between the ethical (veterinary) and OTC (Over the counter) sectors,
• internal organisation: the management structures in the Virbac group are organised by geographic zone. At
Group level, there is no management structure based on market segments.
• distribution methods: the main distribution channels depend more on the country than the market segment.
In certain cases, the sales capacities can be common to both market segments.
• nature of the regulatory environment: the regulatory bodies governing market authorisations are identical
regardless of the segment.
In the information presented below, the sectors therefore correspond to geographic zones (areas where the Group's
assets are located). The results for France include the Group’s head office expenses and a substantial proportion of
its research and development expenses.

As at December 31, 2014
France
in € thousand

Europe
Latin
North
(excluding America America
France)

Asia

Pacific Africa &
Middle
East

Total

140,823

193,194

138,190

103,587

94,460

80,880

21,982

773,116

Operating income

16,946

11,567

29,729

20,199

12,762

13,930

3,929

109,062

Profit attributable to the owners of the
parent company

14,085

8,257

8,470

12,731

8,354

9,644

2,055

63,596

0

-

6,936

-

-

-

-

6,937

14,085

8,257

15,406

12,731

8,354

9,644

2,055

70,533

Revenue from ordinary activities

Non-controlling interests
Consolidated profit

Non-controlling interests correspond mainly to the contribution from the Chilean entities (HSA group), in which
Virbac holds a 51% interest.

As at December 31, 2013
France
in € thousand
Revenue from ordinary activities
Operating income
Profit attributable to the owners of the
parent company
Non-controlling interests
Consolidated profit

Europe
Latin
North
(excluding America America
France)

Asia

Pacific Africa &
Middle
East

Total

134,291

178,983

134,027

101,441

86,336

79,356

21,646

736,080

8,939

15,041

30,316

23,766

10,346

11,938

3,723

104,069

12,737

10,640

4,942

15,326

5,482

7,814

3,582

60,523

2

-

8,484

-

-

-

-

8,486

12,739

10,640

13,426

15,326

5,482

7,814

3,582

69,009
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A29. Financial assets and liabilities
Breakdown of assets and liabilities measured at fair value

In accordance with IFRS 7, Financial instruments - Disclosures, measurements at fair value of financial assets and
liabilities must be classified according to a hierarchy which comprises the following levels:
• level 1: the fair value is based on (unadjusted) quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities,
• level 2: the fair value is based on inputs other than the quoted prices mentioned in level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability concerned, directly or indirectly,
• level 3: the fair value is based on inputs relating to the asset or liability which are not based on observable
market data, but on internal data.
For financial asset and liability derivatives recognised at fair value, the Group uses measurement techniques
involving observable market data, particularly for interest rate swaps, forward purchases and sales, or foreign
currency options. The model incorporates various inputs such as the spot and forward exchange rates or the interest
rate curve.

Financial assets

The various categories of financial assets are as follows:

As at December 31, 2014

in € thousand

Assets
Loans
Financial
Financial
available
and assets at fair assets at fair
for sale receivables value through value through
income
equity

Total

Fair
value
hierarchy

Non-current derivative financial instruments

-

-

7,864

-

7,864

2

Other non-current financial assets

-

6,527

-

-

6,527

-

Trade receivables

-

141,966

-

-

141,966

-

Other receivables*

-

52,575

-

-

52,575

-

Current derivative financial instruments

-

-

249

729

978

2

Other current financial assets

-

2,784

-

-

2,784

-

Cash and cash equivalents

-

21,863

354,049

-

375,912

1

Financial assets

-

225,715

362,162

729

588,606

* excluding prepaid expenses and income tax receivables.

As at December 31, 2013

in € thousand

Assets
Loans
Financial
Financial
available
and assets at fair assets at fair
for sale receivables value through value through
income
equity

Total

Fair
value
hierarchy

Non-current derivative financial instruments

-

-

7,653

-

7,653

2

Other non-current financial assets

-

4,625

-

-

4,625

-

Trade receivables

-

118,627

-

-

118,627

-

Other receivables*

-

38,397

-

-

38,397

-

Current derivative financial instruments

-

-

735

-

735

2

Other current financial assets

-

3,045

-

-

3,045

-

Cash and cash equivalents

-

20,844

14,127

-

34,971

1

Financial assets

-

185,539

22,515

-

208,054

* excluding prepaid expenses and income tax receivables.
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Assets available for sale
This asset category notably includes unconsolidated equity interests and marketable securities that do not satisfy
any of the other financial asset definitions. The unrealised gains and losses recognised in this asset class are
recognised in shareholders' equity until disposal.
At the end of 2014, Virbac had no assets in this category.
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets, of determined or determinable payments, which are not
listed. The elements in this category are described below.

§

Loans and other financial receivables
These are mainly security deposits and other advance rental payments, escrow accounts, as well as loans granted
(notably to personnel).

§

Trade receivables
These are recognised at the initial amount of the invoice, minus provisions for impairment.

§

Current receivables
These are mainly receivables vis-à-vis tax (excluding corporation tax) and social security authorities, as well as
advances and prepayments on orders.

§

Cash and cash equivalents
These are mainly bank account deposits and cash on hand.
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss account
Financial assets recognised at fair value through the profit or loss account include interest rate and exchange rate
instruments that Virbac has elected not to classify as hedging, changes to which are immediately recognised in income.
This category also includes marketable securities acquired by Virbac for sale or redemption in the short term. They
are measured at fair value at the balance sheet date, and any fair value changes are recognised in income. The fair
values of marketable securities are mainly determined with reference to the market price (buying or selling price as
applicable).
Assets held to maturity
These are financial assets, other than loans and receivables, having a fixed maturity and for which payments are
determined or determinable. Virbac does not hold any securities that meet the definition of held-to-maturity
investments.

Financial liabilities

The different categories of financial liabilities are the following:

As at December 31, 2014
Loans
and
debts

Financial
liabilities at fair
value through
income

-

-

in € thousand
Non-current derivative financial instruments
Other non-current financial liabilities

Financial
liabilities at fair
value through
equity

Total

1,272

1,272

Fair
value
hierarchy

2

226,402

-

-

226,402

-

Trade payables

83,039

-

-

83,039

-

Other payables*

116,098

-

-

116,098

-

-

803

260

1,063

2

7,845

25

-

7,871

2

338,638

-

-

338,638

-

772,022

828

1,532

774,382

Current derivative financial instruments
Bank overdrafts and accrued interests not
yet matured
Other current financial liabilities
Financial liabilities

* excluding prepaid income and income tax debt.
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As at December 31, 2013
Loans
and
debts

Financial
liabilities at fair
value through
income

-

-

137

137

2

185,842

-

-

185,842

-

Trade payables

77,795

-

-

77,795

-

Other payables*

126,992

-

-

126,992

-

-

308

-

308

2

4,525

26

-

4,552

2

25,284

-

-

25,284

-

420,438

334

137

420,909

in € thousand
Non-current derivative financial instruments
Other non-current financial liabilities

Current derivative financial instruments
Bank overdrafts and accrued interests not
yet matured
Other current financial liabilities
Financial liabilities

Financial
liabilities at fair
value through
equity

Total

Fair
value
hierarchy

* excluding prepaid income and income tax debt.
At December 31, 2014, the gross cost of financial debt amounted to €7,758 thousand. At December 31, 2013, it was
€6,906 thousand.

A30. Risk management associated with financial assets and liabilities
The Group holds derivative financial instruments solely for the purpose of reducing its exposure to rate or exchange
risks on balance sheet items and its firm or highly probable commitments.
As regards cash flow hedging, it is anticipated that cash flows will occur and impact profit during the course of 2015.

Credit risk

As at December 31, 2014, the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk was €141,966 thousand, which represents
the trade receivables as presented in the Group’s consolidated accounts.
The risk on sales between Group companies is not material, to the extent that Virbac ensures that its subsidiaries
have the necessary financial structure to honour their debts.
As regards third-party receivables, the Group considers the counterparty risk to be immaterial given the strength of
the main counterparties and the major geographic dispersal of its client base throughout the world. The Group's
companies have implemented a mechanism for monitoring debts paid, allowing them to limit the amount of bad
debts. Moreover, the Group has established a framework agreement with Coface allowing any subsidiaries - who
need to do so - to hedge their credit risk locally.
The following statements provide a breakdown of trade receivables:

As at December 31, 2014

Receivables
due

Receivables overdue for

Impaired

Total

-

208

28,501

< 3 months 3-6 months 6-12 months > 12 months

in € thousand
France

27,856

389

Europe (excluding France)

26,071

3,428

134

120

55

2,064

31,872

Latin America

32,743

7,642

1,833

1,801

116

1,173

45,308

North America

15,308

-

-

-

-

1

15,309

8,239

105

-

16

-

194

8,554

13,559

85

84

-

-

9

13,737

2,221

113

-

-

-

5

2,339

125,997

11,762

2,099

1,937
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3,654

145,620

Asia
Pacific
Africa & Middle East
Trade receivables
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As at December 31, 2013

Receivables
due

Receivables overdue for

-

-

214

19,874

74

76

-

2,003

29,247

249

585

-

982

46,504

-

-

-

42

5,879

210

3

-

-

308

7,761

10,421

19

-

-

-

3

10,443

2,429

42

-

-

-

4

2,475

106,423

11,205

338

661

-

3,556

122,183

France

19,100

Europe (excluding France)

26,417

677

Latin America

35,074

9,614

North America

5,742

95

Asia

7,240

Africa & Middle East
Trade receivables

Total

< 3 months 3-6 months 6-12 months > 12 months

in € thousand

Pacific

Impaired

548

12

Receivables due and not settled are periodically analysed and classified as bad debts, whenever the risk that the
receivable will not be fully recovered appears. The amount of the provision funded at the balance sheet date is
defined based on the age of the receivable and, as the case may be, criteria regarding the debtors.
Bad debts are written off when identified as such.

Counterparty risk

As regards other financial assets and particularly liquid assets, the cash surpluses of Group subsidiaries are pooled
by the parent company, which is in charge of managing them centrally, in the form of short-term interest-bearing
deposits. The Group only works with leading banking counterparties.

Liquidity risk

The policy of pooling excess cash and financing requirements in all regions means that the Group's net positions can
be reduced and that the management of its deposits and financings is optimised, thereby ensuring that the Group
has the ability to meet its financial commitments and to maintain a level of cash and cash equivalents in accordance
with its size and requirements.
Virbac also uses floating-rate credit lines in the amount of €297 million.
The €220 million credit line set up in July 2010 with a pool of banks, to be repaid in 2016, was the subject of a waiver
granted unanimously by the banks concerning non-compliance with any covenants, which will result from acquisition of
the SENTINEL line in the United States.
In 2014, a new current bank financing contract was agreed for a sum of €20 million and a period of seven years.
Further, in order to finance the acquisition of SENTINEL in the United States, a €320 million bridge loan was agreed
for a maximum term of one year. The Group is now working with a pool of banks to set up global refinancing for the
medium to long term, which will replace the existing lines and the bridge loan.

Market risks
Exchange risk
Virbac carries out transactions in currencies other than the euro (its reference currency). The exchange rate risk is
monitored using a client risk summary from the IT system (ERP). The items are updated based on ad hoc reports.
The majority of the Group's exchange risk is centralised on the parent company, which invoices subsidiaries in their
local currency. In the case of sales to countries with exotic currencies, the invoices are denominated in euros or
American dollars.
Taking into account the purchases and sales in other currencies, the Group is exposed to exchange rate risks mainly
for the following currencies: American dollar, pound sterling, Swiss franc and various currencies in Asia, the Pacific
and Latin America.
Given the Group's exchange rate risk exposure, currency fluctuations have a significant impact on its income
statement both in terms of conversion risk and transaction risk.
In order to protect itself against adverse movements in the various currencies in which its sales, purchases and
certain specific transactions are denominated, Virbac uses foreign exchange forwards almost systematically to hedge
its exchange rate risk exposure.
The Group hedges the majority of its significant and certain exchange positions (loans, debts, dividends, intra-group
loans), a portion of its estimated positions, as well as its future sales and purchases.
Derivative financial exchange instruments are presented below, at market value:
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2014

2013

Fair value hedges

-

-

Cash flow hedges

468

109

-

-

Derivatives not qualifying for hedges

-553

318

Derivative financial exchange instruments

-85

427

in € thousand

Net investment hedges

The Group's policy is to hedge exchange rate risks when the size and risk of currency fluctuation are significant.
Accordingly, it uses various instruments available on the market and generally employs foreign exchange forwards
or options.
The derivative instruments held at closure do not all qualify for hedging in the consolidated accounts. In such a case,
value variations directly impact the income for the period.
Interest rate risk
The exposure to rate risks for the Virbac Group mainly results from the floating-rate credit lines implemented for a
maximum amount of €601 million. This facility is indexed on the Euribor.
The local loan in Australia to finance the acquisition in 2010 of the assets sold by Pfizer is indexed on the BBSY
(Bank bill swap bid rate).
The local loan in Colombia to finance the acquisition of the Synthesis assets is indexed on the DTF (Depositos
termino fijo).
The local loan in Mexico to finance the construction of new facilities is indexed on the TIIE (Tasa de interes
interbancaria de equilibrio).
The current amount on the credit lines is the following:

2014

in € thousand
Brazil

2013

Average real
interest rate

Book
value

Average real
interest rate

Book
value

15.396%

2,603

3.709%

2,141

New Zealand

4.906%

4,951

4.831%

4,865

Chile

1.404%

17,089

2.790%

7,523

Mexico

7.330%

2,696

7.330%

2,767

Uruguay

5.582%

790

6.556%

1,038

Colombia

9.165%

1,428

11.000%

1,558

-

13,728

-

4,296

Other
Fixed rate debt

43,285

24,188

France

1.054%

493,226

1.013%

160,500

Mexico

5.421%

7,465

5.523%

4,453

Uruguay

5.180%

2,483

4.825%

2,165

Colombia

6.922%

2,856

8.340%

3,794

Australia

3.800%

6,744

3.709%

Variable rate debt
Bank overdrafts
Loans and bank overdrafts*
* excluding debt relating to the capital leasing contracts.
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7,132

512,774

178,044

7,845

4,526

563,903

206,758
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Interest rate derivatives are shown below, at market value:

2014

2013

Fair value hedges

-

-

Cash flow hedges

-346

-137

-

-

Derivatives not qualifying for hedges

6,938

7,653

Derivative financial rate instruments

6,592

7,516

in € thousand

Net investment hedges

To manage these risks and optimise the cost of its debt, the Group follows market rate anticipations and can
implement interest rate swaps (fixed rate) not exceeding the duration and amount of actual commitments. As at
December 31, 2014, the swap rates are considered hedging instruments, but not the cross currency swaps.
Specific impacts from hedging exchange and interest rate risks
The exchange rate derivatives used for cash flow hedging generally mature within a year.
The derivative financial interest rate instruments are used to hedge the credit lines or loans and therefore have a
maturity beyond several years, compatible with the hedged flows.
As at December 31, 2014, the unrealised exchange gains and losses in equity for the period showed a €64 thousand
gain. The ineffective share of this cash flow hedging recorded as revenue was €51 thousand.

Nominal

Positive fair value

Negative fair value

2014

2013

2014

2013

2014

2013

Forward exchange contract

44,127

36,413

703

636

815

195

OTC options exchange

11,415

7,383

275

99

248

112

Cross currency swap

70,143

59,530

6,898

7,653

922

-

125,685

103,326

7,876

8,388

1,985

307

27,000

41,500

-

-

350

137

-

-

-

-

-

-

27,000

41,500

-

-

350

137

152,685

144,826

7,876

8,388

2,335

444

in € thousand

Exchange instruments
Swap rate
Interest rate options
Interest rate instruments
Derivative financial instruments

Supply risks

All the raw materials and certain active ingredients used to manufacture Virbac's products are supplied by third
parties. In certain cases, the Group also uses finishers or industrial partners who have expertise in or are masters in
particular technologies.
As far as possible, Virbac diversifies its sources of supply by referencing numerous suppliers, whilst ensuring that
these different sources embody the sufficient characteristics of quality and loyalty.
Nevertheless, there are certain supplies or certain technology situations where diversification is practically
impossible, which can result in a disruption to the supply or pressure on prices.
To limit these risks, the Group takes a broad approach to identifying as many diversified suppliers as possible, and
may in certain cases secure its supply chain by acquiring the technologies and capacities it lacks and that create too
high a dependency. An example of this was the acquisition of the intellectual property and industrial facilities to
produce the protein used to make the leading cat vaccine.
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A31. Composition of Virbac share capital
2013

Increase

Decrease

2014

Number of authorised shares

8,458,000

-

-

8,458,000

Number of shares issued and fully paid

8,458,000

-

-

8,458,000

-

-

-

-

8,427,547

47,570

-45,162

8,429,955

30,453

-47,570
-

28,045

-

€10,572,500

Number of shares issued and not fully paid
Outstanding shares
Treasury shares
Nominal value of shares

€1.25

45,162
-

Virbac share capital

€10,572,500

-

€1.25

A32. Performance-related stock grant plans
The executive board, in accordance with authorisation from the shareholders' general meeting, granted an allocation
of company shares for certain employees and directors at Virbac and at its subsidiaries.

Fair value of performance-related stock grant plans

In accordance with IFRS 2, these plans are valued in the Virbac consolidated accounts based on the fair value of the
shares allocated on the date of their allocation, that is:
• for the 2011 plan, €1,160,000 corresponding to 10,000 shares at €116.00. This amount has been spread
over a vesting period of 30 months.
• for the 2012 plan, €1,196,000 corresponding to 10,000 shares at €119.60. This amount has been spread
over a vesting period of 30 months.
Because the 2011 plan was not paid out, the provision staggered over the vesting period was reversed in 2014.
An option to extend the 2012 plan by two years is currently being studied. Because the posted expense accrued as
at December 31, 2013 was deemed sufficient regardless of the selected option, no expenses were recorded in the
2014 accounts for this plan.

A33. Dividends
In 2014, the company paid out a dividend of €1.90 per share in respect of the 2013 financial year.
For the 2014 financial year, it will be proposed to the shareholders' general meeting that a net dividend of €1.90 per
nominal share of €1.25 is allocated.

A34. Workforce
Evolution of workforce by geographic area
2014

2013

Cha nge

1,312

1,298

1.1%

Europe (excluding France)

312

334

-6.6%

Latin America

972

927

4.9%

North America

393

365

7.7%

1,050

977

7.5%

Pacific

303

312

-2.9%

Africa & Middle East

136

139

-2.2%

4,478

4,352

2.9%

France

Asia

Workforce
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Distribution of workforce by position
2013

2014
Production
Administration
Commercial
Research & Development
Workforce

1,683

37.6%

1,666

38.3%

487

10.9%

487

11.2%

1,800

40.2%

1,739

40.0%

508

11.3%

460

10.6%

4,478

100.0%

4,352

100.0%

A35. Information relating to individual entitlement to training ('Dif')

DIF hours

Total as at
01/01/2014

Usage

Elimination

Acquisition

Availability as at
31/12/2014

97,993

-3,150

-4,147

15,653

106,349

All requests made concern training within the Group's businesses.

A36. Information on related parties
Compensation of supervisory board members
2014

2013

Compensation

Directors' fees

Compensation

Directors' fees

€95,000

€21,000

€95,000

€21,000

Jeanine Dick

-

€12,000

-

€12,000

Pierre Madelpuech

-

€21,000

-

€21,000

Philippe Capron

-

€24,000

-

€24,000

Olivier Bohuon

-

€21,000

-

€21,000

Grita Loebsack

-

€21,000

-

-

Xavier Yon

-

-

-

-

€95,000

€120,000

€95,000

€99,000

Marie-Hélène Dick

Total

Compensation of executive board members
As at December 31, 2014 - Gross amount due
Fixed compensation Compensation linked to terms
(including benefits of office for administrators in
in kind)
Group companies

Variable
compensation

Total
compensation

Éric Marée

€331,088

€69,000

€198,500

€598,588

Christian Karst

€231,911

€45,000

€109,600

€386,511

Michel Garaudet

€195,098

€12,400

€61,500

€268,998

Sébastien Huron

€216,476

€25,000

€96,000

€337,476

Jean-Pierre Dick

€39,781

-

€16,000

€55,781

€1,014,354

€151,400

€481,600

€1,647,354

Total
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As at December 31, 2013 - Gross amount due
Fixed compensation Compensation linked to terms
(including benefits of office for administrators in
in kind)
Group companies

Variable
compensation

Total
compensation

Éric Marée

€318,088

€70,000

€50,000

€438,088

Pierre Pagès

€213,400

€66,600

€30,000

€310,000

Christian Karst

€211,398

€45,000

€52,000

€308,398

Michel Garaudet

€189,251

€12,900

€15,500

€217,651

Sébastien Huron

€216,476

-

€66,400

€282,876

Jean-Pierre Dick

€38,781

-

€16,000

€54,781

€1,187,394

€194,500

€229,900

€1,611,794

Total

The compensation paid in respect of 2014 corresponds to the fixed compensation paid in 2014, the compensation
linked to terms of office for directors in Group companies paid in 2014, the variable compensation paid in 2015 in
respect of 2014 and the benefits in kind granted in 2014 (company car).
Calculation criteria for the variable portion
Each member of the executive board has a variable compensation target which is a percentage of his/her fixed
compensation.
The variable compensation for the executive board is based on the following objectives:
• sales growth;
• growth in operating profit from ordinary activities, as well as specific goals;
• inventory control;
• significant acquisitions, for the Group, of companies or products (in terms of size, financial contribution,
strategic importance).
Other benefits
In addition to the various compensation items, executive board members enjoy the benefits described below.

§

Retirement
A supplementary defined benefit pension plan (12.5% of reference salary and 22% in the event of over 30 years of
service) granted on the following terms:
• over ten years service in the Group (including nine years as a member of the executive board);
• at least 60 years old;
• finished his/her career in the Group.
The increase in the provision for defined-contribution pension schemes was €936 thousand in 2014, of which
€394 thousand was recognised in income and -€1,330 thousand in other comprehensive income.

§

Severance pay
The commitments made by the company and the companies it controls to its executives in the event of dismissal are
as follows:
• Éric Marée: €483,000;
• Christian Karst: €326,000.
On December 17, 2014 the supervisory board reappointed the executive board members for a three-year term. In
line with the provisions of the act of August 21, 2007, the supervisory board, at its March 13, 2015 meeting,
renewed the commitments made by the company and the companies it controls in the event of the termination of
the offices of the chairman of the executive board, Éric Marée, and of Christian Karst, executive board member and
general manager.
These commitments were approved by the shareholders' meeting of June 18, 2012 and, in accordance with the
Afep-Medef recommendations, they follow the same terms and conditions as set by the supervisory board on
December 22, 2008, namely: the severance pay shall only be payable in the event of dismissal, on the company's
initiative. They will not be paid in the event of resignation, retirement or gross misconduct by the corporate officers
concerned.
The fulfilment of the severance pay performance criteria is assessed over the two half-year periods that precede the
director’s departure, and not a minimum of two years, as advocated in the Code. However, the amount of this
severance pay is substantially lower than the limit of two years of compensation provided under the Code and the
performance criteria are demanding (current operating income to revenue ratio equal to or higher than 7%).
Pursuant to the law and due to the reappointment of the executive board members, a resolution for each of the
beneficiaries will be submitted to a vote at the next ordinary shareholders’ meeting, in order to approve the
continuation of the commitments made to them by the company.
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Performance-related stock grant plans
§Since
2006, the Virbac executive board, in accordance with authorisation from the shareholders' meeting, has

allocated stock grants to certain Virbac employees and directors and those of its subsidiaries.
These allocations are subject to meeting a performance target linked to the profitability and net debt of the Group,
to be found at the end of the 2008 to 2014 financial years.
The performance-related stock grants awarded under the 2012 plan amount to 10,000 shares.
Throughout 2013 and 2014 no performance-related stock grants were allocated.
The performance-related stock granted to executive board members under the 2012 plan was as follows:

Number of shares
2012 plan
Éric Marée

1,130

Pierre Pagès

850

Christian Karst

820

Michel Garaudet

510

Sébastien Huron

520

Total

3,830

Partnership

A sporting sponsorship agreement was signed between the Absolute Dreamer company, of which Jean-Pierre Dick is
manager, and Virbac, where Jean-Pierre Dick is a member of the executive board.
This partnership is aimed at making a financial contribution to a sailboat participating in various open sea races.
An amount of €0.8 million was accounted for in expenses in the 2014 financial year as part of this contract.

A37. Off-balance sheet commitments
Off-balance sheet commitments correspond to deposits and guarantees given by Virbac or certain subsidiaries
thereof. A statement of the main deposits and guarantees is presented below.

in € thousand
PP Manufacturing Corporation
Virbac Uruguay
Virbac RSA
Guarantees given

Guarantee provided with

Validity limit date

2014

2013

NDNE 9/90 Corporate Center LLC

30/09/2020

2,574

2,632

Banco de la Republica Oriental del Uruguay

-

4,799

-

Nedbank

Annual renewal

214

-

7,587

2,632
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A38. Scope of consolidation
Company name

Locality

2014

2013

Control Consolidation

Control Consolidation

Country

France
Virbac (parent company)

Carros

France 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Interlab

Carros

France 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Virbac France

Carros

France 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Virbac Distribution

Wissous

France 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Virbac Nutrition

Vauvert

France 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

La Seyne sur Mer

France 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Carros

France

99.70%

Full

99.70%

Full

Wavre

Belgium 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Virbac Nederland BV *

Barneveld

Netherlands 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Virbac (Switzerland) AG

Glattbrugg

Switzerland 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Bury St. Edmunds United Kingdom 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Bio Véto Test
Alfamed
Europe (excluding France)
Virbac Belgium SA

Virbac Ltd
Virbac SRL

Milan

Italy 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Kolding

Denmark 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Virbac Pharma Handelsgesellshaft mbH

Bad Oldesloe

Germany 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Virbac Tierarzneimittel GmbH

Bad Oldesloe

Germany 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Warsaw

Poland 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Virbac Hellas SA

Agios Stefanos

Greece 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Animedica SA

Agios Stefanos

Greece 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Barcelona

Spain 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Vienna

Austria 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Almerim

Portugal 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

23.99%

Equity method

23.99%

Equity method

Fort Worth

United States 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Framingham

United States 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Virbac Danmark A/S

Virbac SP zoo

Virbac España SA
Virbac Österreich GmbH
Virbac de Portugal Laboratorios Lda
Vetz GmbH

Hanover

Germany

North America
Virbac Corporation *
PP Manufacturing Corporation
* Pre-consolidated levels
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Company name

Locality

2014

2013

Control Consolidation

Control Consolidation

Country

Latin America
Virbac do Brasil Industria e Comercio Ltda

São Paulo

Brazil 100,00%

Full

100,00%

Full

Virbac Mexico SA de CV

Guadalajara

Mexico 100,00%

Full

100,00%

Full

Laboratorios Virbac Mexico SA de CV

Guadalajara

Mexico 100,00%

Full

100,00%

Full

Inmobiliara Virbac Mexico SA de CV

Guadalajara

Mexico 100,00%

Full

100,00%

Full

Virbac Colombia Ltda

Bogota

Colombia 100,00%

Full

100,00%

Full

Laboratorios Virbac Costa Rica SA

San José

Costa Rica 100,00%

Full

100,00%

Full

Virbac Chile SpA

Santiago

Chile 100,00%

Full

100,00%

Full

Virbac Patagonia Ltda

Santiago

Chile 100,00%

Full

100,00%

Full

Holding Salud Animal SA

Santiago

Chile

51,00%

Full

51,00%

Full

Centro Veterinario y Agricola Limitada

Santiago

Chile

51,00%

Full

51,00%

Full

Farquimica SpA

Santiago

Chile

51,00%

Full

51,00%

Full

Bioanimal Corp SpA

Santiago

Chile

51,00%

Full

51,00%

Full

Productos Quimico Ehlinger
Centrovet Inc
Centrovet Argentina

Santiago

Chile

51,00%

Full

51,00%

Full

Allegheny

United States

51,00%

Full

51,00%

Full
Full

Buenos Aires

Argentina

51,00%

Full

51,00%

Inversiones HSA Ltda

Santiago

Chile

51,00%

Full

-%

-

Rentista de capitales Takumi Ltda

Santiago

Chile

51,00%

Full

-%

-

Montevideo

Uruguay

99,17%

Full

99,17%

Full

Shanghai

China 100,00%

Full

100,00%

Full

Virbac H.K. Trading Limited

Hong Kong

Hong Kong 100,00%

Full

100,00%

Full

Asia Pharma Ltd

Hong Kong

Hong Kong 100,00%

Full

-%

Seoul

South Korea 100,00%

Full

100,00%

Full

Virbac Uruguay SA **
Asia
Virbac Trading (Shanghai) Co. Ltd

Virbac Korea Co. Ltd
Virbac (Thailand) Co. Ltd

-

Bangkok

Thailand 100,00%

Full

100,00%

Full

Virbac Taiwan Co. Ltd

Taipei

Taiwan 100,00%

Full

100,00%

Full

Virbac Philippines Inc.

Taguig City

Philippines 100,00%

Full

100,00%

Full

Virbac Japan Co. Ltd

Osaka

Japan 100,00%

Full

100,00%

Full

Bangkok

Thaïland 100,00%

Full

100,00%

Full

Ho Chi Minh Ville

Vietnam 100,00%

Full

100,00%

Full

Mumbai

India 100,00%

Full

100,00%

Full

49,00%

Equity method

49,00%

Equity method

Virbac Asia Pacific Co. Ltd
Virbac Vietnam Co. Ltd
Virbac Animal Health India Private Limited
* Pre-consolidated levels
SBC Virbac Limited *

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Pacific
Virbac (Australia) Pty Ltd *

Milperra

Australia 100,00%

Full

100,00%

Full

Virbac New Zealand Limited

Hamilton

New Zealand 100,00%

Full

100,00%

Full

Centurion

South Africa 100,00%

Full

100,00%

Full

Africa & Middle East
Virbac RSA (Proprietary) Ltd *
* Pre-consolidated levels
** Change of corporation name of Santa Elena
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Statutory auditors’ report on the
consolidated financial statements
Year ended December 31, 2014
For the attention of the Shareholders,
Pursuant to the engagement entrusted to us by your annual general meeting, we hereby report to you for the year
ended December 31, 2014 on:
• the audit of the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Virbac;
• the justification of our assessments; and
• the specific verifications required by law.
The consolidated financial statements have been approved by the executive board. Our role is to express an opinion
on these financial statements, based on our audit.

OPINION ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

We conducted our audit in accordance with professional standards applicable in France; those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, using sample testing techniques or other selection methods,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made, as well as evaluating the overall financial
presentation. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements for the year give a true and fair view of the assets and
liabilities, the financial position and the results achieved by all the persons and entities included in the consolidated
Group, in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union.

JUSTIFICATION OF OUR ASSESSMENTS

In accordance with article L823-9 of the French commercial code relating to the justification of our assessments, we
bring the following matters to your attention.
Goodwill and intangible assets, the net amounts of which total €142.2 million and €195.3 million, respectively, as of
December 31, 2014, have been subject to impairment tests in accordance with the methods set forth in the
“Goodwill” section of the “Accounting principles and methods” note to the consolidated financial statements. We
have examined the methods used to perform these tests based on value in use and reviewed the consistency of the
assumptions used with forecasts taken from the strategic plans prepared for each of the activities or divisions under
the Group’s control. We have also verified that the “Goodwill” section of the “Accounting principles and methods”
note to the consolidated financial statements provides appropriate disclosure.
These assessments were performed as part of our audit approach for the consolidated financial statements taken as a
whole and therefore contributed to the expression of our opinion in the first part of this report.

SPECIFIC VERIFICATION

In accordance with professional standards applicable in France, we have also verified, pursuant to the law, the
information relating to the Group given in the management report.
We have no matters to report as to its fair presentation and its consistency with the consolidated financial
statements.
Nice and Marseille, March 31, 2015
The statutory auditors,

Novances-David & Associés
Jean-Pierre Giraud
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Deloitte & Associés
Hugues Desgranges
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Balance sheet – Assets
Notes

Gross
amount

Depreciations
and provisions

2014
Net amount

2013
Net amount

Concessions, patents, licences and brands

48 047

23 459

24 588

22 647

Other intangible assets

40 956

29 794

11 162

10 823

89 003

53 253

35 750

33 470

1 790

-

1 790

1 791

Buildings

93 838

50 436

43 402

33 262

Technical facilities, materials and industrial equipment

86 474

47 924

38 550

25 274

4 020

3 177

843

737

in € thousand

Intangible assets

B1

Land

Other tangible assets
Prepayments on assets and assets in progress
Tangible assets

B2

Shares in companies and other receivables
Other long-term securities
Loans
Other financial assets
Financial assets

B3

Total fixed assets

6 214

-

6 214

26 973

192 336

101 537

90 799

88 037

238 373

-

238 373

248 326

-

-

-

-

382 357

-

382 357

82 067

122

-

122

346

620 852

-

620 852

330 739

902 191

154 790

747 401

452 246

Raw materials

24 672

387

24 285

23 043

Work in progress

11 549

1 131

10 418

9 203

Semi-finished and finished goods
Inventories and work in progress

B4

Trade receivables and related accounts
Employee-related receivables
Income tax receivables

10 466

562

9 904

8 170

46 687

2 080

44 607

40 416

76 050

121

75 929

51 511

235

-

235

92

21 481

-

21 481

17 408

Other social and State receivables

5 225

-

5 225

4 586

Other receivables

7 707

7 707

1 219

Current receivables

B5

Advances and prepayment on orders

110 698

121

110 577

74 816

518

-

518

361
5 093

Marketable securities

B6

5 475

-

5 475

Available funds

B7

106

-

106

110

6 099

-

6 099

5 564

4 008

-

4 008

2 799

Cash and cash equivalents
Prepaid expenses
Deferred charges
Unrealised foreign exchange losses
Accruals and other assets
Total assets
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B8

926

-

926

-

3 911

-

3 911

2 395

8 845

-

8 845

5 194

1 074 520

156 991

917 529

578 236
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Balance sheet – Liabilities
Notes

2014

2013

in € thousand
10 573

10 573

Share premium and paid-in capital

Share capital

6 534

6 534

Legal reserve

1 089

1 089

Regulated reserves

36 287

36 287

Other reserves

36 396

36 396

153 231

135 285

Result for the period

Retained earnings

48 203

33 957

Regulated provisions

24 327

19 343

316 640

279 464

Government loans

-

-

Other equity

-

-

Equity

B9

Provisions for contingencies

8 265

7 688

Provisions for foreign exchange losses

2 423

2 395

-

-

10 688

10 083

Provisions for litigations
Provisions for liabilities and charges

B10

Bonds
Bank borrowings
Bank overdrafts - current
Bank overdrafts - other

-

-

499 995

160 500

6 641

6 764

-

-

5 735

10 935

838

44 288

513 209

222 487

Trade payables and related accounts

49 489

43 531

Employee-related payables

11 556

9 750

9 958

8 825

Other borrowings and financial liabilities
Related borrowings and financial liabilities
Financial liabilities

B5 & B11

Social payables
Income tax payables
Value added tax
Other social and State payables
Payables to fixed assets suppliers and related accounts
Other payables
Current liabilities

B5

Prepaid income
Unrealised foreign exchange gains
Accruals and other liabilities
Total liabilities

-

-

533

11

3 492

3 109

23
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295

296

75 346

65 716

-

472

B8

1 646

14

B12

1 646

486

917 529

578 236
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Income statement
Notes

2014

2013

Cha nge

R1

262 987
262 987

232 796
232 796

13,0%

R2

2 308
34
3 882
1 661
7 885

2 462
243
3 016
1 251
6 972

13,1%

R2

-27 001
-59 589
1 303
-71 641
-6 955
-52 056
-25 254
-14 628
-2 109
-1 351
-3 328
-262 609

-22 379
-58 150
4 848
-70 871
-6 625
-47 776
-23 628
-13 223
-2 768
-482
-2 875
-243 929

7,7%

8 263

-4 161

-298,6%

R3

40 727
6 030
2 395
4 118
2
53 272

35 892
6 629
626
2 601
1
45 749

16,4%

R3

-2 423
-5 909
-7 382
-15 714

-2 395
-5 210
-3 432
-11 037

42,4%

Net financial income

37 558

34 712

8,2%

Profit before tax

45 821

30 551

50,0%

Non-recurring income from operations
Non-recurring income from capital transactions
Reversals of provisions and expense transfers
Non-recurring income

R4

320
575
10 854
11 749

560
779
5 413
6 752

74,0%

R4

-5
-6 509
-8 840
-15 354

-280
-2 383
-7 503
-10 166

51,0%

-3 605

-3 414

5,6%

-1 900
7 887

-1 854
8 674

48 203

33 957

in € thousand
Sales of goods and services
Net sales
Production transferred to inventory
Government grants
Reversals of provisions and depreciations, expense transfers
Other operating income
Operating income
Purchases of goods
Purchases of raw materials and other supplies
Change in inventories (raw materials and supplies)
Other purchases and external expenses
Taxes and other contributions
Wages and salaries
Social contributions
Depreciations and provisions of fixed assets
Provisions for current assets
Provisions for risks and charges
Other operating expenses
Operating expenses
Net operating income
Dividends received
Other interest receivable and similar income
Reversals of provisions and expense transfers
Foreign exchange gains
Net income on the disposals of marketable securities
Financial income
Depreciations and provisions
Other interest payable and similar expenses
Foreign exchange losses
Net expenses on the disposals of marketable securities
Financial expenses

Non-recurring expenses from operations
Non-recurring expenses from capital transactions
Depreciations and provisions
Non-recurring expenses
Net non-recurring income
Employee profit-sharing
Income tax
Result for the period
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R5

42,0%
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Statutory cash flow statement
2014

2013

48 203

33 957

Elimination of depreciations and provisions

14 100

18 021

Elimination of gains and losses on disposals

6 296

661

-

1 042

68 599

53 681

in € thousand
Result for the period

Other income and expenses with no cash impact
Cash flow
Effect of net change in inventories
Effect of net change in trade receivables
Effect of net change in trade payables
Effect of net change in other receivables and payables
Effect of change in working capital requirements
Net cash flow generated by operating activities
Acquisitions of intangible assets

-4 191

-6 441

-24 785

-4 108

5 787

7 736

-53 597

-7 109

-76 786

-9 922

-8 187

43 759

-7 472

-3 952

Acquisitions of tangible assets

-12 475

-20 118

Acquisitions of financial assets

-316 414

-35 492

26 450

4 731

-309 911

-54 831

-16 011

-16 049

Increase/decrease in capital

-

-

Merger premium

-

-

Other increases related to merger

-

-

Investment grants

-

-

Disposals of intangible and tangible assets
Net flow allocated to investing activities
Dividends paid to the owners of the parent company

Other equity
Issuance/repayments of debt
Net cash from financing activities
Change in cash position

-

-

330 673

29 380

314 662

13 331

-3 436

2 259

2014

2013

Statement of change in cash position
in € thousand
Opening net cash position

2 375

116

Closing net cash position

-1 061

2 375

-3 436

2 259

Net change in cash position

195

EXCERPT FROM THE NOTES
TO THE STATUTORY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Significant events of the period
In January 2014, the new VB8 building dedicated to the manufacture of sterile and mainly injectable formulations for
ruminants was put into operation. In the context of the reinforcement of pharmaceutical regulations, VB8 is a perfect
illustration of the continuous improvement process introduced by Virbac in the past few years for its quality processes.
In December, in order to finance the acquisition by one of the Group’s companies in the United States of a range of
veterinary products, Virbac negotiated a new credit line of €320 million with the banks; mobilised at up to
$350 million, it enabled the granting of a loan to this sub-subsidiary for an amount equivalent to $350 million.
In 2014, Virbac also acquired the rights attached to the manufacture and marketing of bovine and equine products for
€4 million from its subsidiary Virbac Portugal.
In 2014, the company implemented centralized management of foreign exchange risk for itself and some of its subsidiaries.

Accounting principles and methods
Financial statements for the year ending December 31, 2014 have been drawn up and presented in accordance with
accounting rules, in line with the principles set out by articles 120-1 and seq. of the 2014 General accounting plan. The basic
method used to evaluate the subsequent articles of the 2014 General accounting plan is the historic costs method.
The accounting policies were applied in accordance with the provisions of the French commercial code
(Code de commerce), the accounting decree of November 29, 1983 as well as the 2014-03 regulation of the
accounting standards body ANC (Autorité des normes comptables) regarding the rewriting of the 2014 General
accounting plan at the end of the financial year.

Intangible assets

This sub-heading includes goodwill, market authorisations, patents, licenses acquired by the company as well as
external brand application fees which are recorded and appear as assets in the balance sheet at their original value
as long as these brands are used. These fixed assets are valued at the historic acquisition cost, which corresponds to
the acquisition price and the acquisition costs.
The loan costs associated with the acquisition or the production of the assets are not capitalised. The patents, licenses and
concessions are amortised on a straight-line basis over their economic useful lives when they can be estimated.
The potential impairment of intangible assets is examined at least once a year. A depreciation test is carried out
irrespective of any indication of a loss in value. It combines a fair market value approach (estimate of fair value) and
a future cash flow approach (estimate of value in use). Cash flows are calculated based on estimates that can range
from five to ten years. The discount rate used for these calculations is 7.5% (or 9.5% for emerging markets).
The other intangible assets include, in particular, computer software:
• standard office software is amortised on a straight-line basis, as soon as it is capitalised, over four years,
which corresponds to its economic useful life;
• expenditure items relating to information technology projects that, in addition to license acquisition costs,
include significant consultancy expenditure are recorded as assets as and when they are incurred. These
information technology projects are amortised on a straight-line basis, starting as soon as the information
system is operational.
Research and development costs are fully booked as expenses.
Depreciation period of intangible assets
Brands

non-depreciable

Patents, licenses and know-how

between 10 and 15 years

Market authorisations

between 10 and 15 years

Distribution rights
Softwares

contract duration
4 years

Movex ERP software

between 7 and 14 years

Other intangible assets

between 4 and 10 years
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Tangible assets

Tangible assets are recorded at cost and include acquisition costs. Loan costs associated with the acquisition or the
production of assets are not capitalised.
The company proceeds in the following manner:
• breakdown by components (buildings and fittings);
• breakdown by components of the industrial equipments with a gross value greater than €50,000;
• definition of depreciation schedules according to useful lives.
The depreciation periods applied correspond to the economic useful lives summarized in the table below.
Furthermore, the company continues to use the useful lives defined by the tax authorities and, where possible, applies the
declining balance depreciation method. The differences resulting from the application of specific fiscal depreciation methods
and periods, including the declining balance, are recorded as non-recurring depreciations.
Depreciation period of tangible assets

Buildings

between 10 and 40 years

Facilities

between 10 and 20 years

Equipments

between 5 and 20 years

Other tangible assets

between 4 and 10 years

Financial assets
Shares in company:
Shares in company basically correspond to capital investments in the subsidiaries and are recorded at cost,
excluding incidental expenses. Incidental acquisition costs booked as expenses in the financial year are fiscally
restated and their deduction is spread over five years.
At the end of each financial year, a provision may be made to reflect the depreciation in value of a subsidiary’s
securities. This provision is made according to the securities’ value in the balance sheet and the fair value which
takes into account the following factors:
• share of the subsidiary’s net assets;
• expected cash flows, discounted at 7.5%.
Other financial assets
The loans to subsidiaries are recorded at historic cost. A provision for depreciation is recorded when there is an
objective indication of loss of value, resulting from an event occurring after the asset’s initial recognition.

Operating assets

Inventories of raw materials are stated at the weighted average cost, the acquisition cost including all incidental
acquisition costs.
A provision for depreciation is made when the products have expired or are unusable or if there is a probability that
these products will not be used before their expiry date.
Work in progress and finished products are valued at their actual production cost including direct and indirect
production costs. A provision for depreciation of finished products is applied when the realisable value or the prospects
for sale of these products – assessed according to the market - appear lower than the gross inventory value.
A stock of spare parts is also valued at the closure of the financial year. An impairment loss may be recognized
according to the age of the parts and the probability of use.

Receivables and payables

Receivables and payables are valued at their nominal value. Where applicable, receivables are entered at a loss in value
by means of a provision to reflect any difficulties in recovering outstanding amounts.
Sales are recorded at the time of transfer of ownership, which normally occurs at the time of delivery of the asset.

Marketable securities

Marketable securities are recorded at their acquisition cost. The unrealised gains on portfolio securities are not
recognized in the financial year’s accounting results. A provision for depreciation of the securities is recorded, where
applicable, if their realisable value falls below their acquisition cost.
As regards Undertakings for collective investment in transferable securities (UCITS), the realisable value
corresponds to the market value at the closing date. Own shares are valued at acquisition cost. As regards plans for
the allocation of performance shares, a provision is made for the vesting period.

Available funds

Foreign currency liquidity is converted into euros based on the latest exchange rate, this exchange gains and losses
are included in the results for the financial year.
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Unrealised exchange gains and losses

Unrealised gains and losses are a result of the recognition of payables and receivables in foreign currencies during
the closing day or, where applicable, at the hedging rate.
Unrealised losses result in a provision for exchange losses when the exchange rate has not been definitively hedged
by forward transactions. Unrealised gains do not contribute to the results of the financial year.

Provisions

They are intended to cover known costs and litigation (foreign exchange risks, retirement plans, end-of-career
allowances for staff, commercial disputes) as well as general economic risks that are based on an assessment
(regulatory or fiscal product risks, potential litigations).
Employee benefits

§

Defined contribution retirement plans
The advantages related to defined contribution retirement plans are taken to expenses as incurred.

§

Defined benefit retirement plans
The Group’s liabilities arising from defined benefit retirement plans are determined using the projected unit credit
actuarial method at each closing date. The method used to calculate the liabilities is based on a number of actuarial
assumptions. The discount rate is determined by reference to the rate of return on high-grade private bonds
(AA rated companies). The Group’s liabilities are recognized as a debt on the balance sheet for the fund’s net
amount, which was constituted with an insurer. The actuarial gains and losses are immediately recognized on the
income statement.

Operating income

Sales are recorded as follows:
• sales of assets are recorded at the delivery of the assets and the transfer of the property title;
• transactions involving service provisions are recorded over the period during which the services were provided.

Financial income and expenses

Financial income is generated mainly by dividends received from subsidiaries and investment income from available
cash flow. The gains realised on monetary investments in UCITS are not recorded in the accounting results of the
financial year, but only upon sale of the securities.
A provision for depreciation of the securities may be recognized when justified by the subsidiary’s financial position.

Income tax

As regards corporate taxes, Virbac and all of its French subsidiaries (Virbac France, Alfamed, Interlab, Virbac
Distribution, Virbac Nutrition, Bio Veto Test) come under the tax integration system instituted by article 68 of the
December 30, 1987 law. Each company recognizes as cost the tax relating to its own profits, and retains the right to
incur further losses in the future.
As the sole company liable for taxes, Virbac records the debt or receivable vis-à-vis the Tax office for the taxconsolidated group.
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Statutory auditors’ report
on the financial statements
Year ended December 31, 2014
This is a free translation into English of the statutory auditors’ report issued in the French language and is provided
solely for the convenience of English speaking readers. The statutory auditors’ report includes information
specifically required by French law in all audit reports, whether modified or not, and this is presented below the
opinion on the financial statements. This information includes an explanatory paragraph discussing the auditor’s
assessments of certain significant accounting and auditing matters. These assessments were considered for the
purpose of issuing an audit opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole and not to provide separate
assurance on individual account captions or on information taken outside of the financial statements. This report
should be read in conjunction with, and construed in accordance with, French law and professional auditing
standards applicable in France.
To the shareholders,
pursuant to the engagement entrusted to us by your annual general meeting, we hereby report to you for the year
ended December 31, 2014 on:
• the audit of the accompanying financial statements of Virbac ;
• the justification of our assessments ;
• the specific procedures and disclosures required by law.
These financial statements have been approved by the executive board. Our role is to express an opinion on these
financial statements, based on our audit.

OPINION ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
We conducted our audit in accordance with professional standards applicable in France, those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, using sample testing techniques or other selection methods,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
We certify that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position and the assets and
liabilities of the company as of December 31, 2014 and the results of its operations for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in France.

JUSTIFICATION OF OUR ASSESSMENTS
In accordance with article L823-9 of the French commercial code (Code de commerce) relating to the justification of
our assessments, we bring to your attention the following matters:

Intangible assets
Intangible assets, the net amount of which totals €35,750 thousand as of December 31, 2014, are valued at cost
and impaired based on their value in use in accordance with the methods described in paragraph “Intangible assets”
of “Accounting rules and methods” note to the financial statements.
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Equity investments
Equity investments, the net amount of which totals €238,373 thousand as of December 31, 2014, are valued at cost
and impaired based on their value in use in accordance with the methods described in paragraph “Equity
investments” of “Accounting rules and methods” note to the financial statements.
Based on the information that has been provided to us, our procedures consisted in assessing the data and
assumptions upon which these values in use have been based, in particular, reviewing the update of profitability
forecasts for the relevant activities and the realization of objectives, and reviewing the consistency of the
assumptions used with forecast data taken from the strategic plans prepared for each of these activities under the
supervision of the executive board.
These assessments were performed as part of our audit approach for the financial statements taken as a whole and
contributed to the expression of our opinion in the first part of this report.

Specific procedures and disclosures
We have also performed the other procedures required by law, in accordance with professional standards applicable
in France.
We have no comments to make on the fair presentation and consistency with the financial statements of the
information given in the executive board’s management report and in the documents addressed to the shareholders
with respect to the financial position and the financial statements.
Concerning the information given in accordance with the requirements of article L225-102-1 of the French
commercial code relating to remuneration and benefits received by the corporate officers and any other
commitments made in their favor, we verified the consistency of this information with the financial statements, or
with the underlying information used to prepare these financial statements and, where applicable, with the
information obtained by your company, from companies controlling your company or controlled by it. Based on this
work, we attest that such information is accurate and fair.
Pursuant to the law, we confirmed the communication in the management report of the appropriate disclosures
regarding the identity of holders of share capital and voting rights.
Nice and Marseille, March 31, 2015
The statutory auditors
Novances - David & Associés
French original signed by
Jean-Pierre Giraud

Deloitte & Associés
French original signed by
Hugues Desgranges
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Statutory auditors’ special report on
regulated agreements and commitments
with third parties
Year ended December 31, 2014
This is a free translation into English of the statutory auditors’ special report on regulated agreements and
commitments with third parties that is issued in the French language and is provided solely for the convenience of
English speaking readers. This report on regulated agreements and commitments should be read in conjunction
with, and construed in accordance with, French law and professional auditing standards applicable in France. It
should be understood that the agreements reported on are only those provided by the French Commercial code
(Code de commerce) and that the report does not apply to those related party transactions described in IAS 24 or
other equivalent accounting standards.
To the shareholders,
in our capacity as statutory auditors of your company, we hereby report to you on regulated agreements and
commitments with third parties.
The terms of our engagement require us to communicate to you, based on information provided to us, the principal
terms and conditions of those agreements and commitments brought to our attention or which we may have
discovered during the course of our audit, without expressing an opinion on their usefulness and appropriateness or
identifying other such agreements, if any. It is your responsibility, pursuant to article R225-58 of the French
Commercial code (Code de commerce), to assess the interest involved in respect of the conclusion of these
agreements for the purpose of approving them.
Our role is also to provide you with the information provided for in article L225-58 of the French Commercial code in
respect of the performance of the agreements and commitments, already authorized by the shareholders' meeting
and having continuing effect during the year, if any.
We conducted our procedures in accordance with the professional guidelines of the French National institute of
statutory auditors (Compagnie nationale des commissaires aux comptes) relating to this engagement. These
guidelines require that we agree the information provided to us with the relevant source documents.

AGREEMENTS AND COMMITMENTS SUBMITTED TO THE
APPROVAL OF THE SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING
Agreements and commitments authorised during 2014
Pursuant to article L225-88 of the French Commercial code, the following agreements and commitments, which were
previously authorized by the supervisory board, have been brought to our attention.

Agreement with Absolute Dreamer SARL

Senior executive concerned: Mr. Jean-Pierre Dick, member of the Virbac executive board.
At its meeting of December 17, 2014, the supervisory board approved the signature of a sports sponsorship
agreement and communication with the company Absolute Dreamer SARL, whose general manager is Jean-Pierre
Dick. The purpose of this partnership, is to contribute financially to the participation of a sailboat in various ocean
races such as “Vendée Globe 2016-2017”.
Virbac recorded an expense of €800,000 in respect of this agreement for the year ended December 31, 2014.

Agreements and commitments approved since the end of the last financial year
The following agreements and commitments, which were previously authorized by the supervisory board since the
end of the last financial year, have been brought to our attention.

Senior management termination benefits:

Senior executive concerned: Messrs. Éric Marée, Christian Karst, members of the Virbac executive board.
At its meeting of March 13, 2015, the supervisory board authorized the renewal of senior management termination
benefit provisions under the same terms and conditions as those decided by the supervisory board meeting of
March 5, 2012: termination benefits will only be paid in the event of a forced departure, regardless of whether or not
it is related to a change in control or strategy, and provided that the “current operating income to revenues” ratio
for the two half-years preceding the departure of the relevant senior executive exceeds or is equal to 7%.
In such an event, termination benefits are as follows:
• Mr. Éric Marée:
€483,000
• Mr. Christian Karst: €326,000
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AGREEMENTS AND COMMITMENTS ALREADY APPROVED
BY THE SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING
Agreements and commitments approved during previous years and having continuing
effect in 2014
Pursuant to article R225-57 of the French Commercial code, we have been advised that the following agreements
and commitments, already approved by the shareholders’ meeting in previous years, have had continuing effect
during 2014.

Amendment to the supplementary retirement plan for senior executives:

At its meeting of December 13, 2002, the supervisory board approved, in principle, an amendment to the
supplementary retirement plan for members of the executive board.
The agreement was signed on December 22, 2003 with retroactive effect from January 1, 2003.
As of December 31, 2014, Virbac has a total commitment of €1.727,832 with respect to this plan given the
payments already made. The net expense recorded by the company for fiscal year 2014 amounts to €935,850.

Nice and Marseille, March 31, 2015
The statutory auditors
Novances - David & Associés
French original signed by
Jean-Pierre Giraud

Deloitte & Associés
French original signed by
Hugues Desgranges
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Statement of responsibility for the
annual financial report
I certify, to my knowledge, that the financial statements are prepared in accordance with applicable accounting
standards and give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position, and result of the company and all
companies included in the consolidation, and that the management report presents an accurate picture of the
evolution of the business, result, and financial position of the company and all companies included in the
consolidation as well as a description of the main risks and uncertainties to which they are exposed.
Carros, 23 March 2015
Éric Marée, chairman of the executive board
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Observations of the
supervisory board
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The executive board presented the financial statements and management report for the year ending December 31,
2014 to the supervisory board which duly acquainted itself therewith.
The Group's consolidated revenue of €773.1 million increased by 5.0% compared to 2013, 7.0% at constant rates
and 6.3% at constant rates and scope.
The current operating income of €109.0 million rose by 3.9% compared to 2013. This evolution is largely linked to
organic growth driven by Latin America and Asia/Pacific, but also by Europe and its successful product launches
during the second half of the year.
The result for the period attributable to the owners of the parent company was €63.6 million, up 5.1% over 2013,
thanks to reduced non-recurring expenses and to the share of the result attributable to the non-controlling interest
in Centrovet.
The Group's net debt as at December 31, 2014 rose to €196.6 million prior to the acquisition of Sentinel, i.e. 45.6%
of the shareholders' equity attributable to the parent company's owners.
The share value at closing was €174.30 at the end of 2014, which represents a significant increase of 12.2%
compared to 1 January 2014.
A dividend of €1.90 per share to be distributed will be proposed at the shareholders' meeting, i.e. a distributed
income per share that remains stable compared to 2013.
At its December 17, 2014 meeting, the supervisory board awarded a new three-year mandate to the executive
board members whose terms of office were all expiring.
The supervisory board currently consists of six members, three of whom are independent. They met formally five
times during the year and numerous other times for more informal working sessions. The audit and compensation
committees met three times and one time respectively in 2014.
Pursuant to the policy of staggering terms of office, established by the supervisory board during its meeting on
March 18, 2014 in the interests of conforming to the recommendations of the Afep-Medef Code, the supervisory
board members confirmed the principle of certain members resigning in 2014 and 2015 so that the shareholders'
meeting might re-elect them and thereby rapidly achieve a situation of evenly staggered terms of office.
Consequently, the nomination of Grita Loebsack and the company Asergi, represented by Pierre Madelpuech, for
three-year terms, will be put to the next shareholders' meeting.
The term of office of XYC, represented by Xavier Yon in his capacity as a non-voting advisor, will come to an end at
the next shareholders' meeting, at which time a proposal will be made to reappoint the company.
The supervisory board would like to thank the members of the executive board, the management teams and all Virbac's
employees worldwide for their continued hard work, as well as the shareholders for their loyalty to the Group.
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Resolutions submitted to the ordinary
and extraordinary shareholders’ meeting
of June 24, 2015
WITHIN THE COMPETENCE OF THE
ORDINARY SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING
First resolution: approval of the 2014 statutory financial statements
The shareholders’ meeting, in accordance with quorum and majority requirements for ordinary shareholders’
meetings, after having heard the reports from the executive board, the supervisory board, the chairwoman of the
supervisory board, and the statutory auditors, approves, as they were presented, the statutory financial statements
for the financial year ending December 31, 2014 showing a net result of €48,203,056.34, as well as the transactions
reflected in these financial statements or summarised in said reports.
The shareholders’ meeting also approves the expenditures incurred during the past financial year related to the
transactions that fall within the scope of article 39-4 of the French general tax code representing a total of
€240,600. As a consequence, the shareholders’ meeting grants the members of the executive board full and
unreserved quietus of the execution of their mandate for the aforementioned financial year.

Second resolution: approval of the 2014 consolidated financial statements
The shareholders’ meeting, in accordance with quorum and majority requirements for ordinary shareholders’ meetings,
after having heard the reports from the executive board, the supervisory board and the statutory auditors for the
financial year ending December 31, 2014, approves, as they were presented, the consolidated financial statements for
the said year showing a net result attributable to the owners of the parent company of €63,596,097.
The shareholders’ meeting also approves the transactions reflected in these financial statements or summarised in
said reports.

Third resolution: allocation of the results
The shareholders’ meeting, in accordance with quorum and majority requirements for ordinary shareholders’
meetings, elects to allocate the net result for the year as follows:

in €
Net result for the year

In respect of 2014
48,203,056.34

Retained earnings carried forward

153,230,709.19

Distributable result

201,433,765.53

Distribution of dividends

16,070,200.00

Balance carried forward

32,132,856.34

The dividend distributed to each share with a nominal value of €1.25 is €1.90. The dividend to be distributed will be
detached from the share on June 26, 2015 and will be payable on June 30, 2015.
The shareholders’ meeting decides that, in accordance with the provisions of article L225-210 of the French
commercial code, the total amount of the dividend corresponding to the treasury shares on the date of the dividend
payment will be allocated to the retained earnings account, which will be increased by this amount.
For individual beneficiaries who are natural persons with fiscal residence in France, the dividend is eligible for a 40%
reduction (article 158-3-2 of the French general tax code).
Shareholders are informed that, in accordance with the provisions of article 117 quater of the French general tax
code, natural persons with fiscal residence in France who earn distributed income will be subject to a flat-rate
withholding tax of 21%.
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Pursuant to article 243 bis of the French general tax code, it is recalled that distributions made for the three
previous financial years were as follows:
in €

Dividend per share

Overall distribution

2011

1.75

14,748,377

2012

1.90

16,014,785

2013

1.90

16,011,402

Fourth resolution: regulated agreements and commitments
referred to in article L225-86 of the French commercial code
The shareholders’ meeting, in accordance with quorum and majority requirements for ordinary shareholders’
meetings, having acquainted itself with the special report of the statutory auditors on the agreements and
commitments subject to the provisions of article L225-38 of the French commercial code:
• approves the agreement concluded in financial year 2014 referred to in said report;
• approves the wording of said report and takes note that the regulated agreements and commitments
concluded and previously approved by a shareholders’ meeting and which are referred to therein continued to
be in effect during the previous financial year.

Fifth resolution: appointment of Grita Loebsack as a member of the supervisory board
The shareholders’ meeting, in accordance with quorum and majority requirements for ordinary shareholders’
meetings, decides to appoint Grita Loebsack as a member of the supervisory board for a three-year term, to expire
at the end of the shareholders’ meeting convened to approve the financial statements for the year closing on
December 31, 2017.

Sixth resolution: appointment of Asergi as a member of the supervisory board
The shareholders’ meeting, in accordance with quorum and majority requirements for ordinary shareholders’
meetings, decides to appoint Asergi, represented by Pierre Madelpuech, as a member of the supervisory board for a
three-year term, to expire at the end of the shareholders’ meeting convened to approve the financial statements for
the year closing on December 31, 2017.

Seventh resolution: renewal of the term of office of the non-voting advisor
The shareholders’ meeting, in accordance with quorum and majority requirements for ordinary shareholders’
meetings, renews the term of office of company XYC, represented by Xavier Yon, as non-voting advisor.
The term of office of company XYC will end at the close of the shareholders’ meeting convened to approve the
financial statements of the fiscal year ending December 31, 2015.

Eight resolution: renewal of the commitments referred to in article L225-90-1
of the French commercial code in favour of Éric Marée
The shareholders’ meeting, in accordance with quorum and majority requirements for ordinary shareholder’s
meetings, after having heard the special report of the statutory auditors on the agreements and commitments
governed by the provisions of articles L225-86 and L225-88 of the French commercial code, takes note of the
conclusions of said report and approves, in accordance with the provisions of article L225-90-1 of the French
commercial code, the continuation of the commitments made by the company in favour of Éric Marée corresponding
to the compensation that may be owed as a result of the cessation of his duties in the event of forced departure as
result of a change of strategy or control or not, and subject to performance-related conditions.
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Ninth resolution: renewal of the commitments referred to in article L225-90-1
of the French commercial code in favour of Christian Karst
The shareholders’ meeting, in accordance with quorum and majority requirements for ordinary shareholder’s
meetings, after having heard the special report of the statutory auditors on the agreements and commitments
governed by the provisions of articles L225-86 and L225-88 of the French commercial code, takes note of the
conclusions of said report and approves, in accordance with the provisions of article L225-90-1 of the French
commercial code, the continuation of the commitments made by the company in favour of Christian Karst
corresponding to the compensation that may be owed as a result of the cessation of his duties in the event of forced
departure as result of a change of strategy or control or not, and subject to performance-related conditions.

Tenth resolution: favourable opinion on the compensation components owed or
awarded to Éric Marée, chairman of the executive board
The shareholders’ meeting, in accordance with quorum and majority requirements for ordinary shareholders’
meetings and having been consulted pursuant to the Afep-Medef Corporate governance code for listed companies
(paragraph 24.3), delivers a favourable opinion on the compensation components owed or awarded to Éric Marée,
chairman of the executive board, as indicated in the management report (page 105 and pages 109 to 111) for the
financial year ending December 31, 2014.

Eleventh resolution: favourable opinion on the compensation components owed or
awarded to executive board members
The shareholders’ meeting, in accordance with quorum and majority requirements for ordinary shareholders’
meetings and having been consulted pursuant to the Afep-Medef Corporate governance code for listed companies
(paragraph 24.3), delivers a favourable opinion on the compensation components owed or awarded to the other
members of the executive board, as indicated in the management report (page 105 and pages 109 to 111) for the
financial year ending December 31, 2014.

Twelfth resolution: approval of the total amount of attendance fees allocated to
members of the supervisory board
The shareholders’ meeting, in accordance with quorum and majority requirements for ordinary shareholders’
meetings, elects to grant a sum of €141,000 as attendance fees for the current financial year which will be shared
among the members of the supervisory board.
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Thirteenth resolution: authorisation to be granted to the executive board
to buy back the company’s shares
The shareholders’ meeting, in accordance with quorum and majority requirements for ordinary shareholders’
meetings, after having heard the report from the executive board, authorises the executive board, with the option of
subdelegation, in accordance with the provisions of articles L225-209 et seq. of the French commercial code, to buy
back shares representing up to a maximum of 10% of the company’s share capital on the date of this meeting, in
order to:
• ensure liquidity or support the market price via an independent investment services provider pursuant to a
liquidity agreement in accordance with a code of ethics recognised by the French financial markets authority
(Autorité des marchés financiers);
• proceed with allocation of free performance-related stock grants under the provisions of articles L225-197-1
et seq. of the French commercial code;
• reduce the company’s share capital by cancelling part or all of the shares purchased subject to the adoption
by this ordinary shareholder’s meeting in the fourteenth resolution of the authorisation to reduce the share
capital by cancellation of purchased shares.
The maximum unit purchase price may not exceed €400 per share.
The maximum transaction amount, taking into account the 23,142 shares already held as at February 28, 2015, is
thus set at €329,063,200.
In the event of a capital increase through incorporation of reserves and allocation of performance-related stock
grants, a stock split or reverse stock split, this amount will be adjusted by a multiplier equal to the ratio between the
number of shares in the share capital prior to the transaction and the number after the transaction.
This authorisation which cancels and supersedes any previous authorisation of the same nature, and in particular,
the one granted by the shareholders’ meeting of June 17, 2014 in its twelfth resolution, is granted for a period of 18
months from this meeting.
All powers are conferred to the executive board, with the power of delegation, to place orders, conclude all
agreements, carry out all formalities and declarations with any organisation, in particular the French financial
markets authority and, more generally, to do what will be necessary for the purposes of carrying out transactions
performed in accordance with this authorisation.

WITHIN THE COMPETENCE OF THE
EXTRAORDINARY SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING
Fourteenth resolution: authorisation to the executive board to reduce the share capital
by cancelling the company’s treasury shares
The shareholder’s meeting, in accordance with quorum and majority requirements for extraordinary shareholders’
meetings, after having heard the executive board’s report and the special report by the statutory auditors:
• authorises the executive board to cancel, on one or more occasions, part or all the treasury shares the
company may own now or in future as a result of buybacks carried out under article L225-209 of the French
commercial code up to 10% of the total number of shares per period provided by the law, by transferring the
difference between the purchase price of the shares cancelled and their par value to premiums and available
reserves, including to the statutory reserve up to 10% of the cancelled capital;
• authorises the executive board to recognise the completion of the capital reduction(s), amend the articles of
association accordingly and perform the necessary formalities;
• authorises the executive board to delegate all the powers necessary to implement its decisions in accordance
with the legal provisions in force during the use of this authorisation;
• sets the term of the validity of this authorisation to 26 months as from this shareholders’ meeting.

Fifteenth resolution: authorisation to the executive board to award
free performance-related stock grants
The shareholder’s meeting, in accordance with quorum and majority requirements for extraordinary shareholders’
meetings, after having heard the executive board’s report and the special report of the statutory auditors and in
accordance with articles L225-197-1 et seq. of the French commercial code:
• authorises the executive board to award, on one or more occasions, free performance-related stock grants of
existing Virbac shares to managers or comparable employees, or certain categories thereof, as well as to the
corporate officers referred to in article L225-197-1 of the French commercial code, both from Virbac and the
companies that are either directly or indirectly associated with it according to article L225-197-2 of the French
commercial code;
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• resolves that the total number of performance-related stock grants that may be awarded may not exceed
1% of the share capital of Virbac as valued on the day of the adoption of the award resolution by the executive
board, subject to the regulatory adjustments necessary to protect the rights of the awardees;
• resolves that the final award of the existing performance-related stock grants shall be contingent upon
satisfaction of the individual and collective performance criteria to be defined by the executive board;
• resolves that the awarding of the performance-related stock grants to the awardees shall be final at the end
of a minimum acquisition period of two years;
• resolves that the minimum holding period of the performance-related stock grants by the awardees shall be
two years;
• vests all powers in the executive board, with the option of subdelegation, to implement this authorisation for
the purpose in particular of:
− determining the identity of the awardees or of the category(ies) of awardees of the free performancerelated stock grants among the personnel and the corporate officers of the company or the aforementioned
companies and the number of shares awarded to each of them;
− determining whether the performance criteria according to which the shares would be awarded were
satisfied, and adding, where applicable, all the conditions and criteria that it deems relevant;
− setting the conditions and, where applicable, the criteria for awarding free performance-related stock
grants. For shares awarded to the corporate officers, the supervisory board shall resolve either that the
performance-related stock grants may not be surrendered by the awardees prior to leaving the company, or
shall set the quantity of performance-related stock grants awarded that they must keep as registered shares
until they leave the company;
− having the right to temporarily suspend the award rights;
− setting final awarding dates and the dates as from which the shares may be freely surrendered taking
account of the legal restrictions;
− recording the performance-related stock grants awarded as registered shares in the name of their
awardee, mentioning the holding period and the term of such holding period and lifting the holding period of
the shares for any circumstance for which applicable regulations allow the lifting of the holding period.
• authorises the executive board to provide for the cancellation of the two-year holding period in the event of
the disability of the awardee corresponding to classification in the second or third categories provided in article
L 341-4 of the French Social security code as well as in the event of the death of the awardee;
• authorises the executive board, where applicable, to adjust the number of performance-related stock grants
awarded related to any transactions involving the share capital of Virbac;
• delegates all powers to the executive board, with the option of subdelegation within the statutory limits, to
implement this authorisation, to perform all acts and formalities and make all representations and generally to
do whatever is necessary.
The shareholder’s meeting takes note that all implementations by the executive board of this authorisation shall
require the prior authorisation of the supervisory board.
The shareholder’s meeting takes note of the fact that, if the executive board uses this authorisation, it shall inform
the shareholders’ meeting each year of the transactions carried out under the provisions of articles L225-197-1 to
L225-197-3 of the French commercial code under the conditions provided for in article L225-197-4 of said code.
This authorisation is granted for a period of 38 months as from the day of this shareholders’ meeting and renders
the unused part of the tenth resolution of the combined shareholders’ meeting of June 18, 2012 ineffective.
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Sixteenth resolution: authorisation to the executive board to increase the share capital
by creating cash shares with no preferential subscription rights for the shareholders for
employees who are enrolled in a company savings plan pursuant to article L225-129-6
of the French commercial code.
The shareholders’ meeting, in accordance with the quorum and majority requirements for extraordinary shareholders’
meetings, after having heard the report by the executive board and the special report by the statutory auditors,
authorises the executive board to increase the share capital by a maximum amount of €227,000 pursuant to the
provisions of article L225-129-6 of the French commercial code, by issuing new shares to be paid for in cash and
reserved for the company’s employees who are enrolled in the company savings plan, and to exclude the preferential
subscription right of shareholders in relation to the shares to be issued for the benefit of these employees.
The shareholders’ meeting delegates to the executive board, with the option to subdelegate to the chairman of the
executive board under the conditions provided in article L225-129-4 of the French commercial code, all powers to
set the amount of the capital increase(es) up to the ceiling authorised, the time of their performance and the
conditions and procedures for each increase. It may set the issue price of the new shares in accordance with articles
L3332-18 to L3332-20 of the French Labour code, their method of payment, the subscription deadlines and the
procedures for the exercising of the subscription right by the awardees and determine the conditions, in particular
the years of service that the awardees of the capital increases must satisfy. It may perform all required adjustments
in compliance with the statutory and regulatory provisions, record the completion of the capital increases, amend
the articles of association accordingly, perform the required formalities and generally do whatever is necessary.
The executive board may delegate the power to decide on the completion and postponement of the issue to its
chairman or, in agreement with the latter, to one of the executive board members.
This authorisation is valid for a term of 26 months as from this shareholders’ meeting.

Seventeenth resolution: authorisation to amend article 19.4
of the company’s articles of association
The shareholder’s meeting, in accordance with the quorum and majority requirements for extraordinary shareholders’
meetings, after having heard the executive board’s report, resolves to amend paragraph 2 of article 19.4 of the articles
of association to bring it into compliance with the decree of December 8, 2014 which reduced from three to two days
the date for preparing the list of shareholders authorised to take part in shareholders’ meetings.
“The right to take part in the company’s shareholder’s meeting shall be proved by recording the shares in the name
of the shareholder or the intermediary recorded on its behalf (under the conditions provided in the statutory and
regulatory provisions in effect) on the second day prior to the meeting at midnight, Paris time.”
The remainder of paragraph 2 and article 19.4 remain unchanged.

Eighteenth resolution: powers to carry out formalities
The shareholders’ meeting, in accordance with quorum and majority requirements for ordinary shareholders’
meetings, confers all powers to the bearer of an original, an extract or a copy of these minutes in order to complete
all formalities provided by law.
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Statutory auditors’ report
on the capital decrease
This is a free translation into English of the statutory auditors’ report issued in French and is provided solely for the
convenience of English speaking readers.
This report should be read in conjunction and construed in accordance with French law and professional auditing
standards applicable in France.
Combined shareholders’ meeting of June 24, 2015

Fourteenth resolution
To the shareholders,
in our capacity as statutory auditors of your company and in accordance with the procedures provided for in article
L225-209 of the French commercial code (Code de commerce) on the decrease in share capital by the cancellation of
shares purchased, we hereby report to you on our assessment of the reasons for and the terms and conditions of
the proposed decrease in share capital.
Shareholders are requested to confer all necessary powers on the executive board, during a period of 26 months, to
cancel, up to a maximum of 10% of its share capital by 24-month periods, the shares purchased by the company
pursuant to the authorisation to purchase its own shares as part of the provisions of the aforementioned article.
We performed the procedures that we considered necessary in accordance with the professional guidelines of the
French National institute of statutory auditors (Compagnie nationale des commissaires aux comptes) applicable to
this engagement. Our procedures consisted, in particular, in verifying the fairness of the reasons for and the terms
and conditions of the proposed decrease in share capital, and ensuring that it does not interfere with the equal
treatment of shareholders.
We have no comments on the reasons for and the terms and conditions of the proposed decrease in share capital.

Nice and Marseille, March 31, 2015
The statutory auditors
Novances-David & Associés
Jean-Pierre GIRAUD
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Statutory auditors’ special
report on the granting of
existing or newly-issued
shares
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This is a free translation into English of the statutory auditors’ report issued in French and is provided solely for the
convenience of English speaking readers.
This report should be read in conjunction and construed in accordance with French law and professional auditing
standards applicable in France.
Combined shareholders’ meeting of June 24, 2015

Fifteenth resolution
To the shareholders,
as statutory auditors of your company and in accordance with article L225-197-1 of the French commercial code
(Code de commerce), we have prepared this report on the proposed authorisation to grant existing or newly-issued
shares for no consideration to salaried employees and corporate officers of your company and its affiliates, a
transaction on which you are asked to decide.
It is stipulated that the total number of shares to be granted for no consideration pursuant to this authorisation may
not exceed 1% of the company’s share capital on the grant date.
Your executive board recommends that, having considered its report, you confer on it the authority to grant existing
or newly-issued shares for no consideration and for a period of 38 months.
The executive board is responsible for preparing a report on this transaction which it wishes to carry out. Our role is
to inform you of our comments, if any, on the information thus given to you on the proposed transaction.
We performed the procedures that we considered necessary in accordance with the professional guidelines of the
French National institute of statutory auditors (Compagnie nationale des commissaires aux comptes) applicable to
this engagement. Such procedures consisted in verifying that the proposed conditions as given in the executive
board’s report comply with legal provisions.
We have no comments on the information given in the executive board’s report in respect of the proposed granting
of shares for no consideration.

Nice and Marseille, March 31, 2015
The statutory auditors
Novances-David & Associés
Jean-Pierre GIRAUD

Deloitte & Associés
Hugues DESGRANGES
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Statutory auditors’ report on the share
capital increase reserved for
participants in corporate savings plans
This is a free translation into English of the statutory auditors’ report issued in French and is provided solely for the
convenience of English speaking readers.
This report should be read in conjunction and construed in accordance with French law and professional auditing
standards applicable in France.
Combined shareholders’ meeting of June 24, 2015

Sixteenth resolution
To the shareholders,
as statutory auditors of your company and pursuant to articles L225-135 et seq. of the French commercial code
(Code de commerce), we hereby report to you on the proposed share capital increase via the issue of shares of
ordinary shares with cancellation of preferential subscription rights in a maximum amount of €227,000, reserved for
participants in corporate savings plans, a transaction on which you are asked to decide.
You are asked to approve this share capital increase pursuant to articles L225-129-6 of the French commercial code
and L.3332-18 et seq. of the French labor code (Code du travail).
Your executive board recommends that, having considered its report, you confer on it, for a period of 26 months,
the authority to set the terms and conditions of this transaction and that you consider waiving your preferential
subscription rights.
It is the executive board’s responsibility to prepare a report in accordance with articles R225-113 and R225-114 of
the French commercial code. Our role is to express an opinion on the fairness of the quantified data derived from the
financial statements, on the proposed cancellation of preferential subscription rights and on certain other information
pertaining to the issue, as presented in this report.
We performed the procedures that we considered necessary in accordance with the professional guidelines of the
French National institute of statutory auditors (Compagnie nationale des commissaires aux comptes) applicable to
this engagement. Such procedures consisted in verifying the content of the executive board’s report as it relates to
this transaction and the conditions in which the issue price of the equity securities to be issued was determined.
Subject to the subsequent review of the terms and conditions of the proposed share capital increase, we have no
comments on the methods used to determine the price of the shares of ordinary shares to be issued, as presented in
the executive board’s report.
As the terms and conditions of the share capital increase have yet to be determined, we cannot express an opinion
on such increase nor, accordingly, on the proposed cancellation of preferential subscription rights on which you are
asked to decide.
In accordance with article R225-116 of the French commercial code, we shall issue a supplementary report, if
applicable, when the share capital increase is performed by the executive board.

Nice and Marseille, March 31, 2015
The statutory auditors
Novances-David & Associés
Jean-Pierre GIRAUD
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Glossary – Product names
The product names stated in the annual report and listed below are subject to protection in particular in respect of
trademarks. Virbac and/or its subsidiaries are the owners or have exclusive use of them. All medicines or products
mentioned in this document can be not authorised or not marketed in all the countries including France.

Agrimin

food supplement for cattle

Anxitane

L-theanine-based food supplement prescribed for behaviour disorders in dogs and cats

CaniLeish

vaccine against canine leishmaniosis

Carprox

carprofen-based tablets for dogs to reduce the inflammation and pain caused by musculoskeletal disorders and
degenerative joint disease

Cortavance

hydrocortisone aceponate-based corticoid spray with targeted action for inflammatory dermatosis in dogs

Curacef duo

injectable suspension combining ceftiofur and ketoprofen prescribed for treating respiratory diseases in cattle

Cyclavance

ciclosporin-based oral solution prescribed for treating atopic dermatitis in dogs

Deltanil

deltamethrin-based topical parasiticide for cattle and sheep

Donoban

multivalent vaccine for the prevention of respiratory diseases in swine

Easotic

auricular treatment for otitis in dogs which can be administered over 360° with a non-traumatic cannula combining
miconazole, gentamicin and hydrocortisone aceponate

Effipro

fipronil-based external parasiticide for treating flea and tick infestations in dogs and cats

Effitix

external parasiticide combining permethrin and fipronil for treating tick, flea and mosquito infestations in dogs

Epiotic

ear cleanser used for dogs and cats

Equimax

broad spectrum horse wormer in oral gel or chewable tablet form combining ivermectin and praziquantel

Floron

florfenicol-based injectable solution prescribed for the prevention and treatment of respiratory diseases in cattle

Flukazole C

internal parasiticide in cattle and sheep for the control of benzimidazole-sensitive worms

Gastrozol

oral paste for horses

Grofactor

zilpaterol-based growth promoter for cattle

Indorex

range of household flea sprays and foggers

Iverhart

range of internal broad-spectrum parasiticides in chewable tablet form for use in dogs to prevent canine heartworm
disease and for the treatment of roundworms (as well as tapeworms for Iverhart Max)
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Mastinject

injectable antibiotic prescribed for treating mastitis and respiratory diseases in cattle

Milpro

internal parasiticide tablets for dogs and cats combining praziquantel and milbemycin for the prevention of canine
heartworm disease and for the treatment of roundworms and tapeworms

Milteforan

miltefosine-based oral treatment for canine leishmaniosis

Multimin

trace element injectable supplement for food producing animals

Neoprinil

eprinomectin-based pour-on solution for cattle prescribed for treating infestations mainly by gastro-intestinal
roundworms and pulmonary strongyles

Novifit

tablets to support cognitive function of aging dogs and cats

Ostovet

food supplement for cattle

Penclox

dual combination of penicillin and cloxacillin antibiotic intramammary targeting common bacteria causing mastitis in
dairy cattle

Phenix

food supplement for poultry

Preventic

amitraz-based insecticide collar for dogs

Prodose

range of anthelmintics for food producing animals

Pronefra

food supplement to support the renal function in dogs and cats in case of chronic kidney disease

Rilexine

cephalexin-based antibiotic. In tablets: prescribed for treating skin infections in dogs and urinary infections in cats.
Injectable: prescribed for treating chronic and acute mastitis in dairy cows

Sentinel Flavor Tabs and Sentinel Spectrum

polyvalent parasiticide tablets for dogs to prevent canine heartworm disease and for the treatment of roundworms (as
well as tapeworms for Sentinel Spectrum) and flea infestations

Shotapen

combination of antibiotics prescribed for first-line treatment of numerous bacterial infections in food producing
animals

Soloxine

hormone prescribed for treating canine hypothyroidism

Speed Leish K

diagnosis test detecting circulating antibodies directed against the kinesins of Leishmania

Suprelorin

slow release subcutaneous deslorelin-based implant for the induction of temporary infertility in male dogs

Suramox

antibiotic prescribed for treating respiratory diseases in pigs and poultry

Tylaxen

tylosin-based injectable solution prescribed for treating respiratory diseases in food producing animals

Tylosin

soluble oral powder antibiotic prescribed for preventing avian mycoplasmosis
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Circovirus vaccine (PCV2)

vaccine against porcine circovirus

Vetflurane

isoflurane-based general anesthetic

Vet Complex

specialised petfood for dogs and cats

Zoletil

multi-species general anesthetic
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